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Sublessee has abandoned or vacated the 
Subleased Premises or n o t i f i e d the Sublessor 
of any other address. A t t e n t i o n : Legal 
Department 

w i t h a copy t o : N/A 

| 15.2 When t h i s Sublease re q u i r e s service of a n o t i c e , t h a t n o t i c e s h a l l 
replace r a t h e r than supplement any equivalent or s i m i l a r s t a t u t o r y n o t i c e , 

t'ncluciing any notices required by Code of c i v i l Procedure Section 1161 or any 
i m i l & r or successor s t a t u t e . When a s t a t u t e requires service of a n o t i c e i n a 
a r t i c u l a r manner, service of t h a t n o t i c e (or a s i m i l a r n o t i c e required by t h i s 

Sublease) s h a l l replace and s a t i s f y the s t a t u t o r y s e r v i c e - o f - n o t i c e procedures, 

Including those required by Code of C i v i l Procedure Section 1162 or any s i m i l a r 
r successor s t a t u t e 

I 
ARTICLE 16 

ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS 

£ 16.1 Sublessor Made Party to L i t i g a t i o n . I f Sublessor becomes a pa r t y to 
•ny l i t i g a t i o n brought by someone other than Sublessee and concerning t h i s 
"ublease, the Subleased Premises, or Sublessee's use and occupancy of the 
Subleased Premises to the extent, based upon any r e a l 

I 
I 
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l l e g e d act or omission of Sublessee or i t s authorized r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s , 
Sublessee s h a l l be l i a b l e t o Sublessor f o r reasonable attorneys* fees and court 

f r o s t s i n c u r r e d by Sublessor i n the l i t i g a t i o n . 

16.2 Certain L i t i g a t i o n Between the P a r t i e s . I n the event any a c t i o n or 

froceeding at law or i n e q u i t y or any a r b i t r a t i o n proceeding be i n s t i t u t e d by 
i t h e r p a r t y , f o r an al l e g e d breach of any o b l i g a t i o n of Sublessee under t h i s 
ublease, t o recover r e n t , t o terminate the tenancy of Sublessee at the 

Subleased Premises, or t o enforce, p r o t e c t , or e s t a b l i s h any r i g h t or remedy of 
m. p a r t y t o t h i s Sublease Agreement, the p r e v a i l i n g p a r t y (by judgment or 
Se t t l e m e n t ) i n such a c t i o n or proceeding s h a l l be e n t i t l e d t o recover as p a r t of 
™uch a c t i o n or proceeding such reasonable at t o r n e y s ' fees, expert witness fees, 
and1 court costs as may be f i x e d by the court or j u r y , but t h i s p r o v i s i o n s h a l l 

Iot apply t o any cross-complaint f i l e d by anyone other than Sublessor i n such 
c t i o n or proceeding. 

1
16.3 Sublessor's Costs. I n any case where Sublessee requests permission 

rom Sublessor t o assign, s u b l e t , make a l t e r a t i o n s , or receive any other consent 
r o b t a i n any waiver from or m o d i f i c a t i o n t o the terms of t h i s Sublease, 

Sublessee s h a l l pay t o Sublessor a reasonable a d m i n i s t r a t i v e charge and 

Iublessor's reasonable attorney's fees i n c u r r e d by Sublessor i n reviewing such 
equest. 

I 
ARTICLE 17 

LETTER OF CREDIT 

( L e t t e r of C r e d i t . I n l i e u of the cash Security Deposit set f o r t h i n 
e c t i o n 4.1 above, Sublessee may provide t o Sublessor an u n c o n d i t i o n a l , 

i r r e v o c a b l e L e t t e r of Cr e d i t ("Letter of Credit") i n the amount of Two Hundred 
Fourteen Thousand Six Hundred Fifty-Seven and 35/100 Dollars ($214,657.35) i n 

Iavor of Sublessor and issued by a bank reasonably acceptable t o Sublessor 
"T'ssuer")- The L e t t e r of Credit s h a l l (1) be f u l l y t r a n s f e r a b l e by Sublessor 

without payment of t r a n s f e r fees, (2) permit m u l t i p l e drawings, and (3) provide 
hat draws, i n c l u d i n g p a r t i a l draws, at Sublessor's e l e c t i o n , w i l l be honored 
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on the d e l i v e r y t o the Issuer a c e r t i f i c a t e signed by Sublessor, or i t s 

authorized agent, t h a t Sublessor i s e n t i t l e d t o make the requested draw pursuant 
i o the terms of the Sublease. The L e t t e r of Credit i s t o be issued pursuant t o 
BsP98 r a t h e r than UCP 500. I f Sublessee f a i l s t o pay Rent or any other sums as 
^ i d when due hereunder, or otherwise d e f a u l t s w i t h respect to any p r o v i s i o n of 
t h i s .Sublease, Sublessor may (but s h a l l not be o b l i g a t e d to) use, apply or 
• s t a i n a l l or any p o r t i o n of the L e t t e r of Credit f o r payment of any sum f o r 
Mhich Sublessee i s o b l i g a t e d or which w i l l compensate Sublessor f o r any loss or 
damage which Sublessor may s u f f e r thereby. Any draw or p a r t i a l draw of the 

te t t e r of Credit s h a l l not c o n s t i t u t e a waiver by Sublessor of i t s r i g h t t o 
nforce i t s other remedies hereunder, at law or i n equity. I f any p o r t i o n of the 
e t t e r of Credit i s drawn upon, Sublessee s h a l l , w i t h i n ten (10) days a f t e r 

d e l i v e r y of w r i t t e n demand from Sublessor, r e s t o r e said L e t t e r of Credit t o i t s «r i g i n a l amount. The L e t t e r of Credit s h a l l be i n e f f e c t f o r the e n t i r e term of 
his Sublease plus s i x t y (60) days beyond the e x p i r a t i o n of the Sublease term. 
he1 L e t t e r of Credit w i l l a u t o m a t i c a l l y renew each year during the Sublease term 

unless the b e n e f i c i a r y under the L e t t e r of Credit i s given at l e a s t t h i r t y (30) 

Iays p r i o r n o t i c e of a non-renewal by the i s s u i n g bank, and Sublessor s h a l l be 
ble t o draw on the L e t t e r of Credit i n the event of such n o t i c e . The p a r t i e s 

agree t h a t the p r o v i s i o n s of C i v i l Code Sections 1950.7 and 1951.7 do not apply 
o the L e t t e r of Credit or any proceeds from the L e t t e r of Cre d i t . 
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ARTICLE 18 

EXHIBITS 

E x h i b i t s and Attachments. A l l e x h i b i t s and attachments t o t h i s Sublease 
re a pa r t hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Sublessor and Sublessee have executed and d e l i v e r e d 
±his Sublease on the date f i r s t set f o r t h above. 

UBLESSOR 

I*TRADE Consumer Finance Corp., 
Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n 

J y : /s/ [ILLEGIBLE] 

j|tS': C-T-0-/C-A-G-

J y : /s/ [ILLEGIBLE] 

Jts: C.O.O. 

I 

SUBLESSEE 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation, 
a C a l i f o r n i a c o r p o r a t i o n 

By: /s/ IAN B. CARTER 

I t s : CEO 

By: I s / JOHN A. BARTHROP 

I t s : Secretary 

I 
1 
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EXHIBIT A 

SUBLEASED PREMISES 
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[FLOOR PLAN] 

600 ANTON BOULEVARD, COSTA MESA, CA: 20TH FLOOR 

[FLOOR PLAN] 

600 ANTON BOULEVARD, COSTA MESA, CA: 21ST FLOOR 

EXHIBIT B 

MASTER LEASE 

EXHIBIT C 

FURNITURE 

EXHIBIT D 

BILL OF SALE 

BILL OF SALE 

By t h i s B i l l of Sale w i t h the e f f e c t i v e date of 
( t h e " E f f e c t i v e Date") and f o r the cons i d e r a t i o n of One Dollars ($1.00) hereby 

Acknowledged as received, E*TRADE F i n a n c i a l Corp., a Delaware co r p o r a t i o n 
B ".SELLER") does hereby u n c o n d i t i o n a l l y convey, t r a n s f e r and d e l i v e r t o and 
"tommonwealth Energy Corporation, a ("BUYER") a l l 
r i g h t , t i t l e and i n t e r e s t t o t h a t c e r t a i n personal property set f o r t h i n E x h i b i t 

I i attached hereto, and without warranty except as to t i t l e , and "as i s " and 
'where i s " i n a l l respects. 

This B i l l of Sale s h a l l i n a l l respects be governed by, and construed i n 
ccordance w i t h the laws of the State of C a l i f o r n i a , i n c l u d i n g a l l matters of 
o n s t r u c t i o n , v a l i d i t y and performance. 

| IN WITNESS WHEREOF, t h i s B i l l of Sale i s executed as of the E f f e c t i v e Date. 

SELLER 

I:*TRADE F i n a n c i a l Corp., a 
Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n 

I 
I 
I 
I 
1 

t s 

EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT E 

ENTRY AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 

T h i s E n t r y and I n d e m n i t y Agreement ( t h e "Agreement" ) i s e n t e r e d i n t o as o f 
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May 2004 (the " E f f e c t i v e Date") between E*TRADE CONSUMER FINANCE CORP. 
Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n fka GANIS CREDIT CORPORATION ("Licensor"), and 
Commonwealth Energy Corporation, a C a l i f o r n i a c o r p o r a t i o n ("Licensee"). 

A. Deutsche F i n a n c i a l Services Corporation, a Nevada c o r p o r a t i o n , as 
"Lessee" entered t h a t c e r t a i n Lease Agreement dated on May 15, 1999, w i t h 600 

!

hton Boulevard Associates, a C a l i f o r n i a general p a r t n e r s h i p ("Master Lessor") 
s amended by t h a t c e r t a i n F i r s t Amendment t o lease made and entered i n t o the 
6th day of February, 2001 (the " F i r s t Amendment") and assigned t o Licensor's 

jredecessor i n i n t e r e s t Ganis Credit Corporation, a C a l i f o r n i a c o r p o r a t i o n (the 
Assignee"). The O r i g i n a l Lease, the F i r s t Amendment and the Assignment are 
o l l e c t i v e l y r e f e r r e d t o herein as the "Master Lease". 

I B. Licensor and Licensee have executed t h a t c e r t a i n Sublease Agreement 
ated May , 2004 ("Sublease Agreement") w i t h respect t o the Subleased Premises 
\as defined i n the Sublease Agreement) c o n s i s t i n g of approximately 38,677 square 
f e e t of space c o n s i s t i n g of the e n t i r e 20th and 21st f l o o r s of the b u i l d i n g 

jjnown as Plaza Tower, located at 600 Anton Boulevard, Costa Mesa, C a l i f o r n i a . 

f 
C. The Master Lease requires t h a t the Master Lessor consent t o the 

u b l e a s e Agreement. 

D. P r i o r t o r e c e i p t of Master Lessor's consent t o the Sublease Agreement, 
Licensee desires t o enter upon the Subleased Premises f o r the purpose of 

^ n s t a l l i n g Licensee's f u r n i t u r e , f i x t u r e s and communication equipment 

E. Licensor i s w i l l i n g t o allow Licensee a l i m i t e d l i c e n s e on the Sublease 
remises, but only i n accordance w i t h the terms of t h i s Agreement. f F. Terms not defined herein s h a l l have the meanings set f o r t h i n the 

Sublease Agreement. 

1 I n t h i s f a c t u a l context, the p a r t i e s agree as f o l l o w s : 

1. L i m i t e d License. Licensor grants Licensee a l i m i t e d and revocable 

Sicense t o enter upon the Subleased Premises s o l e l y f o r the l i m i t e d the purposes 
f i n s t a l l i n g Licensee's f u r n i t u r e , f i x t u r e s and communication equipment (the 

"Permitted A c t i v i t i e s " ) . A l l a c t i v i t i e s at the Subleased Premises s h a l l be at 

ticensee's sole cost and expense and at Licensee's sole r i s k . The lic e n s e term 
h a l l continue u n t i l the Commencement Date of the Sublease Agreement, but i n no 
vent s h a l l the l i c e n s e extend beyond August 1, 2004 (the "License Period"). The 

approval by Licensor of any Permitted A c t i v i t y s h a l l not be deemed i n any way t o 

tb l i g a t e Licensor i n the event the Master Lessor does not consent t o the 
ublease or the Permitted A c t i v i t i e s . 

1 
2. Conduct of A c t i v i t i e s . Licensee s h a l l not conduct any a c t i v i t i e s other 

>han the Permitted A c t i v i t i e s at the Subleased Premises and the Permitted 
c t i v i t i e s s h a l l be conducted i n f u l l compliance w i t h each law, zoning 

r e s t r i c t i o n , ordinance, r u l e , r e g u l a t i o n or requirement of any governmental or 
ua'si-governmental agency w i t h j u r i s d i c t i o n over the Subleased Premises. 

f 3. I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n . Licensee s h a l l not permit any mechanic's or other 
l i e n s t o be f i l e d against the Subleased Premises, the Premises or the B u i l d i n g 

m,s .a r e s u l t of i t s or i t s r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s ' actions and Licensee at i t s sole cost 
• s h a l l cause any l i e n s so f i l e d t o be removed w i t h i n f i v e (5) days a f t e r n o t i c e 
™ f f i l i n g , 'by bond or otherwise. Licensee at i t s sole cost s h a l l indemnify, 
p r o t e c t , defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable t o Licensor and Master 

Iessor), release, waive and hold harmless Licensor and Master Lessor, and t h e i r 
rustees, d i r e c t o r s o f f i c e r s , b e n e f i c i a r i e s , employees and agents, from and 

against any claims, l i a b i l i t i e s and expenses, i n c l u d i n g without l i m i t a t i o n , 
easonable at t o r n e y s ' fees and costs of defense and costs and expenses of a l l 
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perts and consultants, a r i s i n g d i r e c t l y or i n d i r e c t l y , i n whole or i n p a r t , 

out of any act or omission i n connection w i t h the Subleased Premises by or on 

is h a l f of Licensee or i t s employees, i n v i t e e s , agents or c o n t r a c t o r s , or i n 
onnection w i t h - o r r e s u l t i n g from Licensee's entry on the Subleased Premises, or 
h connection w i t h Licensee's f a i l u r e t o r e s t o r e the Subleased Premises i f 

r e q u i r e d to do so pursuant t o Section 10 below. This indemnity s h a l l survive the 
g e r m i n a t i o n or e x p i r a t i o n of t h i s Agreement. 

4. Insurance. P r i o r t o any e n t r y onto the Subleased Premises, Licensee 

fh a l l o b t a i n and provide s a t i s f a c t o r y evidence of coverage of the insurance 
equired under the Master Lease. Such insurance s h a l l name Licensor and Master 
essor as an a d d i t i o n a l insureds. Licensee s h a l l maintain t h i s p o l i c y i n e f f e c t 

so long as t h i s Agreement i s outstanding. 

t 5. A t t o r n e y s 1 Fees. I f any l e g a l a c t i o n or other proceeding i s commenced 
hich i s r e l a t e d t o t h i s Agreement, the l o s i n g p a r t y s h a l l pay the p r e v a i l i n g 

p a rty's a c t u a l a t t o r n e y s ' fees and expenses i n c u r r e d i n the p r e p a r a t i o n f o r , 

Ionduct of or appeal or enforcement of judgment from the proceeding. The phrase 
p r e v a i l i n g p a r t y " s h a l l mean the p a r t y who i s determined i n the proceeding to 

have p r e v a i l e d or who p r e v a i l s by d i s m i s s a l , d e f a u l t or otherwise. 

1 6. Waiver or Amendment. No amendment of or waiver of any o b l i g a t i o n under 
his Agreement w i l l be enforceable unless set f o r t h i n a w r i t i n g signed by the 

p a r t y against which enforcement i s sought. • f 7. Notices. A l l n o t i c e s , consents, requests, demands or other communications t o or upon the respective p a r t i e s s h a l l be i n w r i t i n g and s h a l l fe e f f e c t i v e f o r a l l purposes upon r e c e i p t on any business day before 5:00 PM ocal time and on the next business day i f received a f t e r 5:00 PM or on other han a business day, i n c l u d i n g without l i m i t a t i o n , i n the case o f ( i ) personal d e l i v e r y , ( i i ) d e l i v e r y by messenger, express or a i r c o u r i e r or s i m i l a r c o u r i e r , • I i i i ) d e l i v e r y by United States f i r s t class c e r t i f i e d or r e g i s t e r e d m a i l , Postage prepaid and ( i v ) t r a n s m i t t a l by t e l e c o p i e r or f a c s i m i l e , addressed as t o l l o w s : 
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To Licensor: 

With a copy t o 

To Licensee: 

Mark Ravesloot 
Executive Vice President 
CB Richard E l l i s 
200 Park Avenue 
New York, NY 10166 

Hopkins & Carley 
70 S F i r s t Street 
San Jose, CA 951139 
A t t e n t i o n : J u l i e A. Frambach, Esq, 

m t h i s s e c t i o n "business days" means days other than Saturdays, Sundays, and 
f e d e r a l and s t a t e l e g a l holidays. E i t h e r p a r t y may change i t s address by w r i t t e n 

• i o t i c e t o the other i n the manner set f o r t h above. Receipt of communications by 
ftnited States f i r s t class or r e g i s t e r e d mail w i l l be s u f f i c i e n t l y evidenced by 
r e t u r n r e c e i p t . I n the case of i l l e g i b l e or otherwise unreadable f a c s i m i l e 

t r a n s m i s s i o n s , the r e c e i v i n g p a r t y s h a l l promptly n o t i f y the t r a n s m i t t i n g p a r t y 
m f any transmission problem and the t r a n s m i t t i n g p a r t y s h a l l promptly resend any 
" - f f e c t e d pages. 

1 8. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement i s binding upon, and inures t o 
he b e n e f i t of, the p a r t i e s and t h e i r respective successors and assigns. 

I 
9. Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, 
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Jach of which s h a l l be deemed an o r i g i n a l , and counterpart signature pages may 
be assembled t o form a s i n g l e o r i g i n a l document. For t h i s purpose, f a c s i m i l e 
signature pages s h a l l be considered equivalent t o ink o r i g i n a l s . 
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i 10. Restoration. I f Master Lessor does not consent t o the Sublease 
Agreement on or before , w i t h i n ten (10) business days a f t e r such 

Iate. Licensee promptly s h a l l r e s t o r e the Subleased Premises t o i t s c o n d i t i o n as 
f the E f f e c t i v e Date hereof i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n the removal of 

licensee's f u r n i t u r e and equipment (excluding any of Licensor 1s equipment) from 
the Subleased Premises and vacate the Subleased Premises. Licensee may remain i n 

Ihe Subleased Premises f o r the purpose of complying w i t h the pr o v i s i o n s of t h i s 
e c t i o n u n t i l the l a s t day of the ten business (10) day period set f o r t h i n t h i s 

paragraph 10. 

( 11. Due A u t h o r i t y . I f Licensee signs as a cor p o r a t i o n , each of the persons 
xecuting t h i s Agreement on behalf of Licensee represent and warrant t h a t they 

have the a u t h o r i t y t o bind Licensee, Licensee has been and i s q u a l i f i e d t o do 

Iusiness i n the State where the Subleased Premises i s located, t h a t the 
o r p o r a t i o n has f u l l r i g h t and a u t h o r i t y t o enter i n t o t h i s Agreement, and t h a t 

a l l persons s i g n i n g on behalf of the corp o r a t i o n were authorized to do so by 

(p p r o p r i a t e c o r p o r a t s a c t i o n s . I f L i c e n s e e s i g n s as a p a r t n e r s h i p , t r u s t o r 
t h e r l e g a l e n t i t y , each of the persons executing t h i s Agreement on behalf of 
icensee represent and warrant t h a t they have the a u t h o r i t y t o bind Licensee, 

Licensee has complied w i t h a l l a p p l i c a b l e laws, rules and 

I 
iovernmental r e g u l a t i o n s r e l a t i v e t o i t s r i g h t t o do business i n the State where 

he Subleased Premises i s located and that such e n t i t y on behalf of the Licensee 
was authorized t o do so by any and a l l appropriate p a r t n e r s h i p , t r u s t or other 

^ c t i o n s . Licensee agrees t o f u r n i s h promptly upon request a corporate 
M-esolution, proof of due a u t h o r i z a t i o n by partners, or other appropriate 
documentation evidencing the a u t h o r i z a t i o n of Licensee to enter i n t o t h i s 
Agreement. 

I 
• IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the p a r t i e s have executed t h i s Agreement as of the 
E f f e c t i v e Date. tICENSQR: 
*TRADE CONSUMER FINANCE CORP., 
CORPORATION fka GANIS CREDIT 

• JORPORATION 

By: 

i 
i 
i 
i 

LICENSEE: 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY 
CORPORATION 
a C a l i f o r n i a c o r p o r a t i o n 

By: 
I t s : 

BY: 
I t s : 

EXHIBIT 10.32 

REVISED SECURITY AGREEMENT 

( THIS REVISED SECURITY AGREEMENT, dated October 27, 2004, ( t h i s 
Agreement") i s by and between Commonwealth Energy Corporation, a C a l i f o r n i a 

c o r p o r a t i o n , l o c a t e d at 600 Anton Boulevard, Suite 2000, Costa Mesa, C a l i f o r n i a 

f2626 (the "Debtor") and DTE Energy Trading, Inc., a Michigan c o r p o r a t i o n , 
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( o c a t e d at 414 South Main Stre e t , Suite 200, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48104 (the 
"Secured P a r t y " ) . This Revised S e c u r i t y Agreement replaces the Se c u r i t y 
greement dated July 24, 2002 between Debtor and Secured Party. 

I RECITALS 

I A. Debtor and Secured Party are p a r t i e s t o several agreements: ( i ) an EEI 
ower Purchase and Sale Agreement, da-ted July 1,2003, between Debtor and Secured 

Party, together w i t h a l l Transactions and Confirmations from time to time 
J:hereto (as the same may be amended, extended or replaced from time t o time, 
• t h e "Master Agreement"); ( i i ) a Revised Escrow Agreement, dated October 27,2004 
•etween and among Standard Federal Bank (the "Escrow Agent"), Debtor and Secured 
Party (the "Revised Escrow Agreement"); and ( i i i ) a Revised Operating Agreement 

• i a t e d October 27,2004 between Debtor and Secured Party (the "Revised Operating 
•.greement"). The Master Agreement, the Revised Escrow Agreement and the Revised 
o p e r a t i n g Agreement, together w i t h t h i s Revised S e c u r i t y Agreement, are each 
r e f e r r e d t o herein as a "Transaction Agreement" and are c o l l e c t i v e l y r e f e r r e d t o 

J i e r e i n as the "Transaction Agreements"). 

B. As s e c u r i t y f o r the performance and observance by Debtor of i t s 

fb l i g a t i o n s under t h e T r a n s a c t i o n Agreements, Debtor has agreed t o g r a n t t o 
ecured Party a s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t i n c e r t a i n of Debtor's assets r e l a t e d t o the 
e t a i l sales customers ("RSC's") of Debtor t o be served pursuant to the Master 

Agreement. 

f NOW, THEREFORE, i n co n s i d e r a t i o n of the premises and the mutual agreements 
"contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration the r e c e i p t and 
dequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the p a r t i e s hereto agree as f o l l o w s : 

f AGREEMENT 

» I n c o n s i d e r a t i o n of the f a c t s set f o r t h i n the R e c i t a l s , the execution and 
e l i v e r y of the Transaction Agreements, and f o r other good and valuable 

c o n s i d e r a t i o n , the r e c e i p t and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, Debtor 
hereby agrees w i t h and f o r the b e n e f i t of Secured Party as f o l l o w s : 

1. DEFINED TERMS 

I The terms "Accounts", "Deposit Accounts", "Investment Property" and 
General I n t a n g i b l e s " s h a l l have the meanings ascribed t o them i n the Uniform 
ommercial Code as adopted by the State o f Michigan. Other c a p i t a l i z e d terms not 

otherwise defined herein s h a l l have the same meanings as i n the Master Agreement 
^ m l e s s the context d i c t a t e s otherwise. 

2. CREATION OF SECURITY INTEREST 

I l n order t o the secure the f u l l and prompt payment, performance and 
bservance by Debtor of a l l of i t s du t i e s and o b l i g a t i o n s under any of the 

Transaction Agreements ( c o l l e c t i v e l y , the " O b l i g a t i o n s " ) , Debtor does hereby 
•brant t o and create i n favor of the Secured Party, i t s successors and assigns, a 
R r e s e n t and cont i n u i n g f i r s t p r i o r i t y s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t i n : (a) a l l contracts 
and agreements 

I 
^etween Debtor and any RSC f o r which Secured Party i s p r o v i d i n g wholesale 
• s l e e t r i c energy and r e l a t e d services t o serve such RSC i n c l u d i n g , without 
l i m i t a t i o n , those co n t r a c t s and agreements l i s t e d on Attachment 1 hereto, as the 
same may be amended from time t o time ( c o l l e c t i v e l y , the "RSC Cont r a c t s " ) ; (b) 

fl l Accounts a r i s i n g from, and r e l a t e d t o , the RSC Contracts, including., without 
i m i t a t i o n , a l l accounts re c e i v a b l e from an RSC f o r which Secured Party i s 

p r o v i d i n g energy f o r purchases of e l e c t r i c energy and r e l a t e d services and any 
ther r i g h t of Secured Party to payment from an RSC i n whatever form, a l l 
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Jiether now owned or existing or hereafter arising or acquired ( c o l l e c t i v e l y , 
the "Secured Party Accounts"); (c) a l l cash and other funds deposited i n Deposit 

Ccount Number #1054515459 {the "Lockbox Account"), maintained with the Escrow 
ent and Deposit Account Number #400641.1 (the "Escrow Account") maintained 
th the Escrow Agent established pursuant to the Revised Escrow Agreement; (d) 

the Lockbox Account and the Escrow Account themselves; (e) a l l Investment 
•roperty into which the cash and other funds deposited into the Lockbox Account 
Bid the Escrow Account are invested from time to time including, without 
l i m i t a t i o n , money market funds and other securities; (f) a l l General Intangibles 

If Debtor r e l a t i n g to the RSC's; and (g) a l l proceeds and products of any of the 
oregoing, including without l i m i t a t i o n a l l proceeds of the Secured Party 
-counts, the Lockbox Account and the Escrow Account, and a l l proceeds of, and 

a l l other p r o f i t s , rentals or receipts, i n whatever form, arising from the 

Io l l e c t i o n , sale, lease, exchange, assignment, licensing or other disposition 
f, or r e a l i z a t i o n upon, any Collateral or the proceeds thereof, including, 

without l i m i t a t i o n , a l l claims of Debtor against t h i r d parties for loss of, 
damage to or destruction of, or for proceeds payable under, or unearned premiums 

Ii t h respect to, policies of insurance with respect to any Collateral, and any 
ondemnation or r e q u i s i t i o n payments with respect to any Collateral, i n each 

case whether now existing or hereafter arising ( c o l l e c t i v e l y , "Proceeds") (the 

Io l l a t e r a l r e f e r e n c e d i n i t e m s (a) t h r o u g h (g) above i s c o l l e c t i v e l y r e f e r r e d t o 
erein as the " C o l l a t e r a l " ) . 

3. SECURITY INTEREST ABSOLUTE 

: | Debtor agrees that a l l rights of Secured Party and the security interests 
granted to Secured Party hereunder, shall be absolute and unconditional, 
irrespective of: 

I 
I 
1 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
t 
I 

(a) any lack of v a l i d i t y or enforceability of any of the 
Obligations; 

(b) the f a i l u r e of Secured Party: ( i ) to assert any claim or demand 
or to enforce any r i g h t or remedy against the Debtor or any other person 
or e n t i t y under the provisions of any Transaction Agreement and t h i s 
Agreement; or ( i i ) to exercise any r i g h t or remedy against any guarantor 
of, or c o l l a t e r a l securing, any Obligations; 

(c) any change i n the time, manner or place of payment of, or i n any 
other term of, a l l or any of the Obligations, or any other extension, 
compromise or renewal of any Obiigations; 

(d) any reduction, l i m i t a t i o n , impairment or termination of any 
Obligations for any reason, including any claim of waiver, release, 
surrender, a l t e r a t i o n or compromise, and shall not be subject to (and 
Debtor hereby waives any r i g h t to or claim of) any defense or setoff, 
counterclaim, recoupment or termination whatsoever by reason of the 
i n v a l i d i t y , i l l e g a l i t y , nongenuineness, i r r e g u l a r i t y , compromise, 
unenforceability of, or any other event or occurrence affecting, any 
Obligations or otherwise; 

(e) any amendment to, recission, waiver, or other modification of, 
or any consent to departure from, any of the terms of any Transaction 
Agreement or t h i s Agreement; 

(f) any addition, exchange, release, surrender or nonperfection of 
any c o l l a t e r a l (including the C o l l a t e r a l ) , or any amendment to or waiver 
or release of or addition to or consent to departure from any guaranty, 
for any of the Obligations; or 

(g) any other circumstance which might otherwise constitute a 
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defense available to, or a legal or equitable discharge of, the Debtor, 
any surety or any guarantor. 

4. DEBTOR'S WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS 

In addition to any representations and warranties of Debtor set f o r t h i n 
he Transaction Agreements, a l l of which are incorporated herein by t h i s 
ieference. Debtor hereby warrants and represents to and for the benefit of 
Secured Party that: 

(a} Organization: Good Standing. Debtor i s a corporation, duly 
organized, v a l i d l y existing and i n good standing under the laws of the 
State of California. Debtor's exact legal name i s as set f o r t h i n the 
f i r s t paragraph of th i s Agreement. Debtor i s q u a l i f i e d to do business and 
in good standing under the laws of the State of Michigan. 

(b) Authority. Debtor has f u l l power and authority, and has 
completed a l l proceedings and obtained a l l approvals and consents of 
whatever kind necessary, to execute, deliver, and perform t h i s Agreement 
and the transactions contemplated hereby; 

{c} No Default or Lien. The execution, delivery, and performance of 
th i s Agreement w i l l not contravene, or constitute a default under or 
result i n a l i e n upon any property of Debtor (other than the l i e n granted 
hereby} pursuant to Debtor's organizational documents, any applicable law 
or regulation or any contract, agreement, judgment, order, decree, or 
other instrument binding upon or affecting Debtor; 

(d) Enforceability. This Agreement constitutes a legal, v a l i d , and 
binding obligation of Debtor, enforceable in accordance with i t s terms 
except as such enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, 
insolvency, fraudulent conveyance or similar laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors' rights generally, or by equitable principles 
r e l a t i n g to enforceability {regardless of whether the application of such 
principles i s considered i n a proceeding i n equity or at law). This 
Agreement grants to Secured Party a vali d , f i r s t - p r i o r i t y , enforceable 
l i e n on and security interest i n the Collateral; 

(e) Ownership. Debtor i s the sole owner of, and has good and 
marketable t i t l e to, the Collateral, free and clear of a l l claims, 
interests, charges, options, liens, encumbrances and defects of t i t l e of 
any kind whatsoever; 

(f) No Dispute. A l l of the Collateral consisting of Accounts does 
and w i l l evidence bona fide sales to the customers named i n Debtor's 
books. No dispute, r i g h t ofsetoff, counterclaim or defenses exists as of 
the date hereof with respect to any of the Collateral; 

(g) Trade Names. Attachment 2 l i s t s a l l trade names, aliases and 
other names by which Debtor and any predecessor i n interest was previously 
known within the last six years; 

(h) Address. Debtor's address set f o r t h i n the f i r s t paragraph of 
thi s Agreement i s the location of princ i p a l place of business; 

(i) Disclosure. A l l information furnished by Debtor to Secured Party 
for purposes of, or i n connection with, the Transaction Agreements and 
th i s Agreement i s and w i l l be true and accurate i n a l l material respects, 
and none of such information shall be incomplete by omitting to state any 
fact necessary to make such information not misleading i n l i g h t of the 
circumstances under which i t was furnished; 
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( j ) No V i o l a t i o n s . Debtor i s not i n any m a t e r i a l v i o l a t i o n of any 
judgment, order, decree, law, r u l e , r e g u l a t i o n , permit or l i c e n s e ; and 

(k) Lien Search. Attached hereto as Attachment 3 are t r u e , accurate 
and c e r t i f i e d copies of UCC l i e n searches w i t h respect t o Debtor and i t s 
predecessors i n i n t e r e s t through the date of t h i s Agreement i n a l l 
a p p l i c a b l e j u r i s d i c t i o n s . 

5. DEBTOR'. S COVENANTS 

In a d d i t i o n t o a l l covenants of Debtor set f o r t h i n the Transaction 
Agreements, a l l of which are incorporated herein by t h i s reference. Debtor 
ereby agrees: 

(a) Maintenance of Existence. Debtor s h a l l maintain and preserve i t s 
existence and good standing i n the j u r i s d i c t i o n of i t s o r g a n i z a t i o n and i n 
the State of Michigan and s h a l l not make any change i n i t s name, 
o r g a n i z a t i o n a l s t r u c t u r e or i n the j u r i s d i c t i o n under the laws of which 
Debtor i s 'organized, without the p r i o r w r i t t e n consent of Secured Party, 
which s h a l l not be unreasonably w i t h h e l d . 

(b) Location of O f f i c e . I n the event t h a t Debtor should change the 
l o c a t i o n of p r i n c i p a l place of business l i s t e d i n the f i r s t paragraph of 
t h i s Agreement, Debtor s h a l l give w r i t t e n n o t i c e of same t o Secured Party 
at l e a s t t h i r t y (30) days i n advance of any such change. 

(c) Liens. Debtor s h a l l not s e l l , exchange, lease, t r a n s f e r , 
encumber or pledge the C o l l a t e r a l , create any s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t t h e r e i n 
(except t h a t created by t h i s Agreement), or otherwise dispose of the 
C o l l a t e r a l or any of Debtor 1s r i g h t s t h e r e i n or under t h i s Agreement 
without the p r i o r w r i t t e n consent of Secured Party. Debtor w i l l not permit 
any other s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t t o attach t o any of the C o l l a t e r a l , permit the 
C o l l a t e r a l t o be l e v i e d upon under any l e g a l process, or permit anything 
t o be done t h a t may impair the value of any of the C o l l a t e r a l or the 
s e c u r i t y intended t o be af f o r d e d by t h i s Agreement. Debtor may assign the 
C o l l a t e r a l i n the case of a sale or merger of a l l or a part of the 
Debtor's business(es) and the Secured Party w i l l not unreasonably move to 
prevent such assignment; provided, however, t h a t Secured Party's f i r s t 
p r i o r i t y s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t w i l l continue upon such assignment. 

(d) Books and Records. Debtor w i l l keep a l l of i t s books and records 
i n accordance w i t h sound business p r a c t i c e s s u f f i c i e n t t o allow the 
pre p a r a t i o n of f i n a n c i a l statements i n accordance w i t h g e n e r a l l y accepted 
accounting p r a c t i c e s . The o r i g i n a l s of a l l such books and records s h a l l be 
kept at Debtor's address appearing i n the f i r s t paragraph of t h i s 
Agreement. Secured Party s h a l l have the r i g h t t o inspect Debtor's books 
and records as they p e r t a i n t o Transactions i n v o l v i n g the Secured Party or 
the RSC's upon f o r t y - e i g h t (48) hours p r i o r n o t i c e . Any such i n s p e c t i o n 
s h a l l be made during normal business hours. 

(e) Reports. Debtor w i l l promptly f u r n i s h Secured Party w i t h copies 
of p u b l i c l y f i l e d q u a r t e r l y f i n a n c i a l statements, (10-Q or 10-K statements 
f i l e d w i t h the S e c u r i t i e s and Exchange Commission) and audited or 
unaudited q u a r t e r l y f i n a n c i a l statements of Debtor. Debtor s h a l l 
immediately provide t o Secured Party w r i t t e n n o t i c e of•any d e f a u l t or 
Event of Default under any Transaction Agreement or t h i s Agreement. 

( f ) Subordination: P e r f e c t i o n . Debtor w i l l execute, f i l e , record, or 
procure from t h i r d persons a l l subordination agreements and other 
documents and instruments and take a l l 
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such oCher a c t i o n t h a t Secured Party considers reasonable or necessary t o 
pe r f e c t , continue p e r f e c t i o n of, or t o maintain the f i r s t p r i o r i t y of 
Secured Party's s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t i n , and the value of, the C o l l a t e r a l . 
Debtor w i l l place upon the documents evidencing the C o l l a t e r a l the no t i c e 
of Secured Party's s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t t h a t Secured Party from time t o time 
requests. Actions t h a t Secured Party may req u i r e Debtor t o take under the 
preceding sentence include, without l i m i t a t i o n : (1) g i v i n g n o t i c e t o 
Debtor's RSC's of Secured Party's s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t i n the Accounts; (2) 
ob t a i n i n g from any t h i r d p a r t y f i n a n c i n g source who has a s e c u r i t y 
i n t e r e s t i n the C o l l a t e r a l a w r i t t e n acknowledgment t h a t the s e c u r i t y 
i n t e r e s t of such t h i r d p a r t y i s j u n i o r and subordinate i n a l l respects t o 
the s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t granted by Debtor to Secured Party pursuant t o t h i s 
Agreement; (3) o b t a i n i n g from any t h i r d p a r t y who has possession or 
c o n t r o l of any C o l l a t e r a l a w r i t t e n acknowledgment and undertaking t h a t 
such t h i r d p a r t y holds the C o l l a t e r a l s o l e l y f o r the b e n e f i t of Secured 
Party; (4) r e g i s t e r i n g any C o l l a t e r a l t h a t c o n s t i t u t e s Investment Property 
or Deposit Accounts i n the name of Secured Party and t a k i n g a l l other 
actions requested by Secured Party to give Secured Party c o n t r o l of the 
C o l l a t e r a l ; and (5) making Secured Party the sole "customer" of the bank 
or f i n a n c i a l i n s t i t u t i o n w i t h respect t o the Lockbox Account and the 
Escrow Account. 

(g) Payment of Taxes, etc. Debtor s h a l l pay promptly when due a l l 
taxes, assessments, charges, encumbrances and l i e n s now or he r e a f t e r 
imposed upon or a f f e c t i n g any C o l l a t e r a l . I n the event of a d e f a u l t by 
Debtor i n paying those taxes, assessments, charges, encumbrances or l i e n s , 
i t s h a l l be l a w f u l f o r Secured Party to pay and discharge them, and the 
amounts expended by Secured Party i n the payment or discharge of those 
taxes s h a l l be a l i e n upon the C o l l a t e r a l , secured by t h i s Agreement and 
payable on demand w i t h i n t e r e s t at the highest d e f a u l t r a t e set f o r t h i n 
the Loan Documents. 

(h) Defense of L i t i g a t i o n . Debtor s h a l l appear i n and defend any 
ac t i o n or proceeding t h a t may a f f e c t i t s t i t l e t o , or Secured Party's 
i n t e r e s t i n , the C o l l a t e r a l . 

( i ) Compliance w i t h Laws. Debtor s h a l l comply w i t h a l l laws, 
r e g u l a t i o n s , and ordinances r e l a t i n g t o the possession, operation, 
maintenance, and c o n t r o l of the C o l l a t e r a l . 

( j } Notice. Upon 5 Business Days' p r i o r w r i t t e n n o t i c e to Debtor, 
Secured Party s h a l l have the r i g h t from time t o time t o contact Debtor's 
RSC's f o r the purpose of v e r i f y i n g the existence, amount, and 
c o l l e c t i b i l i t y of and other i n f o r m a t i o n regarding Debtor's Accounts w i t h 
RSC1s. 

(k) Payment of Secured Party's Costs and Expenses. I f Secured Party 
commences'proceedings f o r the purpose of c o l l e c t i n g any monies which may 
be secured i n any way by t h i s Agreement, or t o recover, c o l l e c t or p r o t e c t 
i t s i n t e r e s t i n the C o l l a t e r a l by reason of a d e f a u l t or breach by Debtor, 
Debtor agrees to pay Secured Party's reasonable a t t o r n e y s ' fees, 
a d d i t i o n a l advances and debts, and a l l costs, fees, charges and expenses 
i n connection t h e r e w i t h ; together w i t h any and a l l disbursements i n c u r r e d 
by Secured Party i n connection w i t h the c o l l e c t i n g , t a k i n g , maintaining 
and disposing of the C o l l a t e r a l , i n c l u d i n g a l l premiums on bonds and 
undertakings, fees f o r p u b l i c o f f i c e r s , custodians, auctioneers, charges 
f o r use and occupancy of premises and f o r e l e c t r i c c u r r e n t ; a l l of which 
s h a l l be a l i e n upon the C o l l a t e r a l , secured by t h i s Agreement and payable 
on demand w i t h i n t e r e s t at the highest l a w f u l r a t e . Counsel fees and 
disbursements are i n no event t o a f f e c t , but are to be paid i n a d d i t i o n 
t o , any s t a t u t o r y court costs and disbursement. 

(1} C o l l e c t i o n of Accounts. Debtor s h a l l i n s t r u c t a l l RSC's t o make 
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a l l payments on Secured Party Accounts d i r e c t l y t o the Lockbox Account and 
s h a l l use a l l commercially reasonable e f f o r t s t o cause a l l such persons or 
e n t i t i e s t o agree t o make such payments to the Lockbox Account. 

(m) Banking Relationship. Debtor s h a l l not borrow any money from, 
enter i n t o any c r e d i t t r a n s a c t i o n w i t h or otherwise become o b l i g a t e d i n 
any manner t o pay any amounts t o the Escrow Agent or any a f f i l i a t e of the 
Escrow Agent, other than pursuant t o the terms of the Revised Escrow 
Agreement. 

(n) Copies ofRSC Contracts. Within 30 days of execution. Debtor 
agrees t o provide Secured Party w i t h a copy of each RSC Contract i n which 
Secured Party has a s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t . 

6. DEFAULT 

A d e f a u l t under t h i s Agreement s h a l l be deemed t o e x i s t upon the 
c c u r r e n c e o f a n y o f t h e f o l l o w i n g ( a n " E v e n t o f D e f a u l t " ) : 

(a) Default Under Any Transaction Agreement. An Event of Default 
occurs and continues under any Transaction Agreement; 

(b) Misrepresentation By Debtor. Any repre s e n t a t i o n or warranty by 
Debtor hereunder, or i n any Transaction Agreement, s h a l l be inaccurate or 
incomplete i n any m a t e r i a l respect; 

(c) Breach of Covenant. Debtor s h a l l f a i l t o f u l l y perform or comply 
w i t h any of Debtor's covenants or agreements contained i n t h i s Agreement 
or any Transaction Agreement. I n the event of such breach. Secured Party 
w i l l n o t i f y Debtor i n w r i t i n g and Debtor s h a l l have two (2) Business Days 
t o cure such breach; 

(d) Debtor Bankruptcy. Debtor s h a l l become i n s o l v e n t , f i l e 
bankruptcy, s h a l l have a recei v e r , t r u s t e e or other person appointed to 
manage i t s operations or s h a l l otherwise f a i l t o pay i t s c r e d i t o r s i n the 
ordi n a r y course of business when debts are due; and 

(e) Supplier Bankruptcy. Any s u p p l i e r of wholesale e l e c t r i c i t y t o 
Debtor (other than Secured Party) s h a l l become i n s o l v e n t , f i l e bankruptcy, 
s h a l l have a recei v e r , t r u s t e e or other person appointed to manage i t s 
operations, and such event should have a m a t e r i a l , d e t r i m e n t a l f i n a n c i a l 
impact to Debtor . [See n o t i c e requirements set f o r t h i n A r t i c l e 4 . 2 ( v i i ) 
of the Revised Operating Agreement dated October 2 1 , 2004.) 

7. REMEDIES 

I Upon the occurrence of any such Event of Default, Secured Party may, at 
ts o p t i o n , and without n o t i c e t o or demand on Debtor, exercise a l l r i g h t s of a 

secured p a r t y under the Uniform Commercial Code, i n a d d i t i o n t o a l l r i g h t s and 
remedies a v a i l a b l e t o Secured Party under any Transaction Agreement, at law, i n 

R q u i t y , or otherwise, m a d d i t i o n , upon an Event of Default, Secured Party or a 
•.icensed a l t e r n a t i v e energy supply ("AES") designated by Secured Party s h a l l 
have the r i g h t , but not the o b l i g a t i o n , t o assume the RSC Contracts which have 

teen pledged t o Secured Party hereunder. I f Secured Party e l e c t s t o assume such 
SC Contracts (the "Assumed RSC Contracts"), the Secured Party s h a l l n o t i f y 

uebtor and the RSC under the Assumed RSC Contracts i d e n t i f y i n g , i n each case, 
the r e l e v a n t RSC Contract and the e f f e c t i v e date of such assignment (the 

(Assignment E f f e c t i v e Date"). On the Assignment E f f e c t i v e Date, Secured Party or 
ts l i c e nsed AES designee s h a l l be deemed t o be s u b s t i t u t e d as "AES" under the 

Assumed RSC Contracts i n place of Debtor and s h a l l be deemed t o have assumed a l l 
f Debtor's o b l i g a t i o n s and a l l r i g h t s and p r i v i l e g e s pursuant t o the Assumed 
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( s c Contracts a r i s i n g on and a f t e r the Assignment E f f e c t i v e Date. 

I 
3. WAIVER OF BREACH 

• The acceptance of any p a r t i a l payment by Secured Party a f t e r m a t u r i t y , or 
The waiver of any breach or d e f a u l t , s h a l l not c o n s t i t u t e a waiver of any other 
or subsequent breach or d e f a u l t or prevent Secured Party from immediately 

Iursuing any or a l l i t s remedies hereunder, or under any other document 
_ r o v i d i n g a d d i t i o n a l s e c u r i t y t o Secured Party. 

I 9. TERMINATION 

This Agreement s h a l l terminate when i n d e f e a s i b l e payment i n f u l l and the 
performance and s a t i s f a c t i o n of a l l Obligations have been made. Upon such 

Iermination the'Secured Party s h a l l assign t r a n s f e r and d e l i v e r without recourse 
nd without warranty t o the Debtor any C o l l a t e r a l p r e v i o u s l y assigned or 

d e l i v e r e d to the Secured Party {and any property received i n respect thereof) as «as n o t t h e r e t o f o r e been s o l d o r o t h e r w i s e a p p l i e d p u r s u a n t t o t h e p r o v i s i o n s o f 
h i s Agreement; provided however, t h a t t h i s Agreement s h a l l be a u t o m a t i c a l l y 
e i n s t a t e d e f f e c t i v e as of the o r i g i n a l date of execution of t h i s Agreement, i f 

at any time payment, i n whole or i n p a r t , of any of the Oblig a t i o n s i s reduced, 

Iescinded or must otherwise be re s t o r e d or returned by the Secured Party f o r any 
eason whatsoever, i n c l u d i n g the bankruptcy, insolvency, d i s s o l u t i o n , 

l i q u i d a t i o n or r e o r g a n i z a t i o n of the Debtor or upon or as a r e s u l t of the 

fppointment of a custodian, r e c e i v e r , t r u s t e e or other o f f i c e r w i t h s i m i l a r 
owers w i t h respect t o Debtor the Debtor or any of i t s property or otherwise. 

1G. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

(a) Binding E f f e c t . This Agreement s h a l l bind and inure t o the b e n e f i t of 
ebtor and Secured Party and t h e i r respective successors and assigns. 

t (b) E n t i r e Agreement. This Agreement, together w i t h the Transaction 
greements, c o n s t i t u t e s the e n t i r e agreement of Debtor and Secured Party w i t h 

respect t o the subject matter hereof and thereof, superseding a l l p r i o r and 

Iontemporaneous n e g o t i a t i o n s , agreements and understandings whether w r i t t e n or 
r a l . 

(c) M o d i f i c a t i o n . This Agreement may be amended only by a w r i t t e n 
nstrument executed by both the Debtor and the Secured Party. 

(d) Governing Law. This Agreement s h a l l be governed by and construed i n 
ccordance w i t h the i n t e r n a l laws of the State of Michigan without regard to 
o n f l i c t s of laws p r i n c i p l e s . 

I 
f 
Executed on the day and year set f o r t h above. 

| COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

I 
I 
I 
I 

By: I s j Peter Weigand 
I t s : President 

("Debtor") 

DTE ENERGY TRADING, INC. 

By: /s/ Randall D. Balhorm 
I t s : President 

{"Secured Party") 
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EXHIBIT 10.33 

REVISED OPERATING AGREEMENT 

I This Revised Operating Agreement ( t h i s "Agreement") i s dated as of October 
7, 2004 (the " E f f e c t i v e Date"), i s made and entered i n t o between DTE Energy 

Trading, Inc., a Michigan c o r p o r a t i o n ("Supplier"), and Commonwealth Energy 

Io r p o r a t i o n , a C a l i f o r n i a c o r p o r a t i o n ("Buyer") and supercedes the Revised 
p e r a t i n g Agreement between the Parties dated July 24, 2003. Buyer and Supplier 

are each a "Party" and, c o l l e c t i v e l y , are the " P a r t i e s . " 

I RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Supplier i s a power marketer t h a t makes wholesale e l e c t r i c i t y 

Ia l e s t o t h i r d p a r t i e s . Buyer i s i n t h e b u s i n e s s o f p r o v i d i n g e l e c t r i c i t y 
ervices t o r e t a i l customers i n Michigan { c o l l e c t i v e l y , the "Customers") under 
he D e t r o i t Edison E l e c t r i c Choice Program (the "DECo Program"). Buyer agrees 

t h a t supply i t purchases from Supplier w i l l only be used t o serve i t s Customers 

Ii t h i n the DECo Program. Moreover, because of c e r t a i n c r e d i t concessions t h a t 
u p p l i e r i s making. Buyer agrees t h a t Supplier w i l l be i t s primary Energy 

s u p p l i e r f o r i t s Customers i n the DECo Program; however, Buyer has the r i g h t t o 

(urchase Energy from an a l t e r n a t i v e s u p p l i e r under the terms of A r t i c l e 4 
e r e i n . Nonetheless, Supplier i s not precluded from s e l l i n g wholesale Energy 
upply t o other a l t e r n a t i v e e l e c t r i c s u p p l i e r s {"AES") other than Buyer t h a t are 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the DECo Program; 

| AND WHEREAS, Buyer agrees t o purchase f u l l or p a r t i a l requirements Energy 
supply products from Supplier pursuant to a series of supply Transaction 

fonfirmations) ("Confirmations"} governed by the EEI Master Power Purchase and 
ale Agreement executed by the Parties dated July 1, 2003 (the EEI Master 
greement"). The Parties w i l l determine whether a p a r t i c u l a r Transaction or set 

of Transactions w i l l be f o r f u l l or p a r t i a l requirements Energy supply, and such 

Ir a n s a c t i o n f s ) w i l l be memorialized i n each re l e v a n t Confirmation. Nevertheless, 
ach Transaction w i l l be f o r a f i x e d , maximum amount of supply at a f i x e d p r i c e , 

and, depending on the product, there may also be a f i x e d , minimum amount of 
supply at a f i x e d p r i c e ("Transaction Program(s)"). I n the case of f u l l 
Bequirements Energy supply, Supplier w i l l hold open each Transaction Program to 
Bew Customers f o r the e a r l i e r of: s i x (6) months or u n t i l Buyer has a l l o c a t e d 
the maximum amount of supply f o r i t s Customers; provided, however, t h a t the 

Ielevant Transaction Program w i l l remain open to new Customers unless the 
olum e t r i c , weighted average of the Cinergy On-Peak forward market p r i c e f o r a l l 
v a i l a b l e July, August, January, and February months ( w i t h i n a window equal to 

the number of months of the Customer term under the De l i v e r y Period as set f o r t h 

In each relevant Transaction) beginning the t h i r d month a f t e r the month i n which 
ach Transaction i s executed changes by more than 10% when compared to the 

volumetric, weighted average of the Cinergy On-Peak forward market p r i c e f o r a l l 

Iv a i l a b l e July, August, January, and February months ( w i t h i n the same window 
p e c i f i e d above) beginning the t h i r d month a f t e r the current month f o r each day 
f the s i x (6)-month window. I f the above-referenced forward market p r i c e change 

th r e s h o l d i s t r i g g e r e d , then Supplier w i l l provide Buyer a seven (7)-Business 

(ay n o t i c e t h a t Supplier i s c l o s i n g the Transaction Program t o new Customers, 
u r i n g the pendency of the 7-Business Day not i c e period, Buyer may f i n a l i z e 

c o n t r a c t n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h new Customers, as a v a i l a b l e , f o r up t o ten percent 
J10%) of the maximum amount of supply s p e c i f i e d i n the relevant Transaction, 
B>rovided however, t h a t the maximum amount of supply t o be provided under each 
B'ransaction cannot exceed the maximum amount of supply s p e c i f i e d i n each 
'Transaction. A f t e r the no t i c e p e r i o d has expired, the Transaction Program may be 
closed t o new Customers. Upon acceptance by Supplier of each Customer under the 

I ttp.7/ir.]0kwizard.com/fi]ing.php?repo^ 3/17/2005 



iEC Filings : Print View Page 175 of 196 

elevant Transaction Program, the Buyer's contract p r i c i n g associated w i t h each 

Customer remains i n e f f e c t f o r up to two (2) years. 

( AND WHEREAS, under c e r t a i n circumstances, Supplier agrees t o supply 
uyer's Customers w i t h f u l l requirements Energy supply under Transactions where 

Supplier, r a t h e r than Buyer, assumes s u b s t a n t i a l r i s k r e l a t e d t o f i r m Energy 
upply, aggregate Customer load I 

I orecasting and transmission and a n c i l l a r y services, i n c l u d i n g imbalance 
charges; 

f 
AND WHEREAS, i n other circumstances. Supplier agrees t o supply Buyer's 

ustomers w i t h p a r t i a l requirements Energy supply i n cases where Supplier i s 
r o v i d i n g a more standard Energy product t h a t might not include load 
orecasting, transmission and a n c i l l a r y services, i n c l u d i n g imbalance charges, 
hen Buyer will-assume greater r i s k r e l a t e d t o some elements of Energy supply; 

I AND WHEREAS, i n f u l l o r p a r t i a l r e q u i r e m e n t s E n e r g y s u p p l y T r a n s a c t i o n s , 

uyer desires t o , and Supplier may agree t h a t Buyer may forego p r o v i d i n g 
u p p l i e r w i t h the usual l e v e l of Performance Assurance, such as a L e t t e r of 

Cred i t or cash, required to cover S e l l e r ' s customary c r e d i t requirements t o 
Jns u r e payment f o r Energy supply and c e r t a i n Mark-to-Market f l u c t u a t i o n s ; 

AND WHEREAS, Supplier agrees t o assume c e r t a i n l i m i t e d c r e d i t r i s k because 

Iuyer has agreed: ( i ) to permit Supplier to monitor Buyer's c r e d i t management of 
arge Customer accounts; ( i i ) t o grant Supplier c e r t a i n o p e r a t i o n a l and 
i n a n c i a l oversight t o i t s Michigan business; and ( i i i ) t o provide Supplier 

Performance Assurance f o r a l l Wholesale Energy purchases made pursuant t o a 
• r a n s a c t i o n and Confirmation. Such Performance Assurance s h a l l be c a l c u l a t e d 
• u r s u a n t to the mutually agreed terms set f o r t h i n E x h i b i t B - Performance 
Assurance C a l c u l a t i o n (as such e x h i b i t may be amended from time t o t i m e ) , 
incorporated by reference and attached hereto. 

i NOW, THEREFORE, i n con s i d e r a t i o n of the f o l l o w i n g mutual covenants, 
agreements, and o b l i g a t i o n s , the Parties agree as f o l l o w s : 

I ARTICLE 1 
DEFINITIONS 

1 1.1 DEFINITIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE FROM OTHER AGREEMENTS. ALL 
n i t i a l l y c a p i t a l i z e d terms not otherwise defined below or herein s h a l l have the 

meaning set f o r t h i n the EEI Master Agreement dated J u l y 1, 2003, the Revised 

fscrow Agreement dated October 27, 2004, or the Revised Security Agreement dated 
ctober 27, 2004 executed between the P a r t i e s . 

"Contract Quantity" means the agreed q u a n t i t y of FRSP and/or PRSP f o r the 
p e c i f i e d p e r i o d as set f o r t h below i n Section 3.1 or as agreed t o i n various 
r a n s a c t i o n ( s ) . I 
(

"Customers" means the r e t a i l customers who have entered i n t o the R e t a i l 
o n t r a c t s w i t h Buyer as of the date of t h i s Agreement, as i d e n t i f i e d on E x h i b i t 
. or such other r e t a i l customers as may become s u b s t i t u t e d Customers from time 

to time. 

t "DEC0 Delivery Points means the d e l i v e r y p o i n t f o r a l l Energy provided 
ereunder t o Customers i n the DECo Program s h a l l be the r e t a i l end use 

Customer's meter(s). 

I " F u l l Requirements Service Product" or "FRSP" means f i r m Energy as 
measured and d e l i v e r e d to the Customers' r e t a i l meters which s h a l l i n c l u d e load 

(ollowing energy, load forecast ing and scheduling serv ices , applicable Detroit 

ttp://ir.l0kwizard.com/filing.php?repo=tenk&ipage=3094561&num=&doc=l&sou^ 3/17/2005 



iEC Filings : Print View Page 176 of 196 

dison and MISO transmission, and a n c i l l a r y services charges, i n c l u d i n g 

imbalance charges. The exact services included under a p a r t i c u l a r Transaction 

i l l be set f o r t h i n the ap p l i c a b l e Confirmation. f 
I 
I 

"Local D i s t r i b u t i o n Company" or "LDC" means The D e t r o i t Edison Company. 

"Load Factor" means the monthly and/or annual Energy fMWh) used by 
ustomers 

d i v i d e d by the product of the hours i n the month and/or year and the peak demand 
MW) i n the month and/or year. 

"MISO" means the Midwest Independent System' Operator. 

( "Off-Peak" means Mon t o F r i Hour Ending ("HE") HE 0100 t h r u 0700 and HE 
400: EPT, and a l l 24 hours EPT on Saturdays, Sundays, and NERC holidays during 

the Delivery Period of a Tr a n s a c t i o n ( s ) . 

I "On-Peak" means Mon to F r i HE 800 t h r u HE 2300 EPT, excluding NERC 
bli d a y s during the De l i v e r y Period of a Transactions). 

( " P a r t i a l Requirements Service Product" or "PRSP" means f i r m Energy 
easured and d e l i v e r e d t o the Customers' r e t a i l meters which may include c e r t a i n 

Supplier services, such as scheduling services and c e r t a i n a p p l i c a b l e D e t r o i t 
J d i s o n and MISO transmission, and a n c i l l a r y services charges, i n c l u d i n g 
•mba-lance charges. The exact services included under the p a r t i c u l a r Transaction 
• i l l be set f o r t h i n the ap p l i c a b l e Confirmation. 

m " R e t a i l Contracts" means each of the Energy Service Agreements, as such 
.•greements may be amended from time t o time, entered i n t o between Buyer and a 
"ustomer, as i d e n t i f i e d on E x h i b i t A as such e x h i b i t may be amended from time t o 
time. 

I " R e t a i l Load" means, f o r any hour during the Delivery Period, the 
aggregate FRSP and/or PRSP of the R e t a i l Customers under the R e t a i l Contracts, 

Is long as such aggregate FRSP and/or PRSP f a l l s w i t h i n the mutually agreed upon 
arameters agreed t o by the P a r t i e s . 

I 
ARTICLE 2 

BUYER AND SUPPLIER OBLIGATIONS 

2.1 BUYER OBLIGATIONS. Buyer s h a l l provide a l l of the services and perform 

111 of i t s o b l i g a t i o n s under the R e t a i l Contracts i n accordance w i t h : ( i ) the 
erms of the R e t a i l Contracts, ( i i ) a l l r e g u l a t i o n s a p p l i c a b l e t o an AES, ( i i i ) 
ny a p p l i c a b l e p r o v i s i o n s of the relevant governing t a r i f f ( s ) , and ( i v ) the 

pr o v i s i o n s of t h i s Agreement. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
1 

(a) A l t e r n a t i v e E l e c t r i c Supplier. Buyer s h a l l act as an AES under 
ap p l i c a b l e r e g u l a t i o n s f o r a l l Customers r e c e i v i n g Energy purchased by 
Buyer from Supplier under t h i s Agreement, which includes, but i s not 
l i m i t e d t o , the f o l l o w i n g : 

( i ) Customer Enrollment: Buyer s h a l l submit t o the ap p l i c a b l e 
LDC a request f o r enrollment f o r each Customer i n the DECo Program; 

( i i ) Assistance w i t h Forecasting: Buyer s h a l l provide Supplier 
w i t h the rel e v a n t data f o r analyzing the i n d i v i d u a l loads of each of 
i t s Customers and the aggregate R e t a i l Load, t a k i n g i n t o account, 
among other t h i n g s , h i s t o r i c a l usage, weather con d i t i o n s and other 
system c o n d i t i o n s , t o forecast the a n t i c i p a t e d R e t a i l Load f o r each 
hour during the Delivery Period; 
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( i i i ) Meter Data Management Services: Buyer s h a l l , or s h a l l 
cause a commercially competent and q u a l i f i e d designee t o , read, 
v a l i d a t e , e d i t , and t r a n s f e r meter data as re q u i r e d f o r c a l c u l a t i o n 
of the b i l l t o each Customer, and s h a l l provide any other metering 
or r e l a t e d data management services r e q u i r e d by the R e t a i l Contracts 
f o r . t h e Customers and provide Supplier w i t h necessary i n t e r v a l 
customer meter data t o f a c i l i t a t e accurate f o r e c a s t i n g and p r i c i n g ; 

( i v ) B i l l i n g Services: Buyer s h a l l c a l c u l a t e monthly b i l l s f o r 
each Customer i n accordance w i t h the app l i c a b l e R e t a i l Contract and 
app l i c a b l e meter data. Buyer or i t s commercially competent and 
q u a l i f i e d designer s h a l l d e l i v e r monthly b i l l s t o each Customer; 

(v) Port f o l i o Accounting: Buyer s h a l l work w i t h Supplier t o 
maintain the accounts and records f o r the p o r t f o l i o of e l e c t r i c 
'Energy sold and scheduled f o r d e l i v e r y t o R e t a i l Load; and 

(v i ) Buyer's Data O b l i g a t i o n s : Buyer s h a l l provide Supplier's 
appropriate sink i d e n t i f i c a t i o n t o the LDC at time of Customer 
enrollment, coordinate i n s t a l l a t i o n of phone l i n e s , i f requir e d , f o r 
a l l accounts under the DECo Program, n o t i f y Supplier when Customer 
account commences and/or terminates w i t h Buyer, provide each 
Customer's i n f o r m a t i o n t o Supplier, i n c l u d i n g Customer name, 
address, e l e c t r i c u t i l i t y r a t e code, h i s t o r i c b i l l i n g i n f o r m a t i o n , 
account number{s), meter number(s), load p r o f i l e group, s t a r t and/or 
t e r m i n a t i o n date, s i g n i f i c a n t Customer demand a d d i t i o n s or 
reductions, and any meter change i n f o r m a t i o n provided by the LDC. 

(b) Revenues Deposited i n t o Lockbox Account. Buyer s h a l l deposit, or 
cause t o be deposited by each Customer and/or LDC, i n t o the Lockbox 
Account, any and a l l amounts owed to Buyer f o r sales of Energy and r e l a t e d 
services t o Customers under, pursuant t o , or w i t h respect t o any R e t a i l 
Contract i d e n t i f x e d on E x h i b i t A. 

1
2.2 TERMINATION OF A RETAIL CONTRACT. I f a R e t a i l Contract i s terminated 

or any reason p r i o r t o the end of the Delivery Period, then w i t h respect t o 
hat p o r t i o n of the Contract Quantity represented by such terminated R e t a i l 

Contract ("Affected Quantity") during the remaining hours of the De l i v e r y 

Ie r i o d , Buyer s h a l l use i t s best e f f o r t s t o lo c a t e and propose one or more 
d d i t i o n a l Customers t o purchase p a r t or a l l of such A f f e c t e d Quantity. I f the 

product t o be provided i s FRSP and Buyer i s unable to f i n d any e l i g i b l e 

Id d i t i o n a l Customers, then the A f f e c t e d Quantity s h a l l r e v e r t t o Supplier and 
uyer s h a l l no longer be required t o take d e l i v e r y of, or pay f o r , such FRSP. I n 
he case ofPRSP, the terms and condi t i o n s of the Confirmation w i l l c o n t r o l . 

1 2.3 SUPPLIER OBLIGATIONS. Supplier s h a l l provide a l l of the services and 
erform a l l of i t s o b l i g a t i o n s under Transactions) i n accordance w i t h : ( i ) the 

R e t a i l Contracts, as a p p l i c a b l e , ( i i ) a l l r e g u l a t i o n s a p p l i c a b l e t o a wholesale 

(u p p l i e r of an AES, ( i i i ) any ap p l i c a b l e p r o v i s i o n s of the rel e v a n t governing 
a r i f f ( s ) , ( i v ) the p r o v i s i o n s of t h i s Agreement, and (v) whether the product 
rovided t o Buyer i s FRSP or PRSP. 

I 
I 
I 

(a) FRSP Oblig a t i o n s t o Buyer. Supplier s h a l l act as a wholesale 
s u p p l i e r of Energy under a p p l i c a b l e r e g u l a t i o n s f o r a l l Customers 
r e c e i v i n g Energy purchased by Buyer from Supplier under t h i s Agreement, 
which includes, but i s not l i m i t e d t o , the f o l l o w i n g : 
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( i ) Load Forecasting: Supplier s h a l l analyze the i n d i v i d u a l 
loads of the Customers and the aggregate R e t a i l Load, t a k i n g i n t o 
account, among other t h i n g s , h i s t o r i c a l usage, weather con d i t i o n s 
and other system c o n d i t i o n s , t o forecast the a n t i c i p a t e d R e t a i l Load 
f o r each hour during the Delivery Period. Buyer may request and 
S e l l e r w i l l provide i t s monthly load forecast from time to time; 

( i i ) Contract P r i c i n g f o r Buyer Associated w i t h Customers 
P r i o r to Supplier's Issuance of a 7-Business Day Notice t o Buyer. As 
long as Supplier receives n o t i c e of such Buyer's acceptance of 
Customer and Customer meets the appropriate c r i t e r i a under the 
rele v a n t Transaction Program p r i o r t o Supplier's Issuance of a 
7-Business Day Notice t o Buyer f o r closure of t h a t Transaction 
Program. Supplier agrees t h a t Buyer's Contract Price associated w i t h 
each Customer w i l l remain f i x e d f o r a perio d of up t o two (2) years. 
Nothing i n t h i s p a r t s h a l l be construed t o r e t r o a c t i v e l y change the 
p r i c i n g of Energy being d e l i v e r e d to Buyer and associated Customers 
already acknowledged by Supplier as covered by a Transaction 
Program. 

( i i i ) Contract P r i c i n g f o r Buyer Associated w i t h Customers 
Covered by the Transaction Program A f t e r Issuance of Supplier's 
7-Business Day Notice t o Buyer. Supplier w i l l hold open each 
Transaction Program t o Buyer f o r new Customers f o r the e a r l i e r of: 
.six (6) months or u n t i l Buyer has a l l o c a t e d the maximum amount of 
.supply f o r i t s Customers; provided, however, that the relevant 
Transaction Program w i l l remain open to Buyer f o r new Customers 
unless the volumetric, weighted average of the Cinergy On-Peak 
forward market p r i c e f o r a l l a v a i l a b l e July, August, January, and 
February months ( w i t h i n a window equal to the number of months of 
the Customer term under the De l i v e r y Period as set f o r t h i n each 
rel e v a n t Transaction) beginning the t h i r d month a f t e r the month i n 
which each Transaction i s executed, changes by more than 10% when 
compared to the volumetric, weighted average of the Cinergy On-Pea'k 
forward market p r i c e f o r a l l a v a i l a b l e July, August, January, and 
February months ( w i t h i n the same window s p e c i f i e d above) beginning 
the t h i r d month a f t e r the current month f o r each day of the s i x (6) 
month window. I f the above-referenced forward market p r i c e change 
th r e s h o l d i s t r i g g e r e d , then Supplier w i l l provide Buyer a seven 
(7)-Business Day no t i c e t h a t Supplier i s c l o s i n g the Transaction 
Program t o new Customers. During the pendency of the 7-Business Day 
n o t i c e period. Buyer may f i n a l i z e c o n t r a c t n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h new 
Customers, as a v a i l a b l e , f o r up to ten percent (10%) of the maximum 
amount of supply s p e c i f i e d i n the rel e v a n t Transaction; provided 
however, t h a t the maximum amount of supply t o be provided under each 
Transaction cannot exceed the maximum amount of supply s p e c i f i e d i n 
each Transaction. A f t e r the no t i c e p e r i o d has expired, the 
Transaction Program may be closed t o new Customers. Upon acceptance 
by Supplier of each Customer under the relevant 

Transaction Program, Buyer's contract p r i c i n g associated w i t h each 
Customer remains i n e f f e c t f o r up t o two (2) years. 

( i v ) Load Following Energy: Supplier s h a l l schedule and 
d e l i v e r to each Customer, f i r m , f u l l requirements Energy supply as 
needed; 

(v) Scheduling Transmission Services: Supplier s h a l l schedule 
w i t h and purchase from the a p p l i c a b l e transmission provider, network 
i n t e g r a t e d transmission service to ensure f i r m Energy d e l i v e r y t o 
each Customer; and 
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( v i ) A n c i l l a r y Services, i n c l u d i n g Imbalance Charges. Supplier 
agrees to provide a l l a n c i l l a r y services, and assume a l l imbalance 
charge r i s k on behalf of Buyer's Customers. 

(b) PRSP Obliga t i o n s t o Buyer. Supplier s h a l l act as a wholesale 
s u p p l i e r of Energy under a p p l i c a b l e r e g u l a t i o n s f o r Customers r e c e i v i n g 
PRSP purchased by Buyer from Supplier under t h i s Agreement, i n c l u d i n g , but 
not l i m i t e d t o , the f o l l o w i n g : 

{ i ) Load Forecasting: Supplier s h a l l analyze the i n d i v i d u a l 
loads of the Customers and the aggregate R e t a i l Load, t a k i n g i n t o 
account, among other t h i n g s , h i s t o r i c a l usage, weather con d i t i o n s 
and other system c o n d i t i o n s , t o forecast the a n t i c i p a t e d R e t a i l Load 
f o r each hour during the D e l i v e r y Period. Buyer may request and 
S e l l e r w i l l provide i t s monthly load forecast from time t o time; 

( i i ) Energy: Supplier s h a l l schedule and d e l i v e r t o each 
Customer f i r m , p a r t i a l requirements Energy supply as needed and as 
s p e c i f i e d i n the r e l e v a n t Confirmation; 

( i i i ) Scheduling Transmission Services: Supplier s h a l l 
schedule w i t h and purchase from the a p p l i c a b l e transmission 
provider, network i n t e g r a t e d transmission service t o ensure f i r m 
Energy d e l i v e r y t o each Customer; provided, however. Supplier may 
pass through such costs t o Buyer as appropriate under the terms of 
the Confirmation; and 

(v i ) A n c i l l a r y Services, i n c l u d i n g Imbalance Charges. Supplier 
agrees to provide a l l a n c i l l a r y services, and assume a l l imbalance 
charge r i s k on behalf of Buyer 1s Customers provided, however. 
Supplier may pass through such costs t o Buyer as appropriate under 
the terms of the Confirmation. 

(c) Credit Assistance t o Buyer f o r FRSP and PRSP Transactions. 
Supplier agrees t o extend t o Buyer, subj ect t o the terms and condi t i o n s of 
the EEI Master Agreement and r e l a t e d C o n f i r m a t i o n ( s ) , unsecured c r e d i t 
equivalent t o 

( approximately two months' Customer account receivables (to be posted t o a 
Lockbox Account). I n a d d i t i o n , Buyer agrees to provide t o S e l l e r , 
Performance Assurance pursuant t o the methodology, c a l c u l a t i o n s and data 

_ set f o r t h i n E x h i b i t B. 

B 2.4 SHARING OF DATA. Supplier and Buyer agree t o cooperate and share 
rel e v a n t data necessary t o provide e l e c t r i c s ervice t o Customers. This may 

Include current and h i s t o r i c a l e l e c t r i c i t y usage data, payment and c r e d i t 
i s t o r y . Dun & Bradstreet number and other data reasonably necessary. I n 

a d d i t i o n , the Parties agree to share password-protected data and i n f o r m a t i o n 

(elevant t o p r o v i d i n g e l e c t r i c s ervice t o Customers under Transactions. Except 
s otherwise s p e c i f i c a l l y authorized by Customers or required by ap p l i c a b l e law, 
e g u l a t i o n , or court order, the Parties s h a l l maintain, i n confidence, a l l such 

Customer data. 

I ARTICLE 3 
CONTRACT QUANTITY AND CONTRACT PRICE OF ENERGY 

1 3.1 DEFINITION OF CONTRACT QUANTITY. Subject t o the terms of t h i s 
greement, during the relevant Delivery Period(s} set f o r t h i n a Tr a n s a c t i o n ( s ) , 

Supplier s h a l l s e l l and d e l i v e r , or cause to be de l i v e r e d , a t the Delivery 

(o i n t s , and Buyer s h a l l purchase and receive, or cause to be received, at the 
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J e l i v e r y Points up to a maximum demand (MW) and an estimated volume of Energy 
(MWh) of FRSP and/or PRSP at the Contract Price (the "Contract Quantity") during 

Iach a p p l i c a b l e hour of each s p e c i f i e d month of the Delivery P e r i o d ( s ) . Buyer 
h a l l n o t i f y Supplier of any a n t i c i p a t e d a d d i t i o n of Customers by n o t i f y i n g 
u p p l i e r of the expected increase or decrease i n R e t a i l Load as re q u i r e d under 

Section 2.1 (a) herein. 

J 3.2 BASIS FOR THE CONTRACT PRICE. Subject t o Section 2 above, as 
app l i c a b l e , the Contract Price f o r each MWh of FRSP or PRSP i s set according t o 
a f i x e d p r i c e f o r a l l Energy so l d t o Buyer's Customers associated w i t h each 
• r a n s a c t i o n . 

I 
I 

3.3 MANAGEMENT OF CONTRACT QUANTITY. Supplier agrees to submit the proper 
ocuments to the MISO f o r each hour of the Delivery Period thereby scheduling 
he d e l i v e r y at the ap p l i c a b l e Delivery Points of the ap p l i c a b l e q u a n t i t i e s of 
nergy equal t o 'the Contract Quantity. 

ARTICLE 4 
OPERATING ISSUES 

1
4.1 PRIMARY SUPPLIER TO BUYER. S u p p l i e r w i l l be t h e p r i m a r y s u p p l i e r t o 

uyer f o r supplying i t s DECO Program Customers, under e i t h e r an FRSP product or 
RSP product, as long as Supplier i s w i l l i n g t o s e l l the FRSP or PRSP product t o 

Buyer at competitive p r i c e s . 

| I f Buyer determines t h a t an o f f e r from Supplier f o r e i t h e r an FRSP or PRSP 
product i s not competitive i n the rel e v a n t market, Buyer has the r i g h t t o seek 

tr i c i n g from other s u p p l i e r s f o r the S u p p l i e r - s p e c i f i e d On-Peak and Off-Peak 
nergy block components of the o f f e r e d FRSP or PRSP product. S p e c i f i c a l l y , when 
o t i f i e d by Buyer t h a t i t intends t o seek competitive o f f e r s f o r such On-Peak 

and Off-Peak Energy block components. Supplier w i l l provide Buyer w i t h s p e c i f i c 
• l a t a regarding the On-Peak and Off-Peak Energy blocks, e.g., size, d e l i v e r y 
B o i n t and associated terms and co n d i t i o n s , p r i c e f o r the respective Energy 
clocks, and d e l i v e r y period. 

I l f Buyer receives an o f f e r f o r the s p e c i f i e d On-Peak and Off-Peak Energy 
locks (on terms s u b s t a n t i a l l y i d e n t i c a l , as determined by Supplier, i n c l u d i n g 

type of product and d e l i v e r y p o i n t , t o the terms s p e c i f i e d by Supplier) from a 

(h i r d - P a r t y Supplier ("TPS"), Buyer w i l l advise Supplier of the TPS-offer terms 
nd c o n d i t i o n s . T h i r d Party Supplier means an e n t i t y t h a t i s not a Customer and 
hat agrees t o s e l l e l e c t r i c power and/or transmission capacity t o Buyer. 

Supplier must e i t h e r match the TPS o f f e r or advise Buyer of i t s d e c i s i o n not t o 

Iatch the o f f e r . I f Supplier matches the o f f e r , i t w i l l be included i n a revised 
RSP or PRSP o f f e r t o Buyer. I f Supplier 

I 
declines t o -match the TPS o f f e r , then Buyer may buy the s p e c i f i e d Energy blocks 

Irom the TPS and s e l l the s p e c i f i e d Energy blocks t o Supplier at the same o f f e r 
r i c e as Buyer purchased the s p e c i f i e d Energy blocks from the TPS. The terms and 

condit i o n s must be equivalent t o the terms and conditions i n i t i a l l y s p e c i f i e d by 
Supplier t o Buyer. Supplier w i l l then execute a FRSP or PRSP t r a n s a c t i o n w i t h 

Ruyer at a p r i c e equal t o the Supplier's purchase p r i c e f o r the s p e c i f i e d Energy 
•Rlocks plus the d i f f e r e n c e between Supplier's i n i t i a l FRSP or PRSP o f f e r less 
the p r i c e Supplier quoted Buyer f o r the s p e c i f i e d Energy blocks. 

( 4.2 CREDIT PROTECTIONS PROVIDED BY BUYER TO SUPPLIER. Buyer agrees: ( i ) t o 
equire each Customer t o send i n v o i c e d payments t o a Lockbox Account as required 

under the Revised S e c u r i t y Agreement and Revised Escrow Agreement, ( i i ) t o 

Include the re q u i r e d Supplier assignment p r o v i s i o n i n each documented and 
xecuted R e t a i l Contract, ( i i i ) t o provide Supplier w i t h the required 

Performance Assurance pursuant t o E x h i b i t B hereto; ( i v ) to provide Supplier 
i t h copies of q u a r t e r l y f i n a n c i a l statements i n the form of 10-K and 10-Q 
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atements f i l e d w i t h the S e c u r i t i e s and Exchange Commission along w i t h audited 

or unaudited q u a r t e r l y f i n a n c i a l statements of Buyer; (v) t o provide Supplier 

t" t h the r i g h t t o review the cr e d i t w o r t h i n e s s and load a t t r i b u t e s of p o t e n t i a l 
CQ Primary Supply Rate (D-6) customers; (v) t o provide Supplier w i t h a l l 
n t r a c t terms and co n d i t i o n s f o r a l l documented and executed R e t a i l Contracts; 

( v i ) t o provide Supplier w i t h Buyer's general c r e d i t p o l i c i e s and procedures; 

fd ( v i i ) t o provide Supplier, upon request, w i t h a l i s t of a l l other wholesale 
ergy s u p p l i e r s , the percentage of Buyer's t o t a l energy supply p o r t f o l i o 

represented by purchases from such other s u p p l i e r s , and the regions i n which the 
ransactions w i t h the other s u p p l i e r s occurred. I 4.3 CREDIT ASSURANCES PROVIDED DIRECTLY BY CUSTOMERS. From time t o time, 

Buyer may, consistent w i t h Section 5. CREDIT and Section 7. MATERIAL ADVERSE 
CHANGE i n Buyer's Master R e t a i l Energy Supply Agreement, o b t a i n a L e t t e r of 
• r e d i t , prepayment, cash, or other c o l l a t e r a l from a Customer associated w i t h a 
Transaction. I n such instances, the Parties recognize t h a t t h i s form of c r e d i t 
assurance i s intended t o inure t o the b e n e f i t of both the Buyer and Supplier. 

I ARTICLE 5 
REVISED SECURITY AND REVISED ESCROW AGREEMENTS 

1 5.1 COMMITMENT TO COMPLETE. Supplier and Buyer have already executed a 
e c u r i t y Agreement and an Escrow Agreement. Within t h i r t y (30) days of execution 

of t h i s Agreement, Supplier and Buyer s h a l l execute a Revised Escrow Agreement 
J n d a Revised S e c u r i t y Agreement. 

5.2 CREDIT ASSURANCES PROVIDED BY CUSTOMERS. The rele v a n t Escrow Account 

Ih a l l be maintained during the e n t i r e Term of t h i s Agreement, and t h e r e a f t e r 
n t i l a l l amounts due f o r Energy and r e l a t e d services sold t o each R e t a i l 
o n t r a c t ( s ) entered i n t o pursuant hereto s h a l l have been s e t t l e d per the Revised 

Escrow Agreement and Revised S e c u r i t y Agreement. 

I ARTICLE 6 
INVOICING, PAYMENT AND ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION 

I 6..1 INVOICING AND PAYMENT. The Parties understand and agree t h a t Supplier 
n v o i c i n g s h a l l i n i t i a l l y be based on Energy•delivered t o Customers on a 

calendar month basis modified f o r l i n e losses. Once the Parties have agreed to 
•m in v o i c e amount, Buyer s h a l l prepare a Form of D i s t r i b u t i o n Request 
• " D i s t r i b u t i o n Request") f o r Supplier's f i n a l review and approval p r i o r t o 
"ubmission t o the Escrow Agent f o r d i s t r i b u t i o n . For example, i f Supplier 
d e l i v e r s Energy to Customers during July 2004, Supplier s h a l l use July d e l i v e r y 

Iata t o create i t s July i n v o i c e payable under the September 2004 in v o i c e f o r 
uyer's review. Customer i n v o i c e d payments received f o r July d e l i v e r i e s s h a l l 

accrue i n the Lockbox/Escrow Account u n t i l the next 

I 
Iisbursement date occurs [September 2004]. Based on the D i s t r i b u t i o n Request 

rocedure set f o r t h i n the Revised Escrow Agreement, which i s incorporated 
herein by reference, the Parties s h a l l discuss the September in v o i c e i n i t i a l l y 

jDrepared by Supplier. The Parties s h a l l cooperate t o resolve any disputes over 
Mnvoices t h a t a r i s e . Buyer s h a l l review and approve the undisputed p o r t i o n of 
• u p p l i e r ' s i n v o i c e . Based on t h a t agreement of the Part i e s , Buyer s h a l l then 
prepare a D i s t r i b u t i o n Request f o r Supplier's f i n a l review and approval w i t h i n 

Ihree (3) Business Days of Supplier's r e c e i p t of such D i s t r i b u t i o n Request, 
r i o r t o submission t o the Escrow Agent. Once Supplier has approved and 

Delivered a fu l l y - a p p r o v e d D i s t r i b u t i o n Request which appears t o comply i n a l l 
m a t e r i a l respects as required , the Escrow Agent s h a l l make d i s t r i b u t i o n s as set 

Io r t h i n the Revised Escrow Agreement by the EARLIER OF: two (2) Business Days 
f r e c e i p t of a ful l y - a p p r o v e d D i s t r i b u t i o n Request, or by the t w e n t y - f i f t h 

(25th) day of the month, i f a Business Day and a ful l y - a p p r o v e d D i s t r i b u t i o n 
equest has been received. The Par t i e s agree to f o l l o w t h i s same procedure each 
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nth. B i l l i n g adjustments s h a l l be made, as appropriate, a f t e r Energy imbalance 

i n f o r m a t i o n becomes a v a i l a b l e per Section 6.2 below. 

1 6.2 ACCOUNT RECONCILIATION. Any disputed p o r t i o n s of the in v o i c e , along 
i t h any c r e d i t s and charges due and owing e i t h e r Party, based on Energy 

imbalance data, and as modified f o r l i n e losses, w i l l be included i n a 

Ie c p n c i l i a t i o n Charge/Credit submitted as pa r t of the monthly i n v o i c e 
ubsequently provided to Buyer by Supplier. The Part i e s agree t o e x p e d i t i o u s l y 

resolve any and a l l disputes, and the Parties agree t o f o l l o w t h i s same 

trocedure each month. I f the Par t i e s are unable to resolve a payment dispute 
hrough settlement checkout w i t h each other, they agree to seek t o resolve such 
ispute through the Dispute Resolution procedure set f o r t h herein i n A r t i c l e 

8.4. 

I ARTICLE 7 
PARTIES' RESPONSIBILITIES WITHIN THE DECO PROGRAM 

1 7.1 THE DECO PROGRAM. Supplier s h a l l f u n c t i o n as a Marketer on behalf of 
uyer under the Marketer Agreement f o r E l e c t r i c Choice Program between The 

D e t r o i t Edison Company and Supplier, and Buyer s h a l l act as an AES/Retailer 

Inder t h e A E S / R e t a i l e r Agreement f o r E l e c t r i c Choice Program between The D e t r o i t 
dison Company and Buyer. 

I 
ARTICLE 8 

MISCELLANEOUS ISSUES 

8.1 CONFIDENTIALITY. The terms of t h i s Agreement, i n c l u d i n g the 
t r a n s a c t i o n ( s ) hereunder, are c o n f i d e n t i a l and are not to be disclosed to any 
H h i r d Party without the p r i o r w r i t t e n consent of the non-disclosing Party except 
^ o the extent d i s c l o s u r e may be required by law, r e g u l a t i o n or j u d i c i a l or 
a d m i n i s t r a t i v e order. 

I 8'.2 GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement i s to be construed under the laws of the 
State, of Michigan, without regard t o any choice of law ru l e s t h a t would 

«therwise r e q u i r e the a p p l i c a t i o n of the laws of another s t a t e . State and 
ederal courts s i t u a t e d i n the State of Michigan s h a l l have exclusive 
u r i s d i c t i o n t o resolve any disputes w i t h respect to t h i s Agreement. Each Party 

i r r e v o c a b l y consents t o the j u r i s d i c t i o n described above f o r any actions, s u i t s 
r proceedings a r i s i n g out of or r e l a t i n g t o t h i s Agreement. 

I 8.3 CONFLICTING TERMS, h i the event of any c o n f l i c t between the terms of 
t h i s . Agreement and the terms of the EEI Master Agreement, the terms of t h i s 

Igreement s h a l l c o n t r o l . I n the event of any c o n f l i c t between the terms of t h i s 
greement and any p r o v i s i o n of the Revised Security Agreement or the Revised 

Escrow Agreement, the terms of the Revised Security Agreement or the Revised 

(scrow Agreement w i l l c o n t r o l . I n the event of any c o n f l i c t between the terms of 
his Agreement and the terms of a p a r t i c u l a r Confirmation, the terms of the 
a r t i c u l a r Confirmation s h a l l c o n t r o l . 

I 
1

8.4 ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The Parties agree t o seek t o resolve 
ny dispute herein pursuant to good f a i t h business n e g o t i a t i o n s . I n the event of 
uch a dispute, the aggrieved Party s h a l l promptly i d e n t i f y i n w r i t i n g the 

nature of the outstanding dispute i n s u f f i c i e n t d e t a i l so as t o .allow the other 
•Party to respond t o the issue. Each Party agrees t o (a) set a time and place f o r 
m face-to-face meeting between a senior r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of each Party w i t h i n 10 
" u s i n e s s Days of w r i t t e n n o t i c e of the dispute, (b) i d e n t i f y i n w r i t i n g i t s own 
p o s i t i o n on the dispute, and (c) propose a r e s o l u t i o n of the dispute. The 

Ia r t i e s agree t o hold no fewer than one meeting w i t h i n the time frame r e q u i r e d 
bove i n t h i s Section 8.4(a) and t o meet f o r at l e a s t a t o t a l of two hours at 

the face-to-face meeting t o discuss t h e i r respective p o s i t i o n s and explore a 
o n t r a c t u a l r e s o l u t i o n of the dispute. Such good f a i t h procedures s h a l l be a 
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o n d i t i o n precedent t o any d e c l a r a t i o n of d e f a u l t by one Party against the 

other, a r b i t r a t i o n or l i t i g a t i o n of the dispute. 

1 8.5 ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, i n c l u d i n g the e x h i b i t s hereto, 
o n t a i n the P a r t i e s ' e n t i r e agreement r e l a t i n g t o the subject matter hereof and 

supersedes any other agreements, w r i t t e n or o r a l , between the P a r t i e s concerning 

Iuch subject matter. No amendment or a l t e r a t i o n t o t h i s Agreement s h a l l be 
f f e c t i v e unless i n w r i t i n g and signed by the P a r t i e s . 

8.6 NO WAIVER. No waiver a t any time by any Party hereto of i t s r i g h t s 
• i t h respect t o the other Party or w i t h respect t o any matter a r i s i n g i n 
•o n n e c t i o n w i t h t h i s Agreement s h a l l be considered a waiver w i t h respect t o any 
subsequent d e f a u l t whether of a l i k e kind or d i f f e r e n t i n nature. 

I 8.7 ASSIGNMENT. Neither Party may assign t h i s Agreement or any r i g h t or 
" b l i g a t i o n under t h i s Agreement without the p r i o r w r i t t e n consent of the other 
Party, which consent s h a l l not be unreasonably w i t h h e l d or delayed. 

| 8.8 No PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE. This Agreement does not e s t a b l i s h and 
should not be construed as e s t a b l i s h i n g any part n e r s h i p or j o i n t venture by and 

(etween the P a r t i e s , and n e i t h e r Party s h a l l have any du t i e s , o b l i g a t i o n s or 
l a b i l i t i e s a r i s i n g under such a r e l a t i o n s h i p . This Agreement s h a l l not impart 
ny r i g h t s enforceable by any t h i r d p a r t y {other than a permitted successor or 

assignee bound by t h i s Agreement). The Parties acknowledge and agree t h a t Buyer 

Is not i n any way a f f i l i a t e d w i t h Supplier and that Supplier i s a wholesale 
l e c t r i c i t y p r o v i d e r contracted by Buyer s o l e l y t o perform the a c t i v i t i e s set 

f o r t h h erein and i n the r e l e v a n t agreements between them. 

8.9 SEVERABILITY. I f any p r o v i s i o n of t h i s Agreement i s held i n v a l i d or 
unenforceable, a l l other p r o v i s i o n s s h a l l not be a f f e c t e d . With respect t o any 
p r o v i s i o n held i n v a l i d or unenforceable, the Parties s h a l l amend or modify t h i s 
Agreement as necessary to e f f e c t as c l o s e l y as possible the P a r t i e s ' o r i g i n a l 

I 
f 

I 
I 
I 
I 

ntent 

8.10 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed i n any number of 
ounterparts and each executed counterpart s h a l l have the same force and e f f e c t 
s an o r i g i n a l instrument. 

8.11 TERM. This Agreement s h a l l continue i n d e f i n i t e l y and s h a l l terminate 

Kn l y upon 30 days' p r i o r w r i t t e n n o t i c e by one Party t o the other Party; 
rovided, however, t h a t such t e r m i n a t i o n s h a l l not a f f e c t or excuse the 

performance of e i t h e r Party under any p r o v i s i o n of t h i s Agreement t h a t by it's 

(erms survives any such t e r m i n a t i o n , and, provided f u r t h e r , t h a t t h i s Agreement 
nd any other documents executed and d e l i v e r e d hereunder s h a l l remain i n e f f e c t 
i t h respect t o any Transaction{s) entered i n t o p r i o r t o the e f f e c t i v e date of 

such t e r m i n a t i o n u n t i l both Parties have f u l f i l l e d a l l of t h e i r o b l i g a t i o n s w i t h 
espect t o such T r a n s a c t i o n ( s ) . 

I 8.12 ASSUMPTION BY BUYER OF ANOTHER AES'S SALES CONTRACTS. In Supplier's 
sole d i s c r e t i o n , i n the event t h a t a Michigan a l t e r n a t i v e energy s u p p l i e r 
•"AES") has d e f a u l t e d under one or more of i t s agreements w i t h Supplier, the 
W a r t i e s s h a l l agree t h a t the f o l l o w i n g general p r i n c i p l e s and procedure would 
apply: {1} Buyer would promptly assume AES customer sales c o n t r a c t s "AS IS" and 

(ould simultaneously assume the wholesale supply arrangement between d e f a u l t e d 
ES and Supplier; (2) Supplier would f u r n i s h assurances to Buyer t h a t a p o s i t i v e 
a r g i n e x i s t s between the d e f a u l t e d AES's customer sales c o n t r a c t s and the 

def a u l t e d AES/Supplier supply c o n t r a c t ; (3) Supplier would guarantee a minimum 

fo l i a r per MWh margin (to be determined based on the value of the d e f a u l t e d AES 
e t a i l customer co n t r a c t s p o r t f o l i o or some other mutually agreed upon value, 

e.g., $0.50 per MWh to cover the cost of op e r a t i o n s ) ; (4) Supplier would f u r n i s h 
the d e f a u l t e d AES customer p o r t f o l i o i n such a manner t h a t would permit easy 
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view and assessment by Buyer, e.g., Supplier w i l l denote non-standardized 
language components i n any d e f a u l t e d AES customer sales contracts, e.g., varying 
l a t e fee payment t o 1%, etc.; (5) Buyer would be prepared to issue notices 
• r o m p t l y to former d e f a u l t e d AES customers regarding i t s assumption of the 
fefaulted AES customer sales c o n t r a c t s ; and (6) Buyer would work w i t h Supplier 
t o i d e n t i f y any a d d i t i o n a l steps t h a t are necessary t o complete Buyer's 

Fsumption of the d e f a u l t e d AES customer sales contracts and the d e f a u l t e d 
S/Supplier supply c o n t r a c t ( s ) . 

8.13 NOTICES. Any not i c e required or given pursuant to t h i s Agreement 

("Notice") s h a l l be i n w r i t i n g and d e l i v e r e d by means of p r i v a t e overnight 
5 l i v e r y , or by f a c s i m i l e transmission, addressed as f o l l o w s : 

To Supplier: 

DTE Energy Trading, Inc. 
414 S. Main Street, Suite 400 
Ann Arbor, MI 48104 
Ann: Marcia Hissong, Contract A d m i n i s t r a t i o n 
Phone No.: 734.887.2042 
Fax No.: 734.887.2235 

To Buyer: 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation 
600 Anton, 20th Floor 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
A t t n : Robert Gunnin, 
Vice President Energy Supply 
Phone No.: (714)259-2502 
Fax No.: (714) 259-2592 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Par t i e s have caused t h i s Agreement to be duly 
xecuted as of the date f i r s t above w r i t t e n . 

COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

By: /s/ Peter Weigand 
I t s : President 

("Debtor") 

DTE ENERGY TRADING, INC. 

By: /s/ Randall D. Balhorm 
I t s : President 

("Secured Party") 

EXHIBIT 14.1. 

COMMERCE ENERGY GROUP, INC. 

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS 
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INTRODUCTION 

I Set f o r t h herein i s the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics adopted by 
mmerce Energy Group, Inc. ("CEG"). This Code summarizes the basic p r i n c i p l e s 
d standards of conduct t o guide a l l d i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees of CEG 

i n our goal t o achieve the highest business and personal e t h i c a l standards as, 

Is l l as compliance w i t h the laws and r e g u l a t i o n s t h a t apply t o our business. A l l 
f our d i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees must conduct themselves accordingly i n 

every aspect of our business and seek to avoid even the appearance of improper 

Jehavior. Our goal has been, and w i l l continue to be, t o advance the highest 
tandards of e t h i c a l conduct.. We expeSt a l l of our agents, consultants, 
o n t r a c t o r s , s u p p l i e r s and representatives to be guided by the p r i n c i p l e s and 

standards set f o r t h i n t h i s Code. The Code does not supersede, change or a l t e r 

Fi s t i n g CEG p o l i c i e s and procedures, i n c l u d i n g , but not l i m i t e d t o , CEG' s 
ployee Handbook and I n s i d e r Trading Policy. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics i s designed t o deter wrongdoing 
nd t o promote: 

Honest and e t h i c a l conduct, i n c l u d i n g the e t h i c a l handling of ac t u a l 
o r a p p a r e n t c o n f l i c t s o f i n t e r e s t between p e r s o n a l and p r o f e s s i o n a l 
r e l a t i o n s h i p s ; 

F u l l , f a i r , accurate, t i m e l y , and understandable d i s c l o s u r e i n 
repo r t s and documents t h a t CEG f i l e s w i t h the S e c u r i t i e s Exchange 
Commission and i n other p u b l i c communications, 

Compliance w i t h a p p l i c a b l e governmental laws, r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s , 

The prompt i n t e r n a l r e p o r t i n g of v i o l a t i o n s of the Code, and 

A c c o u n t a b i l i t y f o r adherence to the Code. 

The Code covers a wide range of business p r a c t i c e s and procedures, but i s 

tot intended to summarize a l l a p p l i c a b l e laws and r e g u l a t i o n s or to respond to 
very question or concern t h a t may a r i s e . I f you have a question regarding any 
f the goals, p r i n c i p l e s , or standards discussed or p o l i c i e s or procedures 

r e f e r r e d to i n t h i s Code or are i n doubt about the best course of a c t i o n t o take 

I'n a p a r t i c u l a r s i t u a t i o n , please contact CEG's General Counsel or f o l l o w the 
rocedures set f o r t h i n Section XVI of t h i s Code. 

Every d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r and employee of CEG has a duty t o adhere t o t h i s 

Iode. Every d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r and employee of CEG s h a l l receive a copy of t h i s 
ode and be re q u i r e d t o sign an acknowledgement of r e c e i p t i n the form attached 

hereto as E x h i b i t A. Any i n d i v i d u a l who v i o l a t e s the standards i n t h i s Code i s 

Iu b j e c t to d i s c i p l i n a r y a c t i o n , up t o and i n c l u d i n g t e r m i n a t i o n , and c i v i l and 
r i m i n a l prosecution, i f appropriate. I f you are i n a s i t u a t i o n t h a t you be l i e v e 
ay v i o l a t e or lead to a v i o l a t i o n of t h i s Code, f o l l o w the gu i d e l i n e s described 

i n Section XVI of t h i s Code. 

I I . COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

(
Obeying the law, both i n l e t t e r and i n s p i r i t , i s the foundation on which 

EC's e t h i c a l standards are b u i l t . A l l d i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees must 
espect and obey the laws of the c i t i e s , states and countries i n which we 

operate. Although not a l l employees are expected t o know the d e t a i l s of these 
•:aws, i t i s important t o know enough to determine when t o seek advice from 
S u p e r v i s o r s , managers or other appropriate personnel. Compliance w i t h the law 
" o e s not obviate the need t o act w i t h the highest e t h i c a l standards. 

I 
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CEG provides a wide range of t r a i n i n g , both mandatory and vol u n t a r y , f o r 

employees t o promote understanding and compliance w i t h various laws, r u l e s and 

egul a t i o n s . I I I . CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

I A " c o n f l i c t of i n t e r e s t " e x i s t s when a person's p r i v a t e i n t e r e s t 
n t e r f e r e s i n any way wi t h the i n t e r e s t s of CEG. A c o n f l i c t s i t u a t i o n can a r i s e 

when a d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r or employee takes actions or has i n t e r e s t s t h a t may 

jake i t d i f f i c u l t t o perform h i s or her CEG work o b j e c t i v e l y and e f f e c t i v e l y , 
o n f l i c t s of i n t e r e s t may also a r i s e when a d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r or employee, or 
embers of hi s or her fa m i l y , receives improper personal b e n e f i t s as a r e s u l t of 

his or her p o s i t i o n w i t h CEG. Loans t o , or guarantees of o b l i g a t i o n s of, 
• f f i c e r s and employees, and t h e i r f a m i l y members, may create c o n f l i c t s of 
• n t e r e s t . Loans to d i r e c t o r s and executive o f f i c e r s of CEG are p r o h i b i t e d by law 
™nd may not be made. 

I A c o n f l i c t of i n t e r e s t may a r i s e i f a d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r or employee of CEG 
orks simultaneously f o r a competitor, customer or maj or s u p p l i e r . You are not 

allowed t o work f o r a competitor as a consultant or board member. The best 

Io l i c y i s to avoid any d i r e c t or i n d i r e c t business connection w i t h our 
ustomers, s u p p l i e r s or competitors, except on our behalf. 

C o n f l i c t s of i n t e r e s t are p r o h i b i t e d as a matter of CEG p o l i c y , except 

Inder g u i d e l i n e s approved by the Board of Di r e c t o r s . C o n f l i c t s of i n t e r e s t may 
ot always be cl e a r cut. I f questions a r i s e , you should consult CEG's General 

Counsel. The Chief Executive O f f i c e r and d i r e c t o r s must report any such 
gircumstance to and obt a i n approval from the Audit Committee. 

I Any d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r or employee who becomes aware of a c o n f l i c t or a 
p o t e n t i a l c o n f l i c t should b r i n g i t t o the a t t e n t i o n of a supervisor, manager or 

It h e r appropriate personnel or f o l l o w the procedures described i n Section XVI of 
his Code. 

IV. INSIDER TRADING 

I D i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees of CEG who have access t o c o n f i d e n t i a l 
i n f o r m a t i o n are not per m i t t e d t o use or share t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n f o r stock t r a d i n g 
•purposes or f o r any other purpose except the conduct of our business. A l l non 
• m b l i c i n f o r m a t i o n about CEG should be considered c o n f i d e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n . To 
Tise non p u b l i c i n f o r m a t i o n f o r personal f i n a n c i a l b e n e f i t or to " t i p " others who 
might make an investment d e c i s i o n on the basis of t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n i s not only 

tn e t h i c a l but also i l l e g a l . Please r e f e r t o CEG's I n s i d e r Trading Policy f o r 
ore i n f o r m a t i o n regarding CEG's p o l i c i e s and procedures w i t h respect t o t r a d i n g 

i n CEG's s e c u r i t i e s . I f you have any questions, please consult CEG's General 
ounsel. 

f This guidance also applies t o t r a d i n g i n s e c u r i t i e s of other companies f o r 
which you receive i n f o r m a t i o n i n the course of your employment w i t h CEG. 

| A l l employees are p r o h i b i t e d from conducting commodity t r a n s a c t i o n s i n 
t h e i r personal accounts i n any commod.ijty i n which the Company tran s a c t s . 

t CORPORATE OPPORTUNITIES 

Di r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees are p r o h i b i t e d from personally 
• i p e n e f i t i n g from o p p o r t u n i t i e s t h a t are discovered through the use of corporate 
P r o p e r t y , i n f o r m a t i o n or p o s i t i o n without the consent of CEG's Board of 
" i r e c t o r s . No d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r or employee may use corporate property" 
i n f o r m a t i o n , or p o s i t i o n f o r improper personal gain. D i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and 

tmployees owe a duty t o CEG to advance i t s l e g i t i m a t e i n t e r e s t when the 
p p o r t u n i t y t o do so a r i s e s . 

I 
I . COMPETITION AND FAIR DEALING 
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We seek t o outperform our competition f a i r l y and honestly. We seek 

Iompetitive advantages through superior performance, never through u n e t h i c a l or 
l l e g a l business p r a c t i c e s . S t e a l i n g p r o p r i e t a r y 

I -2-

i n f o r m a t i o n , possessing trade secret i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t was obtained without the 
•wner's consent, or inducing such dis c l o s u r e s by past or present employees of 
JBther companies i s p r o h i b i t e d . No d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r or employee of CEG should 
take u n f a i r advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of 

Ir i v i l e g e d i n f o r m a t i o n , misrepresentation of m a t e r i a l f a c t s , or any other 
n t e n t i o n a l u n f a i r d ealing p r a c t i c e . 

The purpose of business entertainment and g i f t s i n a commercial s e t t i n g i s 

Io create good w i l l and sound working r e l a t i o n s h i p s , not to gain u n f a i r 
dvantage w i t h customers. No g i f t or entertainment should ever be o f f e r e d , 

given, provided or accepted by any CEG d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r , employee, f a m i l y 
ember of any of the foregoing or agent unless i t : 

1 
I 
I 
I 

i s not a cash g i f t ; 
i s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h customary business practices,-
i s not excessive i n value; 
cannot be construed as a br i b e or payoff; and 
does not v i o l a t e any laws or r e g u l a t i o n s . 

Please discuss w i t h your supervisor any g i f t s or proposed g i f t s t h a t you 
re not c e r t a i n are appropriate. 

I I . DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT 

The d i v e r s i t y of CEG's employees i s a tremendous asset. As evidenced by 
our equal employment o p p o r t u n i t y and a n t i harassment p o l i c i e s , CEG i s f i r m l y 

Iommitted to p r o v i d i n g equal employment o p p o r t u n i t y to q u a l i f i e d i n d i v i d u a l s 
egardless of race, c o l o r , r e l i g i o n , gender, age, n a t i o n a l o r i g i n , sexual 

o r i e n t a t i o n , d i s a b i l i t y , veteran s t a t u s , m a r i t a l s t a t u s , or other protected 

It a t u s . CEG w i l l not t o l e r a t e i l l e g a l d i s c r i m i n a t i o n or harassment of any kind, 
ur anti-harassment p o l i c y explains i n d e t a i l the types of conduct t h a t are 

p r o h i b i t e d . Examples include derogatory comments based on r a c i a l or et h n i c 
c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s and unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature. V i o l a t i o n s of our a n t i 

Iarassment and equal employment o p p o r t u n i t y p o l i c i e s should be reported 
mmediately as provided i n those p o l i c i e s and i n Section XVI, below. 

(
A l l of our employees deserve a work environment where they w i l l be 

espected and CEG i s committed to p r o v i d i n g an environment t h a t supports 
onesty, i n t e g r i t y , respect, t r u s t and r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . A l l of our employees 

should c o n t r i b u t e t o the c r e a t i o n and maintenance of such an environment and our 

Ixecutive o f f i c e r s and management and supervisory personnel should take a 
eadership r o l e i n achieving a work environment t h a t meets our d i v e r s i t y 

standards and i s free from d i s c r i m i n a t i o n and harassment. 

I I I I . HEALTH AND SAFETY 

CEG s t r i v e s t o provide each employee w i t h a safe and healthy work 
«nvironment. Each employee has a r e s p o n s i b i l i t y f o r maintaining a safe and 
Biea l t h y workplace f o r a l l employees by f o l l o w i n g s a f e t y and he a l t h r u l e s and 
™ractices and r e p o r t i n g accidents, i n j u r i e s and unsafe equipment, p r a c t i c e s or 
con d i t i o n s and complying w i t h v i s i t o r h o sting procedures and other f a c i l i t y 

J e c u r i t y r e l a t e d p o l i c i e s and procedures. 

Violence and th r e a t e n i n g behavior are not perm i t t e d . Employees should 
eport t o work i n c o n d i t i o n to perform t h e i r d u t i e s , f r e e from the i n f l u e n c e of 
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cohol, i l l e g a l drugs or c o n t r o l l e d substances. Employees who rep o r t t o work 

under the i n f l u e n c e of or i n possession of i l l e g a l drugs or alcohol are subject 

,0 d i s c i p l i n a r y a c t i o n up to and i n c l u d i n g t e r m i n a t i o n . C 
I 

RECORD KEEPING 

I 

CEG requires honest and accurate recording and r e p o r t i n g of i n f o r m a t i o n i n 
rder t o make responsible business decisions. 

-3-

I Many d i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees r e g u l a r l y use business expense 
ccounts, which must be documented and recorded accurately. No one should 

n a t i o n a l i z e or even consider misrepresenting f a c t s or f a l s i f y i n g records. I f you 
are not sure whether a c e r t a i n expense i s l e g i t i m a t e , ask your supervisor or the 

Iorporate Accounting Department. Rules and guide l i n e s are a v a i l a b l e from the 
orporate Accounting Department. 

I A l l of CEG's books, records, accounts and f i n a n c i a l statements must be 
ai n t a i n e d i n reasonable d e t a i l , must a p p r o p r i a t e l y r e f l e c t CEG's tr a n s a c t i o n s , 
nd must conform both to ap p l i c a b l e l e g a l requirements and t o CEG's system of 

i n t e r n a l c o n t r o l s and gen e r a l l y accepted accounting p r i n c i p l e s . Unrecorded or 

Io f f the books" funds or assets should not be maintained unless permitted by 
p p l i c a b l e law or r e g u l a t i o n . 

(
Business records and communications o f t e n become p u b l i c , and we should 

vo i d exaggeration, derogatory remarks, guesswork, or in a p p r o p r i a t e 
h a r a c t e r i z a t i o n s of people and companies t h a t can be misunderstood. This 

applies equally t o e m a i l , i n t e r n a l memos, and formal r e p o r t s . Records should 

Ilways be r e t a i n e d or destroyed according to CEG's record r e t e n t i o n p o l i c i e s . I n 
ccordance w i t h those p o l i c i e s , i n the event of l i t i g a t i o n or governmental 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n please consult CEG's General Counsel. 

I FINANCIAL REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE 

A l l t r a n s a c t i o n s i n v o l v i n g CEG and i t s s u b s i d i a r i e s must be documented, i n 
reasonable d e t a i l , and accounted f o r on the books and records of CEG i n 
Mccordance w i t h g e n e r a l l y accepted accounting p r i n c i p l e s and ap p l i c a b l e laws and 
" e g u l a t i o n s . CEG's Chief F i n a n c i a l O f f i c e r ("CFO") i s the c h i e f accounting 
o f f i c e r of 'CEG and i s responsible f o r e s t a b l i s h i n g and maintaining accounting 

Io l i c i e s and procedures, d i s c l o s u r e c o n t r o l s and i n t e r n a l c o n t r o l standards and 
he requirements f o r f i n a n c i a l r e p o r t i n g t o CEG's Management and others. 

V 

I 
I . CONFIDENTIALITY 

Di r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees must safeguard the c o n f i d e n t i a l i t y of 
c o n f i d e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n entrusted t o them by CEG or i t s customers, except when 

Ii s c l c s u r e i s authorized by the Legal Department or required by laws or 
egulat i o n s . C o n f i d e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n includes a l l non p u b l i c i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t 

might be of use t o competitors, or harmful to CEG or i t s customers, i f 
d i s c l o s e d . I t also includes i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t s u p p l i e r s and customers have 
E n t r u s t e d t o us. The o b l i g a t i o n t o preserve c o n f i d e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n continues 
• v e n a f t e r employment ends. A l l o f f i c e r s and employees must complete t r a i n i n g on 
CEG Privacy and Sec u r i t y p o l i c i e s and procedures and comply w i t h a p p l i c a b l e 

("ederal and s t a t e p r i v a c y requirements. Any v i o l a t i o n of HIPAA privacy 
equirements should be reported t o your supervisor. 

X I I . PROTECTION AND PROPER USE OF CEG ASSETS 

I 
1 

A l l d i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees should endeavor t o p r o t e c t CEG's 
assets, i n c l u d i n g funds, property, e l e c t r o n i c communications systems, 
in f o r m a t i o n resources, data, f a c i l i t i e s , equipment and supplies t o ensure t h e i r 
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f i c i e n t use. P r o t e c t i o n of CEG's assets i s v i t a l since t h e f t , carelessness and 

waste have a d i r e c t impact on CEG's p r o f i t a b i l i t y . Any suspected i n c i d e n t of 

Iraud or t h e f t should be immediately reported f o r i n v e s t i g a t i o n pursuant t o 
acti o n XVI of t h i s Code. CEG assets should not be used f o r non-CEG business, 
Ithough we recognize t h a t i n c i d e n t a l personal use may be permitted without 

adversely a f f e c t i n g the i n t e r e s t s of CEG. Personal use of CEG assets must always 
i n accordance w i t h CEG p o l i c y . You should consult your supervisor f o r 

• p p r o p r i a t e guidance and permission. 

I The o b l i g a t i o n of d i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees t o p r o t e c t CEG's 
ssets includes i t s p r o p r i e t a r y i n f o r m a t i o n . P r o p r i e t a r y i n f o r m a t i o n includes 
n t e l l e c t u a l property such as trade secrets, software programs, patents, 

trademarks and copyrights, as w e l l as business, marketing and service plans, 

Iesigns, databases, records, s a l a r y i n f o r m a t i o n and any unpublished f i n a n c i a l 
ata and r e p o r t s . Unauthorized use or d i s t r i b u t i o n of t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n i s a 

v i o l a t i o n of CEG p o l i c y . I t could also be i l l e g a l and r e s u l t i n c i v i l or 
c r i m i n a l p e n a l t i e s . Each employee of CEG i s required t o comply w i t h the 
p r o v i s i o n s of the 

I -4-

I n t e l l e c t u a l Property and Technical Information Agreement, whether or not such 
Jgreement has been executed by the employee. 

X I I I . PAYMENTS TO GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL 

I The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act p r o h i b i t s g i v i n g anything of value, 
i r e c t l y or i n d i r e c t l y , t o o f f i c i a l s of f o r e i g n governments or f o r e i g n p o l i t i c a l 

candidates i n order t o ob t a i n or r e t a i n business. I t i s s t r i c t l y p r o h i b i t e d t o 
ake i l l e g a l payments t o government o f f i c i a l s of any country. 

I In a d d i t i o n , the U.S. government has a number of laws and re g u l a t i o n s 

tegarding business g r a t u i t i e s t h a t may be accepted by U.S. government personnel, 
he promise, o f f e r or d e l i v e r y t o an o f f i c i a l or employee of the U.S. government 
f a g i f t , favor or other g r a t u i t y i n v i o l a t i o n of these r u l e s would not only 

v i o l a t e CEG p o l i c y but could also be a c r i m i n a l offense. State and l o c a l 

Iovernments, as w e l l as f o r e i g n governments, may have s i m i l a r r u l e s . CEG' s 
eneral Counsel can provide guidance to you i n t h i s area. 

XIV. IMPROPER INFLUENCE ON CONDUCT OF AUDITS 

I No d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r or employee of CEG s h a l l take any a c t i o n (e.g., 
o f f e r i n g or paying bribes or other f i n a n c i a l i n c e n t i v e s , p r o v i d i n g inaccurate or 

Ii s l e a d i n g l e g a l a n a l y s i s , b l a c k m a i l i n g , and making ph y s i c a l t h r e a t s ) or make 
ny f a l s e , misleading or inaccurate o r a l or w r i t t e n statement t o f r a u d u l e n t l y 

i n f l u e n c e , coerce, manipulate or mislead an independent a u d i t o r engaged i n the 
performance of an audit of CEG's f i n a n c i a l statements f o r the purpose of 

• e n d e r i n g the f i n a n c i a l statements m a t e r i a l l y misleading. 

XV. COMPLIANCE PROCEDURES 

I Each d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r and employee of CEG must work t o ensure prompt and 
ons i s t e n t a c t i o n against v i o l a t i o n s of t h i s Code. However, i n some s i t u a t i o n s 

i t may be d i f f i c u l t t o know i f a v i o l a t i o n has occurred. Since we cannot 

In t i c i p a t e every s i t u a t i o n t h a t w i l l a r i s e , i t i s important t h a t we have a way 
o approach a new question or problem. These are the steps t o keep i n mind: 

I 
I 

Make sure you have a l l the f a c t s . I n order t o reach the r i g h t 
s o l u t i o n s , we must be as f u l l y informed as possible. 

Ask y o u r s e l f : What s p e c i f i c a l l y am I being asked to do? Does i t seem 
u n e t h i c a l or improper? This w i l l enable you to focus on the s p e c i f i c 
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question you are faced w i t h , and the a l t e r n a t i v e s you have. Use your 
j udgment and common sense; i f something seems u n e t h i c a l or improper, 
i t probably i s . 

C l a r i f y your r e s p o n s i b i l i t y and r o l e . I n most s i t u a t i o n s , there i s 
shared r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . Are your colleagues informed? I t may help t o 
get others involved and discuss the problem. 

Discuss the problem w i t h your supervisor. This i s the basic guidance 
f o r a l l s i t u a t i o n s . I n many cases, your supervisor w i l l be more 
knowledgeable about the question, and w i l l appreciate being brought 
i n t o the dec i s i o n making process. Remember t h a t i t i s your 
supervisor's r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o help solve problems. 

Seek help from CEG resources. I n the case where i t may not be 
appropriate to discuss an issue w i t h your supervisor, or where you 
do not f e e l comfortable approaching your supervisor w i t h your 
question, discuss i t w i t h your o f f i c e manager or Human Resources 
manager. I f t h a t also i s not appropriate, c a l l CEG's General 
Counsel. 

You may rep o r t e t h i c a l v i o l a t i o n s i n confidence and without fear of 
r e t a l i a t i o n . I f your s i t u a t i o n requires t h a t your i d e n t i t y be kept 
secret, every e f f o r t w i l l be made to p r o t e c t your anonymity. 

-5-

CEG does not permit r e t a l i a t i o n of any kind against employees f o r 
good f a i t h r e p o r t s of e t h i c a l v i o l a t i o n s or misconduct. 

Always ask f i r s t , act l a t e r . I f you are unsure of what to do i n any 
s i t u a t i o n , seek guidance before you act. 

VI. REPORTING ANY ILLEGAL OR UNETHICAL BEHAVIOR 

Di r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees are encouraged to promptly discuss w i t h , 
•>r otherwise d i s c l o s e t o , t h e i r supervisors, managers or other appropriate 
Personnel any observed or suspected i l l e g a l or u n e t h i c a l behavior. I n the case 
" h e r e i t may not be appropriate t o discuss an issue w i t h your supervisor, or 
where you do not f e e l comfortable approaching your supervisor w i t h your 

fuestion, discuss i t w i t h your o f f i c e manager or your Human Resources manager. 
f t h a t also i s not appropriate, c a l l CEG1s General Counsel. 

(
Reporting of v i o l a t i o n s w i l l remain c o n f i d e n t i a l t o the degree possible, 

o employee of CEG may be discharged, demoted, suspended, threatened, harassed 
r i n any other manner be d i s c r i m i n a t e d against i n the terms and conditions of 

t h e i r employment because of r e p o r t i n g or a i d i n g i n the i n v e s t i g a t i o n of i l l e g a l 

Ir u n e t h i c a l behavior. D i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees are expected t o 
ooperate i n i n t e r n a l i n v e s t i g a t i o n s of misconduct. 

XVII. VIOLATIONS OF THE CODE AND DISCIPLINARY ACTION 

I Every d i r e c t o r , o f f i c e r and employee of CEG has a duty t o adhere t o t h i s 
Code. Any i n d i v i d u a l who v i o l a t e s the standards i n t h i s Code i s subject t o «i s c i p l i n a r y a c t i o n , up to and i n c l u d i n g t e r m i n a t i o n , and c i v i l and c r i m i n a l 
r osecution, i f appropriate. CEG w i l l promptly and pr o p e r l y document a l l reasons 
or d i s c i p l i n a r y actions taken against i t s d i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s and employees f o r 

v i o l a t i o n s of the Code. 

J v i I I . WAIVERS OF THE CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS 

— Any waiver of t h i s Code f o r d i r e c t o r s or executive o f f i c e r s of CEG may be 
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Bade only by CEG's Board of D i r e c t o r s or a committee thereof and w i l l be 
promptly disclosed as required by law or by stock exchange or market r u l e or 
eg u l a t i o n . 

I 
I 
I 

-6-

E x h i b i t A 

FORM OF ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS 

I acknowledge t h a t I have received a copy of the Company's Code of 

(usiness Conduct and Ethics and acknowledge t h a t i t i s my r e s p o n s i b i l i t y t o read 
t , understand i t s contents, and adhere to a l l of the terms of and procedures i n 
he p o l i c y . I f u r t h e r acknowledge t h a t nothing i n the Code of Business Conduct 

and Ethics changes my a t - w i l l employment r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h the Company, which 

Ieans t h a t e i t h e r I or the Company can terminate my employment at any time, f o r 
ny or no reason, w i t h or without n o t i c e . I also understand t h a t the Company 

reserves the r i g h t t o modify or terminate i t s Code of Business Conduct and 
Ethics w i t h or without n o t i c e , at any time i n i t s sole d i s c r e t i o n . 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
f 

mployee Name (Printed) Employee Signature Date 

-7-

EXHIBIT 2 1 . 1 

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT 

he f o l l o w i n g e n t i t i e s are wholly-owned s u b s i d i a r i e s of Commerce Energy Group, 
nc. : 

| J u r i s d i c t i o n of 
Name Organization 

I •ommonwealth Energy Corporation C a l i f o r n i a 

J l e c t r i c A m e r i c a , Inc. Delaware 

elect r i c . c o m , Inc. Delaware 

J k i p p i n g Stone Inc. Delaware 

U t i l i H o s t , Inc. Delaware 
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fchibit 2 3 . 1 

I 
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

I We consent t o the i n c o r p o r a t i o n by reference i n the R e g i s t r a t i o n Statement 
orm S-8 No. 333-117246) p e r t a i n i n g t o the Commonwealth Energy Corporation 1999 

Equity I n c e n t i v e Plan, as amended (which has been assumed by Commerce Energy 

(roup, I n c . ) , of our r e p o r t dated October 22, 2004, w i t h respect t o the 
onsolidated f i n a n c i a l statements of Commerce Energy Group, Inc. included i n the 
nnual Report (Form 10-K) f o r the year ended July 31, 2004. 

3/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP 

range County, C a l i f o r n i a 
o v e m b e r 1 5 , 2004 
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Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATIONS 

Peter Weigand, certify that: 

. I have' reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Commerce Energy Group; 

. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light ofthe circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this annua) report; 

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual 
report; 

. The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material infonnation relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared; 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness ofthe disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end ofthe period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d) disclosed: in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most 
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant's internal controls over 
financial reporting; and 

. The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal 
controls over financial reporting. 

bate: November 15,2004 By: Isl PETER WEIGAND 

PETER WEIGAND 
President 

(Principal Executive Officer) 
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Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATIONS 

Richard L. Boughrum, certify that: 

I have reviewed this'annual report on Form 10-K of Commerce Energy Group; 

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this annual report; 

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual 
report;, 

The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material infonnation relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared; 

c) evaliiaied the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about.the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most 
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant's internal controls over 
financial reporting; and 

The registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, lo the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies.and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

b) any Iraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal 
controls over financial reporting. 

ate: November 15, 2004 By: Isl RICHARD L. BOUGHRUM 

RICHARD L. BOUGHRUM 
Senior Vice President and Chief 

Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

ttp://inIOk\vizard.com/filing.php?re 3/17/2005 



SEC Filings : Print View Page 195 of 196 

Exhibit 32.1 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
RULE 13(a)-14(b) AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 90$ OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

| In connection with the Annual Report of Commerce Energy Group (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending July 31, 2004, 
ps filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), Peter Weigand, President (principal executive officer) 
ofthe Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to his 
knowledge: 

. The Report ftilly complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the 
Company. 

Date: November 15,2004 By: Is! PETER WEIGAND 

PETER WEIGAND 
President 

(Principal Executive Officer) 
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Exhibit 32.2 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
RULE 13(a)-14(b) AND 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

I In connection with the Annual Report of Commerce Energy Group (the "Company") on Form 10-K for the Fiscal year ending July 31, 2004, 
bs filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), Richard L. Boughrum, Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer ofthe Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to 906 ofthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002, that, to his-knowledge: 

. The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 

. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations ofthe 
Company. 

Date: November 15,2004 By: Isl RICHARD L. BOUGHRUM 

RICHARD L. BOUGHRUM 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial Officer) 
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Decide with Confidence C o m p r e h e n s i v e R e p o r t 

"o save'report(s) to your PC, click here for instructions. §) Print this Report 

Enhanced F o r m a t : View this report with charts and graphs for quicker decision making. 

Copyright 2005 Dun & Bradstreet - Provided under contract for the exclusive use of subscriber 264734337L 

ATTN: undefined 

Overview 

B U S I N E S S SUMMARY 

Report Printed: MAR 25 2005 

C O M M O N W E A L T H E N E R G Y C O R P 
(SUBSIDIARY OF COMMERCE ENERGY GROUP INC, 

COSTA, MESA, CA) 
ELECTRIC AMERICA 
UTILIHOST 
ACT ADVANCED CLIENT T E C H N O L O G I E S 

6 0 0 A n t o n B l v d , S t e 2 0 0 0 
Moved F r o m : 1 5 9 0 1 R e d Hill A v e , S t e - 1 0 0 , T u s t i n , 
C a 
C o s t a M e s a , C A 9 2 6 2 6 

D&B's Credit Limit Recommendat ion 
How much credit should you extend? 

f Learn More *> V iew Now 

P a y m e n t T r e n d s Pro f i le ^ 
Payment trends and industry benchmarkyn 

j- Jump to PaymentTTjrends 

r- 3 

"I 

D&B D-U-N-S N u m b e r : 17-634-3341 

—A 
I 

CO 

I 
This is a h e a d q u a r t e r s ( s u b s i d i a r y ) location. 
Branch(es) or division(s) exist. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

! 

Web si te: 

Te lephone: 

Fax: 

Chief execut ive: 

Y e a r s tar ted: 

Employs: 

www.electric.com 

714 259-2500 

714 259-2575 

IAN CARTER, CEO/CHB 

1997 

,185 (175 here) 

Credit Score C l a s s : 1 

Low risk of severe payment delinquency over nex 
months 

High Moderate Low 

CD* 

cz 

a 

"2: 
a 

Financia l S t r e s s C l a s s : 1 

Low risk of severe financial stress over the next 12 
months 

F inanc ia l s t a t e m e n t date:APR 30 2004 . 

High Moderate Low 

S a l e s F: 

Net wor th: 

History': 

F inancing: 

$165,526,000 

$93,017,000 

CLEAR 

SECURED 

12-Month O&B PAYDEX®: 8 0 

When weighted by dollar amount, payments to suppliers 
average generally within terms. 

ttps://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRe^ 3/25/2005. 



)&B Comprehensive Report: COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORP Pase2o'f 19 

i 
i 
i 
i 

Financial condit ion: 
S I C : 

Line of b u s i n e s s : 

STRONG 

4911 

Electric services 

100 

120 days slow 

D&B Rat ing: 

Financial s t rength: 

30 days slow Prompt Anticipates 

5A2 

5A is $50 million and 
over. 

Composi te credit appra isa l : 2 is good. 

I 
cl 

I 

E X E C U T I V E SUMMARY 

he F inanc ia l S t ress Class o f 1 for this company shows that during the previous year, f irms with this 
classification had a failure rate of 0.49% (49 per 10,000), which is lower than the national average. 

he Cred i t Score c lass of 1 for this company shows that during the previous year, 2 .3% o f t h e f irms with this 
iassification paid one or more bills severely delinquent, which is lower than the national, average. 

inancial information from an interim consolidated statement dated 04/30/04 is included. 

' redictive S c o r e s 

f i n a n c i a l S t r e s s C l a s s 

f i n a n c i a l S t r e s s Score 

Credit Score C lass 

i t her Key Ind icators 

PAYDEX S c o r e s 

I n d u s t r y Median 

Th is B u s i n e s s 

1 

1493 

1 -

generally within terms 

Comments 

Failure Rate lower than the national average 

Highest Risk: 1,001; Lowest Risk: 1,850 

Probability of Severely Delinquent Payment 
is lower than the national average 

Pays more promptly than the average for its 
industry of 6 days beyond terms 

6 days beyond terms 

P resen t m a n a g e m e n t c o n t r o l 8 years 

RCC F i l i ngs UCC fil ing(s) are reported for this business 

ub l i c F i l ings Evidence of open suits and judgement in the D&B database 

F inanc ing Is secured 

• H i s t o r y Is clear 

^ S p e c i a l Even ts Are reported for this business 

:REDIT CAPACITY SUMMARY 

I 

>&B Rat ing: 5A2 

Financial s t rength: 5A indicates $50 million and over. 

Composite credit appra isa l : 2 is good. 

his credit rating was assigned because of D&B's assessment of the company's financial ratios and its cash f low, 
or more information, see the D&B Rating Key. 

a les : 

of Employees Total : 

^s of 0 4 / 3 0 / 0 4 

$165,526,000 
185 (175 here) 

Payment Activity: 
(based on 36 experiences) 

Average High Credit: $151,085 

I 
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I 

W o r t h : $93,017,000 H ighes t Cred i t : $5,000,000 

W o r k i n g Cap i ta l : $63,753,000 To ta l H i g h e s t C red i t : $5,288,750 

|Note: The Worth amount in this section may have been adjusted by D&B to reflect typical deductions, such as 
erta in intangible assets. 

SPECIAL EVENTS 

1/18/2004 
usiness address has changed from 15901 Red Hill Ave, Ste-100, Tustin, CA, 92780 to 600 Anton Blvd, Ste 2000, 
osta Mesa, CA, 92626. 

K1/02/2004 
ARMINGS UPDATE: According to published reports, comparative operating results for the 3 months ended 
ctober 3 1 , 2003'. Revenue of $58,396,000, Net Income of ($1,122,000) ; compared to Revenue of $33,682,000, 

Net Income of ' ($526,000) for the comparable period in the prior year. 

t u m p t o : 

_ Overview j payments | Public Filings | History & Operations J Banking & Finance 

scores ^fSHustve 

J F I N A N C I A L STRESS SUMMARY 

f 
I 
t 
I 
I 

he Financial Stress Summary Model predicts the likelihood of a f i rm ceasing business without paying all creditors 
ful l , or reorganization or obtaining relief from creditors under state/federal law over the next 12 month's. Scores 

ere calculated using a statistically valid model derived from D&B's extensive data files. 

High Moderate Low 

F inanc ia l S t ress Class: 1 frbsw- | | ^ p . . , ^ ^ ' 

5 4 3 2 1 

ow risk of severe financial stress, such as a bankruptcy, over the next 12 months. 

I 

nc idence o f F inanc ia l S t ress 

[Among .Businesses with this 

passi f icat ion: " 0 .49% (49 per 10,000) 

National Average . 1.40% (140 per 10,000) 

F inanc ia l S t ress N a t i o n a l P e r c e n t i l e : 8 2 (Highest Risk: 1 ; Lowest Risk: 100) 

F inanc ia l S t ress Score : 1 4 9 3 (Highest Risk: 1,001; Lowest Risk: 1,850) 

The Financial Stress Class of this business is based on the following factors: 

I 
I 

• Control age or date entered in D&B files indicates higher risk. 
• D&B files indicate a net worth of $93,017,000, 
• Quick Ratio suggests lower risk of financial stress. 
• 8% of trade experiences indicate slow payment(s) are present. 
• Change in Quick Ratio suggests lower risk of financial stress, v 
• Change in Current Ratio suggests lower risk of financial stress. 

l o t es : 

I 
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i 
i 
i 
i 

The Financial Stress Class indicates that this firm shares some of the same business and financial 
characteristics of other companies with this classification. It does not mean the firm will necessarily 
experience financial stress. 
The Incidence of Financial Stress shows the percentage of firms in a given Class that discontinued operations 
oven the past year with loss to creditors. The Incidence of Financial Stress - National Average represents the 
national failure rate and is provided for comparative purposes. 
The Financial Stress National Percentile reflects the relative ranking of a company among all scorable 
companies in D&B's file. 
The Financial Stress Score offers a more precise measure of the level of risk than the Class and Percentile. It 
is especially helpful to customers using a scorecard approach to determining overall business performance. 
All Financial Stress Class, Percentile, Score and Incidence statistics are based on 2002. 

Financial Stress Norms Comparison (%) 

Indus t ry Employee Years in 
Range Business 

I 
Reqion = PACIFIC 
Industry=INFRASTRUCTURE 
Employee Range = 100-499 
Years in Business = 6-10 

Norms 

i This Business 

Region: 
PACIFIC 

'Industry: 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

lEmployee Range: 
100-499 

Years in Business: 
6-10 

National % 

82 

43 

41 

55 

39 

rhis business, has a Financial Stress Percentile that shows: 

I 
I 
f 
I 
I 
I 

• Lower risk than other companies in the same region. 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same industry. 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same employee size range. 
• Lower.risk than other companies with a comparable number of years in business. 

CREDIT SCORE CLASS SUMMARY 

he Credit Score class predicts the likelihood of a firm paying in a severely delinquent manner (90+ Days Past 
erms) over the next twelve months. It was calculated using statistically valid models and the most recent payment 
formation in D&B's files. 

High Moderate Low 

Credit Score Class: 1 
5 4 3 2 1 

ow risk of severe, payment delinquency over next 12 months. 

ncidence of Delinquent Payment 

lAmong Companies with this Classification: 2.30% 

I 
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i 
—Cred i t Score Pe rcen t i l e : 9 9 (Highest Risk: 1 ; Lowest Risk: 100) 

^ " h e Credit Score Class of this business is based on the following factors: 

I o D&B files indicate a net worth of $93,017,000. 
• Business does not own facilities. 
• Quick ratio is 2.8. 

l o t es : 

I 
I 
I 
I 
i 
i 
i 

i 

I 

The Incidence of Delinquent Payment is the percentage of companies wi th this classification that were 
reported 90 days past due or more by creditors. The calculation of this value is based on an inquiry weighted 
sample. 
The Percentile ranks this f irm relative to other businesses. For example, a f irm in the 80th percentile has a 
lower risk of paying in a severely delinquent manner than 7 9 % of all scorable companies in D&B's files. 

100 

90 

^ 80 
5? 
— 70 
j i 

S 60 

S 50 

£ 40 

30 

20 

10 

0 

99% 
C r e d i t S c o r e N o r m s C o m p a r i s o n (%) 

*,k\ to 
r"' 

ter i 

-56%- -54%-

41% 
46%-

m 
wmm§ 

This Business Region I n d u s b v Employee Years in 
Range Business 

Reqion=PACIFIC 
Industry-INFRASTRUCTURE 
Employee Range = 100-499 
Years in Business = 6-10 

This business has a Credit Score Percentile that shows: 

I 
I 

N o r m s 

This Business 

jRegion: 
{PACIFIC 

^Industry: 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

i 

lEmployee Range: 
i lOO-499 
I 
lYears in Business: 
!6-10 

N a t i o n a l % 

99 

41 

i 

54 

46 

• Lower risk than other companies in the same region. 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same industry. 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same employee size range. 
• Lower risk than other companies with a comparable number of years in business. 

J u m p t o : 

| Overview Scores Public Filings History & Operations Banking & Finance 

Payments vsive 

>AYMENT TRENDS 

I 
I 
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D&B Comprehensive Report: COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORP Page 6 of 19 

Total Payment Exper iences in D&B's 36 
File: 

Payments Within T e r m s : 

(not dollar weighted) 

Total P laced For Collection: 

Average Highest Credit: 

Largest High Credit: 

Highest Now Owing: 

Highest Pas t Due: 

95% 

0 

$151,085 

$5,000,000 

$10,000 

$750 

Current P A Y D E X is : 

Indus t ry Median is : 

P a y m e n t Trend 
current ly is : 

80 

76 

equal to 
generally within 
terms 

equal to 6 days 
beyond terms 

unchanged, 
compared to 
payments three 
months ago 

Indications of slowness can be the result of dispute over 
merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. Accounts are sometimes 
placed for collection even though the existence or amount of 
the debt is disputed. 

PAYDEX S c o r e s 

I hows the D&B PAYDEX scores as calculated on the most recent 3 months and 12 months of payment experiences. 

I
The D&B PAYDEX is a unique, dollar weighted indicator of payment performance based on up to payment 
experiences as reported to D&B by trade references. A detailed explanation of how to read and interpret PAYDEX 
|cores can be found at the end of this report. 

I 
l 

I 

l 

3-Month D&B PAYDEX: 7 9 
When-weighted'by dollar amount, payments to 
suppliers average 2 days beyond terms. 

120 days stow 30 days slow Piompt Anticipates 

ased on payments collected over last 3 months. 

12-Month D&B PAYDEX: 8 0 
When weighted by dollar amount, payments to 
suppliers average generally within terms. 

100 

120 days alow 30 day? slow pTompt Anticipates 

Based on payments collected over last 12 months. 

AYDEX Year ly Trend 

2 Month PAYDEX S c o r e s Compar ison to Indus t ry 

! 4/04-5/04[6/04 7/04:8/04 9/04 10/04 11/04 12/04 1/05 2/05 3/05 

this B u s i n e s s 79 79 79 79 79 79 80 80 80 80 80 80 

ndustry Quart i les 

Upper 79 79 79 79 

tledian ower 
76 
70 

76 
70 

76 
70 

76 1 

70 ! 

t 
I 
I 

hows the trend in D&B PAYDEX scoring over the past 12 months. 

htos://ww.dnbxqm/scripts/Produc 3/25/2005 
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&B Comprehensive Report: COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORP 

100 

PAYDEX 

Apr- May- Jun- Jul- Aug-
'04 '04 '04 '04 '04 

Sep-
'04 

Oct-
'04 

Nov-
'04 

Dec-
'04 

Jan-
'05 

Feb-
'05 

Mar-
'05 

Last 12 Months 

ased on payments collected over the last 12 months, 

Page 7 of 19 

(Current PAYDEX for this Business is 80, or equal to generally within terms 

The 12-month high -is 80, or equal to generally within terms 

- The 12-month' low is 79, or equal to 2 days beyond terms 

1 PAYDEX Comparison to Industry 

hows PAYDEX scores of this Business compared to the Primary Industry from each of the last four quarters. The 
rimary Industry is Electric services, based on SIC code 4911. 

uarterly PAYDEX Scores Comparison to Industry 

revious Year Current Year 

I 

[This Business 

Industry Quartiles 

Upper 79 

; 3/03 I 6/03 • 9/03 12/03 

UN ' 70 ' 69 63 

Median' 
Lower 

76. 
70 

80 
76 
70 

79 
76 
70 

79 
76 
70 

This Business 

Industry Quartiles 

Upper 79 

i 3 /04 ; 6 /04 ! 9/04 . 12/04 

79 ' 79 ' 79 : 80 

j Median 
1 Lower 

76 
70 

79 
76 
70' 

79 
76 
70 

79 
76 
70 

; ^ - ^ . 7 6 A , 1: 
PAYDEX 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
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i 
i 

i 

I 

Last 12 Months 

Based'on .payments collected over the last 4 quarters. 

Score C o m p a r i s o n Key: > This Business A Industry upper quartile 

• Industry median 

• Industry lower quartile 

• • - Current PAYDEX for this Business is 8 0 , or equal to generally within terms 

- The present industry m e d i a n score is 7 6 , or equal to 6 days beyond terms. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Industry upper quarti le represents the performance o f t h e payers in the 75th percentile 

- Industry lower quartile represents the performance o f t h e payers, in the 25th percentile 

Payment Habits 

or all' payment experiences within a given amount of credit extended, shows the percent- that this Business paid 
ithin terms. Provides number of experiences used to calculate the percentage, and the total dollar value of the 

redit extended. 

$ Credit Extended % of Payments Within T e r m s 
# Payment $ Total 
Exper iences Dollar Amount 

50,000^1-00,000 j 0 % 

'••^000=49,9.9911; 

5,000-14,999 

Under 1,000 

$0 

$12,500 

22 $9,000 1 

t 
0% 50% 

ased on payments collected over the last 12 months. 

100% 

Payment experiences reflect how bills are met in relation to the terms granted. In some instances, payment 
eyond terms can be the result of disputes over merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. 

C 
I 

AYMENT SUMMARY 

he Payment Summary section reflects payment information in D&B's file as of the date of this report. 

f 
There are 36 payment experiences in D&B's file for the most recent 12 months, with 13 experiences reported 

uring the last three.month period. 

elow is an overview o f t h e company's dollar-weighted payments, segmented by its suppliers' pr imary industries: 

: Total Total Dollar Largest High Within Days S low 

I 
I 
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i 
I-op industries: 

telephone communictns 

Misc general gov't 

INonclassified 

Natural gas distrib 

Executive office 

IRadiotelephone commun 

Misc equipment rental 

Ret mail-order house 

IRet-direct selling 

Misc publishing 

Data processing svcs 

IMfg misc office eqpt [ 

General warehousing 

Misc business credit 

IWhol computers/softwr 

Short-trm busn credit • 

. Mfg photograph equip 

IAir courier service 

)ther payment categories 

Cash'experiences 

(Payment record unknown -

Unfavorable comments 

Placed for collections: 

IWith D&B 

Other j 

Total in. D&B's file 

d 
) 

Amts 
($) 

Credit 

(*) 
Terms 

( % ) 
< 3 1 31 -60 61 

J > L 
-90 90> 

9 13,250 5,000 88 ' 12 . 0 0 . 0 

4 ' 2,300 750 100 0 0 i 0 . 0 

3 550 250 100 : 0 o • 0 0 

2; • 5,200,000 5,000,000 100 ; 0 0 : 0 . 0 

2-; 30,100 30,000 100 1 0 0 • 0 0 

2 1,750 1,000 100 0 0 0 0 

2 200 100 100 0 0 0 0 

1 25,000 25,000 100 0 0 0 0 

1 7,500 7,500 ' 100 0 0 o ; 0 
1 2,500 2,500 100 0 0 0 0 

1 ' 1,000 1,000 100^ 0 , 0 0 0 

1 1,000 1,000 ioo; o • 0 : O'j 0 

1 750 750 o • 100 0 ' o 1 0 

1 750 750 100 0 .0 0 0 

1 750 750 100 0 0 0 0 

1 250 250 100 0 0 0 0 

1 250 250 100 0 0 0 0 

1 
i 

100 : 100 ioo • 0 , 0 0 

0 ; 0 ' 0 

1 ' 750 750 = 

0 , o ; 0 

0 0 . o; 
0 : N/A 0 , 

36 5,000,000 

1 
I 

F 

I 
I 
i 

I 
I 
I 

'he-highest Now Owes on file is $10,000 The highest Past Due on file is $750 

Accounts are sometimes placed for collection even though the existence or amount of the debt is disputed. 
Indications of slowness can be result of dispute over merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. 

PAYMENT DETAILS 

etailed payment history 

[Date Reported 
(mm/yy) 

02/05 

01/05 

Paying Record High Credit 
($) 

Now Owes 
($) 

Past Due 
($) 

Selling Terms Last Sale 
Within 

(months) 
Ppt 1,000 0 0 1 mo 

Ppt 500 0 0 6-12 mos 

Ppt 100 100 0 1 mo 

Ppt 100 100 0 1 mo 

(005) 100 6-12 mos 

Satisfactory. 

ppt 25,000 10,000 0 N30 1 mo 

I 
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1 
Ppt 250 250 0 1 mo 

! Ppt 250 0 6-12 mos 

i ppt-Slow 30 750 ' 100 o; 1 mo 

! Slow 30 750 500 500 ' 1 1 mo 

12/04 '•Ppt 2,500 0 0 N30 . 6-12 mos 

, PP* 750 0 0 j N30 i 6-12 mos 

. Ppt 500 ' 0 0 ] '. 6-12 mos 

Ppt 50 ' 50 0 1 mo 

1 11/04 Ppt 7,500 250 0 ' N30 1 mo 

'ppt 750 0 0 N30 2-3 mos 

Ppt 250 0 0 6-12 mos 

(018) 750 1 mo 

Satisfactory. 

(019) 750 1 mo 

: Satisfactory.' 

(020) 750 1 mo 

Satisfactory. 

1 10/04 Ppt 5,000 0 0 6-12 mos 

Ppt' 2,500 750 0 1 mo 

Ppt 1,000 , 0 0 6-12 mos 

| Ppt 250 ; 100 o; 1 mo 

i Ppt 250 , 0 o • 6-12 mos 

| Ppt-Slow 30 2,500 j 1,000 750 ' f 1 mo 

; (027) so; i 6-12 mos 

Satisfactory. 

09/04 • Ppt 1,000 : 0 0 1 6-12 mos 

: Ppt 750 100 Lease Agreemnt ; 

1 08/04 j (030) 750 ' 0 0 ; i 6-12 mos 

05/04 j Ppt 30,000 ; 1 mo 

| 04/04 ' p p t 250 ! 0 0 ; •• 6-12 mos 

1 03/04. ! Ppt 1,000 0 0 ' 6-12 mos 

• Ppt 100 50 0 1 mo 

1 01/04 Ppt 5,000,000 N30 1 mo 

Ppt 200,000 N30 1 mo 

Payment exper ences reflect how bills are met in relation to the terms granted. In some instances payment beyond 
lerms can be the result of disputes over merchandise, skipped invoices etc. 

Each experience shown is f rom a separate supplier. Updated trade experiences replace those previously reported. 

Pump to: 

Overview | Scores | Pavments 1 History & Ooerations | Bankina & Finance 

Public Filings 

[PUBLIC FILINGS 

The following data includes both open and closed filings found in D&B's database on the subject company. 

https://ww.dhb.com/scripts/Pro^ 3/25/2005 
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Wlecord Type 
Bankruptcy Proceedings 

j u d g m e n t s 
H i e n s 
ft u its 

U C C s 

# of Records 
0 
1 
1 
2 
16 

Most Recent Filing Date 

11/15/2001 
11/02/2000 
04/19/2004 
06/10/2003 

t 
I 

The following Public Filing data is for information purposes only and is not the official record. Certified copies can 
nly be^ obtained from the official source. 

JUDGMENTS 

udgment award : 
Sta tus: 

K A S E NO.: 
• udgment type: 
A g a i n s t : 

I n favor of: 

t'here fi led: 

ate s ta tus attained: 

Date entered: 

| - a t e s t Info Col lected: 

L I E N S 

$320 
Unsat isf ied 
01CS006886 
Judgment 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
STEPHEN LEE GJOLME 
ORANGE COUNTY SMALL CLAIMS COURT/SANTA ANA, SANTA ANA, CA 

11/15/2001 
11/15/2001 
02/20/2003 

m lienholder can file the same lien in more than one filing location. The appearance of mult iple liens filed by the 
same lienholder against a debtor may be indicative of such an occurrence. 

J , m o u n t : 
fttatus: 
K A S E NO.: 

Type: • 
J i l e d by: 
A g a i n s t : 
• W h e r e f i led: 

f ate s ta tus attained: 
ate fi led: 

a t e s t Info Rece ived: 

$1 ,112 
Re leased 
000593530 
State Tax 
CA EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORP. 
ORANGE COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS, SANTA ANA, CA 

05/07/2001 
11/02/2000 
11/05/2004 

I S U I T S 

Sta tus: 

(ASE NO.: 
laintiff: 
efendant: 

Where fi led: 

tate s ta tus attained: 
ate f i led: 

Latest In fo Rece ived: 

Iuit amount: 
tatus: 

C A S E NO.: 
plaintiff: 

1 

Pending 
04CC05038 
JOSEPH OGUNDIJI JOSEPH P SALINE 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION AND OTHERS 
ORANGE COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT, SANTA ANA, CA 

04/19/2004 
04/19/2004 
06/28/2004 

$340 
Judgment entered 
01CS006886 
STEPHEN LEE GJOLME 

ttps://ww.dnb.coiWscripts/Pro^^ 3/25/2005 
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defendant: 
Cause: 

('here filed: 

ate status attained: 

Date filed: 
Latest Info Collected: I 

COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
Debt, non-payment 
ORANGE COUNTY SMALL CLAIMS COURT/SANTA ANA, SANTA ANA, CA 

11/15/2001 
10/11/2001 
02/20/2003 

f it is indicated that there are defendants other than the report subject, the lawsuit may be an action to clear title 
to property and does not necessarily imply a claim for money against the subject. 

I 
t 

UCC FILINGS 

ol lateral: 

rype: 
Sec. party: 

tebtor: 
iling number: 
iled with: 

tate filed: 
atest Info Received: 

Negotiable instruments including proceeds and products - Account(s) including 
proceeds and products - Contract rights including proceeds and products 
Original 
1LLINOVA ENERGY PARTNERS INC, MIDVALE, UT 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORP 
003922128 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SPRINGFIELD, IL 

10/09/1998 
11/03/1998 

Collateral: 

J -ype: 
Sec. party: 
Debtor:. 

tiling number: 
iled with: 

Date filed: 
^.atest Info Received: 

Type: 
^ e c . party: 
fl>ebtor: 
Baling number: 
-Filed with: 

Kate filed: 
atest Info Received: 

Original UCC filed date: 
Original filing no.: 

Collateral: 

I 
I 
i 

ype: 
e c . party: 

ebtor: 
iling number: 
led with: 

ate filed: 
atest info Received: 

Negotiable instruments including proceeds and products - Account(s) including 
proceeds and products - Contract rights including proceeds and products 
Original 
1LLINOVA ENERGY PARTNERS, INC., MIDVALE, UT 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
9828861030 

-SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

10/08/1998 
10/23/1998 

Termination 
ILLINOVA ENERGY PARTNERS, INC., MIDVALE, UT 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
9828861030 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

05/18/2000 
05/31/2000 
10/08/1998 
9828861030 

inventory including proceeds and products - Account(s) including proceeds and 
products - Farm products/crops including proceeds and products - Contract 
rights including proceeds and products - and OTHERS 
Original 
COAST BUSINESS CREDIT, A DIVISION OF SOUTHERN PACIFIC BANK, LOS 
ANGELES, CA 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION and OTHERS 
0016160600 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

06/07/2000 
06/28/2000 

f 
Type: 

ec. party: 
Termination 
COAST BUSINESS CREDIT, A DIVISION OF SOUTHERN PACIFIC BANK, LOS 

I 
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i 
Debtor: 

f iling number: 
iled wi th: 

Date f i led: 
^ a t e s t In fo Rece ived: 
B r i g i n a l UCC filed date: 
^ J r i g i n a l filing no.: 

ANGELES, CA 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION and OTHERS 
02231C0020 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

08/16/2002 
08/27/2002 
06/07/2000 
0016160600 

Collateral: 

Type: 
^>ec . party: 

ebtor: 
Filing number: 

iled wi th : 

>ate filled: 
Latest Info Rece ived: Lc 

I 
I 

Accounts receivable including proceeds and products - Inventory including 
proceeds and products - Assets including proceeds and products - Account(s) 
including proceeds and products - and OTHERS 
Original 
THE CIT GROUP/CREDIT FINANCE, INC. FOR ITSELF AND AS AGENT, LOS 
ANGELES, CA 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
9823660513 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

08/21/1998 
08/29/1998 

rype: 
iec . party: 

ebtor: 
iling number: 
iled wi th: 

•)ate filed: 
L a t e s t In fo Rece ived: 
O r i g i n a l UCC filed date: 

Original filing no.: 

C o l l a t e r a l : 
T t y p e : 

S e c . party: 

tebtor: 
iling number: 
iled wi th: 

tate fi led: 
atest In fo Rece ived: 

Termination 
THE CIT GROUP/CREDIT FINANCE, INC. FOR ITSELF AND AS AGENT, LOS 
ANGELES, CA 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
9823660513 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

10/02/1998 
10/14/1998 
08/21/1998 
9823660513 

Accounts receivable and proceeds - Account(s) and proceeds 
Original 
DTE ENERGY TRADING, INC., ANN ARBOR, MI 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
0308060438 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

03/20/2003 
04/03/2003 

Collateral: Account(s) 

[ype: Amendment 
pec . party: DTE ENERGY TRADING, INC., ANN ARBOR, MI 
Debtor: COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
Filing number: 03167C0397 
[iled with: SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

1 
Date filed: 

06/10/2003 
Latest Info Received: 06/30/2003 

[ r iginal UCC filed date: 03/20/2003 
[ r iginal filing no.: 0308060438 

(ollateral: 
ype: 
ec . party: 

Debtor: 

f iling number: 
iled wi th : 

Accounts receivable and proceeds 
Original 
CALPINE ENERGY SERVICES, L.P., HOUSTON, TX 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
0126860327 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

I 
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i 

t 
Date f i led: 

a test Info Rece ived: 
09/24/2001 
10/08/2001 

ollateral: 

•Type: 
^ e c . party: 

Debtor: 

(iling number: 
iled wi th: 

Date fi led: 
a test Info Rece ived: 

Leased Inventory including proceeds and products - Account(s) including 
proceeds and products - Chattel paper including proceeds and products -
General intangibles(s) including proceeds and products - and OTHERS 
Original 
MCI CAPITAL SERVICES, FRANKLIN, TN 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORP 
0114160667 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

05/18/2001 
06/04/2001 

ollateral: 
Type: 

B e e . party: 
fcebtor: 
f i l i n g number: 

Filed wi th: 

1 

I 

ate fi led: 
a test Info Rece ived: 

Business machinery/equipment 
Original 
FLEET BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC, TROY, MI 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION ' 
0301460607 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

01/09/2003 
01/28/2003 

ollateral: 
ype: 
ec . party: 

ebtor: 
iling number: 
iled wi th: 

f>ate f i led: 
.atest Info Received: 

Computer equipment 
Original 
FLEET BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC, TROY, MI SAVIN CORPORATION, STAMFORD, 
CT 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
0232560371 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

11/20/2002 
12/12/2002 

Collateral: 

IVpe: 
iec. party: 

Debtor: 

tiling number: 
iled wi th: 

Date f i led: 

(a t e s t I n f o Rece ived : 

I 

Business machinery/equipment 
Original 
SAVIN CORPORATION, STAMFORD, CT FLEET BUSINESS CREDIT, LLC, TROY, 
MI 
COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
0229860127 
SECRETARY OF STATE/UCC DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

10/24/2002 
11/12/2002 

I 
here are additional UCCs in D&B's file on this company available by contacting 1-800-234-3867. 

he public record items contained in this report may have been paid, terminated, vacated or released prior to the 
ate this report was pr inted. 

t ump to: 

Overview Scores Payments Public Filinos | Banking & Finance 

istory & Operations 

I I S T O R Y 

I 
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i 
i 

1 
I 

p 

I 
Ir 

I 

he following information was reported 11/18/2004: 

f f i cer (s ) : IAN GARTER, CEO/CHB 
JAMES !_ OLIVER, CFO 
RICHARD PAULSEN, COO' 

IRECTOR(S): THE OFFICER(S) 

usiness started 1997 by principal. 100% of capital stock is owned by outside investors and officers. As of March 
998 there were'approximately 2,500 investors on record, none of which owned 10% or greater. 

o outside investor owns more than 10% of the stock. 

AN CARTER." Graduated University of Southern California with a MBA degree. April 2000 to present active here. He 
has.over 30 years of'exderience in finance, business management, real estate and systems development, 
reviously with IBM, Coldwell Banker Commercial Brokerage and held officer position with the US Army. 

AMES L OLIVER born 1948. Graduated University of Southern California with a BA degree. December 2000 to 
present active here. Has 25 years of experience in diversified business management, finance and accounting, 

reviously employed with Emerson Electric. 

ICHARD PAULSEN. April 2000 to present active here. Previously was self employed as a consultant and Olicon 
Imaging, Systems, Inc. 

usiness address has changed from 15901 Red Hill Ave, Ste-100, Tustin, CA, 92780 to 600 Anton Blvd, Ste 2000, 
Costa .Mesa, CA, 92626. 

I 
I 

CORPORATE FAMILY 

"or more details on the Corporate Family, use D&B's Global Family Linkage product. 

^ Buy Selected Report(s) "] 

Parent: 

felect business below to buy a Comprehensive Report. 

I ] Commerce Energy Group, Inc. Costa Mesa, CA DUNS # 15-389-3024 

f 

ranches (US): 
elect companies below to buy Business Information Report(s). 

San Diego, CA 

Santa Monica, CA 

Cherry Hill, NJ 

Commonwealth Energy Corp 

Commonwealth Energy Corp 

Commonwealth Energy Corp' 

Buy Selected Report(s) ] 

BUSINESS REGISTRATION 

I 

DUNS # 09-239-1338 

DUNS # 80-032-3037 

DUNS # 82-888-4465 

ORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATIONS REPORTED BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OR OTHER OFFICIAL 
SOURCE AS OF MAR 18 2005: 

l 
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t his data is for informational purposes only, certification can only be obtained through the Sacramento Office of 
the California Secretary of State. 

tegistered Name:1 COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

Business type: CORPORATION 

orporation type: PROFIT 

Date incorporated: AUG 15 1997 

Itate of incorporation: CALIFORNIA 

i 
filing date: 

Registration ID: 

£>tatus: 

Where filed: 

Regis tered agent: 

pr incipals: 

OPERATIONS 

AUG 15 1997 

C1909805 

ACTIVE 

SECRETARY OF STATE/CORPORATIONS DIVISION, SACRAMENTO, CA 

CORPORATION SERVICE COMPANY WHICH WILL DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA AS 
CSC - LAWYERS INCORPORATING SERVICE, 2730 GATEWAY OAKS DR STE 100, 
SACRAMENTO, CA, 958330000. 

IAN B CARTER, PRESIDENT, 15901 RED HILL AVE SUITE 100, TUSTIN, CA, 927800000 

I 1/18/2004 

Description: Subsidiary of Commerce Energy Group Inc, Costa Mesa, CA which operates as a holding company of 
| electric services. 

I 
Provides wholesale and retail sales of electric services, specializing in green certified and clean 
power distribution and energy saving products (100%). Website is www.electric.com. 

Terms are monthly billings. Sells to general public. Territory : California, Pennsylvania and also 
licensed in New Jersey, Michigan and Texas. 

| Nonseasonal. 

Employees: 185 which includes officers) and 25 part-time. 175 employed here. 

I acilities: 

Location: 

^ r a n c h e s : 

Leases'34,000 sq. ft. in.a two story cinder block building. Occupy space on the first and second 
floor. 

Suburban business section on main street. 

They have a branch located at 535 Rte 38, Ste 123, Cherry Hill, NJ. 08002. This operates as a sales 
office. 

I 
I 

SIC & NAICS 

IC: 

ased oh information in our file, D&B has 
assigned this company an extended 8-digit SIC. 

rf&B's use of 8-digit SICs enables us to be more 
Kpecific to a company's operations than if we 
™ se the standard 4-digit code. 

NAICS: 
221122 Electric Power Distribution 

l 
l 

he 4-digit SIC numbers link to the description 
n the Occupational Safety & Health 

https://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRetriever^ 3/25/2005 
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kdministration (OSHA) Web site. Links open in a 
new browser window. 

9119901 Distribution, electric power 

lump to: 
Overview Scores Payments Public Filings History & Operations 

^Banking & Finance 

s 

I , 
I 

STATEMENT UPDATE 

16/15/2004 

nterirri Consolidated statement dated APR 30 2004: 

Assets 

54,102,000 

24,320,000 

4,689,000 

2,772,000 

6,381,000 

$92,264,000 

2,838,000 

6,928,000 

96,000 

4,807,000 

5,813,000 

$112,746,000 

Liabilities 

Accts Pay 

Accruals 

21,720,000 

6,791,000 

| Cash 

Accts Rec 

(
Income Taxes Refund Receivables 
Deferred Income Tax Asset 
Prepaid Exps & Other Current 

Assets 

I Curr Assets 

Fixt & Equip 

Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents 

IInvestments-Other 

- Deposits 

Goodwill & Other Intangible Assets 
| Total Assets 

From AUG 01 2003 to APR 30 2004 sales $153,955,000; cost of goods sold $139,587,000. Gross profit 
414,368,000; operating expenses $23,690,000. Operating income $(9,322,000); other income $1,585,000; other 

•xpenses $8,962,000; net income before taxes $(16,699,000); Federal income tax $(3,400,000); (net loss) 
^13/299,000. 

Curr Liabs 
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities 

Minority Interest 

PREFERRED STOCK 

COMMON STOCK 

RETAINED EARNINGS 

Total 

$28,511,000 

187,000 

743,000 

932,000 

60,440,000 

21,933,000 

$112,746,000 

i 
tatemeht obtained from Securities And Exchange Commission. Prepared from books without audit. 

BANKING 

I 05/04 Account(s) averages moderate 7 figures. Account open over 5 years. 

Page 17 of 19 

;EY BUSINESS RATIOS 

I 
I 

I 

ta tement date: APR 30 2004 
ased on this number of establishments: 15 

Industry Norms based on 15 establishments 

ttps://ww.dnb.conVscripts/ProductRet 3/25/2005 
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i 
trofitability 

| eturn on S a l e s 

(eturn on Net Worth 

hort-Term Solvency 

Current Ratio 

Euick Ratio 

fficiency 

A s s e t s Sa les 

K a l e s / Net Working Capital 

^J t i l i za t ion 

'otal Liabs / Net Wor th 

I 
I 

This B u s i n e s s 

(8 .6 ) 

UN 

3.2 

2.8 

UN 

2.4 

UN 

Indus t ry Median Industry Quarti le 

5.8 

7.9 

1.0 

0.4 

300.5 

5.6 

230.5 

4 

UN 

1 

1 

UN 

3 

UN 

N = Unavailable 

F INANCE 

1 2 / 1 6 / 2 0 0 3 

J h r e e - y e a r s ta tement comparat ive: 

1 
Fiscal 

Consolidated 
Jul 31 2001 

Fiscal 
Consolidated 

Jul 31 2002 

Interim 
Consolidated 
Oct 31 2002 

Current Assets 71,162,433 71,162,433 72,537,538 

(Current Liabs 20,978,877 20,978,877 14,668,766 

•Current Ratio 3.39 3.39 4.95 

Working Capital 50,183,556 50,183,556 57,868,772 

bther Assets 35,853,513 35,853,513 29,542,903 

het Worth 86,037,069 86,037,069 87,411,675 
Sales 183,263,762 117,768,270 33,682,372 
Long Term Liab 0 0 0 
klet Profit (Loss) 60,529,417 (8,646,089) (526,288) 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

iscal Consol idated s ta tement dated JUL 31 2 0 0 3 : 

Assets Liabilities 

Cash 40,921,000 Accts Pay 24,936,000 

Accts Rec 37,861,000 Accruals 7,127,000 

Deferred Income Tax Asset 2,772,000 

Prepaid Exp & Other Curr Assets 6,920,000 

Curr Assets $88,474,000 Curr Liabs $32,063,000 

Fixt & Equip 2,984,000 Deferred Income Tax Liabs 187,000 

Restricted Cash/Cash Equivalent 20,773,000 Minority Interest 603,000 

Investments-Other 5,362,000 PREFERRED STOCK 855,000 

Deposits 4,207,000 COMMON STOCK 56,853,000 

https://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRetri^^ 3/25/2005 
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Goodwill 3,007,000 RETAINED EARNINGS 35,309,000 

Intangible Assets. 1,063,000 

Total A s s e t s $125 ,870 ,000 Total $125 ,870 ,000 

From AUG 01 2002 to JUL 31 2003 annual sales $165,526,000; cost of goods sold $128,179,000. Gross profit 
^ 3 7 , 3 4 7 , 0 0 0 ; operating expenses $24,947,000. Operating income $12,400,000; other income $902,000; other 
B x p e n s e s $2,767,000; net income before taxes $10,535,000; Federal income tax $5,113,000. Net income 
^ 5 , 4 2 2 , 0 0 0 . 

I 
ta tement obtained from Securities And Exchange Commission. Prepared f rom statement(s) by Accountant: Ernst 

i Young LLP, Orange County, California. 

ACCOUNTANT'S O P I N I O N . 
^ Review Of The Accountant's Opinion Indicated That The Financial Statement Meets Generally Accepted 
• \ ccoun t i ng Principles And The Audit Contains No Qualifications. 

Accounts receivable shown net less $2,981,000 allowance. Fixed assets shown net less $4,751,000 depreciation. 

J ) n December 16, 2003, the financial information was updated. 

CUSTOMER S E R V I C E 

you have questions about this report, please call our Customer Resource Center at 1.800.234.3867 from 
anywhere within the U.S. I f you are outside the U.S. contact your local D&B office. 

* * * Additional Decision Support Available * * * 

Additional D&B products, monitoring services and specialized investigations are available to help you evaluate this 
l ompany or its industry. Call Dun & Bradstreet's Customer Resource Center at 1.800.234.3867 from anywhere 
Ivithin the U.S. or visit our website at www.dnb.com. 

opyright 2005 Dun & Bradstreet - Provided under contract for the exclusive use of subscriber 264734337L 
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i 
i 
lo 
I 
t 
•c 

r 

cade with confidence Comprehensive Report 

d save report(s) to your PC, f;lick here for instrurt ions. § Print this Report 

Enhanced F o r m a t : View .this report with charts and graphs for quicker decision making. 

Copyright 2005 Dun & Brads t ree t ' Provided under contract for the exclusive use of subscriber 264734337L 

ATTN: undefined 

verview 

B U S I N E S S SUMMARY 

O M M E R C E E N E R G Y G R O U P , I N C . 
6 0 0 A n t o n B l v d S t e 2 0 0 0 
C o s t a M e s a , C A 9 2 6 2 6 

&B D-U-N-S N u m b e r : 15-389-3024 

I 
This is a h e a d q u a r t e r s location. 

BBranch(es) or division(s) exist. 

C 

felephone: 

Ihief execut ive: 

tock symbol : 

ear s ta r ted : 

mploys: 

inancial s ta tement 
date: 

g S a l e s F: 

Net worth F: 

• H i s t o r y : 

f i n a n c i a l condit ion: 
S I C : 

714 259-2500 

IAN B CARTER, CEO-
CHB 

EGR 

2004 

175 (4 here) 

JAN 31 2005 

$210,623,000 

$73,662,000 

CLEAR 

STRONG 

4911 

I 
I 

Report Printed: MAR 25 2005 

D&B's Credit Limit Recommendat ion 
How much credit should you extend? 

» Learn More > View Now 

Payment T rends Profile 
Payment trends and industry benchmarks 

» Jump to Payment Trends 

Credi t Score C l a s s : 3 

Moderate risk of severe payment delinquency over next 
12 months 

High Moderate Low 

F inanc ia l S t ress Class: 1 

Low risk of severe financial stress over the next 12 
months 

High Moderate Low 

5 4 

D&B Rat ing: 

F inancia l s t rength: 

Composi te credit 
appra isa l : 

3 2 i 
5A2 

5A is $50 million and 
over. 

2 is good. 

ttps://ww.dnb.conVscripts/ProductRetriever.asp?REQ^ 3/25/2005 
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I ine of business: Electrical services 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

J h e Financial Stress Class of 1 for this company shows that during the previous year, firms with this 
classification had a failure rate of 0.49% (49 per 10,000), which is lower than the national average. 

I he Credit Score class of 3 for this company shows that during the previous year, 12.3% ofthe firms with this 
assification paid one or more bills severely delinquent, which is lower than the national average. 

Financial information from an interim consolidated statement dated 01/31/05 is included. 

redictive Scores 

Financial Stress Class 

Einancial Stress Score 

redit Score Class 

This Business 

1 

1464 

3 

Comments 

Failure Rate lower than the national average 

Highest Risk: 1,001; Lowest Risk: 1,850 

Probability of Severely Delinquent Payment 
is lower than the national average. 

^>ther Key Indicators 

Industry Median 

perations 

P r e s e n t management control 1 year 

UCC Filings 

Eublic Filings 

istory 

Special Events 

6 days beyond terms 

Profitable 

UCC filing(s) are not reported for this business 

No record of open Suit(s), Lien(s), or judgment(s) in the D&B database 

Is clear 

Are reported for this business 

I 
I 
I 

CREDIT CAPACITY SUMMARY 

5A2 &B Rating: 

Financial strength: 5A indicates $50 million and over. 

Composite credit appraisal: 2 is good. 

his credit rating was assigned because of D&B's assessment of the company's financial ratios and its cash flow. 
For more information, see the D&B Rating Key. 

gSales: 
# of Employees Total: 

Is of 01 /31 /05 
forth: 

Working Capital: 

$210,623,000 
175 (4 here) 

$73,662,000 
$56,782,000 

Payment Activity: 
(based on 4 experiences) 

Average High Credit: 
Highest Credit: 
Total Highest Credit: 

$1,000 
$2,500 
$3,250 

Mote: The Worth amount in this section may have been adjusted by D&B to reflect typical deductions, such as 
:ertain intangible assets. 

JPECIAL EVENTS 

I 3/02/2005 
NNOUNCED PURCHASE OF ASSET: According to published reports. Commerce Energy Group, Inc. (Costa 

ttps://ww.dnb.corii/scripts/Produc!&eta^ 3/25/2005 
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i esa, CA) announced it has entered into an agreement to acquire the assets of ACN Energy, a division of ACN, 
Inc. 

Ks a result of this transaction, Commerce Energy Group will be rebranding its retail business unit, electricAmerica, 
s Commerce Energy, Inc and transitioning the ACN Energy licenses and customers to that entity. Upon 

completing the transition, Commerce Energy Inc. will have electricity customers in Texas, California, Pennsylvania, 

few Jersey, and Michigan, and natural gas customers in New York, California, Pennsylvania, Ohio, Georgia, and 
aryland. Commerce Energy plans to cross sell and expand in each of these markets by offering customers in all 
larkets both natural gas and electricity where regulations allow. Employees of ACN Energy will be offered 

employment with Commerce Energy. 

the purchase price for the acquisition consists of $6.5 million in cash, plus 930,233 shares of Commerce Energy's 
ommon Stock, valued at $2.0 million, based upon the AMEX closing February 8, 2005 market price for 

Commerce's Common Stock. The shares of Commerce Common Stock to be issued to ACN in the acquisition will be 
Jjield in escrow and released to ACN as certain customer acquisition targets are achieved. If the targets are not 
Bchieved in full, any shares not released to ACN will be returned to Commerce Energy. ACN was also paid at 
^ los ing approximately $5.5 million dollars for certain cash prepayment items relating to the assets being acquired. 

I ump to : 

Overview | Payments | Public Filings | History & Operations [ Banking & Finance 

I 
cores ERSSusivf 

FINANCIAL STRESS SUMMARY 

The Financial Stress Summary Model predicts the likelihood of a firm ceasing business without paying ail creditors 
in full, or reorganization or obtaining relief from creditors under state/federal law over the next 12 months. Scores 

w e r e calculated using a statistically valid model derived from D&B's extensive data files. 

High Moderate Low 

1Financial Stress Class: 1 t _ — ' ^ 5 ^ 

5 4 3 2 1 
Low risk of severe financial stress, such as a bankruptcy, over the next 12 months. 

I ncidence of Financial Stress 

I 
I 

I 

I 

Among Businesses with this 
Classification: 0.49% (49 per 10,000) 
National Average 1.40% (140 per 10,000) 

Financial Stress National Percentile: 6 9 (Highest Risk: 1; Lowest Risk: 100) 

Financial Stress Score: 1 4 6 4 (Highest Risk: 1,001; Lowest Risk: 1,850) 

The Financial Stress Class of this business is based on the following factors: 

I 
1 
I 
! 

• No record of open suit(s), lien(s), or judgement(s) in the D&B files. 
• 25% of trade experiences indicate slow payment(s) are present. 
• Control age or date entered in D&B files indicates higher risk. 
• D&B files indicate a net worth of $73,662,000. 
• Change in Net Worth suggests higher risk of financial stress. 
• Quick Ratio suggests lower risk of financial stress. 
• Change in Quick Ratio suggests lower risk of financial stress. 
• Change in Current Ratio suggests lower risk of financial stress. 

rtps://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRetriever.asp?REQUESTTYPE=getReport&WIPLIN^ 3/25/2005 
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lotes: 

I 
I 
I 
I 
i 

i 
l i 

The Financial Stress Class indicates that this firm shares some of the same business and financial 
characteristics of other companies with this classification. It does not mean the firm will necessarily 
experience financial stress. 
The Incidence of Financial Stress shows the percentage of firms in a given Class that discontinued operations 
over the past year with loss to creditors. The Incidence of Financial Stress - National Average represents the 
national ifailure rate and is provided for comparative purposes. 
The Financial Stress National Percentile reflects the relative ranking of a company among all scorable 
companies un D&B's file. 
The Financial Stress Score offers a more precise measure of the level of risk than the Class and- Percentile. It 
is especially helpful to customers using a scorecard approach to determining overall business performance. 
All Financial Stress Class, Percentile, Score and Incidence statistics are based on 2002. 

Financial Stress Norms Comparison (%} 

I 
.1 
i 

i 
i 

Norms 

This Business 

Region: 
PACIFIC 

Industry: 
j INFRASTRUCTURE 

; .Employee Range: 
i .100-499 

i 
| Years in Business: 
1 .1-2 

National % 

69 

43 

41 

55 

36 

This Business Region 

Region = PACIFIC 
Indus t ry INFRASTRUCTURE 
Employee Range = 100-449 
Years in B u s i n e s s 1-2 

Indus t ry Employee Years in 
Range Business 

I 
I 
I 

his business has a Financial Stress Percentile that shows: 

• .Lower risk than other companies in the same region. 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same industry. 
© Lower risk than other companies in the same employee size range. 
• Lower risk than other companies with a comparable number of years in business. 

CREDIT SCORE CLASS SUMMARY 

J h e Credit Score class predicts the likelihood of a firm paying in a severely delinquent manner (90+ Days Past 
Terms) over the next twelve months. I t was calculated using statistically valid models and the most recent payment 
information in D&B's files. 

High Moderate Low 

Credit Score Class: 3 
| 5 4 3 2 1 

lloderate.risk of severe payment delinquency over next 12 months. 

I ncidence of Delinquent Payment 

ttps://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRetrie^ 3/25/2005 
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i 

i 
t 
i 

i 
i 

Among Companies with this Classification: 12.30% 

Credit Score Percentile: 5 4 (Highest Risk: 1; Lowest Risk: 100) 

he Credit Score Class of this business is based on the following factors: 

• 25% of trade experiences indicate slow payment(s) are present. 
• Control age or date entered in D&B files indicates higher risk. 
• No record of open suit(s), lien(s), or ]udgments(s) in the D&B files. 
• D&B files indicate a net worth of $73,662,000. 
• Business does not own facilities. 
• Quick ratio is 2.6. 

otes: 

• The incidence of Delinquent Payment is the percentage of companies with this classification that were 
reported 90 days past due or more by creditors. The calculation of this value is based on an inquiry weighted 
sample. 

© The Percentile ranks this firm relative to other businesses. For example, a firm in the 80th percentile has a 
lower risk of paying in a severely delinquent manner than 79% of all scorable companies in D&B's files. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

i 

t 
i 

i 
i 

Credit Score Norms Comparison (%) 

This Business Region Indus t ry 

Region^ PACIFIC 
Indust ry = INFRASTRUCTURE 
Employee Range = 100-499 
Years in Business = 1-2 

Employee Years in 
Range Business 

Norms 

.This Business 

[Region: 
jPACIFIC 

Industry: 
[INFRASTRUCTURE 

i 
Employee Range: 
100-499 

Years in Business: 
1-2 

his business has a Credit Score Percentile that shows: 

• Higher risk than other companies in the same region. 
• Lower risk than other companies in the same industry. 
• Similar risk compared to other companies in the same employee size range. 
• Lower risk than other companies with a comparable number of years in business. 

National % 

54 

56 ; 

41 

i 

54 

32 

I ump to : 

Overview Scores Public Filings | History & Operations | Banking & Finance 

I 
I 
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J)&B Comprehensive Report: COMMERCE ENERGY GROUP, INC. 

Payments ESxSus/w 

i 

Page 6 of 15 

'AYMENT T R E N D S 

{Total Payment Exper iences in D&B's Fi le: 4 

P a y m e n t s W i t h i n T e r m s : N/A 

(not dollar weighted). 

I Total Placed For Collection: 0 

[Average Highest Credit: 

Largest High Credit: 

Highest Now Owing: 

Highest Past Due: 

Current PAYDEX is : 

Indust ry Median is : 

Payment Trend 
' current ly is : 

unavailable 

7 6 equal to 6 days 
beyond terms 

unavailable 

$1,000 : Indications of slowness can be the result of dispute over' 
merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. Accounts are sometimes 
placed for collection even though the existence or amount of 

$2,500 t h e d e b t i s disputed. 

$1,000 i 
i 
i 

$100 , 

https://ww.dnb.com/scripts/Product^ 3/25/2005 
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l 
i 

AYDEX Scores 

&B has not received a sufficient sample of payment experiences to establish a PAYDEX score. 

D&B receives nearly 400 million payment experiences each year. We enter these new and updated experiences 
J i t o D&B Reports as this information is received. At this time, none of those experiences relate to this company. 

I 
l 

'PAYDEX Yearly Trend 

2 Month PAYDEX Scores Comparison to Industry 

This Business 
• n d u s t r y Quartiles 

1/ 2/ 3/ 4/ 5/ 6/ 7/ 8/ 9/ 10/ 11/ 12/ ! 
UN UN UN UN UN UN UN UN UN UN UN UN 

1 
pper 

Median 
ower 

79 
76 
70 

79 
76 
70 

79 
76 
70 

79 
76 
70 

Shows the trend in D&B PAYDEX scoring over the past 12 months. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
1 
I 

PAYDEX 

Last 12 Months 

ased on payments collected over the last 12 months. 

- Current PAYDEX for this Business is unavailable. 

r AYDEX Comparison to Industry 

Shows PAYDEX scores of this Business compared to the Primary Industry from each of the last four quarters. The 
• r ima ry Industry is Electrical services, based on SIC code 4911. 

I 
I 

uarterly PAYDEX Scores Comparison to Industry 

revious Year Current Year 
"i r 
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i 
3/03 6/03 9/03 12/03 

— T h i s Bus iness UN 

• I n d u s t r y Q u a r t i l e s 

^ J p p e r 79 
76 
70 

t 
I 
I 
I 
1 
1 
I 
I 

ipper 
Median 
.ower 

UN 

80 
76 
70 

UN 

79 
76 
70 

UN 

79 
76 
70 

3/04 6/04 9/04 12/04 
Th is Bus iness UN 

I n d u s t r y Qua r t i l es 

Upper 79 
Median 
Lower 

76 
70 

UN 

79 
76 
70 

UN 

79 
76 
70 

UN 

79 
76 
70 

PAYDEX 

80-

70-

60-

50-

40 

30 

20 

UN 

jl . i . . 

" i 

' - • 
"OataTnot'" 

'• * 
savaiiable',: 

IS \ t i 

I I 
j - . ' C ' 

• 1.1 

m 
\m 

'IDatarnqt^ 
a^aifatDleP 

1 H HH MjjMj 

•••••••• B i r—s. i - — i • ;Data-not;' (• '.̂J1" > 
'.available^ 

*;Datamot^M 
•^available • mm • HHH Bl •••• I 

Q l 2004 Q2 2004 
"I"" 

Q3 2004 Q4 2004 

Last 1 2 M o n t h s 

ased on payments collected over the last 4 quarters.-

Score C o m p a r i s o n Key: > This Business A Industry upper quartile 

• Industry median 

• Industry lower quartile 

I 
- Current PAYDEX for this Business is unavailable 

The present industry m e d i a n score is 7 6 , or equal to 6 days beyond terms. 

- Industry .upper quartile represents the performance o f t h e payers in the 75th percentile 

£ Industry lower quartile represents the performance o f t h e payers in the 25th percentile 

P a y m e n t Hab i t s 

lor all payment experiences within a given amount of credit extended, shows the percent that this Business paid 
within terms. Provides number of experiences used to calculate the percentage, and the total dollar value of the 

redit extended. 

$ C red i t Ex tended % o f P a y m e n t s W i t h i n T e r m s 
# P a y m e n t $ To ta l 
Expe r i ences Do l la r A m o u n t 

1 
w 

I 
I 
I 
1 
I https.y/ww.dnb.conVscnpts/ProductRetriev 3/25/2005 
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N-Over 100,000 

50,000-100,000 0% 

Jas^oop^g^g^:^^, 

! 5,000-14,999 

i. • • 
' 1,000-4,999 " ' ; 
i • • 
I Under 1,000 

0. ', 

0 

0 

1 

2 

$0 

j - ^ v v „.$o?;-: 

$0 

$500 i 

0% 

Based on payments collected over the last 12 months. 

100% 

ayment experiences reflect how bills are met ' in relation to the terms granted. In some instances, payment 
eyond terms can be the result of disputes over merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. 

PAYMENT SUMMARY 

D&B has not received a sufficient sample of payment experiences to establish a PAYDEX score. 

^The Payment Summary section reflects payment information in D&B's file as of the date of this report. 

I 
i ~ 

I 

There are 4 payment experiences in D&B's file for the most recent 12 months, with 3 experiences reported during 
he last three month period. 

elow is an overview o f t h e company's dollar-weighted payments, segmented by its suppliers' primary industries: 

T o p i n d u s t r i e s : 

•Nonc lass i f ied 

• "Who l furniture 

Air courier service 

Total Total Dollar Largest High' Within Days Slow 
. Rcv'd Amts Credit Terms <31 31-60 61 -90 90> 

(#) ($) ($) (%) ! (%) 

l 2,500 2,500 100 0 0 0 ! 0 

1 250 250 100 0 0 0 0 

1 250 250 0 50 50 0 0 

t 
F 

t 

I 

)ther payment categor ies: 

"Cash experiences 0 

Payment record unknown i 

[Unfavorable comments 0 

Maced for col lect ions: 

With D&B 0 

[Other 0 
Total in D&B's file 4 

0 

250 

0 

0 

N/A 

0 

250 

0 

0 

0 

2,500 

he highest N o w Owes on file is $1,000 The highest Pas t Due on file is $100 

Accounts are sometimes placed for collection even though the existence or amount of the debt Is disputed. 
Jnd ica t ions of slowness can be result of dispute over merchandise, skipped invoices, etc. 

PAYMENT D E T A I L S 

I 
I 
https://ww.dnbxorn/scripts/Produ^ 3/25/2005 
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I 
i 

e ta i l ed p a y m e n t h i s t o r y 

Date Repo r ted 1 Pay ing Record , H igh Cred i t N o w Owes Past Due Se l l i ng T e r m s j Last Sale 
( m m / y y ) ($) ($) ($) W i t h i n 

( m o n t h s ) 

I 
1 
f 

01/05 2,500 ! 1,000 0 1 mo 

250 0 0 ' N30 4-5 mos 

250 250 0 1 mo 

250 100 100 1 mo 

Ppt 

ppt 

. (003) 

12/04 Slow 30-60 

Payment experiences reflect how bills are met in relation to the terms granted. In some instances payment beyond 
(erms can be the result of disputes over merchandise, skipped invoices etc. 

ach experience shown is f rom a separate supplier. Updated trade experiences replace those previously reported. 

1 

c; 
i 

l u m p t o : 

Overview Scores Payments History & Operations Banking & Finance 

'ublic Filings 

•UBLIC F IL INGS 

check of D&B's public records database indicates that no filings were found for COMMERCE ENERGY GROUP, INC. 
i t 600 Anton Blvd Ste 2000, Costa Mesa CA. 

t&B's extensive database of public record information is updated daily to ensure t imely reporting of changes and 
dditions. I t includes business-related suits, liens, judgments, bankruptcies, UCC financing statements and 

business registrations from every state and the District of Columbia, as well as select filing types f rom Puerto Rico 
and the U.S. Virgin Islands. 

f 
fe 

f 
)&B collects public records through a combination of court reporters, third parties and direct electronic links with 

federal and local authorit ies. Its database of U.S. business-related filings is now the largest of its kind. 

l u m p t o : 

Overview Scores Payments Public Filings Banking..& Finance 

Inistory & Operations 

I ISTORY 

r 
Tl 

I 
I 

0 

I 

The following information was reported 0 3 / 1 0 / 2 0 0 5 : 

f f i c e r ( s ) : IAN B CARTER, CEO-CHB+ 

JOHN A BARTHROP, GEN COUNSEL 

PETER WEIGAND, PRES+ 

.RICHARD L BOUGHRUM, CFO 

"OIRECTORCS): THE OFFICER(S) and Gregory L Craig, Mark C Pocino, Charles E Bayless, Mark S Juergensen 
and Robert C Perkins. 

Business started 2004. 

^ p m p a n y ' s common stock is traded on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol "EGR". As.of Dec 12 2004 

I ttps://ww.dnb.coin/scripts/ProduclRe^ 3/25/2005 
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•here were 30,619,290 shares of the company's common stock outstanding. As of Nov 11 2004 there were 
approximately 2,419 stockholders of record. As of Nov 19 2004 beneficial owners of 5% or more of the company's 

f mmon stock are as follows: Ian B Carter 9.6%. As of Nov 19 2004 all directors and executive officers as a group 
persons) own 17.9 percent of the company's common stock. 

IAN B CARTER. Has been the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of Commerce Energy 

I
ince Dec 2003. Has been Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Commonwealth since Jan 2000 and was the 
resident from Mar 2003 through Mar 2004. During the preceding four month period prior to Jan 2000 acted as 
iterim President of Commonwealth. Has served as a director of Commonwealth since 1999. From Oct 1988 to 

Aug 1999 operated his own businesses, including a mortgage banking firm and a merchant banking firm. Prior to 

f iat served as an investment specialist for Coldwell Banker Commercial Brokerage and worked as a Systems 
ngineer and Salesman with IBM. Also served in the United States Army serving in Vietnam, Europe and the 
entagon. Received his Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from the United States Military Academy at West 

Point, New York, and his Masters in Business Administration in finance from the University of Southern California. 

IOHN A BARTHROP. Has been a Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of 
:ommerce Counsel and Secretary since'Apr 2004. Has served as General Counsel and Secretary of Commonwealth 

since May 1999. From Aug 1998 to May 1999 practiced law with the firm of Eadington, Merhab & Eadington. From 
J u l 1996 to Aug 1998 was a principal member of the business and litigation law firm of Smith, Sinek & Barthrop. 
w a s an.adjunct professor at Whittier College of Law. Obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of 
Washington, and a Juris Doctorate degree from University of California, Hastings College of Law. 

tETER WEIGAND. Became President of company and Commonwealth in Apr 2004. Has also served on Commerces 
oard of Directors since Apr 2004. Since 1996 served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Skipping Stone,. 
n energy consulting and technology firm he founded. Prior to forming Skipping Stone held senior management 

positions at several energy marketing companies. Holds a Bachelor of Business Administration from Wichita State 
niversity. 

I ICHARD L BOUGHRUM. Became Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of company and Commonwealth in 
Apr 2004. From Jan 2004 to Apr 2004 served as an independent contractor with Skipping Stone. From Apr 1990 to 

^ lov 2003 was an investment banker with Goldman Sachs & Co. in New York. Is an honors graduate of the 
Mlniversity of Illinois with a Bachelor of Science degree in Journalism. Also has a Masters of Science degree in 
Communications and a Masters in Business Administration in Finance from the University of Illinois. 

f 
REGORY L CRAIG. Director since 2004. Served as the Chief Executive Officer of Cook Inlet Energy Supply, a 
orth American energy services company he founded, since 1990. 

MARK C POCINIO. Currently retired. ' 

^HARLES E BAYLESS. Director since 2004. Has served as a director of Dynegy Inc. since February 2000. 

MARK S JUERGENSEN. Director since Dec 2003. Served as Vice President of Sales and Marketing for PredictPower, 

(n energy solution software company he co-founded, since May 2000. 

OBERT C PERKINS.. Has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Hospital Management Services, a 

provider of financial and management consulting services to hospitals and similar institutions, since Jun 1969. 

eceived his Bachelor of Science degree in accounting from Bob Jones University. 

CORPORATE FAMILY 

I 
For more details on the Corporate Family, use D&B's Global Family Linkage product. 

1 

I 
I 

ubsidiaries (US): 
elect businesses below to buy Comprehensive Report(s). 
Commonwealth Energy Corp Costa Mesa, CA DUNS # 17-634-3341 

PERATIONS 

ttps://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRetri^ 3/25/2005 
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I 
i 
f 
f 
i 
i 
i 

3/10/2005 

escription: 

:mployees: 

acilities: 

oc'ation: 

Through its subsidiaries, provides electrical services. 

175 which includes officer(s) and 2 part-time. 4 employed here. 

Leases 34,000 sq. ft. in 2 story cinder block building. 

Suburban business section on main street. 

ubsidiaries: This business has 5 subsidiaries listed below. 

Commonwealth Energy Corp, Tustin, CA. DUNS #176343341. (100%) chartered 1997. Operates 
as electric services. 

Skipping Stone Inc (100%). 

UtiliHost Inc. 

ElectricAmerica, Inc. 

Electric.com, Inc. 

SIC & NAICS 

ilC: 
Based on information in our file, D&B has 

tssigned this company an extended 8-digit SIC. 
^B's use of 8-digit SICs enables us to be more 
pecific to a company's operations than if we 

use the standard 4-digit code. 

Ihe 4-digit SIC numbers link to the description 
n the Occupational Safety & Health 

Administration (OSHA) Web site. Links open in a 
ew browser window. 

NAICS: 
221119 Other Electric Power Generation 

I 9110000 Electric services 

I ump to: 

Overview 

r 

I Scores 

anking & Finance 

TATEMENT UPDATE 

Payments Public Filings History & Operations 

03/18/2005 

Jnterim Consolidated statement dated JAN 31 2005: 

.Assets Liabilities 

I 
I 
I 

Cash 49,983,000 Accts Pay 
Accts Rec 32,272,000 Accruals 
Income Taxes Refund Receivable 4,430,000 

23,251,000 

8,004,000 

https://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRetrieve^ 3/25/2005 
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i 

i 
i 

Deferred Income Tax Asset 74,000 
Prepaid Exps & Other Current , 

assets 1,278,000 

Curr A s s e t s $88 ,037 ,000 

Fixt & Equip 2,253,000 

Restr Cash/Cash Equivalents 4,333,000 

Investments-Other 91,000 

Deposits 6,699,000 

Goodwill & Other Intangible Assets 3,504,000 

Total A s s e t s $104 ,917 ,000 

Curr L iabs 

COMMON STOCK 
UNEARNED RESTR STOCK 

COMPENSATION 
RETAINED EARNINGS 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

Total 

$31,255,000 

60,594,000 

(208,000) 

13,818,000 

(542,000) 

$104,917,000 

trom AUG 01 2004 to JAN 31 2005 sales $119,545,000; cost of goods sold $101,333,000. Gross profit 
18,212,000; operating expenses $16,765,000. Operating income $1,447,000; other income $406,000; other 

expenses $1,601,000; net income before taxes $252,000; net Income $252,000. 

S t a t e m e n t obtained from Securities And Exchange Commission. Prepared from books wi thout audit. 

I 
l 

Explanat ions 
The net worth of this company includes intangibles. 

KEY B U S I N E S S R A T I O S 

S t a t e m e n t d a t e : JAN 31 2005 
Based o n t h i s n u m b e r o f e s t a b l i s h m e n t s : 15 

I 
I 

Indust ry Norms based on 15 es tab l i shments 

Th is B u s i n e s s I n d u s t r y Median 

'rofitability 
i 

^Return on Sa les 

eturn on Net Worth 

Shor t -Term Solvency 

Current Ratio 

uick Ratio 

Eff iciency 

ts s e t s S a l e s 

a les / Net Working Capital 

Utilization 

J ' o t a l L iabs / Net Worth 

UN = Unavailable 

J = I N A N C E 

0.2 

UN 

2.8 

2.6 

UN 

2.1 

UN 

5.8 

7.9 

1.0 

0.4 

300.5 

5.6 

230.5 

Indust ry Quarti le 

3 

UN 

1 

1 

UN 

3 

UN 

1/24/2005 

w o - y e a r s ta tement comparat ive: 

F isca l Interim l 
I 
https://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRetriever.asp?R^ 3/25/2005 
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i 
^ T u r r e n t Assets 

Current Liabs 

(urrent Ratio 

'orking Capital 

Other Assets 

f et Worth 
ales 

jLong Term Liab 

M e t Profit (Loss) 

Consol idated 
Jul 31 2004 

94,822,000 

36,717,000 

2.58 

58,105,000 

16,001,000 

74,106,000 

, 210,623,000 

0 

(21,720,000) 

Consolidated 
Oct 31 2004 

91,525,000 

33,172,000 

2.76 

58,353,000 

16,107,000 

74,460,000 

0 

i 
i 
i 
i 

nterim Consol idated s ta tement dated OCT 31 2004: 

A s s e t s Liabil i t ies 

Cash 53,757,000 Accts Pay 26,808,000 

Accts Rec 27,452,000 Accruals 6,364,000 

Income Taxes Refund Receivables 4,423,000 

Deferred Income Tax Assets 74,000 
Prepaid Expenses/Other Curr 
ssets 

5,819,000 

Curr A s s e t s $91 ,525 ,000 Curr L iabs $33 ,172 ,000 

Fixt & Equip 2,409,000 COMMON STOCK 60,796,000 

Restricted Cash 4,268,000 
UNEARNED RESTRIC STOCK 

COMPENSATION 
(232,000) 

Investments-Other 96,000 RETAINED EARNINGS 12,446,000 

Deposits 5,663,000 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1,450,000 

Goodwill & Intangible Assets 3,671,000 

Total A s s e t s $107 ,632 ,000 Total $107 ,632 ,000 

J r o m AUG 01 2004 to OCT 31 2004 sales $58,496,000; cost of goods sold $52,406,000. Gross profit $6,090,000; 
operating expenses $5,960,000. Operating income $130,000; other income $189,000; other expenses 
$1,439,000; net income before taxes $(1,120,000). (net loss) $1,120,000. 

S t a t e m e n t obtained from Securities And Exchange Commission. Prepared f rom books wi thout audit. 

Accounts receivable shown net less $3,193,000 allowance. Fixed assets shown net less $6,742,000 depreciation. 

J t i e report was updated using information the company filed wi th the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

CUSTOMER S E R V I C E 

I 
If 
ar 

I 
I 
^ i t 

I 
! 

I f you have questions about this report, please call our Customer Resource Center at 1.800.234.3867 from 
_anywhere within the U.S. If you are outside the U.S. contact your local D&B office. 

* * * Additional Decision Support Available * * * 

[dditional D&B products, monitoring services and specialized investigations are available to help you evaluate this 
)mpany or its industry. Call Dun & Bradstreet's Customer Resource Center at 1.800.234.3867 from anywhere 

/ithin the U.S. or visit our website at www.dnb.com. 

ttps://ww.dnb.com/scripts/ProductRetriever.asp?REQUESTTYPE=getReport&WIPLINK-M 3/25/2005 
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Exel n 
An fxeton Company Energy Delivery 

March 25, 2005 
PECO - Exelon Corporation 

EED-Energy Acquisition-Electric & Gas Choice 
2301 Market Street 

Phildadelphia, P^. 191<& 

Commerce Energy Group, Inc. 
600 Anton Boulevard 
Suite 2000 
Costa Mesa; California 92626 

- < - V , 

CO 

cz 

\ 
CO 

Dear Prospective Pennsylvania Gas Supplier 

EED-Energy Acquisition-Electric & Gas Choice creditworthiness review is completed 
and Commerce Energy Group, Inc has met the creditworthiness business requirement 
involved with the Pennsylvania Gas Choice - Low Volume Transportation program. 

Please note, although the creditworthiness requirements were met, as referenced within 
Section 7.13 (Creditworthiness of a Natural Gas Supplier (NGS) Serving Low Volume 
Transportation Customers) of the Gas Service Tariff, PECO has the right to re-assess the 
creditworthiness of the company if PECO has any reason to suspect a change in the 
marketers financial condition. In addition, PECO has transitioned all of our ACN Energy 
Gas Choice accounting to reflect Commerce Energy, Inc. as the company of record. 

If you should have any questions regarding this matter, please contact the Electric & Gas 
Choice Hotline at 215-841-3700. 

Sincerely, 

o 

o 

Carlo Ciabattoni 
Manager 

Energy Acquisition-Electric & Gas Choice 



Commerce Energy, Inc. ^> ^ Sjj 

^ < > 

Peter Weigand v-5^ 
President 

Mr. Weigand has more than 20 years of experience in the deregulated natural 
gas and electric markets in North America covering strategy and corporate 
development, wholesale and retail trading, and energy technology. 

As a member of senior management for several large deregulated energy firms, 
Mr. Weigand directed trading activities, technology departments, retail and end-
user business units and merger and acquisition activities. Mr. Weigand has 
extensive software design and management experience across the energy 
transaction value chain, risk management, billing, and scheduling and e-
commerce applications. To date, he has designed eight software and Internet 
applications and has assisted on countless others in the energy field. In addition, 
Mr. Weigand has authored three textbook training manuals covering topics in 
Natural Gas, Electricity, and Risk Management and is regularly published in both 
national business and energy publications. 

In 1996 Mr. Weigand founded Skipping Stone, Inc., an energy consulting and 
technology firm with offices in Philadelphia, Houston, Boston, San Jose, and 
Florida. Skipping Stone is comprised of professional service and technology 
groups along with its wholly-owned subsidiary, CapacityCenter.com, Inc. Since 
inception the company has served over 200 energy clients. 

Mr. Weigand was recognized as an Entrepreneur of the Year by Ernst & Young 
in 2002 and was named one ofthe Top 50 Influential People in Energy 
Technology by Pennwell Publications. Mr. Weigand holds a Bachelor of Business 
Administration from Wichita State University. 

Richard L. Boughrum 
Senior Vice President; Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Boughrum has 25 years of investment banking experience with Goldman, 
Sachs & Co. and Salomon Brothers in corporate finance and the debt and equity 
capital markets in New York, London and San Francisco. 

Mr. Boughrum has been involved with the power and utilities sector of the 
national energy markets since 1990. In 1995 Mr. Boughrum became a member 
of the Energy & Power Group of Goldman Sachs' Investment Banking Division in 
New York. Mr. Boughrum began his Investment Banking career with Goldman 



Sachs in 1978 as a Commercial Paper Trader. He worked in the Capital Markets 
Divisions of Salomon Brothers and Goldman Sachs from 1983 to 1995. 

He has extensive experience in the utility and independent merchant power 
sector throughout its process of deregulation over the past decade. Mr. 
Boughrum has advised electric power and utility clients on capital-raising 
transactions in the domestic and international debt and equity capital markets, 
state deregulation strategies, stranded cost recovery plans, securitization 
financings, generation asset divestitures, merchant plant financings, initial public 
offerings of merchant power companies, commodity risk management, 
commodity financing structures, recapitalization plans for financially distressed 
companies, and mergers and acquisitions. 

He is a frequent speaker and participant in industry conferences and has spoken 
recently on "Investing in Power and Utility Stocks - The Crises in Confidence and 
Valuation" and "The Power Sector Implications of the Enron Bankruptcy." 

Mr. Boughum is an honors graduate of the University of Illinois with a B.S. 
degree in Journalism. He also has an M.S. degree in Communications and an 
MBA in Finance from the University of Illinois. 

In New York City, Mr. Boughrum served in the not-for-profit sector as a board 
member for several organizations, including the 125-year old Bowery Mission, a 
provider of homeless services. 

Eric Alam 
Senior Vice President of Sales/Marketing 

Eric Alam has nearly 20 years of experience in leading and managing 
businesses across various aspects of the energy industry, with the distinction of 
having attained first officer level position with a Fortune 30 company at the age of 
28. He has extensive expertise in the areas of sales force development, strategic 
business planning, financial and physical energy product development, energy 
asset development, mergers and asset integration, and retail to wholesale 
product development. 

Before joining Commerce Energy, Mr. Alam was a Principal with Skipping Stone, 
Inc. where he participated in the development of the original Skipping Stone 
business plan, serving as a member of the Skipping Stone Board of Directors 
throughout his tenure. In addition, he has authored numerous white papers and 
articles and has been a sought-after speaker at industry conferences on topics 
from technology to trading, risk management and sales force development. Mr. 
Alam built and led various practice areas while at Skipping Stone, including 
Retail Markets, Wholesale Trading and Risk Management, Customer Acquisition 



and Tech Solutions. His professional experience also includes serving at the 
executive level at Penn Union Energy Services (Pennzoil), Enron Corporation, 
Tenneco, Inc., and EnTrade. 

Mr. Alam earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics and Business 
Administration at Vanderbilt University. 

Tom Ulry 
Senior Vice President of Operations 

Mr. Ulry has more than 17 years of energy industry experience in both fast paced 
start-up companies and mature business environments. His professional career 
includes extensive experience in executive level operations positions with an 
emphasis in the Energy sector. 

Mr. Ulry comes to Commerce from ACN Energy, a division of ACN, Inc. that was 
acquired by Commerce in February 2005. ACN, Inc is a network sales 
organization offering a broad range of services across the deregulated industries, 
where he held the position of Global Vice President and Chief Operations Officer. 
Previously, Mr. Ulry served as Senior Vice President for Nicor Energy, L.L.C. 
While at Nicor Energy, his responsibilities included managing the profit and loss 
center for the company's consumer business unit generating an excess of $165 
million in revenue, and expanding sales channels, which resulted in a 90% 
increase of new customers. Prior to his tenure at Nicor Energy, Mr. Ulry held the 
position of President and Chief Operating Officer for Energy.com Corporation, 
successfully launching the company with an e-commerce store specializing in 
energy related products. 

Mr. Ulry started his professional career at Access Energy Corporation in 1987 
and also worked with Unicorp Energy, Inc. as their Manager of Information 
Systems. Mr. Ulry served as Director of Operations for Aquila Inc./Broad Street 
Oil & Gas where he designed, built and implemented front-, mid- and back-office 
systems in support of Sales, Order Management, Billing and Demand 
Forecasting. Mr. Ulry holds an Associates Degree in Information Technology. 

Andrew Coppola 
Vice President of Energy Supply 

Mr. Coppola has 23 years of marketing and trading experience in the non-
regulated Energy industry - fostering significant growth and value in each of the 
companies he has been associated with. Before joining Commerce Energy, he 
served as Vice President of Product Management at ACN Energy (acquired by 



Commerce in February 2005) - in charge of all Supply and Fulfillment activities, 
Product Development and Management, and Hedging and Trading functions. 

Prior to joining ACN Energy, he was responsible at DTE Energy Trading for 
physical and financial gas portfolios and marketing activities related to wholesale 
business, optimization of robust natural gas and electric asset portfolios, 
development of services to support changing supply/demand requirements, 
maximization of gas tolling opportunities, and in charge of a Commercial & 
Industrial book of business with sales of approximately 30 Bcf per year. 

Throughout his career, he has managed a wide range of activities including 
Midwest Trading, Wholesale Origination, and Structured Transactions for a wide 
range of LDCs and municipal customers, Commercial & Industrial marketing 
programs, and a number of strategic marketing partnerships. 

Andrew has previously worked for non-regulated marketing affiliates of CMS 
Energy and The Coastal Corporation (now ElPaso). He earned a Bachelors of 
Business Administration Degree from the University of Michigan. 

Glenn N. Kinser 
Director - Risk Management 

Glenn Kinser has over 11 years of experience in the non-regulated Energy 
Industry. Throughout his career he has worked in various roles including 
marketing, business planning, physical and financial trading, risk management, 
strategy management and business information systems. 

Before joining Commerce Energy, Mr. Kinser was Director - Risk Management 
for ACN Energy, Inc were he was responsible for instilling an enterprise risk 
management culture within the company which included the identification, 
measurement, monitoring and control of the risks that faced the organization. In 
addition to ACN Energy, Mr. Kinser has also worked for the non-regulated 
marketing affiliates of DTE and MCN Energy Group as well as Continental 
Energy Marketing Inc. 

Mr. Kinser earned his Bachelors of Business Administration degree from the 
University of New Haven and his Masters of Business Administration - Finance 
from Wayne State University. 



Anthony Cusati, III 
Senior Market Manager 

Mr. Cusati has served as ACN Energy's Manager of Accounting, Billing 
Operations Manager and Market and Product Manager in his 5 year tenure and 
brings over 20 years of finance and accounting experience to the Energy team. 
Prior to joining ACN he held several finance, accounting and operations positions 
in the healthcare field, among which as the Chief Financial Officer for the 
Psychiatric Hospital Division at Tenet Healthcare, Inc., (formally known as 
National Medical Enterprises, Santa Monica, CA.) He holds a B.S. degree in 
Business Administration with Accounting as the major from Roger Williams 
University, Bristol, Rl. 

Current duties as the Senior Market Manager at Commerce Energy include: 

• Representing Commerce Energy internally and externally across the 
business spectrum, 

• Take accountability for coordination of resources and needs, 
• Coordinate internal and external resources, 
• Insure compliance, profitability, and identification of business risks and 

opportunities, 
• Monitor all activities at the LDC and PUC/PSC level relating to changes to 

tariffs, rules and statutes. 

Key market contacts include 

o Nominations personnel, LDC Managers, Customer Service, Accounting, 
Billing, Settlements, Enrollments and Credit and Collections 

• Public Utility Commissions, Attorneys, Competitors 

Current assignment as Senior Market Manager include the following gas service 
markets: 

• Atlanta Gas Light Company (Georgia) 
• Columbia of Ohio (Columbus, OH and surrounding communities) 
• Dominion of East Ohio (Cleveland, OH and surrounding communities) 
• KeySpan Energy Delivery (New York City's 5 boroughs) 
• PECO Gas (Greater Philadelphia, PA) 

Baltimore Gas and Electric (Baltimore, MD market) 



Joseph B. Bianchi 
Manager Energy Operations 

Joseph Bianchi joined ACN Energy in August 2003. He is responsible for the 
supervision of all natural gas scheduling, forecasting and planning for retail sale 
in all states that ACN Energy is active. Personally schedules the Ohio Markets 
(Dominion East Ohio and Columbia of Ohio). Duties include: Daily Scheduling, 
Forecasting and Planning of natural gas sale on both the utilities and transport on 
all necessary pipelines. He also negotiates and contracts for all transport and 
storage capacity with pipelines to meet the necessary Utility requirements on a 
peak day. Supervises the reviews and reconciliation of all invoices and 
coordinate with Accounts Payable the payment of all approved invoices. He also 
negotiates any credit requirements with Pipelines and Utilities. 

Joseph Bianchi has over 25 years experience working for one of the largest 
Interstate Pipelines in United States. As Director of Operations he was 
responsible for the handling of over 100,000 nomination requests per year from 
receipt, approval and scheduling of the transport nomination requests from the 
supply regions in Louisiana (onshore and offshore) and the Oklahoma Panhandle 
regions to the Midwest market areas. Oversaw the capacity analysis, curtailment 
and dispatching of all transport requests. A committee member for 7 years with 
GISB / NAESB where he worked closely with fellow committees members to 
develop Business Practice Standards and models for Nomination, Flowing Gas 
and Capacity Release that was eventually adopted by the FERC. Educational 
Background includes a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from Oakland 
University and some post graduate work in Business Management from Wayne 
State University. 



rEDERAL- ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSIOM 

W M M I N O T O H . D C MH7G 

To-. Coirmonwealth Energy Corporation 

OCT 0 7 BJL 

Docket Ito. ER97-4253-000 

You aubmitted lor t i l i n g wttli tlie CoramlBBion a rate achedule 
under Which you w i l l engage i n yholeaale e l e c t r i c power and 
energy tranBactinns aa a marketer. Purfiuant to authority 
delegated to the Director, Dlvieicm oE Rate Applications-, under 
19 C.P.R. 375.308, your submittal ia accepted Cor f i l i n g and i n 
designated and made efCeetive tie shown below. 

Cgiffnppwealtfr Energy Corporation 
Hate Schedule FERC Ho. 1 BEEectlve: Date oI, This Order 

Any waivera requested i n your application are granted or 
denied.along with the authorizatione and subject to thte 
conditlonn provided i n the Appendix. 

Under 16 C.P.R. 385.210. interventions are timely iE made 
within the time preacribed by the Secretary. Under 18 C.F.R. 
385.214, tlie f i l i n g or a timely motion to intervene maken the 

' movant a party to the proceeding, i f no answer i n opposition i s 
f i l e d within f i f t e e n days. The t i l i n g of a timely notice of 
intervention makefl a State CommisBion a party to the proceeding. 

This action does not conetitute approval of any aervice, 
rat f i , charge, c l a s s i f i c a t i o n , or any rule, regulation, contract, 
or practice affecting such rate or service provided f o r In the 
t i l e d documents; nor'shall such action be deemed as recognition 
ot any claimed contractual right or obligation affecting or 
relating to such service br'rate; and such action In without 
prejudice to any Cindings or ordera which have teen or ftiay 
hereafter be made by the Commission i n any proceeding now pending 
or hereafter i n s t i t u t e d by or against the applicant. 

This order constitutes f i n a l agency action. Requeflts for 
rehearing by the CommlsBlon may be f i l e d within 30 days of the 
date of iasuance of t h i f l order, pursuant to 19 CFR 385.713. 

Sincerely, 

Donald J. Gelinan, Director 
Division of Rate Applications 
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Waivera and Author!r.ations Under the Coirraiseion' e 
Regulatlono Which are Cranked or Denied for 

Unatfiliatedfpwer Marketers 

The following Regulations are waived for power marketers: 

l ) 

21 
3) 
4) 

Subparts B and C of Part 35, regarding the f i l i n g of rate 
schedules, except for Sections 35.12la), 35.13(b), 35.15 
(which requires a power marketer to f i l e a Kotice of 
Cancellation or Termination when i t ceases i t s marketing 
a c t i v i t i e s l , and 35.16 (which requires a power marketer to 
f i l e a notice of succession whenever i t s name or operational 
control Is changed). 
Part 41, regarding accounts, records, and memorandaj 
Part 101, regarding the uniform Bystem of accounts; and 
Part 141, regarding statements and reports. 

Ses Ci.t.ij.eiia_Bag.c3y_CQri;fli:fttlPD (Citizsns-Bngig*). 35 FERC 1 
61,198 (198G), Cititena Power and Light Corporation (Citizens 
E&L), 48 FERC 161,210 (1989), and Enron Power Marketing. Inc. 
lEQCQll). 65 FERC 1 61,305 (1993), order on rehearing. 66 FBRC 1 
61,244 (1994). 

Tho roqulremcnto of Part 34 of the Commioalon'u Regulatlono 
regarding securities and assumptions of l i a b i l i t i e s are statutory 
in nature and cannot be waived. I f a power marketer requests 
blanket approval under Part 34, a notice w i l l be published in the 
Federal Raalntfrr estahllahing a period during which protests may 
be filed'. Absent a request to be heard within the period set 
forth i n the notice, the power marketer ia authorized to iasue 
securities and assume obligations or l i a b i l i t i e s as guarantor, 
endorser, surety, or otherwise i n respect of any security of 
another person; provided that auch issue or assumption is for 
some lawful object within the corporate purposea, compatible with 
the public interest, nnd reasonably iiuccasat-y or apptopriate for 
such purposcn. Seo pltiBcno Pftfo and ffllian-

Requests chat the Cocrmission waive the requirements of Part 
46 of i t s Regulations regarding interlocking directors are 
denied. In EflESn- the Conanisslon stated that the requirements of 
Part 46 regarding interlocking directors are statutory i u nature 
and may not be waived. 

The Cull require-aents of Part 45 of the Commission's 
Regulations are waived for power marketers, instead, a persnn 
holding or who may hold on otherwise proscribed interlocking 
directorate involving the power marketer shall f i l e a sworn 
application providing: 11) f u l l name and business address, and 
(2) a l l j u r i s d i c t i o n a l luterlockn. Identifying the affected 
companies and the positions held by that person. See Enspo; 
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Tint Cocm I BO i on rcnervcH the r i g h t Co require a lurChec 
Rhowing t l i a t ne i ther pub l i c not p r i v a t e l i i t 'eresto W i l l bo 
advorocly af locccd by "contiiiueil ConrnlBsicni approval ot the powisr 
mnrkater'B iaeuanceo-ol eecur l t i e s or sssunpEloiiB of l t * l i ! l i t i c i i , 
a r by the continued holding of any aCCectRd ihfcorlnckn. 

Requoocs t o r diocla lmor oE J u r i B d l c t l o n ovi-r broker ing 
a c c i v l t i o e . I n which t i t l e t o e l e c t r l c l k y ta not taken, must be 
f i l e d separately an a p e t i t i o n [ o r a dec lara tory order 
accampahled by tlie appropriate f i l i n g f e e . £fifi C l t i aeh lLSot iay 
and ffearfciatid 'Bngt-qTy-HgrYlcgB: Irit : . . S8 FKBC 1 61,223 (199*). -

Hequeeta t l u t the CtCTraianion waive annual charges f o r power 
ma rice corn, under Part 382. of the CoamiBeloH'o Regulations, are 
denied. SSS VanvR SEgniRy ^tiHifrlJLJirfiDp^Iac,, IBdrgan Stanley 
I I , fi9 FSRC 1 61,175 [19941 and Morgan Stanley • Capita ICiPHpTlnc... 
(HaisaiLSCMljeiL_ut. 72 FEBC 1 6i,oaa U995). 

Reiiuests f o r a blanket walvar at tho EO-dny p r i o r no t l c* 
requlrcmL-qt Cor r a t e schedule f i l i n g s raade by a power mnrketer'B 
auppllci-a. are denied. Unt, ftonllw Powar r n r p n ^ i t f in 70 FBRC 1 
Cl.OZl (1995). However, In Cenml_HutfB011_Gga. t E l e c t r i c Coirp. . 
Ct^Ol*. 60 PBRC 1 61,106. t ph 'q f lpn le i j . fil ^ERC 1 61,009 (19S2t, 
and E r l o r MOtlce and n i l n g . R t i a u U c n t i i i t g - U i i i l g r ^ f a E C - l l - a l - t l i e 
frediiral ..gfiHpr > f l • Docket Ho. PI.9J-2-Q02, 6< PMKC 1 61,139 
119931, the Caralenloi i explained I t s p o l i c y on waiver of not ice 
(or a l l J u r f m H c t l a n a l s e l l s r a . Keapondlng t o concernn tha t 
e e l l e t s nay be unable t o f i l e new efirviceu SO ilayu p r i o r t o the 
e f t e c t l v e da te , t l i e CotwniSBion ntate'd tha t I t would grant waiver 
ot the 60 day no t i ce roqolrcncnt 1) f o r unconteatbd f i l i n g s 
Invo lv ing new serv ices that were t i l e d at, l eas t one day p r i o r t o 
the commonceoent oe serv ice , o r 2) f o r aervice agreeitcnto under 
t a r l E f s already on t i l e as long ae tha service agreements arc 
r i l e d w i t h i n 30 days a f t e r service cottwencee. 

Requests Cor waiver of the p tov i s lone oE Section 203 
regarding tho d l s p a n l t i o n o f j u r l m l l c t l o h s l r s e l l l t l e s , the 
merger or c o n s o l i d a t i o n of such f a c i l i t i e s , o r the a c q u i s i t i o n o f 
the s e c u r i t i e s of another p u b l i c u t i l i t y , are denied. The 
p^oviaions of flection 203 arc s t a t u t o r y I n nature and may not be 
waived. Sfie BEBOUKCB-BeMxecy—IOade-Coumy.l̂ -inc., 20 FSHC 1 
61.138 (1982). Requests f o r e l a r i f l e f t t i o n t h a t sales of accountn 
receivable are not d lBpos l t ione ot j u r l e d i c t l o a a l f a c i l l t l e a and 
are , there t o r e , not w i t h i n the scope oE Section 203, are granted. 
Sea.anrQE. Requests t o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n t h a t the asslgno^nt of a 
power saleo con t r ac t conn t l tu ten a d l o p o a l t i o n of j u c l n d i c t t c n n l 
f a c i l i t i e s under Section 203. sre granted. Sfifi ga i i l l l . Re^ueaea 
f o r c l a r i C i c i i t l o n t h a t funds received from t h * onlo o f 
e l e c t r i c i t y are not j u r t ed ic t tonal f B e H i t l e B w i t h i n the meaning 
of Sect ion 20V, are granted, gee CiEi reoaJncrax- Alsoj 
rKiunnta t o r c l o r i l i c n t i o n thae tha requlren-^nts o f Section 303 
do not s j i p l y t o the f o c H i t i o o of a power marketer tha t are not 
Involved i n the generat ion, tranmnluBion or sale f o r reuolo of 
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e l e c t r i c energy, ore granted. See l icwel l Gaa Manaftenii'nt Co. . <a 
P8RC 1 61,356 11967). 

Kequcots that , the Cffinniuslon waive i t s ret|u I retaent tha t 
purchasers of e l e c t r i c i t y under nuirket-baned rn to nchfHlulno 
< :« r t i ty ^liat the purchaaa p r i ce was equal ta or lesn thab i t a 
avoidtid cost , . ire moot. Tho Conodssion dropped the requirement 
I n L o t i l a v l l l e Can * Rl*!ctr lc CoFuMny. 62 FRKC 1 61.016 (19951. 

Recsixttia-
Pouer mat ke t e rn mutt pcuviOti, w i t h i n 30 days o f the end of 

each calendar quar ter , the f o l l o w i n g in fonna t ion to r each 
t rnnuac t ion l u which i t engaged dur ing the p r i o r quar te r : 

i ) i d e n t i f i c a t i o n of buyer/eelier,-
21 d e o c t i p t i o n of the eorv icn , 1 .q • 

f l n a / h o n r f i i r m i 
31 d o l i v e r y polnt (B) . ' 
4} p r l c e ( a l ; 
S) n u a n t l t i n n , n . q - . HMh/MK: and 
61 rtntea of aervico 

purchase/sale. 

Ses clclssns-EiiL and Entun. 
RUIIUEHVH to r t l l l t e r s n t r epo r t ing refjuirementB are denied, 

pending the CoomiBBion'n nomplBLifni ot the gf lnurlc review of 
repor t ing requirementa f o r a l l p u b l i c u t l l i L l u s w i t h nnrket-baeed 
rates announced I n Worqan Stanley I . See (Ml-lapnu V-'hman Pay<-t 
SSlSS. T l PBRC 1 61.149 (19951. 

Rcqucota t o include i n tha q u a r t e r l y rcpar tn only tlio00 r i a k 
manageraent t ransact ions that r e s u l t i n the octual d e l i v e r v o f 
e l e c t r i c i t y , u n t i l the ConmlBaibn 1BBUBS an order nddresalng.the 
Icimie of I t s j u r i s d i c t i o n over r i s k mmagensnt t rannact ionB. ' are 
granted. Sei£ Moroan Stanley 1. 

atqueste t o f i l e qua r t e r ly t r ansac t ion repor ts on a 
c o n f i d e n t i a l bas is ' a re den lad . SEE WP^^nqil P \ fK1P r l g AanoclatPfl 
!,.£,_, 50 FEHC \ 6l,37B (1990). Eusi_ttlfla file Trading Corpora t ion . 
71 FERC 1 61,148 (19951. LGfcB_F9«Cr_mi*(:tlag_:(nC. . 68 FBRC 1 
61,247, and BniOd-

Power marketero m a t f i l e w i t h tho Comaisoion any change I n 
o ta tuo . Eefi Cl t lnpnn psi.. EUtfifl, and Hortian Stanley I I . cfiangca 
In otatuo innluda depntturoo f rom the c l t a rac tc r in t l cD t l ic 
ComninDlofi I M S r e l i e d upon tn approving Che power marXatcr 'o 
market• based p r i c i n g , inc lud ing but not U n i t e d t o : 

l ) lack of ownemhlp of generat ion or traninnlnnion 
f a c i l i t i e s nr other Inpti tn t o e l e c t r i c power product ion 
ot t ic t than CIKJBC I d e n t i f i e d i n the a p p l i c a t i o n t a r 
market-baned ra teai 



Wednesday, March 09,2005 ^ 

In regards to: 2005 PA Gross Receipts Tax \ > ^ <̂  < ^ 

PA Department of Revenue ' : r -
Dept 280407 ^ ' *> 
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0407 ^ 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation d.b.a. electricAmerica is submitting our 2005 
estimated Gross Receipts Tax (GRT) payment by March 15th, as required, in the amount 
of $2,417,968. 

This represents a significant decrease from our 2004 GRT payment. Regrettably, 
wholesale market conditions have made it increasingly difficult to compete in the electric 
marketplace in PA and ultimately we felt compelled to cancel service to approximately 
22,695 customers returning them to their incumbent utility, PECO. This represents a 
decrease of approximately half of our 2004 customer base. January through April GRT 
estimates for these customers is included within our payment. GRT for the remaining 
months of 2005 for these customers will be paid by the incumbent utility or whatever 
new supplier these customers choice. 

We are not however exiting the Pennsylvania energy market. We continue to 
serve approximately 23,310 customers within the PECO service territory. Additionally 
on February 9, 2005, Commerce Energy Group, Inc., the holding company for 
Commonwealth and electricAmerica, entered into an agreement to acquire the assets of 
ACN Energy, a division of ACN, Inc. 

ACN Energy currently has approximately 8,500 electric customers in PA. ACN 
will continue to be responsible for all 2004 GRT payments and will be submitting a GRT 
estimated payment for January through May 15, 2005. The remaining 2005 estimated 
GRT for ACN Energy electric customers is included in our payment. 

The total 2005 payment of $2,417,968 2005 includes $2,225,368 estimated GRT 
for electricAmerica customers and $192,600 estimated GRT for electric customers 
acquired through the ACN Energy acquisition. 

In Pennsylvania all Gas & Electric Supplier licenses, utility agreements & 
customers of both energy entities are to be transitioned to Commerce Energy of 
Pennsylvania, Inc. d/b/a Commerce Energy, a new corporate entity formed for this 
express purpose, in the coming months. We will contact your agency regarding this 
transition within the next several months in a separate communication for instructions. 

Respectfully, 

Rebecca A. Schlanert 
Associate Vice President 
Commonwealth Energy Corp/electricAmerica 
Commerce Energy Group, Inc. 
Office: (714) 481-6598 



M c N e e s W a l l a c e & N u r i c k LLC 
attorneys at law 

OKI1 

DERRICK PRICE WILLIAMSON ^^T , 
DIRECT DIAL: (717) 237-5446 & 
E-MAIL ADDRESS: DWILLIAMSON@MWN.COM 

April 8, 2005 

James J. McNulty, Secretary 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth Keystone Building 
400 North Street, 2nd Floor 
Hamsburg, PA 17120 

DOCUMEN 
-OLDER 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

RE: Joint Petition of ACN Energy, Inc., and Commerce Energy, Inc., for Approval 
to Transfer Natural Gas Supplier License from ACN Energy, Inc., to Commerce 
Energy, Inc.; Docket Nj 

Dear Secretary McNulty: 

Please find enclosed for filing the original and three (3) copies of the Joint Petition of ACN 
Energy, Inc., and Commerce Energy, Inc., for Approval to Transfer Natural Gas Supplier License 
from ACN Energy, Inc., to Commerce Energy, Inc. Please note that the Joint Petitioners 
respectfully request expedited treatment of the Joint Petition and Commission action on the Joint 
Petition at either the May 5, 2005, or May 20, 2005, Public Meeting. 

Pursuant to Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission requirements, the necessary parties have 
been served with a copy of this Joint Petition, as evidenced by the attached Certificate of Service. 
Please date stamp the enclosed copy of this transmittal letter and kindly retum it for our filing 
purposes. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

McNEES WALLACE & NURICK LLC 

terrick Price Williams 
Charis Mincavage 

Counsel to ACN Energy, Inc., and Commerce 
Energy, Inc. 

Enclosures 
c: James Shurskis, Bureau of Fixed Utility Services (via hand delivery) 

Certificate of Service 

RO. Box 1166 • 100 PINE STREET • HARRISBURG, PA 17108-1166 • TEL: 717.232.8000 • FAX: 717.237.5300 • WWW.MWN 

HAZLETON, PA * LANCASTER, PA • STATE COLLEGE, PA • COLUMBUS, OH • WASHINGTON, DC 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have this day served a true copy of the foregoing document upon the 

participants listed below, in accordance with the requirements of Section 1.54 (relating to service 

by a participant). 

VIA FIRST-CLASS MAIL 

Irwin A. Popowsky 
Office of Consumer Advocate 
5th Floor, Forum Place 
555 Walnut Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17120-1921 

William Lloyd 
Commerce Building, Suite 11 02 
Office of Small Business Advocate 
300 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Department of Revenue 
Bureau of Compliance 
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946 

Office of the Attorney General 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Kevin Carrabine 
PECO Energy Company 
2301 Market Street 
P.O. Box 8699 
Philadelphia, PA 19101-8699 

Dated this S"1 day of April, 2005, in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. 
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ORIGINA 
BEFORE THE 

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

JOINT PETITION OF ACN ENERGY, 
INC., AND COMMERCE ENERGY, INC., 
FOR APPROVAL TO TRANSFER NATURAL 
GAS SUPPLIER LICENSE FROM ACN 
ENERGY, INC., TO COMMERCE ENERGY, 
INC. 

DOCKET NO.^-, 

X \ 

' % 

r 
JOINT PETITION FOR APPROVAL TO TRANSFER 

NATURAL GAS SUPPLIER LICENSE 

TO THE HONORABLE, THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION: 

Pursuant to Section 2208(d) of the Natural Gas Choice and Competition Act, 66 Pa. C.S. 

§ 2208(d), and Section 62.112 ofthe Public Utility Code, 52 Pa. Code § 62.112, ACN Energy, 

Inc. ("ACN Energy"), and Commerce Energy, Inc. ("CEI") (collectively, "Petitioners"), hereby 

submit this Joint Petition ("Petition") to the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission ("PUC" or 

"Commission") to request the Commission's approval of the transfer of ACN Energy's Natural 

Gas Supplier ("NGS") license to CEI. Simultaneous with this filing, CEI is submitting an 

Application for approval to offer, render, fumish, or supply natural gas services as an NGS to the 

public in the Commonweal | | ^ r ^ j P O l ' i P l 

No. i.1 APR 25 2005 

1 Application is attached, hereto as Exhibi ed, hereto as; Exmbit 

UULlHtNT 
"OLDER 

As discussed more fully herein, ACN Energy is an affiliate of ACN, Inc. ("AfcN"), which 

has several other affiliate companies. Recently, ACN Energy, along with certain other ACN 

affiliate companies, entered into an agreement to sell the assets of ACN Energy to 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation ("CEC"), which is an affiliate of Commerce Energy Group, 
Because this Application is quite voluminous and is being filed simultaneously with this Petition, Exhibit No. 1 

does not contain the exhibits to the Application. 



Inc. ("CEG"). Although neither CEG nor any of its affiliates has an NGS license, the PUC 

approved CEC's application for an Electric Generation Supplier ("EGS") license in 1999. As a 

result, Commonwealth Energy Company d/b/a electricAmerica, Inc., currently has an EGS 

license in Pennsylvania. With the acquisition of ACN Energy, CEG has changed the name of 

CEC to Commerce Energy, Inc. Accordingly, because the PUC previously found that CEC and 

its parent company had the necessary technical, financial, and managerial fitness required for an 

EGS license, and because nothing has changed with respect to these entities, the PUC should 

grant this Joint Petition. 

In support of its Joint Petition, ACN Energy and CEI state as follows: 

I. BACKGROUND 

A. ACN Energy, Inc. 

ACN Energy started as a wholly-owned subsidiary of ACN, which is a leading direct 

selling company offering highly competitive fixed and mobile telephone services, Internet 

access, and gas and electricity services to consumers and small businesses in North America, 

Europe, and Australia. ACN Energy has been offering alternative electricity and natural gas 

services to customers in several deregulated states, including Pennsylvania, California, Georgia, 

Maryland, New York, and Ohio. 

On July 30, 1999, ACN Energy submitted its Application to the Commission to obtain its 

NGS license. On October 19, 1999, the PUC granted ACN Energy's Application at Docket No. 

A-125014. ACN Energy currently serves approximately 2,000 natural gas customers in 

Pennsylvania. Of that number, approximately 1,800 are residential customers and 200 are 

commercial customers. All of these customers are located in the PECO Energy Company 

2 On November 19, 1998, the PUC granted ACN Energy an EGS license at Docket No. A-110102. ACN Energy 
currently services approximately 8,000 electric customers in Pennsylvania. 



("PECO") service territory. ACN Energy does not provide service to customers outside of this 

service territory. 

B. Commerce Energy, Inc. 

CEG, CEI's parent company, is a provider of energy products and services to residential, 

commercial, and industrial customers; utilities; governments; and, energy asset owners. CEG 

has various affiliates, including CEC, which holds state and federal licenses for retail and 

wholesale energy commodities; Skipping Stone, Inc., which is an energy consulting firm; and, 

UtilitHost, Inc., which is an outsourcing services provider. 

On July 1, 1999, CEC filed an Application with the PUC requesting approval to offer 

electricity generation services in Pennsylvania.3 On September 15, 1999, the PUC approved 

CEC's Application and granted Commonwealth Energy Corporation d/b/a Advantage Energy, 

Inc., an EGS license. On October 12, 1999, CEC filed an application with the Department of 

State to change its name to Commonwealth Energy Corporation d/b/a electricAmerica, Inc. On 

October 29, 1999, CEC informed the PUC of this change, and the PUC reissued CEC's license in 

the name of Commonwealth Energy Corporation d/b/a as electricaAmerica, Inc.4 To date, 

electricAmerica currently serves approximately 29,000 electric customers in Pennsylvania, in 

only the PECO service territory. Of those customers, the majority are commercial customers, 

with several residential customers and one lighting customer. 

3 A copy of CEC's EGS Application is attached hereto as Exhibit No. 2. 
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A copy of this License is attached hereto as Exhibit No. 3. Exhibit No. 4 to this Joint Petition provides a flow 
chart of the company structure of CEG prior to the acquisition of ACN Energy. 



C. Acquisition of ACN Energy, Inc., by Commonwealth Energy Corporation 

On February 9, 2005, CEC and ACN Energy entered into an agreement under which CEC 

acquires the assets of ACN Energy.5 As a result of this acquisition, CEG is able to achieve 

several key objectives towards its corporate strategies of diversifying into natural gas and 

expanding its market footprint, while lowering its regulatory risk profile. Through this 

acquisition, CEG wil l have electricity customers in Texas, California, Pennsylvania, New Jersey, 

and Michigan, with natural gas customers in New York, California, Pennsylvania, Ohio, 

Georgia, and Maryland. CEG also hopes to cross-sell and expand in each of these markets. 

As part of this transaction, CEG is rebranding its retail unit from Commonwealth Energy 

Company to Commerce Energy, Inc.6 ACN Energy seeks to transfer its NGS license to CEI, 

and, in the accompanying Application, CEI seeks an NGS license.7 

II . TRANSFER O F L I C E N S E 

ACN Energy seeks to transfer its NGS license to CEI. As noted above, CEI is the 

successor in name to CEC, the entity that received an EGS license from the PUC. Previously, 

the Commission determined that CEC and its parent company, CEG, possessed the necessary 

technical, financial, and managerial fitness requirements to obtain an EGS license. CEI and its 

parent company, CEG, continue to meet and maintain the regulatory requirements and fitness 

5 A copy of this Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit No. 5. As indicated in the Agreement, ACN and CEG were 
parties to the Agreement with respect to certain enumerated provisions. 

6 Exhibit No. 6 to this Joint Petition provides a flow chart of the company structure resulting from the acquisition of 
ACN Energy and the rebranding of CEC to CEI. Exhibit No. 7 to this Joint Petition contains the Department of 
State filing made by CEI evidencing the name change from CEC to CEI. CEI is awaiting action by the Department 
of State with respect to this filing. 

7 
CEG recognizes that its EGS license is in CEC's name. In order to address the impact of the name change to CEI 

with respect to the EGS license, a separate filing will be made in the near future. 



previously acknowledged by the Commission in granting an EGS license. Accordingly, the 

Petitioners' request to transfer this NGS license is just, reasonable, and in the public interest. 

I I I . IMPACT ON ACN ENERGY CUSTOMERS 

As part of this transfer of ACN Energy's license, ACN Energy will also assign its current 

NGS customer base to CEI. CEI will continue to provide service to ACN Energy's natural gas 

customers pursuant to the terms and conditions of ACN Energy's Disclosure Statement, which is 

attached to CEI's accompanying Application and as Exhibit No. 8 hereto. In addition, many of 

the ACN Energy customer service representatives will continue with CEI. As a result, the 

assignment of customers from ACN Energy to CEI will be virtually seamless and transparent. 

CEI will provide notice of this assignment to ACN Energy's customers on approximately 

April 18, 2005. Prior to sending this notice to customers, it was reviewed by the Commission's 

Bureau of Consumer Services ("BCS") and is attached hereto as Exhibit No. 9. See 52 Pa. Code 

§ 62.75(2). 

As indicated in CEI's accompanying Application, CEI intends to initially provide NGS 

service in only the PECO Energy Company ("PECO") service territory. In order to provide 

service in this territory, CEI has already contacted PECO to address any credit issues. To that 

end, PECO has acknowledged that CEI meets its NGS creditworthiness requirements. See 

Exhibit No. 10. 



IV. CONCLUSION 

Wherefore, ACN Energy, Inc., and Commerce Energy, Inc., respectfully request that the 

Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission: (1) grant this Petition; (2) authorize the transfer of 

ACN Energy's NGS license at A- l 10102 to CEI; (3) approve CEI's accompanying Application 

for an NGS license; and (4) provide any other approvals that the Commission deems necessary. 

Respectfully submitted, 

DerriclM'ncf Williamson 
Charis Mincavage 
100 Pine Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17108 
Tele.: 717.232.8000 
Fax: 717.237.5300 

Counsel to ACN Energy, Inc. and 
Commerce Energy, Inc. 
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VERIFICATION 

STATE OF Michigan 

COUNTY OF Oakland 
ss. 

i , hereby state that the facts in the foregoing Joint Petition are true and 

correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, and that I expect to be able to 

prove the same at any hearing held in this matter. I understand-the statements herein are.made, 

•subject to the penalties of .18 Pa. C.S. §4904, relating to falsification to authorities: 

Date : 4/s Ib5 
Ĵ mjies Mulcahy 
Jecretary 

ACN Enefgyi Inc 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 

VERIFICATION 

ss. 

I , Peter Weigand, hereby state that the facts in the foregoing Joint Petition are true and 

correct to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, and that I expect to be able to prove 

the same at any hearing held in this matter. I understand the statements herein are made subject 

to the penalties of 18 Pa. C.S. §4904, relating to falsification to authorities. 

Date: H^ ^ i ^ j 
Peteir Weigand^ ^ 
PreLwent C 

Commerce Energy, Inc. 
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Supply Natural Gas Service as a Natural 
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Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 

Application Docket: 

APPLICATION OF 
COMMERCE ENERGY, INC. 

Derrick Price Williamson 
Charis Mincavage 
McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC 
100 Pine Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17108 
Tele.: 717.232.8000 
Fax: 717.237.5300 

Counsel to Commerce Energy, Inc. 

Dated: April 8, 2005 



BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of Commerce Energy, Inc., for approval to offer, render, fumish, or supply natural gas 
supply services as a Natural Gas Supplier to the public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

To the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission: 

1 . IDENTITY OF THE APPLICANT: The name, address, telephone number, and FAX 
number of the Applicant are: 

Commerce Energy, Inc. 
600 Anton Boulevard 
Suite 2000 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

Telephone: 714.259.2500 
Facsimile: 714.259.2501 

Please identify any predecessor(s) ofthe Applicant and provide other names under which the 
Applicant has operated within the preceding five (5) years, including name, address, and 
telephone number. 

See Attachment A, the Joint Petition of ACN Energy, Inc., and Commerce Energy, Inc., 
for Approval to Transfer a Natural Gas Supplier License from ACN Energy, Inc., to 
Commerce Energy, Inc. ("Joint Petition"). The Joint Petition sets forth the substantive 
information regarding this issue. 

2. a. CONTACT PERSON: The name, title, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the 
person to whom questions about this Application should be addressed are: 

Derrick Price Williamson, Esq. 
Charis Mincavage, Esq. 
McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC 
100 Pine Street 
P.O. Box 1166 
Harrisburg, PA 17108-1166 

Telephone: 717.232.8000 
Facsimile: 717.237.5300 



b. CONTACT PERSON-PENNSYLVANIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY: 
The name, title, address telephone number and FAX number of the person with whom 
contact should be made by PEMA: 

Anthony Cusati, III 
Commerce Energy, Inc. 
32991 Hamilton Court 
Farmington Hills, MI 48334 

Telephone: 248.699.3481 
Facsimile: 703.935.1267 

3. a. ATTORNEY: If applicable, the name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the 
Applicant's attorney are: 

Derrick Price Williamson, Esq. 
Charis Mincavage, Esq. 
McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC 
100 Pine Street 
P.O. Box 1166 
Harrisburg, PA 17108-1166 

Telephone: 717.232.8000 
Facsimile: 717.237.5300 

b. REGISTERED AGENT: If the Applicant does not maintain a principal office in the 
Commonwealth, the required name, address, telephone number and FAX number of the 
Applicant's Registered Agent in the Commonwealth are: 

CT Corporation 
1515 Market Street, #1210 

Philadelphia, PA 19102 

Telephone: 215.563.7750 

4. FICTITIOUS NAME: (select and complete appropriate statement) 

The Applicant will be using a fictitious name or doing business as ("d/b/a "): 
Attach to the Application a copy of the Applicant's filing with the Commonwealth's 
Department of State pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, Form PA-953. 

Or 

i U The Applicant will not be using a fictitious name. 



5. BUSINESS ENTITY AND DEPARTMENT OF STATE FILINGS: (select and complete 
appropriate statement) 

The Applicant is a sole proprietor. 

If the Applicant is located outside the Commonwealth, provide proof of compliance with 15 
Pa. C.S. §4124 relating to Department of State filing requirements. 

or 

The Applicant is a: 

domestic general partnership (*) 
domestic limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8511) 
foreign general or limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §4124) 
domestic limited liability partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8201) 
foreign limited liability general partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211) 
foreign limited liability limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211) 

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as 
indicated above. 

Give name, d/b/a, and address of partners. If any partner is not an individual, identify the 
business nature of the partner entity and identify its partners or officers. 

If a corporate partner in the Applicant's domestic partnership is not domiciled in 
Pennsylvania, attach a copy of the Applicant's Department of State filing pursuant to 15 
Pa. C.S. §4124. 

or 

Al The Applicant is a: 

domestic corporation (none) 
L-XJ foreign corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §4124) 
O domestic limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8913) 
• foreign limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8981) 
• Other 

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as 
indicated above. See Attachment B. Additionally, provide a copy of the Applicant's 
Articles of Incorporation. See Attachment C, which provides a copy of the Articles of 
Incorporation of Commonwealth Energy Corporation. See also Attachment D, which 
provides an Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation referencing the name change 
from Commonwealth Energy Corporation to Commerce Energy, Inc. 



Give name and address of officers. 

Peter Weigand, President 
600 Anton Boulevard, Suite 2000, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

Richard Boughrum, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Secretary 
600 Anton Boulevard, Suite 2000, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

The Applicant is incorporated in the state of California. See Attachment C, which 
provides a copy of the Articles of Incorporation of Commonwealth Energy Corporation. 
See also Attachment D, which provides an Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation 
referencing the name change from Commonwealth Energy Corporation to Commerce 
Energy, Inc. 

6. AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS WITHIN PENNSYLVANIA: (select and 
complete appropriate statement) 

AJ Affiliate(s) of the Applicant doing business in Pennsylvania are: 
Give name and address ofthe affiliate(s) and state whether the affiliate(s) are jurisdictional 
public utilities. 

See Attachment A, which provides information regarding this issue. 

LAI Does the Applicant have any affiliation with or ownership interest in: 

(a) any other Pennsylvania retail natural gas supplier licensee or licensee applicant, 
(b) any other Pennsylvania retail licensed electric generation supplier or license 
applicant, 
(c) any Pennsylvania natural gas producer and/or marketer, 
(d) any natural gas wells or 
(e) any local distribution companies (LDCs) in the Commonwealth 

If the response to parts a, b, c, or d above is affirmative, provide a detailed description and 
explanation ofthe affiliation and/or ownership interest. 

See Attachment A for a detailed description and explanation of the affiliate interests. 

IZZI Provide specific details concerning the affiliation and/or ownership interests involving: 

(a) any natural gas producer and/or marketers, 
(b) any wholesale or retail supplier or marketer of natural gas, electricity, oil, propane 
or bther energy sources. 

Not applicable. 

AJ Provide the Pa PUC Docket Number i f the applicant has ever applied: 



(a) for a Pennsylvania Natural Gas Supplier license, or 
(b) for a Pennsylvania Electric Generation Supplier license. 

See Attachment A for information regarding this issue. 

L J If the Applicant or an affiliate has a predecessor who has done business within 
Pennsylvania, give name and address of the predecessors) and state whether the 
predecessor(s) were jurisdictional public utilities. 

Not applicable. 

or 

LAI The Applicant has no affiliates doing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which 
have done business in Pennsylvania. 

See Attachment A for information regarding this issue. 

7. APPLICANT'S PRESENT OPERATIONS: (select and complete the appropriate 
statement) 

AJ The Applicant is presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a 

natural gas interstate pipeline. 
municipal providing service outside its municipal limits, 
local gas distribution company 
retail supplier of natural gas services in the Commonwealth 
a natural gas producer 

LAJ Other. (Identify the nature of service being rendered.) 

Commonwealth Energy Company d/b/a electricAmerica, Inc., is doing business in 
Pennsylvania as an Electric Generation Supplier in the PECO Energy Company service 
territory. The entity is being renamed Commerce Energy, Inc. See Attachment A. 

or 

L J The Applicant is not presently doing business in Pennsylvania. 

8. APPLICANT'S PROPOSED OPERATIONS: The Applicant proposes to operate as a: 

A Supplier of natural gas services. 
Municipal supplier of natural gas services. 
Cooperative supplier of natural gas services. 
Broker/Marketer engaged in the business of supplying natural gas services. 
Aggregator engaged in the business of supplying natural gas services. 
Other (Describe): 



9. PROPOSED SERVICES: Generally describe the natural gas services which the Applicant 
proposes to offer. 

Commerce Energy, Inc., intends to engage in the retail sale of natural gas in the 
residential, commercial, and industrial markets in PECO Energy Company's service 
territory. See Attachment A for additional information. 

10. SERVICE AREA: Generally describe the geographic area in which Applicant proposes to 
offer services. 

Commerce Energy, Inc.'s, marketing area will initially encompass the entirety of PECO 
Energy Company's service territory. 

11. CUSTOMERS: Applicant proposes to initially provide services to: 

x 

Residential Customers 
Commercial Customers - (Less than 6,000 Mcf annually) 
Commercial Customers - (6,000 Mcf or more annually) 
Industrial Customers 
Governmental Customers 
All of above 
Other (Describe): 

12. START DATE: The Applicant proposes to begin delivering services upon receipt of its 
Natural Gas Supplier license from the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. 

13. NOTICE: Pursuant to Section 5.14 ofthe Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14, 
serve a copy of the signed and verified Application with attachments on the following: 

Irwin A. Popowsky 
Office of Consumer Advocate 
Sth Floor, Forum Place 
555 Walnut Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17120-1921 

William Lloyd 
Commerce Building, Suite 11 02 
Small Business Advocate 
300 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

Office of the Attorney General 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Department of Revenue 
Bureau of Compliance 
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946 



Any of the following Natural Gas Distribution Companies through whose transmission and 
distribution facilities the applicant intends to supply customers: 

NUI Valley Cities Gas (NUI Transportation Services) 
Mike Vogel 
POBox 31 75 
Union, NJ 07083-1975 
PH: 908.289.S000ext.5441 FAX: 908.2898.6444 

National Fuel Gas Distribution Corp. 
Paul R. Mundy 
1 0 Lafayette Square 
Buffalo, NY 14203 
PH: 716.857.7756 FAX: 716.857.7479 
e-mail: mundvD<5),natfuel.com 

Penn Fuel [North Penn Gas Company & Penn Fuel Gas] 
Jim Evans or Tom Olsen 
2 North 9th.Street 
GENA94 
Allentown, PA 18101 
PH: 610.774.7981 610.774.4975 
FAX: 610.774.5694 610.774.4975 
e-mail: ievans(2>,DaDl.com or teolson@papl.com 

The Peoples Natural Gas Company 
Joe Gregorini or Bill McKeown 
625 Liberty Avenue 
Pittsburgh, PA 15222 
e-mail: jgregorini-png.cng.com 
PH: 412.497.6851 or 412.497.6840 
FAX: 412.497.6630 

T. W. Phillips Gas and Oil Company 
Robert M. Hovanec 
205 North Main Street 
Butler, PA 16001 
PH: 724.287.2725 FAX: 724.287.5021 
e-mail: rhovanecO.twnhilliDs.com 

UGI 
Chris Brown or Bob Krieger 
P0 Box 12677 or 225 Morgantown Rd. 
Reading, PA 15222 Reading, PA 15222 
PH: 610.796.3425 PH: 610.796.3516 
FAX: 610.796.3559 

PG Energy 
Richard N. Marshall or Wendy K. Saxe 
One PEI Center 
Wilkes-Barre, PA 1871 1-0601 
e-mail: marshall@pgenergy.com or 
saxe@pgenergy.com 
PH: 570.829.8795 FAX: 570.829.8652 

Equitable Gas Company 
Antionette Litchy 
200 Allegheny Center Mall 
Pittsburgh, PA 15212-5352 
PH: 412.395.3117 FAX: 412.395.3156 

Carnegie Natural Gas Company 
Donald A. Melzer 
800 Regis Avenue 
Pittsburgh, PA 19236 
PH: 412.655.8510 ext. 331 FAX: 412.655.0335 

Columbia Gas of PA, Inc. 
Erich Evans or Heather Bauer 
200 Civic Center Drive 
Columbus, OH 43215 
PH: 614.460.6254 or 614.460.5554 
FAX: 614.460.4291 

Philadelphia Gas Works 
Eric Burgis 
i800 West Montgomery Avenue 
Philadelphia, PA 19122 
email: eric.burgis@pgworks.com 
PH: 215.684.6907 FAX: 215.684.6564 

PECO 
Kevin Carrabine 
300 Front Street Building 2 
Conshohocken, PA 19428 
PH: 610.832.6413 

Pursuant to Sections 1 .57 and 1.58 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §§1 .57 and 
1.58, attach Proof of Service ofthe Application and attachments upon the above named parties. Upon 
review of the Application, further notice may be required pursuant to-Section 5.14 of the 
Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14. 



14. TAXATION: Complete the TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT attached as Appendix B 
to this application. 

A completed Tax Certification Statement is attached hereto at Attachment E. 

15. COMPLIANCE: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of 
either, or a person identified in this Application has been convicted of a crime involving 
fraud or similar activity. Identify all proceedings, by name, subject and citation, dealing with 
business operations, in the last five (5) years, whether before an administrative body or in a 
judicial forum, in which the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a person 
identified herein has been a defendant or a respondent. Provide a statement as to the 
resolution or present status of any such proceedings. 

Commerce Energy, Inc. (Commonwealth Energy Corporation d/b/a electricaAmerica, 
Inc.), has been fully compliant as an Electric Generation Supplier in Pennsylvania. In 
July 2001, the Public Utilities Commission of California issued an order approving a 
settlement entered into by Commonwealth Energy Corporation. The settlement 
resolved issues raised in an Investigation instituted in 1999 in which Commonwealth 
Energy Corporation was the Respondent. Since that time, Commonwealth Energy 
Corporation has been fully compliant in California. As noted above, Commerce 
Energy, Inc., has served as an EGS in Pennsylvania since 1999 without sanction or 
investigation. 

16. STANDARDS, BILLING PRACTICES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 
PROVIDING SERVICE AND CONSUMER EDUCATION: All services should be priced 
in clearly stated terms to the extent possible. Common definitions should be used. All 
consumer contracts or sales agreements should be written in plain language with any 
exclusions, exceptions, add-ons, package offers, limited time offers or other deadlines 
prominently communicated. Penalties and procedures for ending contracts should be clearly 
communicated. 

a. Contacts for Consumer Service and Complaints: Provide the name, title, address, telephone 
number and FAX number of the person and an alternate person responsible for addressing 
customer complaints. These persons will ordinarily be the initial point(s) of contact for 
resolving complaints filed with Applicant, the Distribution Company, the Pennsylvania 
Public Utility Commission or other agencies. 

Barbara St. Amant 
Consumer Affairs Representative 
Commerce Energy, Inc. 
600 Anton Boulevard, Suite 2000 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

Telephone: 714.481.6583 
Facsimile: 714.258.0480 

Commerce Energy, Inc, 's, Customer Service telephone number is L800.ELECTRIC 
(1.800.35X2874) Ext 6583 



b. Provide a copy of all standard forms or contracts that you use, or propose to use, for service 
provided to residential customers. 

See Attachment F, which contains Commerce Energy, Inc.'s, current enrollment form. 

c. If proposing to serve Residential and/or Small Commercial customers, provide a disclosure 
statement. A sample disclosure statement is provided as Appendix B to this Application. 

See Attachment G, which contains Commerce Energy, Inc.'s, Disclosure Statement. 

I 7 FINANCIAL FITNESS: 

A. Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate financial fitness 
commensurate with the service proposed to be provided. Examples of such information 
which may be submitted include the following: 

• Actual (or proposed) organizational structure including parent, affiliated or subsidiary 
companies. See Attachment H. 

• Published parent company financial and credit infonnation. See Attachment I. In 
addition, the annual reports can be found on commerceenergy.com. 

• Applicant's balance sheet and income statement for the most recent fiscal year. Published 
financial information such as lOK's and lOQ's may be provided, if available. See 
Attachment I. 

• Evidence of Applicant's credit rating. Applicant may provide a copy of its Dun and 
Bradstreet Credit Report and Robert Morris and Associates financial form or other 
independent financial service reports. See Attachment J. 

• A description of the types and amounts of insurance carried by Applicant which are 
specifically intended to provide for or support its financial fitness to perform its 
obligations as a licensee. 

• Audited financial statements. See Attachment I. 

• Such other information that demonstrates Applicant's financial fitness. 

Please refer to Attachment A, which provides additional information regarding 
Commerce Energy, Inc's, financial fitness. 

In addition, ACN Energy, Inc., currently maintains a cash deposit with PECO 
Energy Company. In consideration of the transfer of ACN Energy's NGS license to 

, Commerce Energy, PECO has acknowledged that Commerce Energy meets its NGS 
creditworthiness requirements. See Attachment K. 



B. Applicant must provide the following information: 

• Identify Applicant's chief officers including names and their professional resumes. 

See Attachment L for the officers' names and professional profiles. 

• Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and FAX number of Applicant's 
custodian for its accounting records. 

Ken Robinson 
Controller 
Commerce Energy, Inc. 
600 Anton Boulevard, Suite 2000 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

Telephone: 714.259.2528 
Facsimile: 714.259.2553 

18. TECHNICAL FITNESS: To ensure that the present quality and availability of service 
provided by natural gas utilities does not deteriorate, the Applicant shall provide sufficient 
information to demonstrate technical fitness commensurate with the service proposed to be 
provided. Examples of such information which may be submitted include the following: 

• The identity of the Applicant's officers directly responsible for operations, including 
names and their professional resumes. See Attachment L. 

• A copy of any Federal energy license currently held by the Applicant. See Attachment 
M. 

• Proposed staffing and employee training commitments. As noted previously, 
Commerce Energy maintains an Electric Generation Supplier license in 
Pennsylvania, and Commerce Energy continues to meet and maintain the 
managerial requirements previously acknowledged by the Commission in granting 
this license. Moreover, as detailed in Attachment A, Commerce Energy's parent 
company is acquiring ACN Energy, Inc., which currently maintains EGS and NGS 
licenses in Pennsylvania. As a result, many of the customer service representatives 
from ACN Energy will continue with Commerce Energy. 

• Business plans. 

19. TRANSFER OF LICENSE: The Applicant understands that if it plans to transfer its license 
to another entity, it is required to request authority from the Commission for permission prior 
to transferring the license. See 66 Pa. C.S. Section 2208(D). Transferee will be required to file 
the appropriate licensing application. 
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20. UNIFORM STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND DISCLOSURE: As a condition of 
receiving a license, Applicant agrees to conform to any Uniform Standards of Conduct and 
Disclosure as set forth by the Commission. 

21. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Applicant agrees to provide the following information 
to the Commission or the Department of Revenue, as appropriate: 

a. Reports of Gross Receipts: Applicant shall report its Pennsylvania intrastate gross receipts 
to the Commission on an annual basis no later than 30 days following the end of the 
calendar year. 

Applicant will be required to meet periodic reporting requirements as may be issued by the 
Commission to fulfill the Commission's duty under Chapter 22 pertaining to reliability and to 
inform the Governor and Legislature ofthe progress of the transition to a fully competitive 
natural gas market. See Attachment N. 

22. FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS: Applicant is under a continuing obligation to amend its 
application if substantial changes occur in the information upon which the Commission relied 
in approving the original filing. 

23. FALSIFICATION: The Applicant understands that the making of false statements) herein 
may be grounds for denying the Application or, if later discovered, for revoking any authority 
granted pursuant to the Application. This Application is subject to 18 Pa. C.S. §§4903 and 
4904, relating to perjury and falsification in official matters. 

24. FEE: The Applicant has enclosed the required initial licensing fee of $350.00 payable to the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

Applicant: Commerce Energy, Inc. 
—— 

Date: 
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ss. 

AFFIDAVIT 

State of California 

County of Orange 

Peter Weigand, Affiant, being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says that: 
He is the President of Commerce Energy, Inc.; and that he is authorized to and does make this 
affidavit for said Applicant. 
That Commerce Energy, Inc., the Applicant herein, acknowledges that Commerce Energy, Inc., 
may have obligations pursuant to this Application consistent with the Public Utility Code of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 66 of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statues; or with 
other applicable statutes or regulations including Emergency Orders which may be issued 
verbally or in writing during any emergency situations that may unexpectedly develop from time 
to time in the course of doing business in Pennsylvania. 

That Commerce Energy, Inc., the Applicant herein,.asserts that it possesses the requisite 
technical, managerial, and financial fitness to render natural gas supply service within the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that the Applicant will abide by all applicable federal and 
state laws and regulations and by the decisions of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. 

That Commerce Energy, Inc., the Applicant herein, certifies to the Commission that it is subject 
to, will pay, and in the past has paid, the full amount of taxes imposed by Articles n and XI of 
the Act of March 4, 1971 (P.L. 6, No. 2), known as the Tax Reform Act of 1971 and any tax 
imposed by Chapter 22 of Title 66. The Apphcant acknowledges that failure to pay such taxes or 
otherwise comply with the taxation requirements o£ shall be cause for the Commission to revoke 
the license of the AppUcant. The Applicant acknowledges that it shall report to the Commission 
its jurisdictional natural gas sales for ultimate consumption, for the previous year or as otherwise 
required by the Commission. The Apphcant also acknowledges that it is subject to 66 Pa. C.S. 
§506 (relating to the inspection of facilities and records). 

Applicant, by filing this application waives confidentiality with respect to its state tax 
information in the possession of the Department of Revenue, regardless of the source of the 
information, and shall consent to the Department of Revenue providing that information to the 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. 

That Commerce Energy, Inc., the Applicant herein, acknowledges that it has a statutory 
obligation to conform with 66 Pa. C.S. §506, and the standards and billing practices of 52 Pa. 
Code Chapter 56. 



That the Applicant agrees to provide all consumer education materials and information in a 
timely manner as requested by the Commission's Office of Communications or other 
Commission bureaus. Materials and information requested may be analyzed by the Commission 
to meet obligations under applicable sections of the law. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his knowledge, information, and 
belief. 

ifeoF^Kqnt 

Sworn and subscribed before me this3ffr<&av ofAMfA^ 2005. 

Signature of official administrating oath 

My commission expires NANCY REMY I 
Commission # 1508490 j 
Notary PubHc - California \ 

Orange County j 
My Comm. Expires Aug 17,2008) 



AFFIDAVIT 

ss. 

State of California 

County of Orange 

Peter Weigand, Affiant, being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says that: 
He is President of Commerce Energy, Inc.; and that he is authorized to and does make this 
Affidavit for said Applicant. 

That the Applicant herein Commerce Energy, Inc., has the burden of producing information and 
supporting documentation demonstrating its technical and financial fitness to be licensed as a 
natural gas supplier pursuant to 66 Pa. C.S. 
§ 2208(cXl). 

That the AppUcant herein Commerce Energy, Inc., has answered the questions on the application 
correctly, truthfully, and completely and provided supporting documentation as required. 

That the Applicant herein Commerce Energy, Inc., acknowledges that it is under a duty to update 
information provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting 
documents. 

That the Applicant herein Commerce Energy, Inc., acknowledges that it is under a duty to 
supplement information provided in answer to questions on this appUcation and contained in 
supporting documents as requested by the Commission. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his knowledge, information, and 
belief; and that he expects said Applicant to be able to prove the same at hearing. 

Sworn and subscribed before me this ^-9/% day of ^YlA /̂̂ r^Cx , 2005. 

Signature of official administmn ng oath 

My commission expires ^ j i f j ' ? -
n ift * A iA A 

NANCY REMY 
Commisston* 1508490 
Notary Public - California 

Orange County 
MyComm-Expires Aug ! 7 
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BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of Commonweaith Energy Corporation, for approval to offer, render, fumish, or supply electricity or 
electric generation services as a Broker and/or Marketer o f Electricity and related services to the public in the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

To the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission: 

1. IDENTITY OF THE APPUCANT: The name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the 
Applicant are: 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation 
15901 Red Hilt Avenue 
Suite 100 
Tustin, CA 92780 
(714) 259-2500 
(714)259 2598 (fax) 

Please identify any predecessors) of the Applicant and provide other names under which the Applicant has 
operated within the preceding five (5) years, including name, address, and telephone number. 

None 

2. a. CONTACT PERSON: The name, title, address, telephone number, and FAX number ofthe person to whom 
questions about this Application should be addressed are: 

John Barthrop 
Chief Counsel and Secretary 
Commonwealth Energy Corporation 
15901 Red Hill Avenue 
Suite 100 
Tustin, CA 92780 
(714)259-2500 
(714) 259-2598 (fax) 

b. CONTACT PERSON-PENNSYLVANIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY: The name, title, address 
telephone number and FAX number of the person with whom contact should be made by PEMA: 

Jeff Bailey (714) 258-0470 
Operations Manager (714) 259-2516 (fax) 
15901 Red Hill Avenue 
Suite 100 
Tustin, CA 92780 

3. a. ATTORNEY: If applicable, the name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of the Applicant's 
attorney are: 

Todd S. Stewart 
Malatesta Hawke & McKeon LLP 
PO Box 1778 
100 North IQ* Street (717) 236-1300 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 (717) 236 4841 (fax) 



b. REGISTERED.AGENT: If the Applicant does not maintain a principal office in the Commonwealth, the 
required name, address, telephone number and FAX number ofthe Applicant's Registered Agent in the 
Commonwealth are: 

Corporation Service Company 

4. FICTITIOUS NAME: (select and complete appropriate statement) 

• The Applicant will be using a fictitious name or doing business as ("d/b/a"): 

Attach to the Application a copy of the Applicant's filing with the Commonwealth's Department of State 
pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, Form PA-953. 

or 

V The Applicant will not be using a fictitious name. 

5. BUSINESS ENTfTY AND DEPARTMENT OF STATE FILINGS: (select and complete appropriate 
statement) 

• The Applicant is a sole proprietor. 

If the Applicant is located outside the Commonwealth, provide proof of compliance with 15 Pa. C.S. §4124 
relating to Department of State filing requirements. 

or 

Q The Applicant is a: 

• domestic general partnership {*) 
domestic limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8511) 
foreign genera! or limited partnership (15 Pa, C.S. §4124) 
domestic limited liability partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8201) 
foreign limited liability general partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211) 
foreign limited liability limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211) 

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated above. 



Give name, d/b/a, and address of partners. If any partner is not an individual, identify the business nature of 
the partner entity and identify its partners or officers. 

Q * If a corporate partner in the Applicant's domestic partnership is not domiciled in Pennsylvania, attach 
a copy ofthe Applicant's Department of State filing pursuant to 15 Pa. C.S. §4124. 

or 

• The Applicant is a : 

Q domestic corporation (none) 
V foreign corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §4124) 
G domestic limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8913) 
G foreign limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8981) 

Q Other 

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated above. 
Additionally, provide a copy ofthe Applicant's Articles of Incorporation. 

Applicant's Articles of Incorporation and Department of State filings are attached hereto as 
Appendix A. 

Give name and address of officers. 

Frederick M. Bloom, C E O 
David Mensch, President 
Donald H. Coltrain, Senior V.P. 
Eric M. Juarez, CFO and COO 
John A. Barthrop, Secretary 

15901 Red Hill Avenue, Suite 100, Tustin, CA 92780 
15901 Red Hill Avenue, Suite 100, Tustin, CA 92780 
15901 Red Hill Avenue, Suite 100, Tustin, CA 92780 
15901 Red Hill Avenue, Suite 100, Tustin, CA 92780 
15901 Red Hill Avenue, Suite 100, Tustin, CA 92780 

The Applicant Is incorporated in the state of California. 

6. AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS WITHIN PENNSYLVANIA: (select and complete appropriate 
statement) 

• Affiliate(s) ofthe Applicant doing business in Pennsylvania are: 



Give name and address of the affiliate(s) and state whether the affi!iate(s) are jurisdictional public utilities. 

Ql If the Applicant or an affiliate has a predecessor who has done business within Pennsylvania, give 
name and address of the predecessor(s) and state whether the predecessors) were jurisdictional 
public utilities. 

or 

V The Applicant has no affiliates doing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which have done 
business in Pennsylvania. 

7. APPLICANT'S PRESENT OPERATIONS: (select and complete the appropriate statement) 

• The Applicant is presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a 

vertically-integrated provider of generation, transmission, and distribution services, 
municipal electric corporation providing service outside its municipal limits. 

• electric cooperative 
Q local gas distribution company 
• nonintegrated provider of electric generation, transmission or distribution services. 
• Other. (Identify the nature of service being rendered.) 

or 

V The Applicant is not presently doing business In Pennsylvania. 

8. APPLICANT'S PROPOSED OPERATIONS: The Applicant proposes to operate as a: 

Q Generator and supplier of electric power. 
Municipal generator and supplier of electric power. 

• Electric Cooperative and supplier of electric power 
V Broker/Marketer engaged In the business of supplying electricity. 

Aggregator engaged in the business of supplying electricity 
• Other (Describe): 

9. PROPOSED SERVICES: Generally describe the electric services or the electric generation services which 
the Applicant proposes to offer. 

Applicant intends to engage in the business of selling electricity to residential, commercial, industrial 
and governmental customers in the Southeastern Pennsylvania region. Applicant also expects to sell 
energy efficiency products, and to engage in performance contracting for demand side energy 
management. 



10. SERVICE AREA: Generally describe the geographic area in which Applicant proposes to offer services. 

Applicant proposes to serve in the region of southeastern Pennsylvania. 

11. CUSTOMERS: Applicant proposes to initially provide services to: 

• Residential Customers 
G l Commercial Customers - (25 kW and Under) 
• Commercial Customers - (Over 25 kW) 

• Industrial Customers 
Q Governmental Customers 
V All of above 
Q Other (Describe): 

12 FERC FILING: Applicant has: 

Q Filed an Application with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission to be a Power Marketer. 

V Received approval from F E R C to be a Power Marketer at Docket No. ER97-4253-000. 

A copy of the F E R C order granting certificate is attached hereto as Appendix B. 

• Not applicable 

13. START DATE: The Applicant proposes to begin delivering services on September 15,1999. 
(approximate date). 

•14. NOTICE: Pursuant to Section 5.14 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14, serve a copy of the 
signed and verified Application with attachments on the following: 

Irwin A. Popowsky Office ofthe Attorney General 
Consumer Advocate Bureau of Consumer Protection 
1425 Strawberry Square Strawberry Square, 14th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 Hanisburg, PA 17120 

Bernard A. Ryan, Jr. Commonwealth of Pennsyivania 
Commerce Building, Suite 1102 Department of Revenue 
Small Business Advocate Bureau of Compliance 

; 300 North Second Street Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 



Any of the following Electric Distribution Companies through whose transmission and distribution facilities 
the applicant intends to supply customers: 

Frank M. Nadolny, General 
Manager of Regulatory Affairs Unit 
Duquesne Light Company 
411 Seventh Street 
P.O. Box 1930 
Pittsburgh, PA 15230-1930 

(Metropolitan Edison Company or Pennsylvania Electric 
Company) 
Blaine W. Uplinger, Jr., Director of Governmental and 
Regulatory Affairs 
GPU Energy 
100 APC Building 
800 North third Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17102-2025 

Thomas P, Hill, Vice President and Controller 
PECO Energy Company 
2301 Market Street 
Philadelphia; PA 19101-8699 

John P. Litz, Division Controller 
UGI Utilities, Inc. 
Electric Division 
400 Stewart Road 
P.O. Box 3200 
Hanover Industrial Estates 
Wilkes-Barre, PA 18773-3200 

Paul E. Russell, Associate 
General Counsel 
Pennsylvania Power & Light 
Company 
Two North Ninth Street 
Allentown, PA 18108-1179 

Stephen L. Feld, Attorney 
Pennsylvania Power Company 
First Energy Corporation 
76 South Main Street 
Akron, OH 44308 

John L. Munsch, Attorney 
Allegheny Power 
800 Cabin Hill Drive 
Greensburg, PA 15601-1689 

Pursuant to Sections 1.57 and 1.58 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §§1.57 and 1.58, attach 
Proof of Service of the Application and attachments upon the above named parties. Upon review of the 
Application, further notice may be required pursuant to Section 5.14 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. 
Code §5.14. 

15. TAXATION: Complete the TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT. 

The completed tax certification is attached hereto as Appendix C. 

16. COMPLIANCE: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a person 
identified in this Application has been convicted of a crime involving fraud or similar activity. Identify all 
proceedings, by name, subject and citation, dealing with business operations, in the last five (5) years, 
whether before an administrative body or in a judicial forum, in which the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor 
of either, or a person identified herein has been a defendant or a respondent. Provide a statement as to the 
resolution or present status of any such proceedings. 

Neither applicant nor any Individual identified herein has been convicted of a crime involving 
fraud or similar activity. 



17. STANDARDS, BILLING PRACTICES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PROVIDING SERVICE AND 
CONSUMER EDUCATION: Electricity should be priced in clearly stated terms to the extent possible. 
Common definitions shouid be used. AH consumer contracts or sales agreements should be written in plain 
language with any exclusions, exceptions, add-ons, package offers, limited time offers or other deadlines 

. prominently communicated. Penalties and procedures for ending contracts should be clearly communicated, 

a. Contacts for Consumer Service and Complaints: Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and 
FAX number of the person and an alternate person responsible for addressing customer complaints. 
These persons wili ordinarily be the initial point(s) of contact for resolving complaints filed with Applicant, 
the Electric Distribution Company, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission or other agencies. 

Martin Charioff, Director, Sales, 15901 Red Hill Ave., Tustin, California 92780 
Telephone: (714) 259-2500 Fax Number: (714) 259-6572 

b. Provide a copy of all standard forms or contracts that you use, or propose to use, for service provided to 
residential customers. 

A copy of Applicant's standard "Electric Service Agreement" Is attached hereto as Appendix D 

c. If proposing to serve Residential and/or Small Commercial (under 25 kW) customers, provide a disclosure 
statement. A sample disclosure statement is provided as Appendix C to this Application. 

A copy of Applicant's Sample Disclosure Statement for residential customers Is attached 
hereto as Appendix E. 

18. BONDING: In accordance with 66 PA. C.S. Section 2809(C) (1X0, the Applicant is: 

V Furnishing a copy of initial bond , letter of credit or proof of bonding to the Commission in the amount of 
$250,000. 

A copy of Applicant's bond in the amount of $250,000 is attached hereto as Appendix F. 

• Furnishing proof of other Initial security for Commission approval, to ensure financial responsibility. 

Filing for a modification to the $250,000 and furnishing a copy of an initial bond, letter of credit or proof of 

bonding to the Commission for the amount of $ . Applicant is required to provide information 
supporting an amount less than $250,000. 

At the conclusion of Applicant's first year of operation it is the intention of the Commission to tie security 
bonds to a percentage of Applicant's gross receipts resulting from the sale of generated electricity consumed 
in Pennsylvania. The amount ofthe security bond will be reviewed and adjusted on an annual basis. 

19. FINANCIAL FITNESS: 

A. Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate financial fitness commensurate with the 
service proposed io be provided. Examples of such information which may be submitted include the 
following: 



• Applicant's balance sheet and income statement for the most recent fiscal year. Published financiai 
infonnation such as lOK's and lOQ's may be provided, if available. 

A copy of Applicant's most recent Financial Statement is attached hereto as Appendix G. 

• Evidence of Applicant's credit rating. Applicant may provide a copy of its Dun and Bradstreet Credit 
Report and Robert Morris and Associates financial form or other independent financial service reports. 

A copy of a Dunn and Bradstreet report on Applicant is attached hereto as Appendix H. 

.• A description of the types and amounts of insurance carried by Applicant which are specifically intended 
to provide for or support its financial fitness to perform its obligations as a licensee, 

A description of Applicant's Insurance coverage is attached hereto as Appendix I. 

B. Applicant must provide the following information: 

• Identify Applicant's chief officers including names and their professional resumes. 

A list of Applicant's Chief Officers, including their professional resumes is attached 
hereto as Appendix J . 

• Provide the name, title, address, telephone number and FAX number of Applicant's custodian for its 
. accounting records. 

Eric Juarez, CFO 
15901 Red Hill Avenue 
Suite 100 
Tustin, CA 92780 
(714) 259-2541 
(714-259-2563 (fax) 

20. TECHNICAL FITNESS: To ensure that the present quality and availability of service provided by electric 
utilities does not deteriorate, the Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate technical fitness 
commensurate with the service proposed to be provided. Examples of such information which may be 
submitted include the following: 

• The identity of the Applicant's officers directly responsible for operations, including names and their 
professional resumes. 

Jeff Bailey 
Operations Manager 
15901 Red Hill Avenue 
Suite 100 
Tustin, CA 92780 
(714) 258-0470 
(714) 259-2516 (fax) 



Proposed staffing and employee training commitments 

Business plans 

Documentation of membership in ECAR, MAAC or other regional reliability councils shail be submitted if 
applicable to the scope and nature of the applicant's proposed services. 

An affidavit stating that you will adhere to the reliability protocols of the North American Electric Reliability 
Council, the appropriate regional reliability council(s), and the Commission, and that you agree to comply 
with the operational requirements of the control areafs) within which you provide retail service. 

A copy of Applicant's reliability Affidavit is attached hereto as Appendix K. 

21. TRANSFER OF LICENSE: The Applicant understands that if it plans to transfer its license to another entity, 
it is required to request authority from the Commission for permission prior to transferring the license. See 66 
Pa. C.S. Section 2809(D). Transferee will be required to file the appropriate licensing application. 

22. ASSESSMENT: The Applicant acknowledges that Title 66, Chapter 5, Section 510 grants to the 
Commission the right to make assessments to recover regulatory expenses and that as a supplier of 
electricity or an electric generation supplier it will be assessed under that section of the Pennsylvania Code. 
The Applicant also acknowledges that the continuation of Its license as a supplier of electricity or an electric 
generation supplier will be dependent upon the payment of all prior years assessments. 

23. UNIFORM STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND DISCLOSURE: As a condition of receiving a license. 
Applicant agrees to conform to any Uniform Standards of Conduct and Disclosure as set forth by the 
Commission. 

24. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Applicant agrees to provide the following information to the Commission or 
the Department of Revenue, as appropriate: 

a. Reports of Gross Receipts: Applicant shall report its Pennsylvania intrastate gross receipts to the 
Commission on a quarterly and year to date basis no later than 30 days following the end of the quarter. 

b. The Treasurer or other appropriate officer of Applicant shail transmit to the Department of Revenue by 
March 15, an annual report, and under oath or affirmation, of the amount of gross receipts received by 
Applicant during the prior calendar year. 

c Applicant shall report to the Commission the following information on an annual basis: 

• the percentages of total electricity supplied by each fuel source 

Applicant will be required to meet periodic reporting requirements as may be issued by the 
Commission to fulfill the Commission's duty under Chapter 28 pertaining to reliability and 
to infonn the Governor and Legislature of the progress of the transition to a fully 
competitive electric market. 



25. FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS: Applicant is under a continuing obligation to amend its application if 
substantial changes occur in the information upon which the Commission relied in approving the original filing. 

26. FALSIFICATION: The Applicant understands that the making of false statement(s) herein may be grounds 
for denying the Application or, if later discovered, for revoking any authority granted pursuant to the 
Application. This Application is subject to 18 Pa. C.S. §§4903 and 4904, relating to perjury and falsification in 
official matters. 

27. FEE: The Applicant has enclosed the required initial licensing fee of $350. 

App^nt : : Comjnonweanh ^ e c g v C o r p . 

By:. 
Aoom 

Title: C h i e f / E x e c u t i v e O f f i c e r 

Date: June 29 , 1999 



AFFIDAVIT 

State of California 

ss. 

'County'Of Orange 

Frederick M. Bloom, Affiant, being duly (swom/affirmed) according to law. deposes and says that: 

He is the Chief Executive Officer of CommonweaJih Energy Corporation; That he/she is authorized to 

and does make this affidavit for said Applicant; 

That the Applicant herein Commonweahh Energy Corporation has ihe burden of producing information and supporting 
documentation demonstraring its technical and financial fitness to be licensed as an electric generation supplier pursuant 
to 66 Pa. C.S. § 2809 (B). 

That the Applicant herein Commonwealth Energy Corporation has answered the questions on ihe application correctly, 
truthfully, and completely and provided supponlng documentation as required. 

That the Applicant heroin Commonweaith Energy Corporation acknowledges. thai it is under a duty to updaw 
infonnation provided tn answer to questions on this applicarion and contained in supporting documents. 

That the Applicant herein Commonwealth Energy Corporation acknowledges that it is under a duty to supplement 
infonnation provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents as requested by 
the Commission. 

That the facts above set forth are true and corrtCTKWbe-best of his/herjapwledge, infonnation, and belief, and that 
he/she expects said Applicant to be able to prpvtf^fic same aj hearing. 

Sworn and subscribed before me this fe day nf A X K K J L , . 19^3. 

A 

Signature orofficial administering oath 

My commission expires 
aVSE RENEE LUDWtCK 
Commission 1 1134586 

NotoiY PubUc — CoMofrrfa 
Son BemorcSno County 

My Comm. Expires Apr 17.2001 



AFFIDAVIT 

State of California 

ss. 

County of Orange 

Frederick M. Bloom, Affiant, being duly [sworn/affirmed] according to law. deposes and says that; 

He is the Chief Executive Officer of Commonwealth Energy Corporation; That he is authorized to 

and does make this affidavit for said Applicant; 

That Commonwealth Energy Corporation, the Applicant herein, acknowledges that Applicant may have obligations 
pursuani to this Application consistent with the Public Utility Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 66 of 
the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes; or with other applicable statutes or rcgulau'ocs including Emergency Orders 
which may be issued verbally or in writing during any emergency situations that may unexpectedly develop from time 
to time in the course of doing business in Pennsylvania. 

That Commonwealth Energy Corporation, the Applicant herein, asserts that [he/she/it] possesses the requisite technical, 
managerial, and financial fitness to render electric service within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that the 
Applicant will abide by all applicable federal and state laws and regulations and by the decisions ofthe Pennsylvania 
Public Utility Commission. 

TTiat Commonwealth Energy Corporation, the Applicant herein, certifies to the Commission that it is subject to and will 
pay, the full amount of taxes imposed by Articles II and XI of the Act of March 4, 1971 (P.L. 6, No. 2 >, Jcnown as the 
Tax Reform Act of 1971 and any tax Imposed by Chapter 28 of Title 66. Tlie Applicant acknowledges thai failure to 
pay such taxes or otherwise comply with the taxation requirements of Chapter 28, shall be cause for the Commission to 
revoke the license ofthe Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that it shall report to the Commission its jurisdictional 
Gross Receipts and power sales for ultimate consumption, for the previous year or as otherwise required by the 
Commission. The Applicant also acknowledges that it is subject to 66 Pa. C.S. §506 (relating to the inspection of 
facilities and records). 

As provided by 66 Pa. C.S. §2810 (C)(6Xtv)> Applicant, by filing of this application waives confidentiality with respect 
to its state tax infonnation In the possession of ihe Department of Revenue, regardless ofthe source ofthe information, 
and shall consent to the Department of Revenue providing that tnfdrmation to the Pennsylvania Public Utility 
Commission. 

That Commonwealth Energy Corporation, the Applicant herein, acknowledges that it has a statutory obligation to 
conform with 66 Pa. C.S. §506, §2807 (C)..§2807(DX2), §2809(B) and the standards and billing practices of 52 PA. 
Code Chapter 56. 



That the Applicant agrees to provide all consumer education materials and information in a timely manner as requested 
by the Bureau of Public Liaison or other Commission bureaus. MateriaJs and information requested may be analyzed 
by the Commission to meet obligations under applicable sections of the law. 

Thai the facts above set forth are true and coirec 
belief. 

'frect to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and 

Sworn and subscribed before me this ffi^ day of (\\AALSL . 1 Q^Q. 

Signature qPyfficial administeringoath 

My commission expires 

I 
• - RcN;,. ujDWtCK 

commission g 113458̂  

v t v 5 n B w [ ? 0 « * » County ? 



AFFIDAVIT 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 

ss. 

County of Dauphin 

Todd S. Stewart, Affiant, being duly [swom/affirmed] according to law, deposes and says that: 

He is the Attorney for Commonwealth Energy Corporation; 

That he is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant; 

That Commonwealth Energy Corporation, the Applicant herein certifies that it has 
caused the notice of the filing of its electric generation-license application to be 
published in The Philadelphia Inquirer on TH I y q , 1 QQQ : 

That Commonwealth Energy Corporation, the Applicant will submit to the Commission 
the proof of publication from each newspaper in which notice of the application filing was 
published as soon as it is available. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, 
information, and belief, and that he/she expects said Applicant to be able to prove the 
same at hearing. 

Signature of Affiant 

Sworn and subscribed before me th is 3mh , day of P'o-x-if 1 

1 
Signature of official administering'path 

My commission expires, 
Wendy A. Witmyer, Notary Public 

OnverlVp.. Perry CounW 
My Commission Exptres Jan. 4 ^ 

Memhe rw*.,^ - ***** 



PENNSYLVANIA 
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

NOTICE 
Application of Commonweaith Energy Corporation For Approval To Offer, Render, Fumish Or 

Supply Electricity Or Electric Generation Services, A Marketer/Broker Engaged In The Business 0/ 
Supplying Electricity, To The Public In The Commonwealth Of Pennsylvania, Docket No. A-UOll?. 

On July 1, 1999, Commonwealth Energy Corporation filed an appUcation with the Pennsylvania 
Public Uiility Commission ("PUC") for a license to supply electricity or electric generation services as (1) 
a generator and supplier of electric power, (2) a broker/marketer engaged in the business of supplying 
electricity, and (3) an aggregator engaged in the business of supplying electricity. Coraraonwealth 
Energy Corporation proposes to sell electricity and related services in southeastern Pennsylvania under 
the provisions of the new Electricity Generation Customer Choice and Competition Act. 

The PUC may consider this application without a hearing. Protests directed to the technical or 
financial fitness of Commonwealth Energy Corporation may be filed within 15 days of the date of this 
notice with the Secretary of the PUC, P.O. Box 3265, Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265. You should send 
copies of any protest to Todd S. Stewart, attorney at the address listed below. Please include the PUC's 
"docket number" on any correspondence, which is 
A- l 10117. 

By and through Counsel: Todd S. Stewart 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation 
P.O. Box 1778 

Harrisburg, PA 17101 
(717)236-1300 
(717)236-4841 

EGS Lioctuc Apptiation 
PA PUC Document *: 119647 20 
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E N D O R S E D 
ARTICLES Of INCORPORATION ^ ^ J t u L i L ^ 

COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

AUG t 5 1997 
ARTICLE ONE JOKES, fctrtlary of Stiia 

The name of.this corporation is: 

COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

ARTICLE TWO 

The purpose of this corporation is to engage In any lawful act or activity for which a corporation 
may be organized under the Genera/ Corporation Law c f California, other than the banking business, 
trust company business or the practice of a profession permitted to be incorporated by the California 
Corporations Code. 

ARTICLE THREE 

The name and address in the State of California of this corporation's initial agent for service of 

process Is: 

GARY C. WYKIDAL 
245 Fischer Ave., Ste. A-1 

Costa Mesa. CA 92626 

ARTICLE FOUR 

This corporation Is authorized to issue two classes of shares which shall be designated 
"common ' shares and "preferred" shares. The total amount of common shares that may be Issued ts 
f i f ty million (50,OO0,OO0i. The total number of preferred shares that this corporation shall have the 
authority to Issue is one million (1,000,0001. Said preferred shares shall have the rights, privileges and 
preferences as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

ARTICLE rIVE 

Tha Ifabiftty of the Directors of the Corporation for monetary damages shafl be eliminated to the 
fullest extent permissible under California law. 

ARTICLE SIX 

This corporation Is authorised to provide Indemnification of agents (as defined In Section 317 
of the California Corporations Code) for breach of duty to the corporation and ks shareholders through 
bylaw provisions or through agreements wi th tha agents, or both, In excess of the Indemnification 
expressly permitted by Section 317 of the California Corporations Code, subject to the limits of such 
excess indemnification set forth in Section 204 of the CorpQ^a^oh-Code. 

DATED: August 14, 1997 

D: \OOMM0lI\XJtTJCLrS 

APPENDIX A 



CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT 
OF 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
OF 

COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

The undersigned certifiy thai; 

1. 

ENDORSED - " F I U E D 
to SPif0 2f l b * Secretary of State 

. FEB 1 9 1999 

BILL JONES, Secretey of State' 

They are the president and secretary, respectively of COMMONWEALTH 
ENERGY CORPORATION, a California corporation. 

2. Article Four of the Articles of Incorporation of this corporation is amended to 
read as follows: 

This corporadon is authorized to issue two classes of shares which shall 
be designated "common" shares and "preferred" shares. The total amouni of 
common shares that may be issued is fifty million (50,000,000). The total number 
of preferred shares that this corporadon shall have the authority to issue is ten 
million (10,000,000). Said preferred shares shall have the rights, privileges and 
preferences as decemuned by the board of directors from time to time. 

3. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporadon has been duly approved by 
the board of directors. 

4. The foregoing amendment of Articles of Incorporadon has been duly approved by 
the required vote of shareholders in accordance with Section 902 and Section 903, 
California Corporations Code. The total number of outstanding common shares 
of the corporation is 10,939,931. The number of shares voting in favor of the 
amendment equaled or exceeded the vote required. The percentage vote required 
was more than 50%. The total number of outstanding preferred shares of the 
corporation is 919,000. The number of shares voting in favor of the amendment 
equaled or exceeded the vote required, Ihe percentage vote required was more 
than 50%. 

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 
matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct of our own knowledge. 

Date: December 31, 1998 

'/President 

/ J
 JO> 

Donnie E. Price, Secretary 
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Microfilm Number Rled wiih the Deportment of State on 

Entity Number 

Secretary of the Commonweolth 

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 
CMCB:1S-4124/<124 (RevSO) 

Indicate typo of corporotlon (check one): 

Y Foreign Business Corporation 115 Po,C.S. § 4124) •£ 

Foreign Nonprofit Cofporation (15 Pa.C^. § 6124) 

'~~) 

In compHonce with the requirements of the applicable provisions of 15 Pa.CS. (relating to corporations ancl 
unincorporated associatioris) the underaigned assodalion hereby states that: 

I . The name of the corporation b: Commonvealth Energy Corpo ra t i on 

2. The name which the corporation adopts for use In this Commonwealth H (complete only when the corporation must 
adopt a corporate desfgnafor for use In Penraytvania): 

Coramonveaith Energy Corpo ra t i on 

3. (If the name set forth In paragraph 1 or 2 Is not available for use in this Commonwealth, complete the following): 

The fictitious name which tho corporation adopts for use in transacting business in this Commonwealth Is: 

The corporation shall do business 'n Pennsyivanta only under such RcfltJous name pumjanf to the attached resolution of 
the board of dlreclors under the applicable provisions of 15 Pa.CS.'(relating to corporcrtions and unincorporated 
associations) and the altached form DSCfi;54-311 (AppGcotton for Registration of ficiitious Name). 

4. The name of the jurisdiction under the laws af which the corporation Is Incorporated Is: 

C a l i f o r n i a • 

5. Tbe address of Its principal office under Ihe laws of the jurisdiction in which it Is incorporated Is: 

15901 Red H i l l Ave., Suite 100 XnaiJjl C a l i f o r n i a 92780 
Number and Street City State Zip 

6. The (a) address of this corporation's proposed registered office In this Commonwealth or (b) name of its commercial 
registered offlce provider and the county of venue is; 

(a) 
Number and Streei CHy State Tip County 

(bj c/o: Corporation Service Company Dauphin 
Name of Commercial Registered Office Provider County 

For a corporation represented by a commerciai registered office orovkJer, tne county In (01 shall be deemed the county In wtitch the 
corporation ii located for venue and official pubBcotton purpofei. 



7. (Ohtefcon«orthafbltowfng)i 

, % (Bwtno— eorporation): Th« corporation IR H corpofatlon Inoarporetetf (or a purpose or purpoif i invotvlng pocuntary 

iKonprotn eorpoftflon): The oorporecon ts a corpomflcn mcorporatod for a purpoM or purpoa«t not InvQiving 
pttunltry prolft, fncfdwtbif or ctfierw{s«. 

IN TEBTlMONY VNHEREOF, the undentgned oorporatfon ha« caused thi« AppBc«tfon for a C«rtmc«t« of Authortty lo bo 
sigitod by a duly authortwd omct (hmof thlt ?qth d«y of June , 19 99 . 

COMMOjiLW,EALTH E N E R G Y C O R P O R A T I O N 
(Nam* &f ibofpomtt̂ i) 

F r e d Blo6m (»gS*tor«5 

TfTLg: C h i e f E x e c u t i v e Of f icer . 



FEDERAL ENEHGY REGUUATOHY COMMISSION 

OCT 0 7 iW7_ 

To: Commonwealth Energy Corporacton Docket Ho. ER97-42S3-000 

You submitted Cor t i l i n g with the Commission a rate schedule 
under which you w i l l engage in wholesale e l e c t r i c power and 
energy tranaactlona aa a marketer. Pursuant: to a u t h o r i t y 
delegated to the Director, Division of Rate Applications, under 
18 C.F.R.. 375.308, your submittal ia accepted Cor t i l i n g and I s 
degignated and made eECective aa shown below. 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation 
Rate Schedule FERC No. 1 EfCective: Date oC This Order 

Ajiy waivers requested i n your a p p l i c a t i o n ace granted or 
denied along with the authorizations and subject to the 
c u n d i t i o n s p c o v i d e d i n t h e Appendix. 

Under 18 C.F.R. 385.7.10, i n t e r v e n t i o n s are t i m e l y iC made 
w i t h i n the t ime p r e s c r i b e d by the S e c r e t a r y . Under 13 C.F.R. 
385.211, the C i l i n g oC a t i m e l y mot ion t o i n t e r v e n e makes the 
movant a p a r t y to the proceeding, i t no answer i n o p p o s i t i o n i s 
Etled w i t h i n CiCteen days. The C i l i n g o t a t i m e l y n o t i c e o t 
i n t e r v e n t i o n makes a Sta te Commiseion a p a r t y to the proceading. . 

Th i s a c t i o n does not c o n s t i t u t e a p p r o v a l at any s e r v i c e , 
race, charge, c l a s a i C i c a t i o n , o r any r u l e , r e g u l a t i o n , c o n t r a c t , 
or p r a c t i c e a C t e c t i n g such ra te o r s e r v i c e p r o v i d e d Cor i n the 
t i l e d documents; nor s h a l l such a c t i o n be deemed as r e c o g n i t i o n 
of any c la imed c o n t r a c t u a l r i g h t o r o b l i g a t i o n aCCecting o r 
r e l a t i n g t o such s e r v i c e or r a t e ; and such a c t i o n i s w i t h o u t 
p r e jud i ce t o any Cindings o r orders which have teen o r may 
horeaCter be made by the Commission i n any proceeding now pending 
or h e r e a f t e r i n s t i t u t e d by o r a g a i n s t the a p p l i c a n t . 

This o rde r c o n s t i t u t e s Cinal agency a c t i o n . Requests Cor 
rehearing by the Commission may be C i l e d w i t h i n 30 days o£ the 
date oC issuance oC t h i s o rder , pursuant t o 19 CFR 385.713. 

S i n c e r e l y , 

Donald J . G e l i u a n , D i r e c t o r 
D i v i s i o n oE Rate A p p l i c a t i o n s 

APPENDIX B 



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

APPENDIX B 

TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

A completed Tax Certification Statement must accompany all applications for new licenses, renewals or transfers. Failure to provide the requested infonnation 
and/or any outstanding state income, corporation, and Kales (including failure to file or register) will cause your application to be rejected. If additional space is 
needed, please use white 81/2" x 11" paper. Type or print all information requested. 

1. CORPORATE OR APPLICANT NAME -

Commonwealth Energy C o r p o r a t i o n 

2. BUSINESS PHONE NO. ( 714) 2 5 9 - 2 5 4 1 
CONTACT PERSONCS) FOR TAX ACCOUNTS: 
E r i c J u a r e z 

3. TRADE/FICTITIOUS NAME OF ANY) 

4. LICENSED ADDRESS (STREET. RURAL ROUTE, P.O. BOX NO.) 

15901 Red H i l l Avenue, S u i t e 100 

(POST OFFICE) STATE) (ZIP) 

T u s t i n C a l i f o r n i a 92780 
5. TYPE OF ENTITY • SOLE PROPRIETOR • PARTNERSHIP 0 CORPORATION 

8. LEST OWNER(S), GENERAL PARTNERS, OR CORPORATE OFFICER(S) 

NAME (PRINT) 

F r e d e r i c k M. Bloom/ CEO 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

I 1 ,1 " | _ J I " I 
NAME (PRINT) 

D a v i d .Mensch , P r e s i d e n t 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) 

E r i c M. J u a r e z , CFO 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

I I I - I I I - I L 
NAME (PRINT) 

John A. Bart h r o p , S e c r e t a r y 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

_J I I " 1 I I - I 
NAME (PRINT) SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

9. LIST THE FOLLOWING STATE TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS. fALL ITEMS: A. B. AND C MUST BE COMPLETED). 

A. SALES TAX LICENSE f8 DIGITSl APPLICATION 
PENDING N/A 

Q • 

C. CORPORATE BOX NUMBER 17 DIGITS) APPLICATION 
PENDING N/A 

• • 0 8 0 

B. EMPLOYER ID ("EIN) (9 DIGITS: APPLICATION 
PENDING N/A 

3 3 - 0 7 6 9 5 5 • • 

10. pp you have PA employes either resident or non-resident? • YES gl NO 
11. Do you own any assets or have an office in PA? • YES H NO 
NAME AND PHONE NUMBER OF PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR FILING TAX RETURNS 

D a v i d Reed .Dav id Re,p>d 
PA SALES AND USE TAX 

C o n t r o l 1 
EMPLOYER TAXES 

C n n t r n l 1 p r 

J l a ^ i i i Reed 

PHONE ( 7 1 4 ) 259-2528, PHONE ( 7 1 4 ) 259 -2528 

CORPORATE TAXES 
C n n h r o l 1 p r 

PHONE ( 7 1 4 ) 2 5 9 - 2 5 2 8 

Telephone inquiries about this form may be directed to the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue at the following numbers: 
(717) 772-2673, TDD# (717) 772-2252 (Hearing Impaired Only) 

EGS Uoensc AppUcation 
PA PUC Document *: 119WT APPENDIX C 



C O M M O N W E A L T H 
E N E R G Y C O R P O R A T I O N 

CORPORATE OFFICE 
15901 Red Hill Avenue, #100 
Tustin, CA 92780 
(800)962-4855 (714)258-0470 

FIELD OFFICE 
5405 Morehouse Drive, #100 
San Diego, CA 92121 
(888) 867-7757 (619)546-1105 

FIELD OFFICE 
74-361 Highway 111, 85 
Palm Desert. CA 92211 
(800)994-0007 (760)862-9002 

ELECTRIC SERVICE AGREEMENT 

THIS ELECTRICITY SUPPLY AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into by and between 
Commonwealth Energy Corporation ("Commonwealth"), a California corporation, and 
J ^C'Customer"), with service to commence on service commencement date 
("Effective Date"), 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Commonweaith is in the business of providing electricity and related services to 
direct access Customers in California and is licensed to do so by the California Public Utilities 
Commission (ESP #1092) and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC); 

" WHEREAS, Customer is a commercial or industrial enterprise and controls the purchase of 
electricity and related services for the Account(s) ["Account(s)"] listed on Attachment A to this 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Customer desires to purchase electricity and related services, from Commonwealth 
in direct access transactions subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; 

MOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth in this Agreement, 
Commonwealth and Customer agree as follows: 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. FULL REQUIREMENTS. Commonwealth shall sell and deliver and Customer shail purchase and 
• receive one-hundred percent (100%) of the electricity requirements for the Account(s) to the extent 

that those requirements are not already met by Customer's existing on-site generation. 

2. EXCLUSIVE AGENT. Commonwealth shall be Customer's exclusive electricity purchasing agent 
for the term of this Agreement. 

Page 1 of 8 
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3. ENERGY CONSUMPTION INFORMATION. Customer hereby authorizes Commonwealth to obtain 
Customer's current and historical electricity cost and usage data, payment and credit history, and 
other data reasonably necessary for Commonweaith to provide electric service pursuant to this 
Agreement. Customer agrees,, upon request, to provide Commonwealth with facility descriptions, 
operating information, meter identification numbers and locations, and such other information 
available to Customer as Commonwealth may reasonably require to provide electric service 
pursuant to this Agreement. Except as otherwise specifically authorized by Customer, or as 
required by applicable law, regulation, or court order, Commonwealth shall maintain, in confidence, 
all. such information. 

4. SERVICE PROGRAM ELECTION. Customer shall pay Commonwealth for all electricity delivered 
by Commonwealth and received by Customer pursuant to the payment provisions in section . 
Customer shall accept delivery of electricity from Commonwealth pursuant to the terms of the 
service programs indicated below: 

A. Qualified Customer Credit Subaccount Program (<20 kW): All accounts below. 20 kW 
demand rate schedule which are eligible for an "Energy Credit" through a cents per kilowatt-
hour (kWh) rebate shall receive 100% California-based, Green-e, certified renewable power. 
The price for electricity delivered to Customer in a billing cycle shall be equal to the resulting 
sum, (subtrahend) which is 1 cent above the Average Power Exchange Energy Charge for such 
period less the referenced "Energy Credit". 

The amount of Credit shall be advanced to Customer on the bill as part of the calculation 
method. (For example: if the existing tariff is 10 cents per kWh and the Credit is 1.5 cents per 
kWh, the tariff for bill calculation will be calculated at (10 cents + 1 cent -1.5" cents) = 9.5 cents 
per kWh, a savings of 0.5 cent per kWh. 

B. Qualified Customer Credit Subaccount Program (>20kW, Max. $1.000/meter/vr.): All 
accounts above 20 kW demand rate schedule which are eligible for a "Energy Credit" through a 

• cents per kWh rebate shall receive 100% California-based, Green-e, certified renewable power. 
Green-e certified power and Credits available up to 66,667 kWh of energy usage. The price for 
electricity delivered to Customer in a billing cycle shall be 1 cent above the Average Power 
Exchange Energy Charge for such period less the "Energy Credit'. A cap or maximum of 
$1,000 per meter per year shall apply at which time the cents per kWh rebate shall suspend. 

Should the cents per kWh rebate change for Service Program A or B, Customer has the options 
upon 30 day written notice to (i) terminate, (ii) seek new price or (iii) default back to Utility 
Distribution Company (UDC). See Attachment B for rate eligibility. 
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C. Hvdropower Electric Program (>20 kW): All accounts above 20 kW demand rate schedule 
which are not eligible for "Energy Credit" through a cents per kilowatt-hour (kWh) rebate shall 
receive hydropower generated electric service at a price equal to the Average Power Exchange 
Energy Charge for such period, essentially at an identical price to the monthly UDC tariff. 

Commonwealth reserves the right to substitute alternative reasonably available clean power 
should the company be unable to supply exclusiveiy hydropower. Alternatives may include 
natural gas or PX system power. At all times 100% of power needs will be supplied. 

Se lec t ion : A. Qualified Customer Credit Subaccount Program (<20 kW): (initials) 

Se lec t ion : B. Qualified Customer Credit Subaccount Program (>20 kW): (initials) 

Se lec t ion : C. Hydropower Service Program (>20 kW): (initials) 

5. BILLING. Commonwealth shall bill Customer for services provided pursuant to this Agreement 
through one of three billing options, at Commonwealth's sole discretion. Commonwealth shall either 
arrange for: 

A. Consolidated UDC Billing Services: Customer's Utility Distribution Company (UDC) [i.e., 
SCE, PG&E, or SDG&E] to prepare and send Customer a consolidated bill for both UDC and 
Commonwealth charges, process all Customer payments, and convey the amounts received 
from Customer for Commonwealth charges to Commonwealth; or 

B. UDC and Commonwealth Dual Billing Services: Customer's UDC to prepare and send 
Customer a partial bill for UDC charges and Commonwealth to prepare and send Customer a 
partial bill for Commonwealth charges. Customer will convey payment for UDC charges to UDC 
and Customer will convey payment for Commonwealth charges to Commonwealth and UDC 
and Commonwealth will process their respective payments received from Customer; or 

C. Consolidated Commonwealth Billing Services: Commonwealth to prepare and send 
Customer a consolidated bill for both UDC and Commonwealth charges, process all Customer 
payments, and convey the amounts received from Customer for UDC charges to UDC. 

In any event, Customer shall be responsible for paying any and ail costs, charges, fees, and 
taxes, including public purpose program and competitive transition charges, related to the 
transmission, distribution and consumption of electricity provided to Customer pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

Recurring Fees: 
Monthly fees may be accessed for ancillary services pertaining to meter maintenance, reading, 
and billing services. Additional fees may be applied for On-Line Energy Use Tracking. 
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6. DELIVERY POINTS. The delivery points ("Delivery Points") for electricity sold to Customer 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be the "Point of Delivery" for each Account as defined in the rate 
schedules of Customer's UDC. 

7. DIRECT ACCESS AUTHORIZATION. Customer shall execute all authorizations required by state 
or federal law to enable Commonwealth to provide services pursuant to this Agreement. Upon 
execution of this Agreement, Commonweaith shall promptly submit a Direct Access Service 
Request ("DASR") to Customer's UDC. If, for any reason, a DASR is not submitted or Customer's 
UDC fails to approve a DASR submitted by Commonwealth on Customer's behalf within three (3) 

. months of the Effective Date, this Agreement may be terminated by either party, without penalty, by 
providing written notice of termination to the party. 

8. - DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY. COMMONWEALTH EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL 
WARRANTIES REGARDING THE QUALITY OF ELECTRICITY DELIVERED TO CUSTOMER 
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER WRITTEN, ORALLY EXPRESSED, OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS. FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

9. FORCE MAJEURE. In the event that Commonwealth's performance of its obligations under this 
Agreement is interrupted or delayed by any occurrence not caused by either party, whether such 
occurrence is an act of God or public enemy, or whether such occurrence is caused by storm, 
earthquake, or other natural forces, or by war, riot, public disturbance, or the acts or omissions of 
anyone not a party to this Agreement, then Commonwealth shall be excused from such 
performance and any further performance required under this Agreement for whatever period is 
reasonably necessary to remedy the effects of that occurrence. 

10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. IN THE EVENT COMMONWEALTH FAILS TO PERFORM ITS 
OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, CUSTOMER'S SOLE REMEDY SHALL BE TO 
TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT BY WRITTEN NOTICE TO COMMONWEALTH. 
COMMONWEALTH SHALL NOT BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER FOR ANY INJURY, DAMAGES, OR 
CLAIMS ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER ARISING IN 

• CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO INTENTIONAL TORTS, NEGLIGENCE, 
AND STRICT LIABILITY), OR OTHERWISE, AND CUSTOMER HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVES 
ANY OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE REMEDY OTHER THAN THAT PROVIDED FOR IN THE 
FIRST SENTENCE OF THIS SECTION. 

11. INDEMNITY. 

11.1 General Indemnity Each party shall indemnify and defend the other from all claims for 
any loss, damage, or injury to persons or property, including without limitation all 
consequential, incidental, exemplary, or punitive damages arising from or relating to the 
indemnifying party's performance under this Agreement. 

11.2 Special Indemnity Customer shall indemnify and defend Commonwealth from all claims 
for any loss, damage, or injury to persons or property, including without limitation all 
consequential, incidental, exemplary, or punitive damages arising from or relating to the 
distribution or consumption of electricity beyond the Delivery Point for each Account(s). 
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12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, including any Attachment, Exhibit or Schedule hereto, 
embodies the entire Agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior 
Agreements and understandings between the parties, whether written or oral, with respect to the 
subject matter hereof. If Commonwealth determines that it must modify this Agreement to comply 
with the Rules and/or applicable law or regulation, Commonwealth shall inform Customer by written 
notice. Customer may, within fourteen (14) days of receipt of such notice, terminate this Agreement 
by written notice to Commonwealth. In the event that Customer terminates this Agreement as 
provided for in this Section, Customer shall still be obligated to pay for the electricity and related 
services provided to Customer pursuant to this Agreement prior to the date that such termination 
becomes effective. Except as provided for in this Section, this Agreement may not be amended 
except by a written amendment signed by both Customer and Commonwealth. 

13. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be void or unenforceable by a court 
of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shafl remain in full force and 
effect. 

14. HEADINGS. Headings are for the convenience of the parties and shall be ignored for purposes of 
interpreting this Agreement. 

15. ASSIGNMENT. Commonwealth may assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement to a 
third party. Customer does not have the right to assign its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement to a third party, and any attempt by Customer to assign Its rights and obligations under 
this Agreement is void and without effect. 

16. GOVERNING LAW. The formation, interpretation and performance of this Agreement is governed 
by California law. 

17. TERM. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date of execution written below. Except 
as otherwise provided, this Agreement shall continue in effect unless written cancellation by either 
party is given at least thirty (30) days in advance of the date when such termination is to become 
effective; provided said notice shall not be given prior to at least twelve (12) months after service 
begins under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, if Customer fails to make payment of all 
amounts due to Commonwealth within thirty (30) days of the invoice date, Commonwealth may 
terminate this Agreement and in such event will provide written notice of termination to Customer 
mailed to the address for the Accounts). 

18. METERS. At Customer's option Commonwealth shall, during the term of this Agreement, furnish 
the services of one or more electricity meters to Customer for measurement of electricity on 
Customer's premises in accordance with the selected Meter Specifications, Features and Pricing 
Options document furnished to Customer by Commonwealth, said terms subject to change without 
notice. (See Attachment C) 

This Agreement is executed by authorized representatives this day of 
Dale Month Year 

Signature of Commonwealth Signature of Customer 

Printed Name Printed Name 

Title Title 
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ATTACHMENT B 

i 

Eligible "Energy Credit" Rate Schedules - (<20kW) 

Pacific Gas & Electric Service Territory - Residential 
E-1, E-8, E-13, E-7, E-9, E-6, E-10, E-11, E-12, EE, EM, ES, ESR, ET, E-A7, E-SEG, 
EL-1, EML, ESL, ESRL, ETL, EL-7, EL-A7, EL-8 

Pacific Gas & Electric Service Territory - Small Commercial 
[A-1, A-6, A-6W, A-6X 

Edison Service Territory - Residential 
D, D-CARE, DE, DS, TOU-D-1, TOU-D-2, TOU-EV-1, TOU-EV-2, DM, DMS-1, DMS-2, 
DMS-3, D-APS 

Edison Service Territory - Small Commercial 
GS-1, TOU-GS-1, TOU-EV-3, GS-APS 

San Diego Gas & Electric Service Territory - Residential 
DR, DR-L1, DM, DS, DT, DT-RV, D-SMF, EV-TOU, EV-TOU-2, EV-TOU-3, DR-TOU, 
DR-VTOU 

San Diego Gas & Electric Service Territory - Small Commercial 
A, A-TC, AD 

B. Eligible "Energy Credit" Rate Schedules - (>20kW, Max. $1,000/meter/yr.) 

Pacific Gas & Electric Service Territory - Commercial & Industrial 
E-19S, E-25S, E-19P, E-19T, E-25P, E-25T, A-RTP, E-20S, E-20P, E-20T, 
E-37X, A-10, A-15, E-19V, E-19W, E-19X, E36, E36W, E36X 

E-37W, 

Edison Service Territory - Commercial & Industrial 
T0U-8-S, TOU-8-CR-1-S, TOU-8-RTP-S, T0U-8-S0P-S, TOU-8-SOP-RTP-S, TOU-8-
P, TOU-8-CR-1-P, T0U-8-RTP-P, T0U-8-S0P-P, TOU-8-T, T0U-8-CR-1-T, T0U-8-
RTP-T, TOU-8-SOP-T, TOU-8-SOP-RTP-T, I-6-S, I-6-P, i-6-T, RTP-2-S, RTP-2-1-S, 
RTP-2-P, RTP-2-i-P, RTP-2-T, RTP-2-I-T, RTP-3-S, RTP-3-P, RTP-3-T, RTP-TPP-1, 
GS-2, GS-2-RTP, TOU-EV-4, TOU-GS-2, T0U-GS-2-S0P, RTP-GS-3 

San Diego Gas & Electric.Service Territory - Commercial & Industrial 
DR-TOU-2, AL-TOU, AL-TOU-C, AY-TOU, AO-TOU, AO-TOU-C, A6-TOU, A-V1, A-V2, 
A-V2-0, A-V3, A-V6-C, A-TOU, AL-TOU-2, LR 
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ATTACHMENT A 

Customer Name Meter Address Electric Meter 
No. 

Account No. 
Street Address:. 

City: State: Zip: 
Street Address: 

City: State: Zip: 
Street Address: 

City: State: Zip: 
Street Addresa: 

City: State: Zip: 
Street Address: 

City: State: Zip: . 
Street Address: 

Cfty: State: Zip: 
Street Address: 

State: Zip: 
Street Address: 

City: State: Zip: 
Street Address: 

City: State: Zip: 
Street Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

ESA 01/28/99 Template )k Page 7 of 8 



ATTACHMENTC 

METER T Y P E 

• 
• 
• 
• 

CEC-M1 
CEC-M2 
CEC-M3 
CEC-MQ4 

MOUNTfNG/PHYStCAL COMPONENTS 

• Socket Type 
• Bottom Connected (A-base) 
• Switchboard 
• Portable 

REAL-TIME SITE METERING SOFTWARE 

• $ 

• Declined 

TYPE SERVICE TO BE METERED 

• phase, wfre 

• wye 
• delta 

DISPOSITION 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Remove meter from service 
Meter buyout at year 
Purchase price 5. or 

Installment: 
_mos. @ 1 Vmo. 

mos. @ $ /mo. 
KYZ Relay $70.00 
RS232/RS485 Port£. 
Outage Callback $ 40.00 
WAN I 
Wireless modem connection $ 250.00 
Power quality Monitoring $ 40.00 
Rental = $ /month 

TYPE REGISTER FUNCTION 

• Watt hour/demand 
• Watt hour/time-of-use 
• Watt hour and Var hour demand OR 
• Time-of-use 
• Watt hour and VA demand time-of-use 

OUTPUT R E L A Y S 

• KYZ 
• Programmable relay 

METER T E S T AMPS OR C L A S S 

• 200 amps 
• Over 200 amp 

ESA 01/28/99 Template j'k Page 8 of 8 



Appendix C 
Pago 1 of2 

Sample D isc losure Statement Format 
f o r E lect r ic Generat ion Supp l ie rs 

Thte is an egreement for electric generation service, between EGS name and customer's name and fufl addrexs t 

Background 

• We et EGS's name are licensed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission to offer and supply 
electric generation services In 
Pennsylvania. Our PUC license number te A-110XXX. 

• We set the generation prices and charges that you pay. The Public Utility Commission regulates distribution prices 
and services. The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission regulates transmission prices and services. 

• ff you ask us, we can bill you directly for our service. 

• Right of Recision - You may cancel this agreement at any lime before midnight of the third business day after receiving 
this disclosure. 

Definitions 

• Generation Charge - Charge for production of electricity. 

• Transmission Charge - Charge for moving high voltage electricity from a generation facility to the distribution lines of 
an electric distribution company. 

• Nonbasic Charges - Define each nonbasic service being offered. 

Terms of Service 

1, (a) Basic Service Prices - itemize Basic Services you are billing for and their prices. 

You will pay EGS rgfe per kWh for electric generation service. 
Suppliers are to Include any variable pricing conditions and limits, if charging a variable rate. 

You will pay EGS rate per kWh for electric transmission service. 
Suppliers are to Include transmission service prices If billed. 

(b) Nonbasic Service Prices - Itemize Nonbasic Services you are offering end their prices. 
2. Length of Agreement 

You will buy your electricity generation service for the above street address from EGS's name beginning tfffte through 
rfafe of expiration. If anv. 

Z, Special Terms and Conditions - Ust and explain all that apply. 
Sign-up bonuses 
Add-ons 
Limited time offers 
Other Sales Promotions 
Exclusions 

4. Special Services - Provide explanation of price, terms and condHhns, Including advanced metering deployment, if 
applicable. 

Pag* 2 of 2 
5. Penalties, Fees and Exceptions - Ust any that apply including e late payment charge. The print size for this 
section must be larger than the print In the rest ofthe agreement 
BOS UmwArfticKfe* 
PA FUC \\9W 
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6. Cancellation Provisions • TTife category may consist of both customer initiated canceftathn provisions and 
supplier initiated cancellation provisions, 

7. Renewal Provision - If this Is a fixed tenn agreement with automatic renewal, explain the procedure here. 

8. Agreement Expiration/Change in Terms 

If you have a fixed term agreement with us and It Is approaching the expiration date or If we propose to change our 
terms of service, we will send ybu written notice In each of our last three bills or In separate mailings before either the 
expiration date or the effective date of the changes. We will explain your options In these three advance notices. 

9. Dispute Procedures 

Contact us with any questions concerning our terms of service. You may call the PUC Ifyou ere not satisfied after 
discussing your terms with us. 

10. Contact Information 

Generation Supplier Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number: 

Internet Addcess: 

Electric Distribution Company Name: 

Provider of Last Resort Name: 

Address: 

Phone Number 

Public Utility Commission (PUC) 
Address: 
Electric Competition Hotline Number 

Universal Service Program Name: 

Phone Number: 

P.O. Box 3265 Harrisburg. PA 17105-3265 
1-868-762-3228 

CGSUecWAffiticMiM 
F A r v C O o e w W l M l W * * 
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AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY 
License Bond #6002734 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PR£SENTS THAT Commonwealth Energy Corporation 
as Principal, and AMERJCAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY of INDIANAPOLIS, INDIANA, as 
Surety, are firmly bound unto Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, as Obligee, the penal sum of two 
hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000.). lawful money of the United States of America for the payment 
of which, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators, successors 
and assigns, jointly, severally, and firmly by these presents. 

SIGNED, SEALED AND DATED THIS 25th day of Jung 1 9 9 9 . 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that Whereas the Principal has made 
application for a license lo the Obligee to offer, render, fumish or supply electricity or electric generation 
services to the public. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT THE Principal 
must act in accordance with Section 2809(c)IX i) of tlie Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. 2809(cXI)£). to 
assure compliance with applicable provisions of the Public Utility Code, 66Pa. C.S. 101, etseq. and the 
rules and regulation of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission by the Principal as a licensed electric 
generation supplier, to ensure the payment of Gross Receipts Tax as required by Section 2810 ofthe Public 
Utility Code, 66Pa. C.S. 2810; and to ensure the supply of electricity at retail tn accordance with contracts, 
agreements or arrangement. Payment of claims shall have the following priority: (I)The Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania;(IO Electric Distribution Companies for the reimbursement of Gross Receipts Tax; and 
(III) Private Individuals. Proceeds of the bond may not be used to pay any penalties or fines levied against 
the Principal for violations of the law, or for the payment of any other tax obligations owed to the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

NOW THEREFORE, IF THE Principal shall, during the period commencing on the aforesaid date, 
faithfully observe and honestly comply with such rules, regulations and statues that are applicable to an 
electric generation supplier licensed in Pennsylvania and fulfills its obligation lo pay the Gross Receipts 
Tax to the Commonwealth, and to deliver electricity at retail in accordance with contracts, agreements and 
arrangements, require the execution of this bond, then this obligation shall become void and of no effect. 

PROVIDED, the Surety may terminate its future liability under this Bond sixty (60) days after 
furnishing written notice of such intention to terminate. This termination shall not affect the liability of the 
Surety and the Principal for any liability incurred by (he Principal prior to the eflective date of such 
termination. Any claim under Ihis bond must be instituted within three (3) months of the effective date of 
termination. 

THIS BOND WILL EXPIRE .Tune 25. 2000 but may be continued by continuation 
certificate signed by Principal and AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY. AMERICAN 
STATES INSURANCE COMPANY may at any time tenninate its liability by giving si*ty (60) days 
written notice ofthe Obligee, and AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY shall not be liable for 
any default after such sixty day notice period, except for defaults occurringj>riQ( thereto. 

Signed, sealed and dated June 25. 1999 -

AMERICAN ̂STATES INSURANCE COMPANY 
(Surety) 

BY: '•—f/SL 
Attorney in Fact PAT M. WALKER 
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POWER 
OF ATTORNEY 

AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY 
INOtANVOUS, INDIANA 45206 

No. 10374 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

That AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY, an Indiana corporation, does hereby appoint 
**************A***************************PAT M. WALKER************************************** 

Its true and lawful Bttomey(s}-in-fact, with full authority lo execute on behalf of the company fidelity and surety bonds or undertakings 
other documents of a similar character issued by the company In the course of its business, and to bind AMERICAN STATES INSURA 
COMPANY thereby as fully as If such instruments had been duly executed by its regularly elected officers at its home office, In amoun 
penalties not exceeding the sum of: 

FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/100 DQLLARS***********************DOLLARS ($.500,000.00 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY has executed and attested these presents 

this 28th day of December .. 19 J . 

RA. PIERSON, SECRETARY W. RANDALL STODDARD, PRESIDENT 

CERTIFICATE 

Extract from the By-Laws of AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY 

"Article 8, Section 6.1 1. - FIDELITY AND SURETY BONDS ... the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, and any Assistant 
President appointed for that purpose by the officer In charge of surety operations, shall each have authority to appoint individuals as attorr 
In-fad or under other appropriate titles with authority to execute on behalf of the corporation fidelily and surety bonds and other documer-
timitar character issued by the corporation in the course of its business.... On any Instrument making or evidencing such appointment 
signatures may ba affixed by facsimile. On any Instrument conferring such authority or on any bond or undertaking of the corporation 
seal, or a facsimile thereof, may be impressed or affixed or In any other manner reproduced; provided, however, that the seal shall n< 
necessary to the validity of any such instrument or undertaking." 

I, R. K Pierson, Secretary of AMERICAN STATES INSURANCE COMPANY, do hereby certify that the foregoing extracts of the By-Lav 
this corporation, and of a Power of Attorney Issued pursuant thereto, are true and correct, and that both the By-Laws and the Pew 
Attorney are still in full force and effect 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the facsimile seal of said corporation 

this J Z S ^ C ^ day of y ^ c — y c - g 

R.A. PIERSON SECRETARY 
SWIOAS/EF 7/88 
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I REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 

j 
; Board of Directors and Stockholders 
! Commonwealth Energy Corporation 

Wc have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Commonwealth Energy Coiporation (a 
California corporation) as of July 31, 1998 and January 31, 1999, and the related statements of 

1 operadons, scockholders' equity, and cash .flows for the period from August 15, 1997 (date of 
inception) through July 31, 1998 and for the six months ended January 31, 1999. These financial 

; siatemems are the responsibility ofthe Organization's management Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit 

| We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are firee of maierial misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a rest 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred'to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
j financial position of Commonwealth Energy Corporation as of July 31,1998 and January 31,1999, 

and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period from August 15, 1997 (date of 
inception) through July 31,1998 and for the six months ended January 31,1999 in confonnity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

Irvine, California 
April 29,1999 



COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

BALANCE SHEET 

July 31,1998 and January 31,1999 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents ($1,339,613 and 

$1,754,067 restricted, respectively) 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful 

accoumsof$l,l50,OOOatJanuary31,1999 
Unbilled energy receivable 
Inventory 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Property and equipment 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment, at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total property and equipment 

Other assets 
Deposits and investments 
Perfonnance bonds 

Total other assets 

Total assets 

July 31, 1998 January 31,1999 

4,242,966 $ 3,373,938 

520,157 
1,416,749 

1,325,738 

7,505,610 

581,839 
(53,033) 

528,806 

402,105 
325,000 

4,462,198 
1,503,928 

741,305 
615,364 

10,696,733 

1,226,155 
(125,901) 

1,100,254 

329,717 
335,000 

727,105 664,717 

s 8,761,521 $ 12,461,704 

See accounxants" report end notes to financial statements. 
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COMMONWEALTH El̂ ERGY CORPORATION 

BAXANCE SHEET 

July 31, 1998 and January 31,1999 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

July 31,1998 January 31,1999 

Current liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 
Accrued payroll, taxes and other liabilities 

1,552,655 
165,135 

S 2,686,255 
315,763 

Total current liabilities 1,717,790 3,002,018 

Stockholders' equity 
Preferred stock -10,000,000 shares authorized 

with no par value; 1,838,000 shares issued 
and outstanding 

Common stock - 50,000,000 shares authorized 
with no par value; 20,240,402 and 25,085,656 shares 
issued and outstanding, respectively 

Additional contributed capital 

821,000 

11,484,126 
983,640 

821,000 

22,528,225 
1,483,640 

Total contributed capital • 13,288,766 24,832,865 

Accumulated deficit (6,245,035) (15,373,179) 

Total stockholders' equity 7,043,731 9,459.686 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 8,761,521 $ 12.461,704 

% i. 

•A 
i '••Si 

See accoununts* report and notes to financial ttaiements. -J & 
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COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

For the period from August 15,1997 (date of inception) through July 31, 1998 and 
the six months ended January 31,1999 

Revenues 
Energy revenues 
Power planner sales 
Interest income 

Net revenues 

For the period ending 
July 31,1998 January 31,1999 

667,363 

46,929 

714,292 

$ 13,959,357 
258,051 

17,579 

14,234,987 

Costs and expenses 
Energy purchases 

- Service and scheduling costs 
Power planners 
Provision for doubtful accounts 
Adminisnative expenses 
Selling and marketing expenses 

Total costs and expenses 

Net loss 

674,965 
24,527 

4,405.889 
1,853,946 

6,959,327 

$ (6,245,035) $ 

15,617,020 
866.144 
137,940 

1,150,000 
4,240,854 
1,351,173 

23,363,131 

(9.128,144) 

See accountants' report and notes to financial statemenis. 
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COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS* EQUITY 

For ihe period from August 15r 1997 (date of mception) throught July 31, 1998 and 
the six months ended January 31.1999 

Proceeds from common 
stoclc issue, net of costs 

Proceeds from preferred 
stock issue 

Stoclc options granied for 
services 

Net loss for the period 
ended July 31,1998 

Balance July 31,1998 

Common 
Stock 

Additional Total 
Preferred Contributed Accumulated Stockholders' 

Stock Capital Deficit Equity 

$ 11,484,126 $ 

823,000 

11,484,126 821,000 

983,640 

$ 11,484,126 

821,000 

983,640 

(6,245,035) (6,245,035) 

983,640 (6,245,035) 7,043,731 

Proceeds from common 
stock issue, net of costs 

Stock options granted for 
services 

Net loss for the six months 
ended January 31,1999 

11,044,099 11,044,099 

500,000 - 500,000 

- (9,128,144) (9,128,144) 

Balance at January 31,1999 S 22,522,225 $ 821,000 $ 1,483,640 $ (15.373,179) $ 9,459,686 

See accountants' repon and notes to financial statements. 
S 



COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the period from August 15,1997 (date of inception) through July 31,1998 and 
the six months ended January 31,1999 

Cash from operating activities 
Net gain (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Depreciation 
Increase in accounts receivable 
Increase in unbilled energy receivable 
Increase in inventory 

• Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 
Decrease (increase) in deposits and investments 
Increase in accounts payable 
Increase in accrued expenses 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Issuance of note payable 
Proceeds from issuance of stock-
Additional contributed capital from stock options 

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash, and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Cash and cash' equivalents at end of period 

For the period ended 
July 31,1998 January 31,1999 

$ (6.245,035) $ (9,128,144) 

53,033 72,868 
(520,157) (3,942,041) 

.(1,416.749) (87,179) 
- (741,305) 

(1,325,738) 710,374 
(727,105) 62,388 

1,552,655 1,133.600 
' 162,635 150,628^ 

(8.466,461) (11,768,811) 

(581,839) (644.316) 
(581.839) (644,316) 

2.500 m 

12,305,126 11,044,099 
983,640 500,000 

13,291.266 11.544,099 

4,242.966 (869,028) 

4,242.966 

$ 4,242,966 $ 3,373,938 

See accountants' report and notes to fmancial statements. 
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COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

July 31, 1998 and January 31,1999 

pROANIZATTON AND BUSINESS 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation (the Cpmpany) incotporated on August 15, 1997 to purchase 
power from generating facilities and resell that power to homes and businesses in California and 
other states as they become deregulated. The Company is a Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission licensed power marketer and is registered with the California Public Utilities 
Commission as an Energy Service Provider. The operations of the Company initially consisted 
primarily of marketing efforts to secure a share of the electric power resale market, which has 
become available as a result of the deregularion of the electric power industry. The Company, 
which was considered to be a development stage company through July 31, 1998, started serving 
the public and generating revenue on April 1, 1998, the effective dcregtUation date'. The Company 
is cunently providing power to approximately 40,000 residential, business and governmental 
customers. 

Although the Company commenced billings to its customers in May 1998 and has continued to 
build its base of business in the succeeding months activities, it has sustained cumulative net losses 
since mception of S15,373,I79 and losses have continued co date. The Company has financed its 
development stage and operational losses from the proceeds of common and preferred stock sales to 
individual investors under a series of private placement memorandums. The Company expects 
losses to continue until profit margins and the customer base increase sufficiently to offset its 
operating expenses. 

The continuity ofthe Company and the implementation of its business plan are dependent upon the 
ability ofthe Company to generate cash through stock sales, venture capital or long term financing. 
There is no assurance that such cash proceeds will be available. Management believes that the 
Company can increase its profit margins and customer base and continue to raise capital through 
stock sales in amounts sufficient to sustain its activities and fund its operations for the remainder of 
1999 and into the year2000. 

NOTE li SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Tlie following is a summary ofthe significant accounting policies pf the Company. 

Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Certain prior period 
amounts have been reclassified to be consistent with the current period presentation. 



COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

July 31, 1998 and JanuaiySI, 1999 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fContiTm^ 

Revenue and Cost Reeo&nition 

Revenues from energy sales are recognized as energy & delivered to customers. Direct energy 
costs include energy purchased, independent system operator fees and scheduling coordination fees. 

Unbilled Energy Receivable 

Unbilled energy receivable represents the amount of energy actually purchased and delivered to 
customers, but not yet billed. Unbilled receivables are estimated at the number of kilowatt hours 
delivered times 95% of the PX energy cost as published by Southern California Edison for 
residential customers. As a result of the constantly changing billing rate, it is management's belief 
that this method is the best available measure ofthe cost of energy sold. 

Inventories 

Inventories consist of residential and industrial Power Planners and are stated at lower of cost (as 
determined on a first-in first-out basis) or market. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable at January 31, 1999 consists of $5,451,291 in billings to customers for energy 
sales, $147,276 for sales of Power Planners and $13,631 of employee and other advances. The 
Company provides an allowance for potential uncoilecrible accounts based on its collection history, 
An allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of $1,150,000 has been recorded as of January 
31,1999. As of JulySl, 1998 accounts receivable include $517,940 of energy billings and $2,217 
of other receivables. 

fqfr value of financial instruments 

The Company's financial instruments consists primarily of cash, accounts receivable, unbilled 
energy receivable and accounts payable. The carrying amounts of these financial instruments as of 
July 31,1998 and January 31,1999 approximate their fair values due to theii short-term nature. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Maintenance, repairs and renewals are expensed as 
incurred. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided over their estimated useful lives, 
which range from five to ten years, using the straight-line method. 



COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

July 31,1998 and January 31,1999 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fContimie^ 

fncpme Taxes 

The Company has incurred a net operating loss to date and has no current income tax liability. A 
deferred tax asset for the future tax benefit of the net operating loss has not been established since 
there is no assurance that the Company will be able to utilize the net operating loss in the future and 
certain limitations may apply to restrict the utilization based on past and future ownership changes. 

Dgpo'sirs and Investments 

The Company carries its deposits and investments ar the lower of cost or estimated net realizable 
value. There is no established market for the financial interests ofthe Company's investments and 
its holdings do not represent control over investee operations. 

U?e of Estmates_ 

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make esrimares and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

ETOTjE 2: CASH RESTRICTIONS 

Cash includes $1339,613 as of July 31, 1998 and $1,754,067 as of January 31. 1999, which are 
restricted for contracted energy purchase obligations. The Company's purchase contract stipulates 
that proceeds from sales of energy are to be deposited to a restricted cash account and withdrawals 
are limited ro the purchases of energy. Amounts in excess of outstanding entreat and forward 
purchase obligations are available to the Company for operations. 

NOTE 3: CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 

Cash includes $4,626,132 (before outstanding checks of $383,166) as of July 31, 1998 and 
$3,501,931 (before outstanding items of $128,043) as of January 31, 1999, on deposit with 
financial institutions. The resulting cash balances are $4,306,809 and $3,100,893, respectively, in 
excess of the $ 100,000 per institution limit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 



COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

July31,1998 and January 31,1999 

ftOTE 4: COMMITMENTS 

Leasing Arrangements 

The Company conducts its main operations in Tustin from faciUties that are leased under a five-
year non-cancelable operating lease expiring on April 24,2004. The Company also leases facilities 
in Palm Desert and San Diego. The location in Palm Desert is leased under a three-year non-
cancelable operating lease expiring on February 15, 2001. In addition to ihe lease payments the 
Company is charged for certain operating expenses of the property. There is an option to renew at 
an increased monthly rental. The location in San Diego is leased under a three-year non-cancelable 
operating lease expiring on January 31,2001. There is an option to renew for an additional three 
years at that time with an annual increase in rent of $0.05 per square foot. 

The following is a schedule of the minimum rental payments required under the above operating 
leases. 

Year Amount 

1999 $ 305,684 
2000 442,644 
2001 359,925 
2002 370,593 
2003 381,252 
2004 95,979 

Total $ 1.956.077 

Purchase Commitment 

'8 

In April of 1999 the Company entered into a three year contractual arrangement ending on June 30, j 
2002, for the purchase of energy. The Company has agreed to issue letters of credit to finance the j 
purchases of energy in the amounts of $3,256,200 on April 30, 1999, $4,572,000 on December 15, I 
1999, $5,760,000 on December 15,2000 and $5,850,000 on December 15,2001. % 

10 



COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORA-nON 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

July3i, 1998 and January 31,1999 

NOTE S: CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK 

The 10% Converable Preferred Stock cany annual dividends that are cumulative and are paid at the 
discretion of management quarterly with interest accruing at 10% from the date of issuance ofthe 
stock. Cumulative unpaid dividends were $101,369 as of January 31, 1999. Each Convemble 
Preferred share is convertible into one share of Common Stock in the Company at the shareholder's 
discretion and has M l voting rights- In additjon, preferred shareholder are entitled to preferential 
liquidatioti rights over Common Stock in the amount of $.50 per share plus all declared but unpaid 
dividends, 

NOTE 6: COMMON STOCK 

The Common Stock has no conversion or preemptive shareholder rights as to any securities issued 
by the Company and are not liable for assessments and further calls. Each share of Common Stock 
is entitled to one vote on all mattere voted on by shareholders, and is enutled to equal dividends 
when, and as declared by the Board of Directors from fimds legally available. 

Proceeds from the sale ofstock are reported net of issuance costs. During the six months ended 
January 31, 1999, $12^50,112 was raised from the sale of common Steele Costs of $1,506,013 
associated with the sale and issuance of this stock have been deducted from the common stock 
account Costs of $1,566,017 associaied with the issuance of $13,050,143 of common stock sold 
prior toAugust 1,1998 have been reclassified forpurposes of consistency from accumulated deficit 
as previously reported to a reduction ofthe common stock account 

NOTE 7i TWO FOR QNE STOCK SPLIT 

On October 7,1998 flic Board of Directors ofthe Company approved a resolution to split on a two 
for one basis all shares of common stock, preferred stock, and options to purchase stock of the 
Company; Approval by the shareholders was granted on December 5, 1998 for the stock split and 
related amendment to the articles of incorporation increasing the authorized number of shares of 
preferred stock. 

11 
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'$? COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

•A NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

? July 31,1998 and January 31,1999 

?VOTES: STOCK OPTIONS 

Options to purchase a total of8,134,590 shares of Common Stock have been granted, or committed 
to be granied, to employees, directors and service providers as of January 31, 1999, for exercise 
Through December 31, 2002. The option price of these shares range between $.005 and $1 per 
share. To date no options have been exercised. The compensation cost of the opuons granted for 
services is measured by the excess of estimated market value of the stock over the option price. 
This cost is recognized at the date of grant since all options for services are fully vested Options 
granted as incentive for stock sales do not result in a charge to operations since the related benefit is 
associated with an increase in common stock. Compensation in the amount of $983,640 and 
$500,000 has been recorded as an expense ofthe corporation and as additional contributed capital 
for the periods ended July 31, 1998 and January 31,1999, respectively. 

NOTE 9: YEAR 2000 AWARENESS PROGRAM 

The Company recognizes that the arrival of the yeiar 2000 poses unique challenges to the ability of 
all systems to recognize the date change from December 31, 1999 to January 1, 2000 and has 
adopted a plan designed to address the issues related to this transition. Ultimately, the potential 
impact of the year 2000 issues will depend not only on corrective measures the Company 
undertakes but iso on the way in which the year 2000 issue is addressed by governmental entities, 
vendors, customers, counterparts, and other entities who provide or receive data and services from 
the Company. Management is addressing these issues and believes its year 2000 plan will permit 
the Company to function effectively into the year 2000, 
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BUSINESS SUMARY 
C0MM0NWE>«.TH ENERGY CORP DUNS: 17-634-3341 RATING 3A2 

15991 RED HILL AVE #201 ELECTRIC SERVICES STARTED 1997 
AND BRANCH(ES) OR DIVISION(S) SIC NO. WORTH $7,018,669 
TUSTIN CA 92780 4911 EMPLOYS 140(110 HERE) 

TEL: 714 258-0470 HISTORY CLEAR 
FINANCING SECURED 
FINANCIAL 
CONDITION STRONG 
STATEMENT 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE; FREDERICK BLOOM, CEO-CHB DATE DEC 31 1998 

eusTmtt SERVICE 
If you have questions about this report, please call our Customer Service 
Center at 1-800-333-0505 from anywhere within.the U.S. I f you are outside the 
UiS., contact your local QfcB office. 

*** Additional Decision Support Available *** 

Additional O&B products, credit recommendations and specialized investigations 
are available to help ybu evaluate this company or its industry. Call Dun & 
Bradstreet's Solution Center at 1-B00-362-3425 from anywhere within the U.S. 

SIMMY ANALYSIS 
The Summary Analysis section reflects information in DiB's f i le as of 
June 14, 1999. 

RATING SUMMARY . , . . 

The Rating was changed on February 6, 1999 because the relationship 
between company's profits and their worth improved. The •SA" portion of 
the Rating (the Rating Classification) Indicates that the company has a 
worth from Jl minion to $10 nrillion. The "2" on the right (Composite 
Credit Appraisal) indicates an overall ,,good,, credit appraisal. This 
credit appraisal was assigned because of the age of the business, the 
company's strong financial position, and its payment record. 

Below is an overview of the company's DiB Rating(s) since 09/12/97: 

RATING DATE APPLIED 

Provided under contract for tha exd usl ve use of DUN U BRADSTREETINC Copyright 1999 D&B Inc. V3.9 
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For: ERIC JUAREZ. CFO 
DUN & BRADSTREET INC 

June ia 1999 
4: 43 pm 

This report should not be reproduced or redistributed. 

SUWARYANALYSIS (continued) 

3A2 
3A4 
3A2 
1A2 
2A2 

02/06/99 
12/07/98 
03/28/98 
01/10/98 
11/27/97 
09/12/97 

PAYMENT SUMMARY 

The Payment Summary section reflects payment information in D4B's fi le as of 
the date of this report. 

The PAYOEX for this company is 70. 

This PAYQEX score indicates that payments to suppliers average IS days beyond 
terms, weighted by dollar amounts. When dollar amounts are not considered, 
approximately 95% of the company's payments are within terms. 

Below is an overview of the company's dollar-weighted payments, segmented by 
its suppliers' primary industries: 

TOTAL LARGEST * DAYS SLOW 
TOTAL DOLLAR HIGH W/IN 
RCV'D AMOUNTS CREDIT TERMS <31 31-60 61-90 91+ 

Total In D&B's f i le 

Payment By Industry: 

1 Telephone communtctns 
2 Nonclassified 
3 Short-r-trro busn credit 
4 Misc equipment rental 
5 Electric services 
6 Ret stationery 
7 Ret computer/software 
6 Whol furniture 
9 Air courier service 

Other Payment Categories: 

Cash experiences 
Payment record unknown 
Unfavorable comments 
Placed for collection 

with D&B 

f 

16 

$ $ _ * 4 

69,650 25,000 

4 6,5S0 5,000 100 -
2 8,250 7. 500 100 -
2 2.750 2,500 100 -
2 1,000 . 1,000 100 -
1 25.000 

15. OOD 
25,000 - 100 

1 
25.000 
15. OOD IS, 000 100 -

1 ID, 000 10,000 100 -
1 1.000 1,000 100 -
1 50 50 100 -

0 
so 
0 

0 
50 
0 
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For: ERIC JUAREZ. CFO 
DUN & BRADSTREET INC 

Jurie ia 1999 
4: 43 pm 

This retort sboald not bt reproduced or redistributed. 

PAYNMr SIJMWV (continued) 
other N/A 

The highest -Now Owes1* on file Is $25,000 
The highest -Past Due" on file is $20,000 

0&B receives over 315 mil lion payment experiences each year. We enter these 
new and updated experiences into D&B Reports as this information is received. 

PAnmns 
Antic - Anticipated 
Disc - Discounted 
Ppt - Prompt 

REPORTED PAYING 
RECORD 

Payments received prior to date of invoice) 
Payments received within trade discount period) 
Payments received within terms granted) 

HIGH NOW PAST SELLING LAST SALE 
CREDIT OWES DUE TERMS WITHIN 

15000 2500 -0- 1 Mo 
5000 -0- -0- 1 Mo 
2500 50 -0- 1 Mo 
1000 -0- -0- 1 Mo 
50 50 -0- 1 Mo 

7500 5000 -0- 1 Mo 
1000 -0- -0- N30 6-12 Mos 
750 750 -0. 1 Mo 
250 250 -0-

25000 25000 20000 N30 1 Mo 
500 -0- -0- 6-12 Mos 

50 _o- -0- 6-12 Mos 
50. 4-5 Mos 

1000 1000 -0- 1 Mo 

10000 250 250 Regular terms 4-5 Mos 

05/99 Ppt 

£Pt 

Ppt 
Ppt 

04/99 Ppt 
Ppt 
Ppt 
Ppt 
Lease agreement 

Slow 30 
03/99 Ppt 
02/99 Ppt 

Lease agreement 
Ppt 

12/98 (014) 
09/98 Ppt 

Lease agreement 
06/98 (016) 

Satisfactory, 
* Payment experiences reflect how bills are met in relation to the 

terms granted. In some instances payment beyond terms can be the 
result of disputes over merchandise, skipped invoices etc. 

* Each experience shown represents a separate account reported by a 
supplier. Updated trade experiences replace those previously reported. 
Amounts may be rounded to nearest figure In prescribed ranges. 

Provided under contract for the exclusive use of DUN 6 BRADSTREET INC, Copyright 1999 D&B Inc. V3.9 



For: ERIC JUAREZ. CFO June la 1999 
OUK & BRADSTREET INC 4:43 pm 
This report should not be reproduced or redistributed. 

FIHANCE 
02/05/99 Interlro Interi m 

Nov 30 1997 Feb 20 1998 
Curr Assets 506,546 654,944 
Curr Ltabs U . W 41,149 
Current Ratio 23.8 15.9 
Working Capital 485.299 513*Z9? 
Other Assets 238.413 763.501 

Interim statement dated DEC 31 1998; 
Cash % 1.218,457 Accts Pay % 651,037 
Accts Rec 4,087,999 Other Curr Uabs 336,891 
Other Curr Assets 5,020,424 

Curr Assets 10,326.880 Curr Liabs 987,928 
Other Assets U474,396 EQUITY 10,613,348 

Total Assets 11,801,276 Total 11.601,276 
Submitted by Eric M Juarez, cfo. Extent of audit. If any, not 

i ndicated. 
—0— 

On FEB 04 1999 Eric M Juarez, cfo, referred to the above figures. 

PUBLIC PILINGS 

The following data is for Information purposes only and is not the 
official record. Certified copies can only be obtained from the 
official source. 

UCC FILINGfS) * *"* 

COLLATERAL: Negotiable instruments Including proceeds and products - Account(s) 
including proceeds and products - Contract rights including 
proceeds and products 

FILING NO: 003922128 DATE FILED: 10/09/1998 
TYPE: Original LATEST INFO RECEIVED: 11/03/1998 
SEC. PARTY: ILLINOVA ENERGY PARTNERS INC, FILED WITN: SECRETARY OF 

MIDVALE. UT STATE/UCC DIVISION, 
DEBTOR: COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORP IL 

COLLATERAL: Negotiable instruments Including proceeds and products - Account(s) 
including proceeds and products - Contract rights including 
proceeds and products 

FILING NO: 9828861030 DATE FILED: 10/08/1998 
TYPE: Original LATEST INFO RECEIVED: 10/23/1998 
SEC. PARTY: ILLINOVA ENERGY PARTNERS, INC., FILED WITH: SECRETARY OF 

MIDVALE, UT STATE/UCC DIVISION, 
DEBTOR: COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION CA 

This data is for informational purposes only, certification can only be 
obtained through the Sacramento Office of the California Secretary of State. 

Provided under contract for the exclusi ve use of DUN & BRADSTREET INC. Copyright 1999 DIB Inc. V3.9 



For: ERIC JUAREZ. CFO June i a 1999 
DUN & BRADSTREET INC 4: 43 pm 
This report should not be reproduced or redistributed. 

HTSTORV (continued) _. 

This date Is for informational purposes only, certification can only 
be obtained through the Sacramento Office of the California Secretary 
.of State-

BUSINESS TYPE; Corporation - DATE INCORPORATED: 08/15/1997 
Profit STATE OF INCORP: California 

Business started 1997 by principal, 100% of capital stoclc is 
owned by Investors & Frederick H Bloonu As of March 1998 there were 
approximately 250 investors on record, none of which owned 10* or 
greater. 

FREDERICK BLOOM born 1960. 1997 to present active here as 
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. 1996-present 
active with affiliate. 18 years experience in investment banking. 

DAVID MENSCH, Most recently president of Commonwealth Energy. 
Prior to Commonwealth Energy, spent four years as general manager of 
operations for First Commodity Corporation of Boston and eight years 
as director of operations for American National Franchise Consultants, 
Inc, where his responsibilities Included supervising a staff of sales 
managers and licensed commodity brokers. 

ERIC M JUAREZ. Currently active as chief financial officer. 
Prior employed as controller and director of finance by Great States 
Insurance Company. Previously employed by Coopers and Lybrand, 

Affiliates: The following are related through common principals, 
management and/or ownership. Regal Group, Tustin, CA. DUNS 
#08-809-0923. Intercompany relations: None reported by management. 

02/17/99 Provides wholesale and retail sales of elelectrlc services, 
specializing in power distribution and energy saving products (100%). 

Terms are monthly billings. Sells to general public. Territory: 
California. 

EMPLOYEES: 140 which includes officer(s). 110 employed here. 
FACILITIES: Leases 15,000 sq. ft. on second floor of a two story 

building. 
LOCATION: Suburban business section on main street. 
BRANCHES: Maintains a branch at 74-361 Hwy 111, #5. Palm Desert, 

CA 92211 which 1,800 sq ft and an additional location in San Diego, 
CA. 
06-18(727 /727) 99999 098083083 H 

-- END OF REPORT — 
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INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

Agency Name: Philip B. Robinson Insurance 

Policy Number Coverage Company Limits 

CLS0560179 Commercial Liability Scottsdaie $1 Mil per occurrence 
$2 Mil aggregate 

UMS0003586 Commercial Umbrella Scottsdaie $1 Mil per occurrence 
$2 Mil aqqreqate 

01000710 EE Practices Liability Lloyds of London $2 Mil per occurrence 
$4 Mil aggregate 

WC2630913 Workers Compensatfon Pacific National $1 Million 

01CE306154 Commercial Property/Crime American States Various up to $600 K 

02CC863427 Commerciaf Auto American States $1 Milfion 

7511532198 Directors & Otticers Uabilrty Executive Risk $3 Million 

NOTE: We are getting quotes now for General LlabiMy \o be increased from $3,000,000 to $15,000,000 
and expect It to be In place within two weeks 

APPENDIX I 



EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

FREDERICK M. BLOOM- CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER - CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD 

FrcdcrickM. Bloom, 38, is a co-founder, Chainaan of the Board and C£.0. of the Compaay. During 1995 and 1996, 
Mr. Bloom was Executive Vice-President in charge of marketing and capitalization for DRTV Holdings, Inc an 
infometcial marketing company, While at DRTV, Mr. Bloom's duties included coordination of marketing efforts such 
as inforaercial and commercial production, media scheduling, telemarketing, advertising design, public relations, 
capitalization and shareholder relations. From 1992 to 1995, Mr. Bloom was an independent marketing and business 
consultant, assisting numerous companies with capitalbatioa, marketing plan design and implementation and 
telemarketing call-ccnterset-up, training and operations. Previously, Mr. Bloom operated as a telemarketing consultant 
assisting firms in establishing inbound and outbound telemarketing centers and coordinating advertising efforts. From 
1987 to I99J, Mr. Bloom was ftnmder and co-owner of First Pacific Trading Group, a commodity firtures brokerage. 
From 1983 to 1987, Mr. Bloom was a stockbroker with Bateman Eichlcr, Hill Richards. Mr. Bloom attended Long 
Beach State University ood studied Business Management 

DAVID MENSCH - PRESIDENT - DIRECTOR 

David Mensch, 46, is a co-founder. President and Director of the Company. Prior to becoming President, he served 
as Senior Executive Vice President of the Company. He also served as CF.O. and CO.O. of the Company from its 
inception until November 15,1997. Mr. Mensch has over 21 years of diversified experience in business management 
and corporate finance During 1995 and 1996 Mr. Mensch was Compliance Officer for DRTV Holdings, Inc. and 
was responsible for maintaining adherence to securities laws. From 1987 to 1995, Mr. Mensch was Director of 
Operations for American National Franchise Consultants, Inc.. a national and international firm involved in the 
development ana expansion oruew TSShcMsesTTHis responsibilities included the interviewing, hiring, training and 
motivating of the franchise sales staff. He also conducted final closing interviews with new Franchisees and designed, 
implemented and conducted franchisee training programs. From 1982 to 1986, Mr. Mensch was General Manager of 
Operations of First Commodity Corporation of Boston. He was responsible for the supervision of a staff of 60, 
Including all sales managers, licensed Commodity Brokers and support staff. 

DONALD H. COLTRAIN - SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT - DIRECTOR 

Donald H. Coltrain, 56, served as the Manager of Power Services and Contracts of the Power Department of the 
Imperial Irrigation District from June of 1991 through February. 1998. He was responsible for Power Contracts, 
Customer Services, System Operations, Purchasing and Stores Depaitinent and Energy Conservation. He managed over 
90 employees in this position. From 1966 to 1991, Mr. Coltrain was employed by Southern California Edison 
Company. During Mr. Col train's 25 year tenure with SCE, he held several key positions, including Supervisor of the 
Power Contracts Division, where his responsibilities included supervising and developing senior level engineers to 
negotiate power contracts and settlement agreements. Mr. Coltrain also negotiated Firm Transmission Services 
Agreements, Capacity Exchange Agreements, Axis Project Agreement̂  the Solar Power Pilot Plant Agreements and 
SCE's purchases from Commission Federal de Electicidad, Mexico. Mr. Coltratn's knowledge and experience in 
negotiations enabled him to be recognized as a leader in tiie electric utility industry. Mr. Coltrain has testified before 
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the California Public Utilities Commission, participated tn the analysis, 
negotiation and development of more than 90 unique generation, transmission, purchases, sales and exchange contracts 
and has coordinated technical studies for the evolution of resource alternatives. Mr. Coltrain holds a Bachelor of Arts 
Degree in Economics from California State University, Long Beach Mr. Coltrain works part time for the Company* 

JOHN A- BARTHROP - GENERAL COUNSEL 

John A. Barthrop, 57, has over 31 years of practicing business and corporate law. He 
has been Associate Counsel for Beneficial Standard Group of Companies, General 
Counsel for a regional shopping center developer and owed and managed his own law 
firm for over 15 years, specializing in financing and business transactions and business 
litigation. Mr. Barthrop obtained his Juris Doctorate from Hastings College of Law and 
is licensed to practice before the Supreme Court in California and the U.S. District 
Courts. 
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ERIC M. JUAREZ - TREASURER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Eric M. Juarez, 37, has twelve years experience (n public and private accounting. From March, 1991 to September, 
1996, he served as controller of Great States Insurance Company, which was & specialty workerc compensation 
insurance carrier. He was promoted to Vice President of Finance in September, 1996, and later became Director of 
Finance In 1997. At Great States Insurance Company, he was responsible and accountable to management for aU 
aspects of financial reporting, both Internal and exreraal, and, among other things, assisted In the Implementation and 
maintenance of fanemal controls. From July, 19S6, until February, 1991, Mr, Juarez worked ai the accounting flrro 
of Coopers & Lybrand, where he was eventually promoted from staff accountant to senior associate. As a senior 
associate, he had overall responsibility for perfonnance of financial audits, which Included design and implementation 
of audit strategy and testing plan, tupervisfng, directing and training staff accountants and preparing internal budgets 
and time usage analysis. Mr, Juarez holds a Bachelor of Science degree in accounting from California Polytechnic 
University, Pomona. 

KTF.V EMPLOYEES 

JEFF BAILEY 

Jeff Bailey, 51. has over twenty years of diversified managemenr and operations experience and Is in charge of 
administrarion and call-center oversight for the Company. During 1997 and early 1998, Mr. Bailey was president of 
the Warehousing, Installation and Transportation Division of Royson Cabinet Manufacturing, Inc. In 1996 and 1997, 
he served as branch manager of GTE Telnet Services which marketed long distance, 800#s, ISDN lines and other 
telecom services to businesses. From 1989 to 1996, Mr. Bailey was General Manager, District Manager and Regional 
Sales Manager for Iron Mountain Records Management, a $150 million leader In the field of critical record storage 
for Fortune 500 companies. Mr. Bailey earaedhis degree in criminology from California State University Long Beach, 



AFFIDAVIT 
State of California 

County of Orange 

ss. 

Frederick M. Bloom, Affiant, being duly (swom/affirmed] according to law, deposes and says that: 

He is the Chief Executive Officer of Commonweaith Energy Corporation; 

That he is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant; 

That Commonwealth Energy Corporation, the Applicant herein, hereby states that it will comply with, and 
adhere to, the reliability protocols of the North American Electric Reliability Council in its provision of service 
as an electric generation supplier in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Commonwealth Energy Corporation 
also will comply with the reliaOiltty protocols of any appropriate regional reliability councils, as welt as any 
rules or orders concerning reliability which might be issued or promulgated by the Pennsylvania Public Utfltty 
Commission. Commonwealth Energy Corporation will comply with appropriate and necessary operational 
requirements of the control areas in which it operates within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

That the facts/statements above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/ knowledge, information, and 
belief and that he expects said Applicant to be abtejo-pruv^ the same at agy hearing hereof. 

Sworn and subscribed before me this is ' ^ Q ^ a v o f x N u U V l l 

Ml 
Signaturafof official administering oath 

My commission expires 
f— A A ^ A A A — T ^ 

/ ^ S ^ . 6t\S6R€N££LVJDWICK. ^ 
= gL*ASB& Cbmrrtskxi* 1134586 | 

i 
134586 

Notary Pubfic—CaWbrrta 
San Bemarcfino County 

My Comm Expires Apr )7.2001 
mmwmmmmm 
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Corporate Structure 

Commerce 
Energy Group 

Skipping Stone, Commonwealth Energy 
Inc. Electflc.com, Corporation dfb/a electricAmerica, 
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UtiliHost, Inc. 
(Back Otfice 

Services 
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SEC Filings' Page 1 of 40 

COMMERCE ENERGY GROUP INC fi led th is 8-K on 0 2 / 1 0 / 2 0 0 5 . 

Outline Back to Results Printer Friendly Next Page » 

EXHIBIT 2 . 1 

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

BY AND AMONG 

COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 

AS BUYER 
AND 

ACN UTILITY SERVICES, INC., 
ACN ENERGY, INC. 

AND i 
ACN POWER, INC., 

AS SELLERS 

AND 

AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS NETWORK, INC. 

AND 
COMMERCE ENERGY GROUP, INC. 
WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN 

SPECIFIC PROVISIONS HEREIN 

DATED AS OF FEBRUARY 9, 2005 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

.SECTION 1. Ce r t a i n D e f i n i t i o n s 

SECTION 2. Transfer of Assets 
2.1 Assets To Be Transferred 
2.2 Consents and Novation 
2.3 Option Assets 

SECTION 3. Consideration f o r Acquired Assets 
3.1 Amount of Purchase Price 
3.2 Assumption of L i a b i l i t i e s 
3.3 Excluded L i a b i l i t i e s , 
3.4 Accounts Receivables and Closing Prorations 
'3.5 Bulk Sales Law Compliance 
3. 6 A l l o c a t i o n of Purchase Price 

SECTION 4. Representations and Warranties of S e l l e r s . 
4.1 Good Standing 

http://ir.l0kwizard.com/filing.php?soiirce=900&repo^enk&ipage-3250679&doc-2 3/2/2005 
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4.2 ACN Energy E n t i t i e s 
4.3 A u t h o r i z a t i o n ; Consents 
4.4 Governmental Approvals 
4-5 F i n a n c i a l Statements; L i a b i l i t i e s ; Books and Records of Account 
4.6 Taxes 
4.7 T i t l e t o Assets; Liens and Encumbrances 
4.8 Trademarks, Service Marks, Trade Names, Patents and Copyrights 
4.9 Contracts 
4.10 Purchase and Sales Commitments and Orders; Customers and Vendors ..... 
4.11 Employees; Compensation; Labor Relations; Vacation Time, Bonuses, Etc 
4.12 Employee B e n e f i t s 
4.13 Legal Proceedings 
4.14 Orders, Decrees, Etc 
4.15 Compliance With Law; Permits and Licenses 
4.16 Actions Not i n Ordinary Course; No Change 
4 ,17 Reserved 
4.18 Bank Accounts; Powers of Attorney 
4.19 No Brokers , 
4*20 Arrangements w i t h Related P a r t i e s 
4-, 21 No Omissions 
4.22 Stock Legend; -Restricted S e c u r i t i e s 

SECTION 5. Representations and Warranties of Buyer 
5,1 Good Standing '. 
5', 2 A u t h o r i z a t i o n 

5,3 Governmental Approvals 
5., 4 No Brokers 
5.5 A u t h o r i z a t i o n 
5.6 Shares ' 
5.7 SEC Rules 

SECTION 6. Conduct P r i o r t o the End of the Phase-Out Period 
6.1 I n v e s t i g a t i o n by Buyer -
6.2 Ongoing Operations 
6.3 Other Transactions 
6.4 Consents; Third-Party; Regulatory Approvals .... 
6.5 Public Announcements 
6.6 Employees and Employee B e n e f i t Plans 
6.7 N o t i f i c a t i o n 
6.8 Transfer Documents 
6.9 Covenant t o S a t i s f y Conditions , 
6.10 Schedules 
6.11 Schedule 4.2(A) Assets / 

SECTION 7. Conditions of Buyer's O b l i g a t i o n s t o Close 
7,1 Agreement and Conditions 
7„2 Representations and Warranties 

.7.3 No Legal Proceeding 
7.4 C e r t i f i c a t e 
7.5 Lien Releases -. 
7.6 D e l i v e r i e s 
7.7 Schedules 

http://ir.lOkwizard.com/filmg.php?so^ 3/2/2005 
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.SECTION 8 . 
8.1 
8.2 
8.3 
8.4 

SECTION 9 
9.1 
9.2 
9. 
'9. 
9. 
9. 
9. 
9. 
9. 
9. 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 
10 

Conditions o f the S e l l e r s ' O b l i g a t i o n s t o Close 
Agreement and Conditions 
Representations and Warranties 
D e l i v e r i e s 
C e r t i f i c a t e 

D e l i v e r i e s o f S e l l e r s on the Closing Date 
T i t l e t o Acquired Assets 
C e r t i f i c a t e s 
Secretary's C e r t i f i c a t e 
A u t h o r i z a t i o n 
Escrow Agreement 
Sales Agency Agreement 
T r a n s i t i o n Agreement 
S e c u r i t y Agreement 
Energy Agreements 
Operating Agency Agreement 

9.11 Other D e l i v e r i e s 

.SECTION 10. D e l i v e r i e s o f Buyer on the Closing Date 
'10.1 Purchase Price 
10 ..2 Secretary's C e r t i f i c a t e 
10.3 Escrow Agreement 
10.4 Sales Agency Agreement 
10.5 T r a n s i t i o n Agreement 
10.6 S e c u r i t y Agreement 
10.7 Energy Agreements 
10.8 Operating Agency Agreement 

SECTION 11. A d d i t i o n a l Covenants 
11.1 M a i l 
11.2 Further Assurances 
11.3 N o t i f i c a t i o n t o Customers 
11.4 Non-Transferred Assets 
11.5 Trading R e s t r i c t i o n s 

SECTION 12. C o n f i d e n t i a l i t y 

SECTION 13. I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n 
13.1 I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n by S e l l e r s 

. 13.2 I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n by Buyer . .' 
13.3 Procedures f o r I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n ; 

SECTION 14. S u r v i v a l o f Representations; E f f e c t of C e r t i f i c a t e s 

SECTION 15. Fees and Disbursements 

SECTION 16. Notices ' 

SECTION 17. Termination 

http://ir.l'Okwizard.coiWfilmg.php?s 3/2/2005 
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SECTION 18. Miscellaneous 
18.1 E n t i r e Agreement 
18.2 Taxes 
18.3 Governing Law; J u r i s d i c t i o n ; Waiver of Jury T r i a l 
18.4 S e v e r a b i l i t y 
18.5 Waiver 
18.6 Binding E f f e c t ; Assignment 
18.7 No Third-Party B e n e f i c i a r i e s 
18.8 Expenses Related t o Audit Rights 
18.9 Pronouns 
18.10 Counterparts 
18.11 Headings 

EXHIBITS 

E x h i b i t A - Form of Escrow Agreement 
E x h i b i t B - Form of Sales Agency Agreement 
E x h i b i t C - Form of T r a n s i t i o n Agreement 
E x h i b i t D - Form of Se c u r i t y Agreement 
E x h i b i t E - Form of NAESB 
E x h i b i t F - Form of EEI 
E x h i b i t G - Form of ISDA 
E x h i b i t H - Form of Operating Agency Agreements 
E x h i b i t I - Form of L e t t e r N e t t i n g L e t t e r 

SCHEDULES 

Schedule A Acquired Assets 
Schedule A-1 Assets w i t h Closing Dates Cash Adjustments 
Schedule A-2 Assets w i t h Future Cash Adjustments (upon Assignment) 
Schedule B Option Assets 
Schedule C Phase-Out-Addendum 
Schedule D Disbursement of Share Escrow 
Schedule 3. 1(c) Estimated Closing Adjustment 
Schedule 4 . 2 J u r i s d i c t i o n s of Q u a l i f i c a t i o n 
Schedule 4 . 2A A c t i v i t i e s conducted by ACN Energy's s u b s i d i a r i e s 
Schedule 4 . 3 A u t h o r i z a t i o n ; Consents 
Schedule 4 . 4 S e l l e r Governmental Approvals 
Schedule 4 . 5A F i n a n c i a l Statements; L i a b i l i t i e s ; Books and Records of 

Account 
Schedule 4 . 7A T i t l e t o Assets; Liens and Encumbrances 
Schedule 4 . 7B M a t e r i a l Assets 
Schedule 4 . 8 Trademarks, Service Marks, Trade Names, Patents and 

Copyrights 
Schedule 4 . 9A M a t e r i a l Contracts 
Schedule 4. 9B Bonds, Deposits, Guarantees or other C r e d i t Support 
Schedule 4 . 10 Purchase and Sales Commitments and Orders; Customers and 

Vendors 
Schedule 4. 11 Employees of ACN Energy; Job De s c r i p t i o n Compensation 
Schedule 4. I l C Vacation and Bonuses of Employees of ACN Energy 
Schedule 4. 12A Employee Benefit Plans 
Schedule 4. 14 Orders, Decrees, Etc 
Schedule 4. 15B Permits; Notice of V i o l a t i o n 
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Actions Not i n the Ordinary Course 
Bank Accounts; Powers of Attorney 
Contracts w i t h Related P a r t i e s 
Buyer Governmental Approvals 
CEG's Shares of Common Stock Reserved f o r Issuance 
Employee I n f o r m a t i o n 

Schedule 4 . 16A 
Schedule 4. 18 
Schedule 4 . 20 
Schedule 5. 3 
Schedule 5. 6 
Schedule 6. 6 

AGREEMENT dated as of.February 9, 2005 (the "Agreement") by and 
among Commonwealth Energy Corporation, a C a l i f o r n i a c o r p o r a t i o n ("Buyer"), and 
ACN U t i l i t y Services, Inc., a Michigan c o r p o r a t i o n ("ACN U t i l i t y Services"), ACN 
Energy, Inc., a Michigan c o r p o r a t i o n ("ACN Energy"), and ACN Power, Inc., a 
Michigan c o r p o r a t i o n ("ACN Power", and c o l l e c t i v e l y w i t h ACN U t i l i t y Services 
and ACN Energy, " S e l l e r s " or the "ACN Energy E n t i t i e s " ) , and, as t o Sections 
3.Kb) & 4.22 only. Commerce Energy Group, Inc., a Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n ("CEG"), 
and as t o Sections 4.22, 6.11 and A r t i c l e 13 only, American Communications 
Network, Inc. ("Parent"). 

W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS, S e l l e r s own and operate a r e t a i l e l e c t r i c power and n a t u r a l 
gas sales business (the " R e t a i l Energy Business"); and 

WHEREAS, Buyer desires t o purchase from S e l l e r s and S e l l e r s desire 
t o s e l l , convey, t r a n s f e r , assign and d e l i v e r t o Buyer, a l l of the assets, 
p r o p e r t i e s , r i g h t s and business of the R e t a i l Energy Business, other than the 
Excluded Assets (as defined below), upon the terms and co n d i t i o n s and f o r the 
purchase p r i c e h e r e i n a f t e r set f o r t h ; 

NOW, THEREFORE, i n co n s i d e r a t i o n of the mutual covenants contained 
herein and f o r other good and valuable c o n s i d e r a t i o n set f o r t h herein, the 
s u f f i c i e n c y of which i s hereby acknowledged, and in t e n d i n g t o be l e g a l l y bound, 
the p a r t i e s hereto agree as f o l l o w s : 

SECTION 1...Certain D e f i n i t i o n s . For purposes of t h i s Agreement, the f o l l o w i n g 
terms s h a l l have the resp e c t i v e meanings set f o r t h below: 

"ACN Energy" means ACN Energy, Inc., a Michigan c o r p o r a t i o n and 
wholly owned s u b s i d i a r y of S e l l e r . 

"ACN Energy E n t i t i e s " has the meaning set f o r t h i n the r e c i t a l s . 

"ACN Power" means-ACN Power, Inc., a Michigan c o r p o r a t i o n and wholly 
owned s u b s i d i a r y of S e l l e r . 

"ACN U t i l i t y Services" means ACN U t i l i t y Services, Inc., a Michigan 
c o r p o r a t i o n and wholly owned s u b s i d i a r y of S e l l e r . 

"Acquired Assets" means the assets of the R e t a i l Energy Business set 
f o r t h on Schedule A attached hereto and those of the Option Assets which Buyer 
e l e c t s t o purchase pursuant t o the terms hereof. 

"Action" means any claim, a c t i o n , s u i t , proceeding or i n v e s t i g a t i o n , 
whether at law, i n e q u i t y or i n ad m i r a l t y or before any court , a r b i t r a t o r , 
a r b i t r a t i o n panel or Governmental A u t h o r i t y . 

" A f f i l i a t e " of a p a r t y means any Person which, d i r e c t l y or 
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i n d i r e c t l y , c o n t r o l s , i s c o n t r o l l e d by or i s under common c o n t r o l w i t h such 
p a r t y . 

"AMEX" means the American Stock Exchange. 

"Assumed L i a b i l i t i e s " has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 3.2 
hereof. 

"Balance Sheet" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 4.5 hereof. 

"Bala nee Sheet Date" means December 31, 2004. 

"Buyer" has the meaning set f o r t h i n the preamble hereof. 

"Buyer Designee" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 2.1(b) hereof. 

"Closing" means the c l o s i n g of the tr a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby, 
which s h a l l take place a t the o f f i c e s of J a f f e R a i t t Heuer & Weiss, P.C., on the 
Closing Date at 10:00 A.M., or at such other time or place as the p a r t i e s may 
agree .upon i n w r i t i n g . 

"Closing Date" means February 9, 2005 or such other date as the 
p a r t i e s may agree upon i n w r i t i n g . 

"Code" means the United States I n t e r n a l Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended. 

"CEG" means Commerce Energy Group, Inc., a Delaware c o r p o r a t i o n and 
the parent of Buyer. 

"Contracts" mean c o n t r a c t s , agreements, mortgages, indentures, 
l i c e n s e s , leases, commitments, plans, arrangements, sales orders, purchase 
orders and bin d i n g commitments of every kind, whether w r i t t e n or o r a l . 

"Counterparty" or "Counterparties" means any Person or Persons, as 
ap p l i c a b l e , other than the S e l l e r , t h a t i s a p a r t y or are p a r t i e s , as 
ap p l i c a b l e , t o one or more o f the Contracts. 

"Counterparty Consent" means, w i t h respect t o each Contract, an 
assignment and assumption agreement duly executed and d e l i v e r e d by the 
a p p l i c a b l e assignor, the a p p l i c a b l e assignee and one or more authorized o f f i c e r s 
of the sole Counterparty or a l l Counterparties t o such Contract, as a p p l i c a b l e 
which i s reasonably s a t i s f a c t o r y t o the Buyer. 

"Customer N o t i f i c a t i o n " has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 11.3. 

"Damages" mean a l l losses, l i a b i l i t i e s , damages, d e f i c i e n c i e s , 
o b l i g a t i o n s , f i n e s , expenses, claims-, demands, ac t i o n s , s u i t s , proceedings, 
judgments or settlements, i n c l u d i n g i n t e r e s t and p e n a l t i e s recovered by a t h i r d 
p a r t y w i t h respect t h e r e t o and out-of-pocket expenses and reasonable a t t o r n e y s ' 
and accountants' fees and expenses i n c u r r e d i n the i n v e s t i g a t i o n or defense of 
any of the same or i n a s s e r t i n g , preserving or enf o r c i n g any of the Indemnified 
Party's r i g h t s hereunder, s u f f e r e d by an Indemnified Party. 

"EEI" means the EEI Master Power Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated 
January 31, 2005, between ACN U t i l i t y and Buyer. 
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"Employee Be n e f i t Plan" has the meaning set f o r t h i n Section 3(3) of 
ERISA. 

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income S e c u r i t y Act of 197 4, 
as amended, and the r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s promulgated thereunder. 

"ERISA A f f i l i a t e " means any other c o r p o r a t i o n or trade or business 
c o n t r o l l e d by, c o n t r o l l i n g or under common c o n t r o l w i t h a S e l l e r w i t h i n the 
meaning of Section 414(c) of the Code or Section 4001(a)(14) or Section 4001(b) 
of ERISA. 

"Escrow Agent" means Computershare Trust Company, Inc., 350 Indiana 
S t r e e t , Suite 800, 'Golden, Colorado 80401. 

"Escrow Agreement" means the escrow agreement i n s u b s t a n t i a l l y the 
form of E x h i b i t A attached hereto t o be entered i n t o on the Closing Date among 
Parent, Buyer CEG and the Escrow Agent. 

"Estimated Prepayment Amount" has the meaning set f o r i n Section 
3.1(c). 

"Excluded Assets" mean those assets of S e l l e r s not l i s t e d on 
Schedule A attached hereto and the Option Assets which Buyer does not e l e c t t o 
purchase pursuant t o the terms hereof. 

hereof. 

hereof. 

"Excluded L i a b i l i t i e s " has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 3.3 

"Fi n a n c i a l Statements" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 4.5 

"GAAP" means United States g e n e r a l l y accepted accounting p r i n c i p l e s . 

"Governmental A u t h o r i t y " means any agency, i n s t r u m e n t a l i t y , • 
department, commission, co u r t , t r i b u n a l or board of any government, whether 
f o r e i g n or domestic and whether n a t i o n a l , f e d e r a l , s t a t e , p r o v i n c i a l or l o c a l , 
i n c l u d i n g any s e l f - r e g u l a t o r y o r g a n i z a t i o n having j u r i s d i c t i o n over the P a r t i e s , 
the Parent's S u b s i d i a r i e s , the Contracts set f o r t h on Schedule 4.9, the R e t a i l 
Energy Business, the Acquired Assets, the Option Assets, or otherwise r e l a t i n g 
i n any way t o the subject matter hereof. 

"Indemnified Party" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 13.3 
hereof. 

"Indemnifying Party" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 13.3 
hereof. 

"ISDA" means the I n t e r n a t i o n a l Swaps and D e r i v a t i v e s A s s o c i a t i o n , 
Inc. 2002 Master Agreement and Credit Support Annex, dated January 31, 2005, 
between ACN U t i l i t y and Buyer. 

"Last S e l l e r Pay Date" means March 4, 2005. 

"Laws" mean laws, r u l e s , r e g u l a t i o n s , codes, orders, ordinances, 
judgments, i n j u n c t i o n s , decrees and p o l i c i e s . 
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" L i a b i l i t i e s " mean debts, l i a b i l i t i e s , o b l i g a t i o n s , d u t i e s and 
r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s of any kind and d e s c r i p t i o n , whether absolute or contingent, 
monetary or non-monetary, d i r e c t or i n d i r e c t , known or unknown or matured, 
unmatured, or of any other nature. 

"Lien" means any s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t , l i e n , mortgage, claim, charge, 
pledge, r e s t r i c t i o n , e q u i t a b l e i n t e r e s t or encumbrance of any nature. 

"NAESB" means the NAESB Base Contract f o r Sale and Purchase of 
Natural Gas, dated January 31, 2005, between ACN U t i l i t y and Buyer. 

"Ne t t i n g L e t t e r " means the l e t t e r agreement between ACN U t i l i t y and 
Buyer, dated January 31, 2005, whereby the p a r t i e s agree t o enter i n t o an EEI 
Master N e t t i n g Agreement. 

"Non-Transferred Contract" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 
2.2(a) hereof. 

"Option Assets" means those assets of the R e t a i l Energy Business set 
f o r t h on Schedule B attached hereto, which Buyer has an o p t i o n t o acquire on the 
terms set f o r t h herein. To the extent any assets, property, r i g h t s or business 
of a S e l l e r or any of Parent's S u b s i d i a r i e s used i n connection w i t h or otherwise 
r e l a t e d t o the R e t a i l Energy Business as a going concern do not appear or 
Schedules A and B hereto, the general language s h a l l govern and such assets, 
property, r i g h t s and business s h a l l be deemed Option Assets. 

"Option E x p i r a t i o n Date" means the close of business on the 60th day 
a f t e r the Closing Date. 

"Parent" has the meaning set f o r t h i n the preamble hereof. 

" P a r t i e s " means, c o l l e c t i v e l y , Buyer and S e l l e r s . 

"Party" means any of such Persons. 

"Permits" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 4.15(b) hereof. 

"Person" means any n a t u r a l person, c o r p o r a t i o n , business t r u s t , 
j o i n t venture, a s s o c i a t i o n , company, f i r m , p a r t n e r s h i p , or other e n t i t y or 
government or Governmental A u t h o r i t y . 

"Pre-Closing B i l l e d Receivables" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n 
Section 3.4(b) hereof. 

"Phase-Out Addendum" means Schedule C attached hereto. 

"Phase-Out Period" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n "the Phase-Out 
Addendum. 

"P r o p r i e t a r y Right" means patents, patent a p p l i c a t i o n s , patent 
d i s c l o s u r e s and inven t i o n s (whether or not patentable and whether or not reduced 
to p r a c t i c e ) ; a l l r e g i s t e r e d and un r e g i s t e r e d s t a t u t o r y and common law 
copy r i g h t s ; a l l r e g i s t e r e d and un r e g i s t e r e d trademarks. 
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s e r v i c e marks, l i c e n s e s , logos, sales m a t e r i a l s and trade names; a l l 
r e g i s t r a t i o n s , a p p l i c a t i o n s and renewals f o r any of the foregoing; a l l trade 
secrets, c o n f i d e n t i a l i n f o r m a t i o n , know-how, customer l i s t s , formulae, 
manufacturing and production processes and techniques, research and development 
i n f o r m a t i o n , product designations, q u a l i t y standards, i n v e s t i g a t i o n s , drawings, 
s p e c i f i c a t i o n s , designs, plans, improvements, proposals, t e c h n i c a l and computer 
data; a l l l i c e n s e agreements and sublicense agreements t o and f r o m . t h i r d p a r t i e s 
r e l a t i n g t o any of the foregoing; a l l other p r o p r i e t a r y r i g h t s ( i n c l u d i n g , 
w i t h o u t l i m i t a t i o n , a l l computer software and documentation); and a l l copies and 
t a n g i b l e embodiments of the foregoing ( i n whatever form or medium). 

" P r o r a t i o n Time" means, as t o Contracts r e l a t i n g t o the sale, 
purchase, t r a n s p o r t a t i o n or d e l i v e r y of n a t u r a l gas, 9:01 am Eastern Standard 
Time on February 1, 2005, and as t o any other Acquired Assets, 12:01 am i n the 
time zone o f the T e r r i t o r y t o which such Acquired Asset r e l a t e s (or i f such 
Acquired Asset r e l a t e s t o no p a r t i c u l a r T e r r i t o r y , 12:01 am Eastern Standard 
Time) on February 1, 2005. 

"PUC(s)" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 11.3. 

"Purchase P r i c e " has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 3.1 hereof. 

" R e t a i l Energy Business" has the meaning set f o r t h i n the r e c i t a l s . 

"Returns" mean a l l r e t u r n s , d e c l a r a t i o n s , r e p o r t s , estimates, 
i n f o r m a t i o n r e t u r n s and statements r e q u i r e d t o be f i l e d w i t h or supplied t o any 
t a x i n g a u t h o r i t y i n connection w i t h any Taxes. 

"Sales Agency Agreement" means the Agency Agreement i n s u b s t a n t i a l l y 
the form of E x h i b i t B attached hereto t o be entered i n t o on the Closing Date 
among S e l l e r , Buyer and an e n t i t y designated by Buyer. 

" S e c u r i t i e s Act" means the S e c u r i t i e s Act of 1933, as amended. 

" S e l l e r s " has the meaning set f o r t h i n the preamble hereof. 

" S e l l e r A n c i l l a r y Documents" means a l l conveyances, covenants, 
warranties, deeds, assignments, b i l l s of sale, confirmations, powers of 
atto r n e y , approvals, consents and a l l f u r t h e r instruments as may be necessary, 
expedient or proper i n order t o complete any and a l l conveyances, t r a n s f e r s , and 
assignments 'provided f o r h e r e i n and t o convey t o Buyer such t i t l e t o the 
Acquired Assets as S e l l e r s are o b l i g a t e d hereunder t o convey. 

"Shares" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 3.1(b) hereof. 

"Subsidiary" means, w i t h respect t o any Person, ( i ) any c o r p o r a t i o n 
or other Person of which s e c u r i t i e s or other i n t e r e s t s (other than s e c u r i t i e s or 
other i n t e r e s t s having such power only upon the happening of a contingency t h a t 
has not occurred) having the power (x) t o e l e c t a m a j o r i t y of t h a t corporation's 
or other Person's board of d i r e c t o r s or s i m i l a r governing body or (y) t o d i r e c t 
the business and p o l i c i e s of t h a t c o r p o r a t i o n or other Person are held by 

such Person or one or more of Su b s i d i a r i e s of such Person (or a combination 
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t h e r e o f ) and ( i i ) any p a r t n e r s h i p or l i m i t e d l i a b i l i t y company (a) the sole 
general p a r t n e r or the managing general partner or managing member of which i s 
such Person or a Subsidiary of such Person or (b) the only general partners or 
managing members of which are such Person or one or more Su b s i d i a r i e s of such 
Person (or a combination t h e r e o f ) . 

"Taxes" mean a l l taxes, charges, fees, l e v i e s or other assessments, 
i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n , income, gross r e c e i p t s , excise, r e a l and personal 
p r o p e r t y , sales, t r a n s f e r , l i c e n s e , w i t h h o l d i n g , p a y r o l l and fran c h i s e taxes, 
taxes or other charges i n the nature of excise, w i t h h o l d i n g , ad valorem, stamp, 
t r a n s f e r , value added, or gains taxes, f u e l taxes, environmental taxes, l i c e n s e , 
r e g i s t r a t i o n and documentation fees, and customs' d u t i e s ; t a r i f f s and s i m i l a r 
charges, imposed by any Governmental A u t h o r i t y and s h a l l i n c l u d e any i n t e r e s t , 
p e n a l t i e s or a d d i t i o n s t o tax a t t r i b u t a b l e t o any of the foregoing. 

"Transaction Documents" means t h i s Agreement, the Sales Agency 
Agreement, T r a n s i t i o n Agreement, Escrow Agreement, S e c u r i t y Agreement, NAESB, 
EEI, ISDA, Operating Agency Agreements, and each S e l l e r A n c i l l a r y Document. 

"Transferred Contracts" means a l l Contracts included w i t h i n the 
d e f i n i t i o n of Acquired Assets, and tr a n s a c t i o n s outstanding under such 
Contracts, except f o r such Contracts or t r a n s a c t i o n s , i f any, w i t h respect t o 
which no Counterparty Consent has been received and such consent i s re q u i r e d 
under the terms of such Contract or t r a n s a c t i o n f o r t h a t assignment thereof. 

"Transferred Customers" means those customers of the R e t a i l Energy 
Business f o r which r e g u l a t o r y approval, UDC approval and/or customers' approval 
w i t h respect t o such t r a n s f e r t o Buyer has been received and which are a c t u a l l y 
t r a n s f e r r e d t o Buyer on and/or a f t e r the Closing. 

"Transferred Employee" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 6.6 
hereof. 

" T r a n s i t i o n Agreement" means the T r a n s i t i o n Services Agreement i n 
s u b s t a n t i a l l y the form of E x h i b i t C attached hereto to be entered i n t o on the 
Closing Date between S e l l e r s and Buyer. 

"UDC(s)" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 11.3 hereof. 

" U n b i l l e d Receivables" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 3.4 

hereof. 

"WARN" has the meaning s p e c i f i e d i n Section 6.6 hereof. 

SECTION 2. Transfer of Assets. 

2.1 Assets 'To Be Transferred, (a) Based upon and subject t o the 
terms, agreements, warranties, representations and c o n d i t i o n s of t h i s Agreement, 
S e l l e r s hereby agree t o s e l l , convey, t r a n s f e r , assign and d e l i v e r t o Buyer on 
the Closing Date or from time t o time t h e r e a f t e r as contemplated by Sections 

^2.2, 2.3 and 6.4, and Buyer hereby agrees t o buy and 

10 

accept on the a p p l i c a b l e date, f o r the Purchase Price, f r e e and c l e a r of a l l 
Liens, a l l of the S e l l e r s ' r i g h t , t i t l e and i n t e r e s t i n and t o the Acquired 
Assets. 
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(b) Buyer may designate one or more of i t s S u b s i d i a r i e s as the 
purchaser hereunder of a l l or any p o r t i o n of the Acquired Assets (any such 
Subsidiary so designated being r e f e r r e d t o herein as a "Buyer Designee"). 
Buyer's r i g h t s under t h i s Agreement s h a l l be deemed a u t o m a t i c a l l y assigned t o 
any Buyer Designee w i t h respect t o the p o r t i o n of the Acquired Assets t o be 
acquired by such Buyer Designee, provided t h a t any such assignment s h a l l not 
r e l i e v e Buyer from any l i a b i l i t y hereunder. 

2.2 Consents and Novation, (a) This Agreement s h a l l not c o n s t i t u t e 
an agreement t o assign any i n t e r e s t i n any Contract or any claim, r i g h t or 
b e n e f i t a r i s i n g thereunder or r e s u l t i n g therefrom i f an assignment without the 
consent of a t h i r d p a r t y ( i n c l u d i n g any Governmental A u t h o r i t y ) , or without 
novation of the same, would c o n s t i t u t e a breach or v i o l a t i o n t h e r e o f or a f f e c t 
adversely the r i g h t s o f the S e l l e r or the Buyer thereunder (any of such, a 
"Non-Transferred C o n t r a c t " ) . I f novation i s r e q u i r e d i n order t o t r a n s f e r and 
assign any i n t e r e s t t o the Buyer, or i f the consent of a t h i r d p a r t y i s r e q u i r e d 
i n order t o assign any such i n t e r e s t and such consent i s not obtained p r i o r t o 
the Closing Date, or i f an attempted assignment would be i n e f f e c t i v e or would 
adversely a f f e c t the S e l l e r s ' a b i l i t y t o convey the b e n e f i t of such 
Non-Transferred Contract t o the Buyer, ( i ) the Buyer s h a l l be e n t i t l e d to the 
b e n e f i t s of each such Non-Transferred Contract accruing a f t e r the P r o r a t i o n 
Time, ( i i ) the Buyer s h a l l assume as Assumed L i a b i l i t i e s a l l o b l i g a t i o n s and 
l i a b i l i t i e s r e l a t i n g t o or a r i s i n g out of or i n c u r r e d i n connection w i t h such 
Non-Transferred Contract t h a t r e l a t e t o the p e r i o d a f t e r the P r o r a t i o n Time, 
( i i i ) except as provided i n Section 2.2(b), the S e l l e r s s h a l l continue to deal 
w i t h the other c o n t r a c t i n g p a r t y ( i e s ) as the prime c o n t r a c t i n g p a r t y and ( i v ) 
the S e l l e r s w i l l use t h e i r best e f f o r t s t o cooperate w i t h Buyer i n o b t a i n i n g a l l 
such consents and cooperate w i t h the Buyer u n t i l such consent or novation i s 
obtained or e f f e c t e d i n any l a w f u l and economically f e a s i b l e arrangement so t h a t 
the Buyer s h a l l receive the i n t e r e s t of the S e l l e r s i n the b e n e f i t s under any 
such Non-Transferred Contract, i n c l u d i n g performance by the S e l l e r s or the Buyer 
as agent f o r the S e l l e r s as set f o r t h i n Section 2.2(b). The S e l l e r s s h a l l 
promptly assign t o the Buyer each such Non-Transferred Contract a f t e r r e c e i p t of 
the appropriate consent or novation. 

(b) From and a f t e r the Closing, S e l l e r s authorize and appoint Buyer 
as t h e i r " e xclusive agent t o take a l l a c t i o n s and administer a l l Non-Transferred 
Contracts t o the f u l l e s t extent allowed under the a p p l i c a b l e c o n t r a c t and, t o 
the extent w i t h i n Buyer's reasonable c o n t r o l , t o manage the R e t a i l Energy 
Business' f o r S e l l e r s . Buyer s h a l l indemnify and hold S e l l e r s harmless from and 
against a l l L i a b i l i t i e s and Damages from t h i r d p a r t y claims r e l a t i n g t o the 
p e r i o d a f t e r the P r o r a t i o n Time r e l a t i n g t o (x) such Non-Transferred Contract, 
or (y) Buyer's management of the R e t a i l Energy Business as aforesaid, except t o 
the extent a r i s i n g out of the gross negligence, bad f a i t h or w i l l f u l misconduct 
of the S e l l e r s or t h e i r A f f i l i a t e s . A l l expenses reasonably i n c u r r e d by S e l l e r s 
w i t h respect t o the Non-Transferred Contracts u t i l i z e d i n the R e t a i l Energy 
Business from and a f t e r the P r o r a t i o n Time s h a l l be paid by Buyer. A l l revenues 
not associated w i t h an unreimbursed expense paid by S e l l e r s w i t h respect t o the 
Non-Transferred Contracts from and a f t e r the P r o r a t i o n Time s h a l l be f o r the 
b e n e f i t of and p a i d t o Buyer. S e l l e r s s h a l l take no a c t i o n , nor cause any a c t i o n 
t o be taken under the c o n t r a c t s and arrangements f o r which Buyer has been 
appointed agent unless requested by Buyer t o do so. Such Buyer-
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requested S e l l e r s actions s h a l l not be considered actions of S e l l e r f o r the 
purposes of expense or revenue r e c o g n i t i o n under t h i s Agreement. 
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2.3 Option Assets. From the date hereof u n t i l the Option E x p i r a t i o n 
Date, Buyer s h a l l have the o p t i o n from time t o time to designate any of the 
Option Assets as Acquired Assets by d e l i v e r i n g n o t i c e of such e l e c t i o n t o 
S e l l e r . I f Buyer so e l e c t s . Buyer s h a l l be required t o pay t o S e l l e r s any cash 
prepayment amounts as set f o r t h i n Section 3.1(d); otherwise there s h a l l be no 
purchase p r i c e adjustment. For purposes of t h i s Agreement, a l l Option Assets 
which Buyer e l e c t s t o purchase pursuant t o t h i s Section s h a l l be deemed Acquired 
Assets and a l l Option Assets which Buyer does not e l e c t t o purchase on or before 
the Option E x p i r a t i o n Date pursuant t o t h i s Section s h a l l be deemed Excluded 
Assets. U n t i l the Option E x p i r a t i o n Date, any Option Assets which have not been 
acquired pursuant t o the terms hereof s h a l l be t r e a t e d under t h i s Agreement as 
Acquired Assets except i n s o f a r as doing so would o b l i g a t e Buyer t o acquire such 
assets, assume any L i a b i l i t i e s w i t h respect t o them or otherwise increase 
Buyer's L i a b i l i t i e s hereunder. 

SECTION 3. Consideration f o r Acquired Assets. 

3.1 Amount of Purchase Price. The t o t a l c o n s i d e r a t i o n (the "Purchase 
Price") t o be paid by Buyer f o r the Acquired Assets i s as f o l l o w s : 

(a) On the Closing Date, Buyer s h a l l pay $6,500,000 plus the 
Estimated Prepayment Amount, subject t o adjustment as set f o r t h Section 3.1(c), 
t o S e l l e r s by means of a wire t r a n s f e r of immediately a v a i l a b l e funds i n such 
amount t o an account number and depository designated by S e l l e r s . 

(b) As soon as p r a c t i c a b l e f o l l o w i n g the approval by the AMEX of the 
l i s t i n g of the Shares on' the AMEX (CEG t o promptly seek such approval), CEG 
s h a l l deposit i n escrow a number of shares (rounded down t o the nearest whole 
number) (the "Shares") of CEG common stock, par value $.001 per share, equal t o 
( i ) -$2,000,000 d i v i d e d by ( i i ) the per-share c l o s i n g p r i c e of CEG's common stock 
on the AMEX on the l a s t t r a d i n g day immediately p r i o r t o the Closing Date, (the 
"Purchase Price Stock Escrow"). I n r e l i a n c e on the representations of the 
Se l l e r s i n t h i s Agreement, the Shares s h a l l not be r e g i s t e r e d under the 
Se c u r i t i e s Act. The Shares s h a l l be issued i n the name of the Escrow Agent and 
w i l l be held by the Escrow Agent and released t o Parent or CEG as ap p l i c a b l e , i n 
accordance w i t h the p r o v i s i o n s set f o r t h i n Schedule D hereto and the Escrow 
Agreement. Notwithstanding any p r o v i s i o n of t h i s Agreement or the Sales Agency 
Agreement, CEG s h a l l have no o b l i g a t i o n t o issue any shares of CEG common stock 
pursuant t o t h i s Agreement or the Sales Agency Agreement, i n t o escrow or 
otherwise, i f the issuance of such shares of CEG common stock, together w i t h a l l 
p r i o r issuances under t h i s Agreement and the Sales Agency Agreement i n the 
aggregate, would r e s u l t i n the issuance of more than 14.9% of the shares of CEG 
Common Stock outstanding immediately p r i o r t o the execution of t h i s Agreement. 

(c) On the Closing Date Buyer s h a l l pay t o the S e l l e r s the estimated 
amount set f o r t h i n Schedule 3.1(c) i n respect of c e r t a i n cash prepayment items 
which r e l a t e t o the p e r i o d subsequent t o the Pro r a t i o n Time, and which r e l a t e t o 
those Acquired'Assets set f o r t h i n 
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Schedule A - l ("Estimated Prepayment Amount"). Within 30 days f o l l o w i n g the 
Closing, S e l l e r s s h a l l send t o Buyer a statement i n reasonable d e t a i l 
r e c a l c u l a t i n g the prepayment amount. Buyer s h a l l have 30 "days a f t e r r e c e i p t t o 
review such statement. On the 30th day. Buyer s h a l l pay S e l l e r s , or S e l l e r s 
s h a l l pay Buyer, as a p p l i c a b l e , any f i n a l adjustment t o the Estimated Prepayment 
Amount as shown on such schedule which has not been disputed by Buyer. I f Buyer 
disputes S e l l e r s ' f i n a l adjustment^ Buyer s h a l l ' so n o t i f y S e l l e r s , and f o l l o w i n g 
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r e s o l u t i o n of the dispute, Buyer s h a l l pay S e l l e r s , or S e l l e r s s h a l l pay Buyer, 
as a p p l i c a b l e , the f i n a l adjustment. 

(d) w i t h respect to the Acquired Assets set f o r t h on Schedule A-2 or 
any Option Assets which Buyer has elected t o purchase and which i n c l u d e 
prepayment amounts, upon the a c t u a l assignment of such Assets t o Buyer, Buyer 
s h a l l be responsible f o r paying S e l l e r s the. amount of any cash prepayment amount 
r e l a t i n g t o the p e r i o d a f t e r assignment. On a monthly basis, S e l l e r s h a l l send 
Buyer an i n v o i c e showing the prepayment amount, and Buyer s h a l l have 30 days 
from r e c e i p t t o review such i n v o i c e . Thereafter, the procedures of 3.1(c) s h a l l 
apply. 

3.2 Assumption of L i a b i l i t i e s . Subject t o Sections 2.2, 2.3 and 6.4 
w i t h respect t o the t i m i n g of t r a n s f e r , the Acquired Assets w i l l be sold, 
conveyed, t r a n s f e r r e d and assigned t o the Buyer by S e l l e r s on the Closing Date 
(or w i t h respect t o any l a t e r acquired Option Assets, the date of the ap p l i c a b l e 
t r a n s f e r t h ereof) f r e e and c l e a r of a l l l i e n s , s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t s , mortgages, 
claims, r e s t r i c t i o n s , charges and encumbrances ( c o l l e c t i v e l y , "Liens") 
whatsoever. The Buyer does not assume, accept or undertake any o b l i g a t i o n s , 
d u t i e s , d e b t s o r l i a b i l i t i e s o f t h e S e l l e r s , t h e i r s h a r e h o l d e r s , s u b s i d i a r i e s o r 

a f f i l i a t e s o f any kind whatsoever, nor w i l l Buyer provide any kin d o f c r e d i t 
support t o the S e l l e r s , t h e i r shareholders, s u b s i d i a r i e s or a f f i l i a t e s pursuant 
t o t h i s Agreement or otherwise, except as provided i n Section 2.2 and except 
t h a t Buyer hereby agrees t o assume the S e l l e r s ' L i a b i l i t i e s w i t h respect t o the 
Acquired Assets from and a f t e r the Pr o r a t i o n Time which are set f o r t h on 
Schedule A hereto, but i n each case only t o the extent such L i a b i l i t i e s arose i n 
the o r d i n a r y course of business, are t o be performed a f t e r the P r o r a t i o n Time 
and not i n v i o l a t i o n of any of the terms, agreements, warranties and 
representations i n t h i s Agreement ( c o l l e c t i v e l y , the "Assumed L i a b i l i t i e s " ) ; 
provided t h a t i f any L i a b i l i t y r e f e r r e d t o i n t h i s sentence r e l a t e s both t o any 
time per i o d p r i o r t o the Pr o r a t i o n Time and on the P r o r a t i o n Time such L i a b i l i t y 
s h a l l be'prorated so t h a t the Assumed L i a b i l i t i e s only i n c l u d e the p o r t i o n 
t h e r e o f d i r e c t l y r e l a t i n g t o the Acquired Assets and/or t o the p e r i o d from and 
a f t e r the P r o r a t i o n Time. Buyer i s not assuming and s h a l l not assume any 
L i a b i l i t i e s of Parent or i t s Subs i d i a r i e s other than the Assumed L i a b i l i t i e s . 

3.3 Excluded L i a b i l i t i e s . Except as provided i n Section 3.2 and 
notwit h s t a n d i n g anything else t o the con t r a r y contained herein, the S e l l e r s 
s h a l l r e t a i n , and Buyer i s not assuming and s h a l l not be l i a b l e f o r any 
L i a b i l i t i e s of S e l l e r s or other A f f i l i a t e s of S e l l e r s , i n c l u d i n g , without 
l i m i t a t i o n , any L i a b i l i t i e s ( i ) under Contracts which s h a l l not have been 
assigned t o Buyer pursuant t o t h i s Agreement ( i n c l u d i n g , but not l i m i t e d t o , any 
union agreements); ( i i ) f o r indebtedness f o r borrowed money; ( i i i ) by reason of 
or a r i s i n g as the r e s u l t of any d e f a u l t or breach by S e l l e r s of any Contract, 
f o r any penalty assessed against S e l l e r s under-any Contract or r e l a t i n g t o or 
a r i s i n g out of any event which w i t h the passage of time or a f t e r g i v i n g of 
no t i c e , or both, would c o n s t i t u t e or give r i s e t o such a breach, d e f a u l t or 
penalty, whether or not such Contract i s being assigned t o and assumed by Buyer 
pursuant t o t h i s 
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Agreement; .(iv) the existence of which would c o n f l i c t w i t h or c o n s t i t u t e a 
breach of any representation,-warranty, covenant or agreement o f S e l l e r s 
contained herein; (v) t o any shareholder or any ERISA A f f i l i a t e o f S e l l e r s , t o 
any present or former employee, o f f i c e r or d i r e c t o r o f or consultant t o S e l l e r s 
or t h e i r A f f i l i a t e s (or independent c o n t r a c t o r r e t a i n e d by S e l l e r ) , or t o any 
Employee Benefit Plan sponsored or maintained by S e l l e r s or any ERISA A f f i l i a t e , 
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i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n , any bonuses, vacation or s i c k pay, any 
t e r m i n a t i o n or severance pay r e l a t e d t o S e l l e r s or S e l l e r s ' A f f i l i a t e s ' 
employees, and any post r e t i r e m e n t medical b e n e f i t s or other compensation or 
b e n e f i t s ; ( v i ) r e l a t i n g t o the execution, d e l i v e r y and consummation of t h i s 
Agreement and the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby, i n c l u d i n g , without 
l i m i t a t i o n , any and a l l Taxes i n c u r r e d as a r e s u l t of the sale contemplated by 
t h i s Agreement; ( v i i ) f o r any Taxes of the S e l l e r s i n c l u d i n g f e d e r a l , s t a t e or 
l o c a l taxes imposed as a r e s u l t of being or having been a member of a group 
f i l i n g a combined, consolidated or a f f i l i a t e d r e t u r n ) ; ( v i i i ) r e l a t i n g to or 
a r i s i n g out of any environmental matter, i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n , any 
v i o l a t i o n of any environmental law or any other law r e l a t i n g t o h e a l t h and 
s a f e t y of the p u b l i c or the employees of S e l l e r s or S e l l e r s ' A f f i l i a t e s ; ( i x ) 
r e l a t i n g t o , or a r i s i n g out o f , services rendered by S e l l e r s or S e l l e r s ' 
A f f i l i a t e s , or the conduct or operation of the business of S e l l e r s or S e l l e r s ' 
A f f i l i a t e s , p r i o r t o the Closing Date; or (x) r e l a t i n g t o the Excluded Assets 
( c o l l e c t i v e l y , the "Excluded L i a b i l i t i e s " ) . 

3.4 Accounts Receivables and Closing P r o r a t i o n s , (a) A l l prepaid 
c o n t r a c t s assumed by Buyer, a l l u n b i l l e d customer accounts receivables and a l l 
l i a b i l i t i e s , i n c l u d i n g r e s i d u a l commissions, s h a l l be p r o r a t e d as of the 
P r o r a t i o n Time such t h a t pursuant to and c o n s i s t e n t w i t h the p r o v i s i o n s of the 
Phase-Out Addendum attached hereto as Schedule C, S e l l e r s receive or are due a l l 
income and pay a l l expenses r e l a t e d t o any p e r i o d p r i o r t o the P r o r a t i o n Time. 

(b) As provided herein, t o the extent Buyer has h i r e d employees of 
S e l l e r s performing such f u n c t i o n s , Buyer s h a l l c o l l e c t receivables e x i s t i n g as 
o f the P r o r a t i o n Time t h a t were b i l l e d as of the Closing (the " B i l l e d 
Receivables") and b i l l and c o l l e c t (the " U n b i l l e d Receivables"), as herein 
provided and i n accordance w i t h the Phase-Out Addendum. As also provided herein, 
t o the extent Buyer has not yet h i r e d employees of S e l l e r s performing such 
f u n c t i o n s . S e l l e r s s h a l l cause t h e i r and t h e i r A f f i l i a t e s ' employees, at the 
d i r e c t i o n of Buyer, t o c o l l e c t the B i l l e d Receivables and b i l l and c o l l e c t the 
U n b i l l e d Receivables, as h e r e i n provided and i n accordance w i t h the Phase-Out 
Addendum. With respect t o a l l B i l l e d Receivables, t o the extent t h a t Buyer has 
h i r e d employees of S e l l e r s performing such f u n c t i o n s , Buyer agrees t o use 
o r d i n a r y and customary i n d u s t r y e f f o r t s t o c o l l e c t the B i l l e d Receivables, at 
Buyer's cost. ACN Energy w i l l maintain i t s c u r r e n t lockbox t o which Buyer agrees 
t o d i r e c t payments of B i l l e d Receivables i n i t s o r d i n a r y course. Any payments 
received by Buyer i n i t s lockbox(es) f o r S e l l e r s ' B i l l e d Receivables s h a l l be 
r e m i t t e d t o S e l l e r s promptly, pursuant t o the operation of the Phase-Out 
Addendum, t h a t i t has received c o l l e c t i o n of such B i l l e d Receivables. With 
respect t o a l l U n b i l l e d Receivables, Buyer agrees t o act as S e l l e r s ' agent and 
t o use o r d i n a r y and customary i n d u s t r y e f f o r t t o b i l l the U n b i l l e d Receivables 
and t o c o l l e c t the U n b i l l e d Receivables, at Buyer's cost. Buyer s h a l l remit t o 
S e l l e r s S e l l e r s 1 pro r a t a share (based on the operation of the Phase-Out 
Addendum) of each U n b i l l e d Receivable which Buyer c o l l e c t s promptly pursuant t o 
the operation of the Phase-Out Addendum t h a t i t has received c o l l e c t i o n of such 
U n b i l l e d Receivables. I n the event t h a t any B i l l e d Receivable or U n b i l l e d 
Receivable remains unpaid 
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n i n e t y (90) days a f t e r the date of the f i r s t i n v o i c e evidencing t h a t B i l l e d 
Receivable or U n b i l l e d Receivable and the date on which S e l l e r i s e n t i t l e d t o 
exercise remedies under a p p l i c a b l e Law, Buyer s h a l l have no f u r t h e r o b l i g a t i o n s 
w i t h respect t o such B i l l e d Receivable or U n b i l l e d Receivable and S e l l e r s s h a l l 
be e n t i t l e d t o i n s t i t u t e any such f u r t h e r c o l l e c t i o n e f f o r t s as S e l l e r s deem 
appro p r i a t e , at S e l l e r s ' cost. I n the event S e l l e r s receive i n t h e i r lockbox 
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receivables a t t r i b u t a b l e t o the p e r i o d f o l l o w i n g the P r o r a t i o n Time ("Buyer 
Receivables"), S e l l e r s s h a l l remit such amount(s) t o Buyer promptly pursuant t o 
the operation of the Phase-Out Addendum. 

3.5 Bulk Sales Law Compliance. S e l l e r s agree t o pay and discharge 
a l l claims of c r e d i t o r s which may be asserted against Buyer by reason of S e l l e r s 
and S e l l e r s ' A f f i l i a t e s ' noncompliance w i t h the p r o v i s i o n s of the bulk sales or 
t r a n s f e r Law of any s t a t e , province or other a p p l i c a b l e j u r i s d i c t i o n which may 
r e q u i r e such compliance on account of the p r o v i s i o n s herein and the t r a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated hereby and to indemnify and hold Buyer harmless from arid against 
claims s u f f e r e d or i n c u r r e d by Buyer by reason of or a r i s i n g out of (a) the 
f a i l u r e o f S e l l e r s or S e l l e r s ' A f f i l i a t e s t o pay or discharge the same when due 
or (b) such noncompliance w i t h any a p p l i c a b l e Bulk Sales Law. 

3.6 A l l o c a t i o n of Purchase Price. As soon as reasonably p r a c t i c a b l e 
a f t e r the'Closing Date, Buyer's and S e l l e r s ' independent a u d i t o r s s h a l l agree on 
an a l l o c a t i o n of the Purchase Price and other consideration p a i d pursuant t o 
t h i s Agreement, and based on such a l l o c a t i o n . Buyer and S e l l e r s s h a l l prepare 
I n t e r n a l Revenue Service Form 8594, i n accordance w i t h Section 1060 of the Code 
and the r e g u l a t i o n s thereunder, and such forms w i t h respect t o other 
' j u r i s d i c t i o n s as may be r e q u i r e d by a l l a p p l i c a b l e laws r e l a t i n g t o a l l o c a t i o n 
of the Purchase Price. Any adjustment t o the Purchase Price or other 
c o n s i d e r a t i o n paid pursuant t o t h i s Agreement s h a l l r e s u l t i n an appropriate 
adjustment t o such a l l o c a t i o n . S e l l e r s and Buyer s h a l l t i m e l y f i l e w i t h the 
appropriate Governmental A u t h o r i t i e s copies of said.Form 8594 and any.other such 
r e q u i r e d form as prepared by Buyer and S e l l e r s and s h a l l u t i l i z e the a l l o c a t i o n 
of the Purchase Price and other c o n s i d e r a t i o n p a i d pursuant t o t h i s Agreement 
contained on s a i d Form 8594 i n the p r e p a r a t i o n of any Returns and forms 
( i n c l u d i n g attachments t h e r e t o ) which r e l a t e t o the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated 
hereby. Neither S e l l e r s nor Buyer s h a l l f i l e any Return c o n t a i n i n g an a l l o c a t i o n 
of the Purchase Price t h a t d i f f e r s from an a l l o c a t i o n established pursuant t o 
t h i s Section 3.6. 

SECTION 4. Representations and Warranties of S e l l e r s . Each S e l l e r 
hereby warrants and represents t o Buyer as of the date hereof and as of the 
Closing as f o l l o w s : 

4.1 Good Standing. Parent i s a c o r p o r a t i o n duly organized, v a l i d l y 
e x i s t i n g and i n good standing under the laws o f the State o f Michigan and has 
a l l power and a u t h o r i t y t o own or lease i t s assets and t o operate and carry on 
i t s business as p r e s e n t l y conducted. 

4.2 ACN Energy E n t i t i e s . Except as l i s t e d i n Schedule 4.2(A), a l l of 
the a c t i v i t i e s of the R e t a i l Energy Business are c u r r e n t l y conducted by or 
through the ACN Energy E n t i t i e s , the ACN Energy E n t i t i e s and a l l the Acquired 
Assets and Option Assets are owned by the ACN Energy E n t i t i e s , Parent has no 
S u b s i d i a r i e s i n v o l v e d i n any aspect of the business of the R e t a i l Energy 
Business and n e i t h e r Parent nor any of i t s Subsidiaries of Parent has made any 
advances t o or investments i n , or owns any s e c u r i t i e s of or other i n t e r e s t s I n , 
any f i r m , 
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c o r p o r a t i o n , a s s o c i a t i o n , business o r g a n i z a t i o n , e n t e r p r i s e or e n t i t y , which are 
r e l a t e d t o the R e t a i l Energy Business or i t s assets, p r o p e r t i e s or business. 
Each ACN Energy E n t i t y i s duly organized, v a l i d l y e x i s t i n g and i n good standing 
under the laws of i t s s t a t e of i n c o r p o r a t i o n or o r g a n i z a t i o n , has f u l l corporate 
power and a u t h o r i t y t o conduct i t s business as i t i s p r e s e n t l y being conducted 
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and t o own, lease and operate i t s p r o p e r t i e s and assets. Each ACN Energy E n t i t y 
i s duly q u a l i f i e d t o do business as a f o r e i g n c o r p o r a t i o n and i s i n good 
standing i n each j u r i s d i c t i o n where the ownership of pro p e r t y or nature of i t s 
business r e q u i r e s such q u a l i f i c a t i o n . Each j u r i s d i c t i o n i n which each ACN Energy 
E n t i t y i s q u a l i f i e d t o do business as a f o r e i g n c o r p o r a t i o n i s l i s t e d on 
Schedule 4.2 hereto. There are no other j u r i s d i c t i o n s where the f a i l u r e of any 
ACN Energy E n t i t y t o be q u a l i f i e d as a f o r e i g n c o r p o r a t i o n would m a t e r i a l l y 
adversely a f f e c t the Acquired Assets, the business of the R e t a i l Energy Business 
or the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated herein. 

4.3 A u t h o r i z a t i o n ; Consents. The execution and d e l i v e r y of t h i s 
Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and the consummation of the 
t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by the Board of 
Di r e c t o r s of Parent and each S e l l e r , t o the extent r e q u i r e d by a p p l i c a b l e law, 
the shareholders of S e l l e r s and a l l other corporate a c t i o n of Parent and S e l l e r s 
necessary t o authorize the execution and d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement and the 
other Transaction Documents and the consummation of the t r a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated hereby and thereby have been taken. This Agreement and each 
Transaction Document c o n s t i t u t e s the l e g a l , v a l i d and b i n d i n g o b l i g a t i o n of 
Parent and each S e l l e r enforceable against them i n accordance w i t h i t s terms. 
Except as set f o r t h on Schedule 4.3 hereto, no consent of any lender, t r u s t e e , 
s e c u r i t y holder of Parent or any S e l l e r , or other Person, i s r e q u i r e d f o r Parent 
or any :Seller t o enter i n t o and d e l i v e r t h i s Agreement and each Transaction 
Document or t o consummate the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby, nor do the 
a r t i c l e s of i n c o r p o r a t i o n or by-laws or any M a t e r i a l Contract or other 
instrument t o which any S e l l e r or Parent i s bound, or a f f e c t i n g any of t h e i r 
r e s p e c t i v e p r o p e r t i e s , c o n f l i c t w i t h or r e s t r i c t the execution and d e l i v e r y of 
t h i s Agreement or the other Transaction Documents or the consummation of the 
tr a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby or thereby. 

4.4 Governmental Approvals. Except as set f o r t h i n Schedule 4.4, no 
governmental a u t h o r i z a t i o n , approval, order, l i c e n s e , permit, f r a n c h i s e , or 
consent and no r e g i s t r a t i o n , d e c l a r a t i o n or f i l i n g by Parent or any S e l l e r w i t h 
any Governmental A u t h o r i t y ( i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n , any f i l i n g or 
r e g i s t r a t i o n pursuant t o the S e c u r i t i e s Act or the s e c u r i t i e s or blue sky laws 
of any s t a t e or t e r r i t o r y ) i s required i n connection w i t h the execution and 
d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement and the other Transaction Documents and the 
consummation of the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby or thereby. 

4.5 F i n a n c i a l Statements; L i a b i l i t i e s ; Books and Records of Account, 
(a)' Annexed hereto as Schedule 4.5A are the f o l l o w i n g f i n a n c i a l statements 
( c o l l e c t i v e l y , the " F i n a n c i a l Statements") w i t h respect t o the R e t a i l Energy 
Business: (a) the audited consolidated f i n a n c i a l statements of the R e t a i l Energy 
Business f o r the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003; and (b) the unaudited 
consolidated f i n a n c i a l statements of the R e t a i l Energy Business as of December 
31, 2004 (the unaudited consolidated statement of net worth of the R e t a i l Energy 
Business as o f December 31, 2004 i s r e f e r r e d t o herein as the "Balance Sheet"). 
The F i n a n c i a l Statements, i n each case, are tr u e and complete w i t h respect t o 
each item t h e r e i n and have been 
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prepared i n conformity w i t h GAAP here t o f o r e adopted by, and a p p l i e d c o n s i s t e n t l y 
w i t h the past p r a c t i c e s of, S e l l e r s and f a i r l y present the f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n , 
r e s u l t s of operations and changes 'in f i n a n c i a l p o s i t i o n of the R e t a i l Energy 
Business as a t , or f o r the periods ended on, such dates i n a l l m a t e r i a l 
respects. A l l F i n a n c i a l Statements i n c l u d e a l l m a t e r i a l elements of revenue and 
cost associated w i t h the conduct of the business of the R e t a i l Energy Business 
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(whether d i r e c t or i n d i r e c t and whether i n c u r r e d at any of the leased premises 
or at any other l o c a t i o n s ) , i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n , the a l l o c a t e d or 
d i r e c t l y charged costs of any m a t e r i a l l y s i g n i f i c a n t services provided to the 
R e t a i l Energy Business by S e l l e r s or any A f f i l i a t e of S e l l e r s . Other than 
corporate overhead and r e n t . Schedule 4.5A r e f l e c t s a l l group and d i v i s i o n 
overhead charges and intercompany a l l o c a t i o n s a t t r i b u t e d t o the R e t a i l Energy 
Business. Since December 31, 2002, the R e t a i l Energy Business has conducted i t s 
accounting procedures i n a cons i s t e n t manner without m a t e r i a l change of p o l i c y 
or procedure. 

(b) On the Balance Sheet Date, other than as l i s t e d on Schedule 4.5 
the r e were no L i a b i l i t i e s of any S e l l e r i n connection w i t h the Acquired Assets 
other than those L i a b i l i t i e s d i s c l o s e d or provided f o r i n the Balance Sheet. On 
the date hereof and on the Closing Date, there are no and w i l l be no other 
L i a b i l i t i e s any S e l l e r i n connection w i t h the Acquired Assets except those 
i n c u r r e d since the Balance Sheet Date, i n the ord i n a r y course of the business of 
the R e t a i l Energy Business, and not i n m a t e r i a l v i o l a t i o n of or i n c o n f l i c t w i t h 
any o f the terms, agreements, warranties, representations and condi t i o n s of 
S e l l e r s contained i n t h i s Agreement. 

(c) The records and books o f account o f each S e l l e r i n any way 
r e l a t i n g t o the R e t a i l Energy Business are complete and accurate i n a l l m a t e r i a l 
respects. Copies of a l l such books and records have been provided or made 
a v a i l a b l e t o Buyer. 

4.6 Taxes. With respect t o Taxes r e l a t i n g t o the R e t a i l Energy 
Business, each S e l l e r i s i n compliance w i t h a l l a p p l i c a b l e Laws, whether or not 
such Taxes are owed by S e l l e r . 

4.7 T i t l e t o Assets; Liens and Encumbrances. The ACN Energy E n t i t i e s 
are the' owners of, and except as set f o r t h i n Schedule 4.7A, have good and 
marketable t i t l e t o , a l l of the Acquired Assets subject t o no Liens. Except as 
set f o r t h i n Schedule 4.7B, the Acquired Assets c o n s t i t u t e a l l of the m a t e r i a l 
assets used i n , r e l a t e d t o or re q u i r e d by the S e l l e r s f o r , the normal conduct of 
the R e t a i l Energy Business's business. The Acquired Assets do not include any 
owned r e a l property. 

4.8 Trademarks, Service Marks, Trade Names, Patents and Copyrights. 
Schedule 4.8. hereto sets f o r t h a t r u e , c o r r e c t and complete l i s t of a l l 
P r o p r i e t a r y Rights used by the R e t a i l Energy Business i n the conduct of i t s 
business. Except as i n d i c a t e d on Schedule 4.8, each such P r o p r i e t a r y Right i s . 
owned by the S e l l e r s and i s not subject t o any l i c e n s e , r o y a l t y arrangement or 
dis p u t e . To S e l l e r s ' knowledge (a) no other P r o p r i e t a r y Rights are used i n or 
are necessary f o r the conduct of the R e t a i l Energy Business's business as now 
conducted, (b) none of such P r o p r i e t a r y Rights used by the S e l l e r s nor the 
R e t a i l Energy Business as now conducted i n f r i n g e s any P r o p r i e t a r y Right or other 
such r i g h t of any other Person and (c) no claim has been asserted or threatened 
by any Person w i t h respect t o the ownership, v a l i d i t y , l i c e n s e or use of, or any 
infrin g e m e n t r e s u l t i n g from, any of the P r o p r i e t a r y Rights used by the R e t a i l 
Energy Business and there i s no basis f o r any such claim. No shareholder, 
o f f i c e r , d i r e c t o r or employee 
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of Parent or any of i t s S u b s i d i a r i e s owns or has any i n t e r e s t i n any P r o p r i e t a r y 
Rights or any trade secret, i n v e n t i o n or process, i f any, used by the R e t a i l 
Energy Business i n connection w i t h i t s business. 
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4.9 Contracts, (a) Schedule 4.9 hereto contains a t r u e and complete 
l i s t of each M a t e r i a l Contract, i n c l u d i n g a l l amendments and m o d i f i c a t i o n s 
t h e r e t o , t o which any S e l l e r i s a p a r t y or to which i t i s subject or by which i t 
i s bound r e l a t i n g t o , or i n any way a f f e c t i n g , the R e t a i l Energy Business or the 
Acquired Assets. As used herein, " M a t e r i a l Contract" means any c o n t r a c t t h a t has 
i n v o l v e d i n calendar year 2004, or i s l i k e l y (absent any unforeseen change from 
the s t a t u s quo) throughout calendar year 2005 or any year t h e r e a f t e r t o i n v o l v e 
an annualized revenue or expense of $50,000.00 or more. True, c o r r e c t and 
complete copies-of a l l M a t e r i a l Contracts l i s t e d on Schedule 4.9 have h e r e t o f o r e 
been d e l i v e r e d by S e l l e r s t o Buyer. Except as set f o r t h on Schedule 4.9, no 
M a t e r i a l Contract re q u i r e s the consent of any other Person or r e s u l t s i n e a r l y 
t e r m i n a t i o n or a c c e l e r a t i o n of a n y - r i g h t or o b l i g a t i o n by reason of the 
execution and d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement and the consummation of the 
t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby. Each of the M a t e r i a l Contracts c o n s t i t u t e s the 
l e g a l , v a l i d b i n d i n g o b l i g a t i o n of such S e l l e r enforceable i n accordance w i t h 
i t s terms and, t o S e l l e r s ' knowledge, i s a v a l i d and binding o b l i g a t i o n of a l l 
of the other p a r t i e s t h e r e t o enforceable against them i n accordance w i t h t h e i r 
terms and each such M a t e r i a l Contract i s i n f u l l force and e f f e c t without 
•modification. To S e l l e r ' s knowledge, each S e l l e r has performed a l l o b l i g a t i o n s 
r e q u i r e d t o be performed by i t and i s not i n d e f a u l t under any M a t e r i a l 
Contract, and no event has occurred thereunder which, w i t h or without the lapse 
o f time or the g i v i n g of n o t i c e , or both, would c o n s t i t u t e a d e f a u l t by i t 
thereunder. To S e l l e r s ' knowledge, no other p a r t y i s i n d e f a u l t under any 
M a t e r i a l Contract. No shareholder, p a r t n e r , member, o f f i c e r , d i r e c t o r or 
employee of Parent or any of i t s Subsidiaries i s a p a r t y t o or subject to or 
bound by any M a t e r i a l Contract or has any r i g h t which i n any way r e l a t e s t o the 
Acquired Assets. 

(b) Schedule 4.9B sets f o r t h a t r u e and complete l i s t of a l l bonds, 
deposits, guarantees or other c r e d i t support posted or accepted under any 
M a t e r i a l Contract or otherwise i n connection w i t h the Acquired Assets. 

4.10 Purchase and Sales Commitments and Orders; Customers and 
Vendors. Schedule 4.10 hereto sets f o r t h a t r u e and complete d e s c r i p t i o n and 
number i n accordance w i t h the customary recordkeeping p r a c t i c e s of the S e l l e r of 
the customers of the R e t a i l Energy Business broken down by UDC. To S e l l e r s ' 
knowledge, no S e l l e r has received any o r a l or w r i t t e n n o t i c e from any 
Governmental A u t h o r i t y t h r e a t e n i n g or i n t e n d i n g to take a c t i o n t h a t would be 
m a t e r i a l l y adverse t o the R e t a i l Energy Business, the Acquired Assets or w i t h 
respect t o more than 10% of the R e t a i l Energy Business customer base. To 
S e l l e r s ' knowledge, no S e l l e r has received any notice, or has any knowledge t h a t 
any e x i s t i n g , s i g n i f i c a n t group or sub-group of customers of the R e t a i l Energy 
Business ( i ) intends t o terminate or i s considering t e r m i n a t i n g i t s business 
r e l a t i o n s h i p w i t h the R e t a i l Energy Business or ( i i ) has requested such group or 
sub-group be granted economic concessions, rebates or changes w i t h respect t o 
products or services provided by the R e t a i l Energy Business t h a t would be 
adverse t o Buyer. 

4.11 Employees; Compensation; Labor Relations; Vacation Time, 
Bonuses, Etc. (a) Schedule 4.11 hereto l i s t s the names, t i t l e or job 
d e s c r i p t i o n , employer and t o t a l annual 

compensation of a l l employees of ACN Energy, Inc. as of the date hereof (the 
" E x i s t i n g Employees").• 

(b) There are no labor s t r i k e s , disputes, slow downs, work stoppages 
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union o r g a n i z i n g e f f o r t s or other labor t r o u b l e s or grievances pending or, t o 
any S e l l e r s ' knowledge, threatened against or i n v o l v i n g the R e t a i l Energy 
Business. No u n f a i r l a bor p r a c t i c e complaint before the National Labor Relations 
Board or any s i m i l a r or comparable s t a t e , l o c a l or f o r e i g n agency, no discharge 
or grievance before the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and no 
complaint, charge or grievance of any nature before any s i m i l a r or comparable 
s t a t e , l o c a l or f o r e i g n agency, i n any case r e l a t i n g t o the R e t a i l Energy 
Business or the conduct of i t s business or the Acquired Assets i s pending or, t o 
S e l l e r ' s knowledge, threatened. To S e l l e r ' s knowledge, no S e l l e r has r e c e i v e d 
n o t i c e , nor has knowledge, of the i n t e n t of any Governmental A u t h o r i t y 
responsible f o r the enforcement of labor or employment, laws t o conduct any 
i n v e s t i g a t i o n of or r e l a t i n g t o the R e t a i l Energy Business or the conduct of i t s 
business or the Acquired Assets. To the knowledge of each S e l l e r , no o f f i c e r or 
key employee of the R e t a i l Energy Business has any plans t o terminate h i s or her 
employment w i t h the R e t a i l Energy Business. No E x i s t i n g Employees are subject t o 
any employment agreement or c o l l e c t i v e bargaining agreement. A l l such E x i s t i n g 
Employees are "at w i l l . " 

(c) The vacation periods f o r the E x i s t i n g Employees normally occur 
d u r i n g the periods described on Schedule 4.11C hereto, which Schedule also sets 
f o r t h the method f o r accruing vacation pay used by S e l l e r s on t h e i r books and 
records. Except as set f o r t h on such Schedule 4.11C, at the Balance Sheet Date 
there were, at the date hereof there are and on the Last S e l l e r Payment Date 
.there w i l l be, no bonuses, p r o f i t sharing, i n c e n t i v e s , commissions or other 
-compensation of any kin d w i t h respect t o work done p r i o r t o the Balance Sheet 
Date, the date hereof or the Last S e l l e r Payment Date, r e s p e c t i v e l y , due t o or 
expected by the E x i s t i n g Employees, not f u l l y p a i d p r i o r t o such date or, w i t h 
respect t o compensation f o r work done p r i o r t o the Balance Sheet Date, not f u l l y 
accrued on the Balance Sheet. Except as set f o r t h on Schedule 4.11C, no bonuses, 
p r o f i t sharing or i n c e n t i v e s and no increases i n compensation have been paid, 
accrued or granted by any S e l l e r t o E x i s t i n g Employees f o r any p e r i o d a f t e r the 
Balance Sheet Date. The E x i s t i n g Employees are employed by ACN Energy, Inc. A l l 
brochures, agreements and other documents s e t t i n g f o r t h personnel p o l i c i e s 
r e l a t i n g t o the E x i s t i n g Employees, i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n , i n f o r m a t i o n 
concerning compensation, severance, t e r m i n a t i o n and other employee p e r q u i s i t e s 
and b e n e f i t s , have been f u r n i s h e d t o the E x i s t i n g Employees by S e l l e r ' s 
a f f i l i a t e s and have been f u r n i s h e d t o Buyer and are l i s t e d i n Schedule 4.11C 
hereof. 

4.12 Employee B e n e f i t s , (a) Except f o r those plans set f o r t h on 
Schedule 4.12A hereto {the "Plans"), S e l l e r s do hot maintain, c o n t r i b u t e t o or 
have or have had an o b l i g a t i o n t o c o n t r i b u t e t o any Employee B e n e f i t Plan, 
whether or not such plan has been terminated and whether or not such plan i s of 
a l e g a l l y b i n d i n g nature or i n the form of an i n f o r m a l understanding i n which 
former or present employees of the R e t a i l Energy Business have p a r t i c i p a t e d or 
c u r r e n t l y p a r t i c i p a t e . 

(b) True, c o r r e c t and complete copies of a l l the m a t e r i a l documents 
embodying the Plans, i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n , the plan and t r u s t 
instruments and summary 
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plan d e s c r i p t i o n , have been f u r n i s h e d t o Buyer. Each Plan which is - intended t o 
comply w i t h Section 401(a) of the Code and each t r u s t r e l a t e d t h e r e t o i s 
q u a l i f i e d and exempt w i t h i n the meaning of Sections 401 and 501 of the Code, 
r e s p e c t i v e l y , and a determination l e t t e r has been received from the I n t e r n a l 
Revenue Service w i t h respect t o each such Plan .stating t h a t such Plan and i t s 
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r e l a t e d t r u s t are q u a l i f i e d and exempt w i t h i n the meaning of Sections 401 and 
501 of the Code, r e s p e c t i v e l y , and a copy of each such determination l e t t e r has 
been f u r n i s h e d t o Buyer. To S e l l e r ' s knowledge, nothing has occurred since the 
date of the most recent determination l e t t e r of each such Plan t h a t could 
adversely a f f e c t the q u a l i f i e d status of such Plan or tax-exempt s t a t u s of any 
r e l a t e d t r u s t . 

(c) With respect t o any group h e a l t h plan, the group h e a l t h plan 
c o n t i n u a t i o n coverage requirements of Section 4980B of the Code and Part 6 of 
T i t l e I of ERISA ("COBRA"), have been f u l f i l l e d i n a l l m a t e r i a l respects. 

(d) Neither any S e l l e r nor any ERISA A f f i l i a t e has ever ( i ) 
terminated an Employment Be n e f i t Plan subject t o T i t l e IV of ERISA or ( i i ) 
c o n t r i b u t e d t o any "multiemployer plan," as such term i s defined i n Section 
3(37) o f ERISA, and n e i t h e r any S e l l e r nor any ERISA A f f i l i a t e has e f f e c t e d 
e i t h e r a "complete withdrawal" or a " p a r t i a l withdrawal," as those terms are 
defined i n Sections 4203 and 4205, r e s p e c t i v e l y , of ERISA, from any such 
•multiemployer plan. 

(e) S e l l e r s do not maintain or c o n t r i b u t e t o any "employee welfare 
b e n e f i t p l a n " (as such term i s defined i n Section 3(1) of ERISA), or other 
employee b e n e f i t plan or arrangement, p r o v i d i n g post-employment or 
post- r e t i r e m e n t b e n e f i t s (other than an "employee pension b e n e f i t plan," as such 
term i s defined i n Section 3(2) of ERISA and other than COBRA c o n t i n u a t i o n 
coverage) or, i f any such plan e x i s t s , i t i s l i s t e d on Schedule 4.12A. There has 
been no w r i t t e n or o r a l communication t o the Transferred Employees by the Parent 
or any of i t s S u b s i d i a r i e s t h a t would reasonably be expected to promise or 
guarantee such Transferred Employees r e t i r e e h e a l t h or l i f e insurance or other 
r e t i r e e death b e n e f i t s on a permanent basis. 

4.13 Legal Proceedings. To S e l l e r s ' knowledge, there are no m a t e r i a l 
Actions pending or, t o the knowledge of S e l l e r s , threatened against any S e l l e r 
respect t o or otherwise a f f e c t i n g the R e t a i l Energy Business or the Acquired 
Assets. To the best knowledge of each S e l l e r , no S e l l e r i s i n d e f a u l t w i t h 
respect t o any order, w r i t , i n j u n c t i o n or decree of any Governmental A u t h o r i t y . 

4.14 Orders, Decrees, Etc. To S e l l e r s ' knowledge, except as set 
f o r t h i n Schedule 4.14 hereto, there are no orders, decrees, i n j u n c t i o n s , 
r u l i n g s , p u b l i c a t i o n s , decisions, d i r e c t i v e s , consents, pronouncements or 
re g u l a t i o n s o f any court or any Governmental A u t h o r i t y issued against, or 
bin d i n g on, any S e l l e r i n any way r e l a t i n g t o the Acquired Assets or the R e t a i l . 
Energy Business's business which may have a m a t e r i a l adverse e f f e c t over the 
Acquired Assets or the R e t a i l Energy Business's method or manner of doing 
business. 

4.15 Compliance With Law; Permits and Licenses. 
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(a) To S e l l e r ' s knowledge, each S e l l e r i s i n cu r r e n t compliance 
w i t h a l l Laws of any Governmental A u t h o r i t y a p p l i c a b l e t o the R e t a i l Energy 
Business, i t s assets, property, business, employees or operations i n a l l 
m a t e r i a l requests. 

(b) The S e l l e r s p r e s e n t l y hold, and w i l l hold at the Closing Date 
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or the time of t r a n s f e r of the a p p l i c a b l e Acquired Assets, a l l r e q u i r e d permits, 
l i c e n s e s , c e r t i f i c a t e s and franchises from a p p l i c a b l e Governmental A u t h o r i t i e s 
{the "Permits") which are necessary f o r or m a t e r i a l t o the ownership or 
operation of the Acquired Assets or the conduct of the R e t a i l Energy Business, 
each of which i s l i s t e d i n Schedule 4.15(b) hereto; a l l such Permits are i n f u l l 
f o rce and e f f e c t and each S e l l e r i s i n f u l l compliance w i t h the terms and 
pr o v i s i o n s of i t s a p p l i c a b l e Permit. Except as set f o r t h i n Schedule 4.15(b), no 
no t i c e of v i o l a t i o n of any Permit has been received. For any Permits which may 
exp i r e - d u r i n g the Phase Out Period, which are set f o r t h i n Schedule 4.15(b), 
renewal a p p l i c a t i o n s have been or w i l l be t i m e l y f i l e d and prosecuted. 

4.16 Actions Not i n Ordinary Course; No Change. 

(a) Except as set f o r t h on Schedule 4.16A hereto, since the 
Balance Sheet Date, the S e l l e r s have not, r e l a t i n g t o the R e t a i l Energy Business 
or the Acquired Assets, ( i ) i n c u r r e d any L i a b i l i t y , except current l i a b i l i t i e s 
i n the o r d i n a r y course of business and L i a b i l i t i e s i n c u r r e d under Contracts 
entered i n t o i n the o r d i n a r y course of business of the R e t a i l Energy Business; 
( i i ) made w i t h respect t o the R e t a i l Energy Business any c a p i t a l expenditures or 
a d d i t i o n a l commitments f o r c a p i t a l e x p e n d i t u r e s and none a r e planned,- ( i i i ) 

discharged any L i a b i l i t y , other than c u r r e n t l i a b i l i t i e s shown on the Balance 
'Sheet and current l i a b i l i t i e s i n c u r r e d since the Balance Sheet Date i n the 
or d i n a r y course of business of the Retail- Energy Business; ( i v ) so l d or 
t r a n s f e r r e d any assets or w r i t t e n o f f any receivables other than i n the ord i n a r y 
cause of the R e t a i l Energy Business; (v) mortgaged, pledged or subjected t o any 
other Lien any of i t s assets or p r o p e r t i e s ; ( v i ) s u f f e r e d any losses or waived 
any r i g h t s of s u b s t a n t i a l value; ( v i i ) granted any m a t e r i a l bonuses or 
commissions or m a t e r i a l l y increased the compensation payable t o any of i t s 
employees, d i r e c t o r s or o f f i c e r s or increased the aggregate payment of any fees; 
( v i i i ) made any loans -to any i n d i v i d u a l s , f i r m s , corporations or other e n t i t i e s ; 
( i x ) made any change i n any method of accounting or a u d i t i n g p r a c t i c e ; or (x) 
entered i n t o any t r a n s a c t i o n not i n the o r d i n a r y course of business or agreed 
(whether or not i n w r i t i n g ) t o do any of the foregoing. From the Balance Sheet 
Date to the Closing Date, the R e t a i l Energy Business and the Acquired Assets has 
been and w i l l be operated only i n the re g u l a r and o r d i n a r y course. 

(b) Since the Balance Sheet Date, there has not been ( i ) any 
m a t e r i a l adverse change (whether or not i n the ord i n a r y course of business) i n 
the business, c o n d i t i o n ( f i n a n c i a l or otherwise), prospects., operations,, 
customer base, employee or vendor r e l a t i o n s , assets or L i a b i l i t i e s of the R e t a i l 
Energy Business or the Acquired Assets or ( i i ) any m a t e r i a l damage, d e s t r u c t i o n 
or l o s s , whether or not covered by insurance, m a t e r i a l l y a f f e c t i n g the business, 
assets, p r o p e r t i e s or r i g h t s of the R e t a i l Energy Business or the Acquired 
Assets. 

4.17 Reserved. 

4.18 Bank Accounts; Powers of Attorney. Set f o r t h on Schedule 4.18 
hereto i s a l i s t of each bank or other f i n a n c i a l i n s t i t u t i o n i n which the 
S e l l e r s maintain an account or safe 
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deposit box r e l a t e d t o the R e t a i l Energy Business, i n c l u d i n g the cur r e n t 
lockbox, the corresponding number of each such account or safe deposit box and 
the name's o f a l l persons h o l d i n g check-signing or withdrawal powers or other 
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a u t h o r i t y w i t h respect t h e r e t o . Also set f o r t h on Schedule 4.18 are the names of 
a l l persons, i f any, holding powers of at t o r n e y from the S e l l e r s and a.summary 
Statement of the terms t h e r e o f . 

4.19 No Brokers. None of the S e l l e r s or any A f f i l i a t e of S e l l e r s has 
entered i n t o any c o n t r a c t , agreement, arrangement or understanding w i t h any 
Person or f i r m which w i l l r e s u l t i n the o b l i g a t i o n of Buyer or i t s A f f i l i a t e t o 
pay any f i n d e r ' s fee or f i n a n c i a l advisory fee, brokerage fee or commission or 
.similar payment i n connection w i t h the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby. 

4.20 Arrangements w i t h Related P a r t i e s . Schedule 4.20 sets f o r t h a 
t r u e and complete l i s t of a l l c o n t r a c t s or other arrangements r e l a t i n g t o the 
R e t a i l Energy Business among Parent or any of i t s A f f i l i a t e s on one hand and any 
other A f f i l i a t e of the Parent on the other. Except as expressly provided herein, 
none of the Assumed L i a b i l i t i e s include any L i a b i l i t i e s owed t o S e l l e r s , t h e i r 
A f f i l i a t e s or t h e i r r espective stockholders, partners, members, d i r e c t o r s , 
managers, o f f i c e r s , employees or agents. 

4.21 No Omissions. S e l l e r s do not know of any f a c t s or circumstances 
not d i s c l o s e d t o Buyer which i n d i c a t e t h a t the Acquired Assets may be m a t e r i a l l y 
.adversely a f f e c t e d or which otherwise should be di s c l o s e d to Buyer i n order to 
make any of the representations or warranties made herein on the p a r t of the 
S e l l e r s not misleading. To S e l l e r ' s knowledge, no r e p r e s e n t a t i o n or warranty by 
S e l l e r s contained i n t h i s Agreement, and no statement contained i n any Schedule, 
E x h i b i t , c e r t i f i c a t e or other instrument furnished t o Buyer under or i n 
connection w i t h t h i s Agreement, contains any untrue statement of any m a t e r i a l 
f a c t , or omits t o s t a t e any m a t e r i a l f a c t necessary i n order t o make the • 
statements contained herein or t h e r e i n not misleading. 

4.22 Stock Legend; R e s t r i c t e d S e c u r i t i e s . Parent and S e l l e r s 
represent and warrant t o Buyer and CEG as f o l l o w s : 

(a) Parent i s a c q u i r i n g the Shares, when and i f released t o Parent 
pursuant t o Schedule D hereto and the Escrow Agreement, f o r i t s own account and 
not w i t h a present view t o , or f o r sale i n connection w i t h , any d i s t r i b u t i o n 
thereo'f. S e l l e r s consent to the placement of the f o l l o w i n g legend on each 
c e r t i f i c a t e r e p r e s e n t i n g the Shares and acknowledge t h a t stop t r a n s f e r 
i n s t r u c t i o n s w i l l be placed w i t h CEG's t r a n s f e r agent: 

"THE SHARES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN 
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 AND MAY NOT BE 
TRANSFERRED OR SOLD UNLESS ( i ) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER 
SUCH ACT (OR AN EXEMPTION FROM SUCH REGISTRATION) IS THEN IN 
EFFECT WITH RESPECT THERETO, ( i i ) A WRITTEN OPINION FROM 
COUNSEL FOR THE ISSUER OR OTHER COUNSEL FOR THE HOLDER 
REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE 
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TO THE ISSUER HAS BEEN OBTAINED TO THE EFFECT THAT NO SUCH 
REGISTRATION IS REQUIRED OR ( i i i ) A 'NO ACTION1 LETTER OR ITS 
THEN EQUIVALENT HAS BEEN ISSUED BY THE STAFF OF THE SECURITIES 
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO SUCH TRANSFER OR 
SALE." 

(b) Parent and S e l l e r s understand t h a t the Shares w i l l not be 
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r e g i s t e r e d under the S e c u r i t i e s Act f o r the reason t h a t the sale provided f o r i n 
t h i s Agreement i s exempt pursuant t o Section 4 of the S e c u r i t i e s Act and t h a t 
the r e l i a n c e of CEG and the Buyer on such exemption i s pr e d i c a t e d i n p a r t on the 
Parent's and S e l l e r s ' representations set f o r t h h e r e i n . Parent and each S e l l e r 
represents t h a t i t i s experienced i n e v a l u a t i n g companies such as CEG, has such 
knowledge and experience i n f i n a n c i a l and business matters as t o be capable of 
ev a l u a t i n g the me r i t s and r i s k s of i t s investment, and has the a b i l i t y t o s u f f e r 
the t o t a l loss of i t s investment i n the Shares. Parent and each S e l l e r i s an 
ac c r e d i t e d i n v e s t o r w i t h i n the meaning of Rule 501 of Regulation D promulgated 
under the S e c u r i t i e s Act. Each S e l l e r f u r t h e r represents t h a t i t has had access 
du r i n g the course of the t r a n s a c t i o n and p r i o r t o i t s a c q u i s i t i o n of the Shares 
t o such i n f o r m a t i o n r e l a t i n g t o CEG as i t has desired and t h a t i t has had the 
o p p o r t u n i t y t o ask questions of and receive answers from CEG concerning the 
t r a n s a c t i o n and t o ob t a i n a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n (to the extent CEG and the 
Buyer possessed such i n f o r m a t i o n or could acquire i t without unreasonable e f f o r t 
or expense) necessary t o v e r i f y the accuracy of any i n f o r m a t i o n furnished t o i t 
or t o which i t had access. 

(c) Parent and S e l l e r s understand t h a t the Shares may not be sold, 
t r a n s f e r r e d o r o t h e r w i s e d i s p o s e d o f w i t h o u t r e g i s t r a t i o n under t h e S e c u r i t i e s 

Act or an exemption therefrom and t h a t i n the absence of an e f f e c t i v e , 
r e g i s t r a t i o n statement covering the Shares or an a v a i l a b l e exemption from 
r e g i s t r a t i o n under the S e c u r i t i e s Act, the Shares must be held i n d e f i n i t e l y . 

SECTION 5. Representations and Warranties of -Buyer. Buyer 
warrants and represents to S e l l e r s as of the date hereof and the Closing 
as f o l l o w s : 

5.1 Good Standing. Buyer i s a c o r p o r a t i o n duly organized, 
v a l i d l y e x i s t i n g and i n good standing under the laws of the State of 
C a l i f o r n i a . 

5.2 A u t h o r i z a t i o n . The execution and d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement 
and the other Transaction Documents and the consummation of the tr a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by the Board of 
b i r e c t o r s of Buyer, and a l l other corporate a c t i o n of Buyer, i n c l u d i n g a l l 
necessary shareholder approvals, a u t h o r i z a t i o n s and r a t i f i c a t i o n s , necessary t o 
authorize the execution and d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement and the consummation of 
the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby have been taken. This Agreement and the 
other -Transaction Documents c o n s t i t u t e the l e g a l , v a l i d and b i n d i n g o b l i g a t i o n 
of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer i n accordance w i t h i t s terms. No consents of 
any lender, t r u s t e e or s e c u r i t y holder of Buyer or other Person i s re q u i r e d f o r 
Buyer t o enter i n t o and d e l i v e r t h i s Agreement and the other Transaction 
Documents and t o consummate the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby and thereby. 
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5.3 Governmental Approvals. Except as set f o r t h on Schedule 5.3, 
no a u t h o r i z a t i o n , approval, order, l i c e n s e , permit, f r a n c h i s e , or consent and no 
r e g i s t r a t i o n , d e c l a r a t i o n or f i l i n g by Buyer w i t h any Governmental A u t h o r i t y i s 
re q u i r e d i n connection w i t h the execution and d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement and the 
other Transaction Documents and the consummation of the t r a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated hereby. 

•. 5.4 No Brokers. Neither Buyer nor any of i t s A f f i l i a t e s has 
entered i n t o any c o n t r a c t , agreement, arrangement or understanding w i t h any 
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Person or f i r m which w i l l r e s u l t i n the o b l i g a t i o n of S e l l e r s or t h e i r 
A f f i l i a t e s t o pay any f i n d e r ' s fee or f i n a n c i a l advisory fee, brokerage fee or 
commission or s i m i l a r payment i n connection w i t h the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated 
hereby. 

5.5 A u t h o r i z a t i o n . No approval or a u t h o r i z a t i o n of t h i s Agreement 
or any other agreement t o be entered i n t o i n connection w i t h the t r a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated by t h i s Agreement i s re q u i r e d by law or otherwise i n order t o make 
t h i s Agreement or any other agreements entered i n t o i n connection herewith 
b i n d i n g upon the' Buyer, except f o r approval of the l i s t i n g of the Shares on the 
AMEX. Upon the execution and d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement and any other agreement 
i n connection t h e r e w i t h , such agreements w i l l c o n s t i t u t e l e g a l , v a l i d and 
bi n d i n g o b l i g a t i o n s of Buyer, enforceable i n accordance w i t h t h e i r r e s p e c t i v e 
terms. 

.5.6 Shares. The aut h o r i z e d common eq u i t y c a p i t a l of CEG consists 
of 150,000,000 shares of Common Stock , par value $.001 per share, of which 
30,499,290 shares have been issued and are outstanding. Except f o r any shares of 
Common Stock reserved f o r issuance under CEG's eq u i t y i n c e n t i v e plans or as 
dis c l o s e d i n CEG's SEC re p o r t s or Schedule 5.6 hereto, there are no options, 
warrants, conversion p r i v i l e g e s , preemptive r i g h t s , s u b s c r i p t i o n or other r i g h t s 
(or agreements f o r any such r i g h t s ) , commitments, arrangements or understandings 
of any kin d o b l i g a t i n g CEG t o issue or s e l l any shares o f c a p i t a l stock o f any 
class of CEG or any s e c u r i t i e s c o n v e r t i b l e i n t o or exchangeable f o r any such 
shares. The Shares, when issued, s o l d and d e l i v e r e d i n accordance w i t h the terms 
and f o r the c o n s i d e r a t i o n s e t ' f o r t h i n t h i s Agreement, w i l l be v a l i d l y issued, 
f u l l y paid and nonassessable and fr e e of any l i e n s or r e s t r i c t i o n s on t r a n s f e r 
other than r e s t r i c t i o n s on t r a n s f e r under a p p l i c a b l e s t a t e and f e d e r a l 
s e c u r i t i e s laws. Assuming the accuracy of the representations of the Parent and 
S e l l e r s i n Section 4.22-of t h i s Agreement, the Shares w i l l be issued i n 
compliance w i t h a l l a p p l i c a b l e f e d e r a l and s t a t e s e c u r i t i e s laws. 

5.7 SEC Rules. To Buyer's knowledge, CEG i s i n compliance w i t h SEC 
and AMEX r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s . 

SECTION 6. Conduct P r i o r t o the End of the Phase-Out Period. 

6.1 I n v e s t i g a t i o n by Buyer. Buyer may, p r i o r t o the end of the 
Phase-Out Period (as defined i n the Phase-Out Addendum), through i t s own 
rep r e s e n t a t i v e s ( i n c l u d i n g i t s counsel, accountants and consultants) make such 
reasonable i n q u i r i e s and.document reviews w i t h respect t o the Option Assets and 
general operations of the R e t a i l Energy Business and such review of the 
f i n a n c i a l records of the R e t a i l Energy Business as i t deems necessary or 
advisable i n connection w i t h the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby t o f a m i l i a r i z e ' 
i t s e l f w i t h such Option 

24 

Assets and general operations and f i n a n c i a l records; such a c t i v i t i e s s h a l l not, 
however, a f f e c t S e l l e r s ' r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s , warranties and agreements hereunder. 
S e l l e r s s h a l l permit Buyer and i t s authorized representatives t o have, a f t e r the 
date hereof, reasonable access t o the o f f i c e r s , employees and premises of each 
S e l l e r and t o a l l books and records of the R e t a i l Energy Business or r e l a t e d t o 
the Acquired Assets and Option Assets; and Buyer s h a l l have the r i g h t t o make 
copies t h e r e o f and excerpts therefrom. S e l l e r s s h a l l f u r n i s h Buyer w i t h such 
f i n a n c i a l and operating data and other i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h respect t o the Acquired 
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Assets, Option Assets and the R e t a i l Energy Business as Buyer may from time t o 
time reasonably request. S e l l e r s agree t o permit Buyer and i t s authorized 
r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s t o v i s i t s u p p l i e r s , customers and others having business 
r e l a t i o n s w i t h the R e t a i l Energy Business. S e l l e r s acknowledge t h a t the r i g h t s 
set f o r t h i n t h i s Section 6.1 are e s s e n t i a l t o Buyer as a means of e v a l u a t i n g 
the Acquired Assets and Option Assets and S e l l e r s agree t h a t i n no event w i l l 
S e l l e r s seek t o recover costs or damages of any kind i n c u r r e d as a . r e s u l t of the 
exercise by Buyer of such r i g h t s and hereby waives any and a l l r i g h t s i t might 
have t o recover any such costs or damages. 

6.2 Ongoing Operations. 

(a) From the date hereof u n t i l the date t h a t a l l Transferred 
Customers and Acquired Assets have t r a n s f e r r e d t o Buyer, S e l l e r s s h a l l take 
d i r e c t i o n from Buyer as t o the conduct and operation of the business of the 
R e t a i l Energy Business and the Acquired Assets consistent w i t h the requirements 
of law and r e g u l a t i o n a p p l i c a b l e t o the R e t a i l Energy Business and the Acquired 
Assets, conduct and operate the business of the R e t a i l Energy Business and the 
Acquired Assets i n the o r d i n a r y and usual course consistent w i t h past p r a c t i c e , 
preserve i n t a c t the business o r g a n i z a t i o n of the R e t a i l Energy Business, use 
commercially reasonable e f f o r t s t o preserve f o r Buyer the present r e l a t i o n s h i p 
between ,the R e t a i l Energy Business on the one hand and i t s s u p p l i e r s , customers 
and others having business r e l a t i o n s w i t h i t on the other, and take d i r e c t i o n s 
from Buyer i n conducting the R e t a i l Energy Business i n a manner which w i l l 
safeguard and maintain the commercial value of the Acquired Assets i n a l l 
m a t e r i a l respects. From and a f t e r the Last S e l l e r ' s Pay Day, S e l l e r s ' 
o b l i g a t i o n s as a f o r e s a i d s h a l l be l i m i t e d t o matters w i t h i n t h e i r c o n t r o l . From 
the date hereof u n t i l the date t h a t a l l Transferred Employees have t r a n s f e r r e d 
t o Buyer, S e l l e r s s h a l l use commercially reasonable e f f o r t s t o keep a v a i l a b l e t o 
Buyer the services o f E x i s t i n g Employees of the R e t a i l Energy Business. 

(b) Without l i m i t i n g the g e n e r a l i t y of Section 6.2(a), S e l l e r and 
i t s S u b s i d i a r i e s w i l l not, i n connection w i t h the conduct of the business of the 
R e t a i l Energy Business, without the p r i o r w r i t t e n consent of Buyer: 

( i ) change f o r 2004 any accounting p r a c t i c e s which would 
have the e f f e c t of a l t e r i n g i t s c a l c u l a t i o n of EBITDA from t h a t which would be 
computed using the p o l i c i e s and p r a c t i c e s i n place w i t h respect t o 2003; 

( i i ) increase the r a t e of sal a r y , b e n e f i t s or other 
compensation of any employee or h i r e any employees other than t o replace 
terminated employees or make any changes i n any b e n e f i t plan; 
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• ( i i i ) enter i n t o any agreement, Contract or commitment or 
i n c u r any L i a b i l i t y other than i n the o r d i n a r y course of business and c o n s i s t e n t 
w i t h i t s e x i s t i n g p o l i c i e s and having value of greater than $25,000.00 per 
annum; 

( i v ) waive any r i g h t s of s u b s t a n t i a l value; 

(v) dispose o f , permit t o lapse, or otherwise f a i l t o 
preserve any of i t s P r o p r i e t a r y Rights or other s i m i l a r r i g h t s , dispose of or 
permit t o lapse any l i c e n s e , permit or other form of a u t h o r i z a t i o n , or dispose 
of or d i s c l o s e t o any person, other than an authorized r e p r e s e n t a t i v e o f Buyer, 
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any customer l i s t , t r ade secret, formula process or know-how; 

( v i ) pay, loan or advance any amount t o or i n respect of, or 
s e l l , t r a n s f e r or lease any assets {whether r e a l , personal or mixed, t a n g i b l e or 
i n t a n g i b l e ) t o , or enter i n t o any agreement, arrangement or t r a n s a c t i o n w i t h , 
any o f i t s o f f i c e r s or d i r e c t o r s , any of i t s A f f i l i a t e s or associates or any 
Person having any d i r e c t or i n d i r e c t i n t e r e s t i n i t or i n which i t or any of i t s 
o f f i c e r s , d i r e c t o r s . A f f i l i a t e s or associates, has any d i r e c t or i n d i r e c t 
i n t e r e s t ; , 

( v i i ) agree, whether i n w r i t i n g or otherwise, t o take any 
a c t i o n p r o h i b i t e d i n t h i s Section 6.2; or 

( v i i i ) without l i m i t i n g any o f the foregoing, take or r e f r a i n 
from t a k i n g any a c t i o n the r e s u l t of which would render any re p r e s e n t a t i o n or 
warranty made t o Buyer i n or i n connection w i t h t h i s Agreement inaccurate. 

(c) S e l l e r s s h a l l inform Buyer of any m a t e r i a l a c t i o n taken or 
threatened t o be taken by: ( i ) any p a r t y supplying energy or gas t o Parent or 
any of i t s S u b s i d i a r i e s , ( i i ) any Governmental A u t h o r i t y having j u r i s d i c t i o n 
over Parent or any o f i t s S u b s i d i a r i e s or any of t h e i r customers, ( i i i ) any 
f i n a n c i a l i n s t i t u t i o n w i t h which Parent or any of i t s S u b s i d i a r i e s has a 
r e l a t i o n s h i p , or ( i v ) any other p a r t y whose a c t i o n or threatened a c t i o n could 
reasonably be determined t o be m a t e r i a l l y adverse t o the i n t e r e s t s of Buyer w i t h 
respect t o the Acquired Assets. 

6.3 Other Transactions. S e l l e r s w i l l not, and w i l l cause t h e i r 
A f f i l i a t e s and t h e i r r e s p e c t i v e d i r e c t o r s , o f f i c e r s , employees and agents not 
t o , d i r e c t l y or i n d i r e c t l y , s o l i c i t or i n i t i a t e any discussions or n e g o t i a t i o n s 
w i t h , or encourage or respond t o any i n q u i r i e s or proposals by, or p a r t i c i p a t e 
i n any n e g o t i a t i o n s w i t h , or provide any i n f o r m a t i o n t o , or otherwise cooperate 
i n any other way w i t h , any c o r p o r a t i o n , p a r t n e r s h i p , person or other e n t i t y or 
group, other than Buyer and i t s r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s , concerning (A) any sale or 
other t r a n s f e r of a l l or any s u b s t a n t i a l p o r t i o n of the R e t a i l Energy Business 
or the Acquired Assets; or (B) any j o i n t venture, agency, or s i m i l a r agreement 
t h a t binds S e l l e r s t o s e l l or cause t o be sol d energy or energy-related products 
or services w i t h any e n t i t y other than Buyer. 

6.4 Consents; Third-Party; Regulatory Approvals. As soon as 
p r a c t i c a b l e f o l l o w i n g the execution of t h i s Agreement, Buyer and S e l l e r s s h a l l 
work together t o cause (a) the t r a n s f e r of a l l s t a t e and f e d e r a l licenses and 
other Permits t o Buyer, t o the extent r e q u i r e d and allowed by law f o r Buyer t o 
operate t he R e t a i l Energy Business, i n c l u d i n g any UDC and PUC n o t i f i c a t i o n s 
and/or approvals, (b) assignment of Contracts which are included as Acquired 
Assets t o and assumption of such Contracts by Buyer, t o the extent permissible 
under such 
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Contracts and by law, I n c l u d i n g any UDC and PUC n o t i f i c a t i o n s and/or approvals, 
t o the extent r e q u i r e d by law, and (c) any other consents or approvals r e q u i r e d 
by law t o t r a n s f e r any of the Acquired Assets being acquired by Buyer pursuant 
t o t h i s Agreement and any other consents r e q u i r e d by law w i t h respect t o 
approval of t h i s Agreement. Buyer w i l l take the lead w i t h respect t o a l l 
a c t i v i t i e s i d e n t i f i e d i n t h i s Section 6.4 and bear the costs associated w i t h 
such a c t i v i t i e s w i t h the exception o f costs associated w i t h o b t a i n i n g the 
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approval of S e l l e r ' s and i t s A f f i l i a t e s ' lenders and other such f i n a n c i n g 
parties.. S e l l e r s agree t o a s s i s t i n e f f e c t u a t i n g such approvals where requested 
by Buyer and w i l l bear t h e i r reasonable costs associated w i t h such assistance. 
I n accordance w i t h the foregoing, Buyer s h a l l be responsible, and s h a l l 
reimburse S e l l e r s f o r , a l l d i r e c t out-of-pocket costs and expenses i n c u r r e d or 
paid by them i n connection w i t h securing necessary approvals from, g i v i n g 
r e q u i r e d notices t o , or making r e q u i r e d f i l i n g s w i t h any t h i r d p a r t i e s , provided 
t h a t any such costs and expenses i n c u r r e d or paid by S e l l e r s s h a l l have been 
f i r s t approved by Buyer i n i t s reasonable judgment. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, S e l l e r s w i l l be u n c o n d i t i o n a l l y o b l i g a t e d at t h e i r expense t o o b t a i n 
any r e q u i r e d consents and releases of l i e n s from t h e i r A f f i l i a t e s . 

6.5 Public Announcements. S e l l e r s and Buyer agree t h a t they w i l l 
c o nsult w i t h each other before i s s u i n g any press releases or otherwise making 
any public, statements w i t h respect t o t h i s Agreement or the t r a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated hereby and s h a l l not issue any press release or make any p u b l i c 
statement ( i n c l u d i n g w i t h respect t o SEC re p o r t s and stock exchange disclosures 
where reasonably p r a c t i c a b l e ) p r i o r t o such c o n s u l t a t i o n , except as may be 
req u i r e d by law. 

6.6 Employees and Employee B e n e f i t Plans. 

(a) Employment Of f e r . On or before the Last S e l l e r Pay Date, Buyer 
w i l l d e l i v e r a l e t t e r i n form and substance s a t i s f a c t o r y t o i t t o each employee 
i d e n t i f i e d on Schedule 6.6 o f f e r i n g such employee employment w i t h Buyer or an 
A f f i l i a t e of Buyer. The o f f e r of employment w i l l be: (a) at pay l e v e l s 
s u b s t a n t i a l l y equivalent t o the l e v e l s i n e f f e c t f o r such i n d i v i d u a l s 
immediately p r i o r t o the Closing Date, as di s c l o s e d i n Schedule 6.6 hereto; (b) 
w i t h b e n e f i t s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h i n d i v i d u a l s i n the employ of Buyer (which 
i n d i v i d u a l s are performing s i m i l a r work and r e c e i v i n g s i m i l a r pay); (c) 
conditioned on Buyer's usual terms and c o n d i t i o n s w i t h respect 'to o f f e r s of 
employment; and (d) e f f e c t i v e as of the close o f business on the Last S e l l e r Pay 
bate. Those employees accepting such o f f e r of employment s h a l l be known as the 
"Transferred Employees." A l l employees l i s t e d on Schedule 6.6 who are not 
Transferred Employees s h a l l be known as "Non-Transferred Employees." I f S e l l e r s , 
between the date hereof and the Last S e l l e r Payment Date h i r e a d d i t i o n a l 
employees, Buyer i s not required t o h i r e or o f f e r t o h i r e such employees which 
were not p r e v i o u s l y i d e n t i f i e d on such Schedule 6.6. 

(b) Employee B e n e f i t s . Neither Buyer nor any of i t s Su b s i d i a r i e s 
s h a l l assume any L i a b i l i t i e s w i t h respect t o , and s h a l l not receive any r i g h t or 
i n t e r e s t i n , any Employee Ben e f i t Plans of S e l l e r s i n which any of the 
Transferred Employees p a r t i c i p a t e . The S e l l e r s s h a l l cause a l l Transferred 
Employees t o be f u l l y vested i n t h e i r accrued b e n e f i t s earned under any of 
Sellers'' defined c o n t r i b u t i o n or defined b e n e f i t plans as o f the Last S e l l e r 
Payment Date. Each Transferred Employee s h a l l be c r e d i t e d w i t h the period of 
serv i c e f o r which he/she was c r e d i t e d under the employee pension b e n e f i t and 
employee welfare b e n e f i t plans of S e l l e r 
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f o r purposes of ( i ) e l i g i b i l i t y t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n Buyer's Employee Benefit 
Plans, and ( i i ) b e n e f i t accruals under each of Buyer's employee b e n e f i t plans 
t h a t i s a vacation or s i c k leave plan. Those Transferred Employees who were 
p a r t i c i p a n t s i n S e l l e r ' s employee welfare b e n e f i t plans (as defined i n Section 
3(1) of ERISA) as of the Closing Date s h a l l p a r t i c i p a t e i n Buyer's employee 
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w e l f a r e b e n e f i t plans immediately upon commencement of employment w i t h Buyer. 
Transferred Employees s h a l l not be subject t o any w a i t i n g p e r i o d or p r e e x i s t i n g 
c o n d i t i o n l i m i t a t i o n under any employee b e n e f i t plan of Buyer t h a t i s an 
employee welfare b e n e f i t plan (as defined i n Section 3(1) of ERISA), and any and 
a l l year-to-date d e d u c t i b l e s and co-pays f o r 2005 under the employee welfare 
b e n e f i t plans o f S e l l e r s h a l l be c r e d i t e d t o the Transferred Employees f o r 
purposes of t h e i r a p p l i c a b l e deductibles and co-pay l i m i t s f o r 2005 under each 
corresponding plan of Buyer. T r a n s f e r r i n g Employees who meet any a p p l i c a b l e 
s e r v i c e requirements f o r any Employee Be n e f i t Plan of Buyer t h a t an employee 
pension b e n e f i t plan (as defined i n Section 3(2) of ERISA) ( a f t e r r e c e i v i n g 
c r e d i t f o r s e r v i c e w i t h S e l l e r ) s h a l l become a p a r t i c i p a n t i n such plan of Buyer 
no l a t e r than the l a s t day of the month i n which such Transferred Employee 
commences employment w i t h Buyer. 

(c) Acceptance of Rollovers. Each employee b e n e f i t plan of Buyer 
t h a t i s a t a x - q u a l i f i e d defined c o n t r i b u t i o n plan (as de f i n e d i n Section 3(34) 
o f ERISA) t h a t accepts r o l l o v e r c o n t r i b u t i o n s s h a l l accept q u a l i f y i n g r o l l o v e r 
c o n t r i b u t i o n s of b e n e f i t s d i s t r i b u t e d from each Plan of S e l l e r t h a t i s a 
t a x - q u a l i f i e d defined c o n t r i b u t i o n plan, i n c l u d i n g t o the extent possible notes 
a t t r i b u t a b l e t o loans t o Transferred Employees t h a t are outstanding as of the 
date of d i s t r i b u t i o n from such Plan. 

(d) Payments t o Transferred Employees. S e l l e r s s h a l l pay t o 
Transferred Employees a l l accrued vacation owing t o such Transferred Employees 
as of the Last S e l l e r Payment Date as w e l l as bonuses, p r o f i t sharing, i n c e n t i v e 
commissions or other compensation of any kind f o r periods p r i o r t o the Last 
S e l l e r Payment Date. Buyer s h a l l not assume any vacation or s i c k time 
L i a b i l i t i e s w i t h respect t o the Transferred Employees, nor s h a l l Buyer assume 
any L i a b i l i t i e s f o r bonuses, p r o f i t sharing, i n c e n t i v e commissions or other 
compensation of any kind under any S e l l e r plan or arrangement. 

(e) S e l l e r s ' Retention of Employment Related L i a b i l i t i e s . Buyer i s 
not assuming any L i a b i l i t y of Parent or any of i t s Su b s i d i a r i e s t o t h e i r 
employees or former employees ( i ) f o r b e n e f i t s ( i n c l u d i n g h e a l t h and welfare 
b e n e f i t s ) , compensation ( i n c l u d i n g v acation, h o l i d a y and overtime pay), worker's 
compensation, c o n t r i b u t i o n s , insurance premiums and a d m i n i s t r a t i v e expenses 
i n c u r r e d or accrued before the Closing Date, ( i i ) a r i s i n g under the c o n t i n u a t i o n 
coverage requirements of Section 4980B{f) of the Code and Section 601 et seq. of 
ERISA w i t h respect t o a l l United States employees of the R e t a i l Energy Business 
(or any b e n e f i c i a r y or dependent of such employees) who, on or before the Last 
S e l l e r Payment Date or otherwise, i n connection w i t h the t r a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated by t h i s Agreement, have- exercised or are e l i g i b l e t o exercise t h e i r 
r i g h t t o such c o n t i n u a t i o n coverage, ( i i i ) t o provide p o s t - r e t i r e m e n t h e a l t h and 
l i f e insurance b e n e f i t s t o employees (or any b e n e f i c i a r y or dependent of such 
employee) of the R e t a i l Energy Business, or ( i v ) f o r any claims made by the 
employees of the R e t a i l Energy Business, and any l i a b i l i t y r e s u l t i n g from same, 
f o r events o c c u r r i n g on or before the Last S e l l e r Payment Date. 
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( f ) P a y r o l l . S e l l e r s s h a l l continue t o process p a y r o l l and t o pay 
the Transferred Employees up t o and i n c l u d i n g the Last S e l l e r Pay Date. Buyer 
s h a l l assume p a y r o l l processing r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s t h e r e a f t e r . Such p a y r o l l 
amounts ( i n c l u d i n g taxes and b e n e f i t s ) as are pai d by S e l l e r s to such 
Transferred Employees a l l o c a b l e t o the p e r i o d a f t e r Closing s h a l l be reimbursed 
by Buyer w i t h i n 10 calendar days f o l l o w i n g r e c e i p t by Buyer of d e f i n i t i v e 
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records of payment of such amounts. 

{g} WARN Act. To the extent a p p l i c a b l e . S e l l e r s s h a l l be 
responsible f o r a l l o b l i g a t i o n s under the Federal Worker Adjustment R e t r a i n i n g 
and N o t i f i c a t i o n Act ("WARN") and/or analogous s t a t e and l o c a l laws, i n c l u d i n g , 
w i t h o u t l i m i t a t i o n , the o b l i g a t i o n t o provide WARN no t i c e s , i n connection w i t h 
the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated by t h i s Agreement. 

(h) Mutual Cooperation. Each of the p a r t i e s hereto s h a l l cooperate 
w i t h the other p a r t i e s and provide the other p a r t i e s w i t h such records, 
i n f o r m a t i o n , documentation and assistance as such p a r t i e s reasonably request i n 
order t o c a r r y out the p a r t i e s ' respective o b l i g a t i o n s under t h i s agreement. 

6.7 N o t i f i c a t i o n . Upon becoming aware of same, u n t i l - the f i n a l 
tran'sfer of the Acquired Assets, a p a r t y s h a l l give prompt w r i t t e n n o t i c e t o the 
other of { i ) the existence of any f a c t or the occurrence of any event which 
c o n s t i t u t e s , or w i t h the g i v i n g of n o t i c e or the passage of time or both would 
c o n s t i t u t e , a breach or d e f a u l t under any Contract w i t h i n the d e f i n i t i o n s of 
Acquired Assets or Option Assets. The g i v i n g of any such n o t i c e s h a l l not 
a f f e c t , modify or l i m i t i n any way any r e p r e s e n t a t i o n , warranty, agreement or 
covenant of a p a r t y made herein or pursuant hereto or the other p a r t y ' s r i g h t t o 
r e l y thereon. 

6.. 8 Transfer Documents. S e l l e r s s h a l l execute and d e l i v e r t o Buyer 
and/or the Buyer Designees, on the Closing Date or t h e r e a f t e r as and when'Buyer 
acquires any of the Acquired Assets not t r a n s f e r r e d as of the Closing or 
exercises i t s o p t i o n t o acquire Option Assets, a l l f u r t h e r - i n s t r u m e n t s as may be 
reasonably.necessary, expedient or proper i n order t o complete any and a l l 
conveyances, t r a n s f e r s , and assignments provided f o r herein and t o convey t o 
Buyer and the Buyer Designees such t i t l e t o the Acquired Assets as S e l l e r s are 
o b l i g a t e d hereunder t o convey, a l l i n form and substance reasonably s a t i s f a c t o r y 
t o Buyer. 

6.9 Covenant t o S a t i s f y Conditions. The Part i e s s h a l l use 
commercially reasonable e f f o r t s t o ensure t h a t the co n d i t i o n s set f o r t h herein 
are s a t i s f i e d , and t h a t a l l the Acquired Assets are t r a n s f e r r e d t o Buyer, 
i n s o f a r as such matters are w i t h i n t h e i r c o n t r o l . 

6.10 Schedules. As of the date hereof, t h i s Agreement does not have 
attached any Schedules other than Schedules A-D. S e l l e r agrees t o f u r n i s h a l l 
other contemplated Schedules not l a t e r than close of business, P a c i f i c time, on' 
February 2, 2005 ("Seller Disclosure Schedules"). 

6.11 Schedule 4.2(A) Assets. With respect t o any Acquired Assets or 
Option Assets which are l i s t e d on Schedule 4.2(A), Parent agrees t o cause, the 
a p p l i c a b l e owner of such assets t o (x) t r a n s f e r same to Buyer as and when 
r e q u i r e d under t h i s Agreement as i f such asset was owned by "a S e l l e r hereunder 
and under the same repre s e n t a t i o n s , warranties, terms and 
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c o n d i t i o n s and (y) otherwise perform a l l o b l i g a t i o n s of a S e l l e r hereunder w i t h 
respect t o such asset as i f i t were a p a r t y hereto. 

SECTION 7. Conditions of Buyer's O b l i g a t i o n s t o Close. The 
o b l i g a t i o n s of Buyer under t h i s Agreement are subject t o the s a t i s f a c t i o n - o f the 
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c o n d i t i o n s set f o r t h below, which c o n d i t i o n s may be waived by Buyer without 
r e l e a s i n g or waiving any of i t s r i g h t s hereunder. 

7.1 Agreement and Conditions. On or before the Closing Date, 
S e l l e r s s h a l l have complied w i t h and duly performed a l l agreements and 
c o n d i t i o n s on t h e i r p a r t r e q u i r e d t o be complied w i t h and performed pursuant t o 
or i n connection w i t h t h i s Agreement. 

7.2 Representations and Warranties. The representations and 
warranties o f S e l l e r s contained i n t h i s Agreement, or otherwise made i n w r i t i n g 
i n connection w i t h the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby ( i n c l u d i n g , without 
l i m i t a t i o n , any representations and warranties i n the Transaction Documents), 
s h a l l be t r u e and c o r r e c t on and as of the date hereof and the Closing Date w i t h 
the same force and e f f e c t as though such representations and warranties had been 
made on and as of the Closing Date. 

7.3 No Legal Proceeding. No Action s h a l l have been i n s t i t u t e d or 
threatened before any court or Governmental A u t h o r i t y seeking t o r e s t r a i n or 
p r o h i b i t the a c q u i s i t i o n by 'Buyer, or the conveyance by Parent and i t s 
S u b s i d i a r i e s , of the Acquired Assets. 

7.4 C e r t i f i c a t e . Buyer s h a l l have received a c e r t i f i c a t e dated the 
Closing Date and executed by a senior o f f i c e r of each Seller' on behalf of such 
S e l l e r t o the e f f e c t t h a t the c o n d i t i o n s expressed i n Sections 7.1 and 7.2 have 
been f u l f i l l e d . 

7.5 Lien Releases. US Bank s h a l l have executed documentation 
t e r m i n a t i n g a l l s e c u r i t y agreements and s e c u r i t y i n t e r e s t s , i n c l u d i n g r e l a t e d 
UCC f i l i n g s , w i t h respect t o the Acquired Assets and the Option Assets, i n form 
and substance reasonably acceptable t o Buyer and the Acquired Assets and Option 
Assets s h a l l be subject t o no Liens other than i n favor of Tenaska Power 
Services, Inc., pursuant t o t h a t c e r t a i n S e c u r i t y Agreement dated March 17, 2003 
and Buyer hereunder. 

7.6' D e l i v e r i e s . Buyer s h a l l have received the d e l i v e r i e s t o be 
made by S e l l e r s pursuant t o Section 9. 

7.7 Schedules. Buyer s h a l l have received S e l l e r ' s Disclosure 
Schedules which s h a l l be acceptable t o Buyer i n i t s sole d i s c r e t i o n ( i t being 
understood t h a t Buyer's acceptance t h e r e o f s h a l l not be deemed a waiver of any 
r i g h t under Section 13.1 h e r e o f ) . 

SECTION 8. Conditions of the S e l l e r s ' O b l i g a t i o n s t o Close. The 
o b l i g a t i o n s of S e l l e r s under t h i s Agreement are subject t o the s a t i s f a c t i o n of 
the c o n d i t i o n s set f o r t h below, which c o n d i t i o n s may be waived by S e l l e r s 
w i t h o u t r e l e a s i n g or waiving any of t h e i r r i g h t s hereunder. 
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8.1 Agreement and Conditions. On or before the Closing Date, Buyer 
s h a l l have complied w i t h and duly performed a l l agreements and c o n d i t i o n s on i t s 
p a r t r e q u i r e d t o be complied w i t h and performed pursuant t o or i n connection 
w i t h t h i s Agreement on or before the Closing. Date. 

8.2 Representations and Warranties. The representations and 
warranties of Buyer contained i n t h i s Agreement, or otherwise made i n w r i t i n g i n 
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connection w i t h the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby ( i n c l u d i n g , without 
l i m i t a t i o n , any representations and warranties i n the Transaction Documents), 
s h a l l be t r u e and c o r r e c t on and as of the date hereof and the Closing Date w i t h 
the same force and e f f e c t as though such representations and warranties had been 
-made on and as of the Closing Date. 

8.3 D e l i v e r i e s . S e l l e r s s h a l l have received the d e l i v e r i e s t o be 
made by Buyer pursuant t o Section 10. 

8.4 C e r t i f i c a t e . S e l l e r s s h a l l have received a c e r t i f i c a t e dated 
the Closing Date and executed by a senior o f f i c e r of Buyer on behalf of Buyer t o 
the e f f e c t t h a t the c o n d i t i o n s expressed i n Section 8.1 and 8.2 have been 
f u l f i l l e d . 

SECTION 9. D e l i v e r i e s of S e l l e r s on the Closing Date. S e l l e r s agree 
on .the Closing Date t o d e l i v e r t o Buyer the f o l l o w i n g : 

9.1 T i t l e t o Acquired Assets. S e l l e r A n c i l l a r y Documents as 
are necessary t o t r a n s f e r the Acquired Assets t o Buyer hereunder which are 
being t r a n s f e r r e d at the Closing. 

9.2 C e r t i f i c a t e s . The c e r t i f i c a t e s o f S e l l e r s r e f e r r e d t o i n 
Section 7.4 hereof. 

9.3 Secretary's C e r t i f i c a t e . A c e r t i f i c a t e of the Secretary or an 
A s s i s t a n t Secretary of each S e l l e r s e t t i n g f o r t h a copy of the r e s o l u t i o n s 
adopted by the Board of D i r e c t o r s of each S e l l e r a u t h o r i z i n g and approving the 
execution and d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement and the consummation of the 
tr a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby. 

9.4 A u t h o r i z a t i o n . Appropriate instruments a u t h o r i z i n g Buyer t o 
endorse i n the name of S e l l e r s a l l checks, d r a f t s , notes and other instruments 
f o r the payment of money and t o receive f o r the account, of Buyer a l l proceeds 
thereo f t o which the Buyer i s e n t i t l e d under t h i s Agreement. 

9.5 Escrow Agreement. A copy of the Escrow Agreement duly executed 
by S e l l e r s . 

9.6 Sales Agency Agreement. A copy of the Sales Agency Agreement 
duly executed by S e l l e r s . 

9.7 T r a n s i t i o n Agreement. A copy of the T r a n s i t i o n Agreement duly 
executed by S e l l e r s . 
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9.8 S e c u r i t y Agreement. A copy of the Sec u r i t y Agreement duly 
executed by S e l l e r s . 

9.9 Energy Agreements. Copies of the NAESB, EEI and ISDA duly 
executed by the ACN Energy E n t i t i e s . 

9.10 Operating Agency Agreement. Copies of the Operating 
Agency Agreements duly executed by each of the ACN Energy E n t i t i e s . 

9.11 N e t t i n g L e t t e r . A copy of the N e t t i n g L e t t e r d uly executed by 
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ACN U t i l i t y Services. 

9.12 Other D e l i v e r i e s . Such other documents or instruments as Buyer 
or i t s counsel may reasonably request. 

SECTION 10. D e l i v e r i e s of Buyer on the Closing Date. Buyer agrees on 
the Closing Date t o d e l i v e r t o S e l l e r the f o l l o w i n g : 

10.1 Purchase Price. The cash p o r t i o n of the Purchase Price t o be 
d e l i v e r e d pursuant t o Section 3.1 hereof. 

10.2 Secretary's C e r t i f i c a t e . A c e r t i f i c a t e of the Secretary or an 
As s i s t a n t Secretary of Buyer s e t t i n g f o r t h a copy of the r e s o l u t i o n s adopted by 
the Board of Di r e c t o r s of Buyer a u t h o r i z i n g and approving the execution and 
d e l i v e r y of t h i s Agreement and the consummation of the tr a n s a c t i o n s contemplated 
hereby. 

10.3 Escrow Agreement. A copy of the Escrow Agreement duly executed 
by Buyer. 

10.4 Sales Agency Agreement. A copy of the Sales Agency Agreement 
duly executed by Buyer. 

10.5 T r a n s i t i o n Agreement. A copy of the T r a n s i t i o n Agreement duly 
executed by Buyer. 

10.6 S e c u r i t y Agreement. A copy of the S e c u r i t y Agreement duly 
executed by Buyer. 

10.7 Energy Agreements. Copies of the NAESB, EEI and ISDA duly 
executed by Buyer. 

10.8 Operating Agency Agreement. Copies of each of the Operating 
Agency Agreements d e l i v e r e d by the ACN Energy E n t i t i e s pursuant t o Section 9.10 
duly executed by Buyer. 

Buyer. 
10.9 N e t t i n g L e t t e r . A copy of the N e t t i n g L e t t e r duly executed by 

SECTION 11. A d d i t i o n a l Covenants. 

32 

11.1 M a i l . S e l l e r s authorize and empower Buyer from and a f t e r the 
date hereof ( i ) t o receive and open m a i l addressed t o Parent or any of i t s 
S u b s i d i a r i e s and { i i ) t o deal w i t h the contents the r e o f i n a manner cons i s t e n t 
w i t h the purpose of t h i s Agreement and the other agreements described herein and 
contemplated hereby, provided such mail and the contents the r e o f r e l a t e t o the 
Acquired Assets or otherwise t o the business of the R e t a i l Energy Business, as 
conducted by Buyer or t o any of the Assumed L i a b i l i t i e s . S e l l e r s agree to 
d e l i v e r t o Buyer promptly upon r e c e i p t any mai l , checks or other documents 
received by i t p e r t a i n i n g t o the Acquired Assets or otherwise to the business of 
the R e t a i l Energy Business, as conducted by Buyer, or any of the Assumed 
L i a b i l i t i e s . Buyer agrees t o d e l i v e r t o S e l l e r s promptly any mail which i t 
receives t o which i t i s not e n t i t l e d by reason of t h i s Agreement or otherwise 
and t o which S e l l e r s are e n t i t l e d . 
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11.2 Further Assurances. Sellers agree at any time and from time to 
time a f t e r the Closing Date, upon the request of Buyer, to do, execute, 
acknowledge and deliver, or to cause to be done, executed, acknowledged and 
delivered, a l l such further acts, assignments, transfers, powers of attorney and 
assurances as may be reasonably required for the better assigning, transferring, 
conveying, and confirming to Buyer, or to i t s successors and assigns, of any or 
a l l of the Acquired Assets and to carry out the terms and conditions of t h i s 
Agreement. 

11.3 N o t i f i c a t i o n to Customers. As soon as practicable following 
the Closing, and only to the extent required by applicable laws, regulations and 
t a r i f f s . Sellers and Buyer w i l l cause to be sent to Sellers' active customers a 
notice of the proposed transfer of the active customer from Sellers to Buyer, 
which notice w i l l comply with a l l applicable requirements of the Public 
U t i l i t i e s ' Commission(s) (the "PUC(s)"), the Local U t i l i t y D i stribution 
Company(ies) ("UDC(s)") and a l l other relevant governmental agencies related to 
the transfer of e l e c t r i c and/or natural gas customers (the "Customer 
N o t i f i c a t i o n " ) . The Customer N o t i f i c a t i o n w i l l contain such information 
concerning Buyer and Sellers as i s required by law and approved by Buyer and 
Sellers, which approval w i l l not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

11.4 Non-Transferred Assets - Upon the expiration of the Phase-Out 
Period, the remaining Acquired Assets not transferred to Buyer shall be disposed 
of i n a manner mutually agreed to by the Parties and i f the Parties shall be 
unable to agree, such assets s h a l l , to the extent applicable, be terminated or, 
i f termination of any such asset i s not possible, remain with the applicable 
Seller. In the event that the transfer of any asset'listed on Schedule 4.15(b) 
remains pending i n any par t i c u l a r j u r s i d i c t i o n at the expiration of the 
Phase-Out Period, and the parties reasonably believe that permission for the 
transfer of such asset i s l i k e l y to be granted, the Buyer may request i n w r i t i n g 
a 60-day extension of the Phase-Out Period from the Seller, which w i l l not be 
unreasonably witheld or delayed. 

11.5 Trading Restrictions. Sellers agree that neither they nor 
t h e i r A f f i l i a t e s w i l l .in any manner, d i r e c t l y or i n d i r e c t l y , purchase or s e l l 
securities of CEG during any period or on any day for which the market value of 
the Shares i s or w i l l be determined for purposes of t h i s Agreement, any 
attachment hereto or any Transaction Agreement. 

SECTION 12. Confidentiality. 
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12.1 Sellers agree not to, and to cause t h e i r o f f i c e r s , directors, 
employees, stockholders and A f f i l i a t e s not to, d i r e c t l y or i n d i r e c t l y , without 
the prior w r i t t e n consent of Buyer, use or disclose to any person, fi r m or 
corporation, any information, trade secrets, confidential customer information, 
technical data or know-how r e l a t i n g to the products, processes, methods, 
equipment or business practices of the Retail Energy Business. 

12.2 Buyer agrees not to, and to cause i t s o f f i c e r s , directors, 
employees, stockholders and A f f i l i a t e s not to, d i r e c t l y or i n d i r e c t l y , without 
the p r i o r w r i t t e n consent of Parent, use or disclose to any person, fi r m or 
corporation, any information, trade secrets, confidential customer information, 
technical data or know-how r e l a t i n g solely to any Acquired Assets or Option 
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Assets which are not u l t i m a t e l y acquired by Buyer f o r any reason. 

12.3 Each of the Par t i e s acknowledges and agrees t h a t any breach of 
t h i s Section 12 i s l i k e l y t o r e s u l t i n i r r e p a r a b l e i n j u r y t o the other Party, 
t h a t monetary damages w i l l be an inadequate remedy of such breach and t h a t , 
accordingly, i n a d d i t i o n t o any other remedy t h a t such other Party may have, 
such other Party s h a l l be e n t i t l e d t o enforce the s p e c i f i c performance of t h i s 
Section 12 and t o seek both permanent and temporary r e l i e f i n the event of any 
breach hereof. 

12.4 The foregoing s h a l l not prevent any person from d i s c l o s i n g 
such i n f o r m a t i o n i f already i n the p u b l i c domain, or i f r e q u i r e d by a p p l i c a b l e 
law or stock exchange r u l e or i f requested by a r e g u l a t o r . 

SECTION 13. I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n . 

13.1 I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n by S e l l e r s . Parent and S e l l e r s s h a l l j o i n t l y 
and s e v e r a l l y indemnify, defend and hold harmless Buyer and i t s A f f i l i a t e s from 
and against, and pay or reimburse Buyer and i t s A f f i l i a t e s f o r , any and a l l 
'Damages as i n c u r r e d , r e l a t i n g t o or a r i s i n g from { i } noncompliance w i t h any 
ap p l i c a b l e bulk sales or t r a n s f e r law, ( i i ) the Excluded L i a b i l i t i e s , ( i i i ) any 
L i a b i l i t y or claim a r i s i n g i n any way from any a c t i o n taken by, or r e l a t i n g t o 
the operations or employees, i n c l u d i n g former employees of. Parent or any of i t s 
Sub s i d i a r i e s p r i o r t o the Closing Date, or ( i v ) the breach or inaccuracy of or 
f a i l u r e t o comply w i t h any of the warranties, representations, c o n d i t i o n s , 
covenants or agreements of S e l l e r s or Parent contained i n t h i s Agreement or i n 
any agreement or document d e l i v e r e d pursuant hereto or i n connection herewith 
( i n c l u d i n g , without l i m i t a t i o n , the Transaction Documents), or a r i s i n g out of 
the consummation of the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby. 

13.2 I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n by Buyer. Buyer s h a l l indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless S e l l e r s from and against, and pay or reimburse S e l l e r s f o r , any 
and a l l Damages as i n c u r r e d , r e l a t i n g t o or a r i s i n g from ( i ) any Assumed 
L i a b i l i t y or ( i i ) the breach or inaccuracy of or f a i l u r e t o comply w i t h any 
-warranties, representations, c o n d i t i o n s , covenants or agreements of Buyer 
contained i n t h i s Agreement or i n any agreement, c e r t i f i c a t e or document 
d e l i v e r e d pursuant t o or i n connection w i t h t h i s Agreement or a r i s i n g out of the 
c l o s i n g of the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated hereby. 

13.3 Procedures f o r I n d e m n i f i c a t i o n . 
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(a) I n the event t h a t any claim i s asserted against any p a r t y 
hereto, or any p a r t y hereto i s made a p a r t y defendant i n any a c t i o n or 
proceeding, and such claim, a c t i o n or proceeding involves a matter which i s the 
subject of t h i s i n d e m n i f i c a t i o n , then such p a r t y (an "Indemnified Party") s h a l l 
give w r i t t e n n o t i c e t o the other p a r t y hereto (the "Indemnifying Party") of such 
claim, a c t i o n or proceeding, and such Indemnifying Party s h a l l have the r i g h t t o 
j o i n i n the defense of sai d claim, a c t i o n or proceeding at such Indemnifying 
Party's own cost and expense and, i f the Indemnifying Party agrees i n w r i t i n g t o 
be bound by and t o promptly pay the f u l l amount of any f i n a l judgment from which 
no f u r t h e r appeal may be taken and i f the Indemnified Party i s reasonably 
assured of the Indemnifying Party's a b i l i t y t o s a t i s f y such agreement, then at 
the o p t i o n of the Indemnifying Party, such Indemnifying Party may take over the 
defense of such claim, a c t i o n or proceeding w i t h counsel reasonably s a t i s f a c t o r y 
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t o the Indemnified Party, except t h a t , i n such case, the Indemnified Party s h a l l 
'have the r i g h t t o j o i n i n the defense of said claim, a c t i o n or proceeding at i t s 
own cost and expense. The Indemnified Party may not s e t t l e any proceeding 
w i t h o u t the consent of the Indemnifying Party, not t o be unreasonably w i t h h e l d . 

(b) At S e l l e r s ' or Buyers' o p t i o n , any indemnity payment s h a l l be 
deemed t o be an adjustment t o the Purchase Price. 

SECTION 14. S u r v i v a l of Representations; E f f e c t of C e r t i f i c a t e s . 

14.1 A l l representations, warranties, covenants and o b l i g a t i o n s i n 
t h i s Agreement or i n any agreement, instrument or other document d e l i v e r e d i n 
connection herewith s h a l l s u r v i v e the execution and d e l i v e r y hereof and the 
Closing Date. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, n e i t h e r p a r t y may make or 
assert any claim under any r e p r e s e n t a t i o n or warranty of the other p a r t y 
contained h e r e i n l a t e r than one year a f t e r the Closing Date, except t h a t the 
representations i n Sections 4.6, 4.19 and 5.4 s h a l l survive u n t i l 6 months a f t e r 
the s t a t u t e of l i m i t a t i o n s w i t h respect t o the matters addressed t h e r e i n has 
expired { i n c l u d i n g a l l waivers or extensions t h e r e o f ) ; and provided t h a t any 
claims made or asserted by a p a r t y w i t h i n the ap p l i c a b l e time p e r i o d prescribed 
above s h a l l survive such e x p i r a t i o n u n t i l such claim i s f i n a l l y resolved and a l l 
o b l i g a t i o n s w i t h respect t h e r e t o are f u l l y s a t i s f i e d . A l l statements contained 
i n any o f f i c e r ' s c e r t i f i c a t e d e l i v e r e d by or on behalf of any p a r t y hereto 
pursuant t o t h i s Agreement s h a l l c o n s t i t u t e and have the same force and e f f e c t 
as the representations and warranties of such p a r t y set f o r t h herein. 

14.2 Each statement contained i n any c e r t i f i c a t e d e l i v e r e d i n 
connection w i t h t h i s Agreement or the consummation of the t r a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated hereby s h a l l c o n s t i t u t e the repr e s e n t a t i o n , warranty and agreement 
of the p a r t y d e l i v e r i n g such c e r t i f i c a t e and s h a l l have the same force and 
e f f e c t as i f i t had been in c o r p o r a t e d i n t o t h i s Agreement as a re p r e s e n t a t i o n , 
warranty and agreement by such p a r t y . 

SECTION 15. Fees and Disbursements. Except as otherwise provided 
herein, each p a r t y w i l l pay i t s own fees and expenses i n connection w i t h t h i s 
Agreement and the completion of the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated by t h i s Agreement. 
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SECTION 16. Notices. A l l n o t i c e s , requests, demands and other 
communications provided f o r by t h i s Agreement s h a l l be i n w r i t i n g and s h a l l be 
deemed t o have been given when hand d e l i v e r e d , when received i f sent by 
t e l e c o p i e r or by same day or overnight recognized commercial c o u r i e r service or 
three business days a f t e r being mailed i n any general or branch o f f i c e of the 
United States Postal Service, enclosed i n a r e g i s t e r e d or c e r t i f i e d postpaid 
envelope, addressed t o the address of the p a r t i e s s t a t e d below or t o such 
changed address as such p a r t y may have f i x e d by n o t i c e : 

To S e l l e r s : American Communications Network, Inc. 
32991 Hamilton Court 
Farmington H i l l s , Michigan 48334" 
A t t e n t i o n : Chief F i n a n c i a l O f f i c e r 

.Telecopier: (248) 489-8901 

- copy to -
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J a f f e , R a i t t , Heuer & Weiss, P.C. 
27777 F r a n k l i n Road, Suite 2500 
S o u t h f i e l d , Michigan 4 8034 
A t t e n t i o n : Ralph R. Margulis 
Telecopier: (248) 351-3082 

To Buyer: Commonwealth Energy Corporation 
c/o Commerce Energy Group 
600 Anton Blvd., Suite 2000 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
A t t e n t i o n : General Counsel 
Telecopier: (714) 259-2575 

- copy t o -

Stroock & Stroock & Lavan LLP 
180 Maiden Lane 
New York, New York 10038 
A t t e n t i o n : Michael S. Shenberg, Esq. 
Telecopier: 212-806-600 6 

provided t h a t any n o t i c e of change of address s h a l l be e f f e c t i v e only upon 
r e c e i p t . 

SECTION 17. Termination. 

17.1 This Agreement may be terminated at any time p r i o r t o the 
Closing by any of the f o l l o w i n g : 

(a) By mutual w r i t t e n agreement of Buyer and S e l l e r s ; or 
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(b) By e i t h e r Buyer or S e l l e r s , i f the Closing has not occurred on 
or before the 10th day f o l l o w i n g the date hereof upon w r i t t e n n o t i c e by such 
t e r m i n a t i n g p a r t y , provided t h a t at the time such n o t i c e i s given a m a t e r i a l 
breach of t h i s Agreement by such t e r m i n a t i n g p a r t y s h a l l not be the reason f o r 
the Closing's f a i l u r e t o occur. 

17.2 I f t h i s Agreement i s terminated as provided i n - S e c t i o n 17.1, 
.then t h i s Agreement s h a l l f o r t h w i t h become voi d and there s h a l l be no l i a b i l i t y 
or o b l i g a t i o n on the p a r t of any p a r t y hereto (or any of t h e i r r e s p e c t i v e 
o f f i c e r s , d i r e c t o r s or employees), except based upon the o b l i g a t i o n s set f o r t h 
i n Sections 12, 15, and 17.2, or f o r any breach there o f occuring p r i o r t o 
t e r m i n a t i o n . 

SECTION 18. Miscellaneous. 

18.1 E n t i r e Agreement. This Agreement and the other Transaction 
Documents, i n c l u d i n g the E x h i b i t s and Schedules hereto and t h e r e t o , sets f o r t h 
the 'entire agreement and understanding between the p a r t i e s and merges and 
supersedes a l l p r i o r discussions, agreements and understandings of every kind 
and nature among them as t o the subject matter hereof, and no p a r t y s h a l l be 
bound by any•condition, d e f i n i t i o n , warranty or r e p r e s e n t a t i o n other than as 
expressly provided f o r i n t h i s Agreement or as may be on a date on or subsequent 
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t o the' date hereof duly set f o r t h i n w r i t i n g signed by each p a r t y which i s t o be 
bound thereby. Unless otherwise expressly .defined, terms defined i n t h i s 
Agreement s h a l l have the same meanings when used i n any E x h i b i t or Schedule and 
terms defined i n any E x h i b i t or Schedule s h a l l have the same meanings when used 
i h t h i s Agreement or i n any other E x h i b i t or Schedule. This Agreement ( i n c l u d i n g 
the E x h i b i t s and Schedules hereto) s h a l l not be changed, modified or amended 
except by a w r i t i n g signed by each p a r t y t o be charged and t h i s Agreement may 
not be discharged except by performance i n accordance w i t h i t s terms or by a 
w r i t i n g signed by each p a r t y t o be charged. 

18.2 Taxes. Any Taxes i n the nature of a sales or t r a n s f e r tax 
( i n c l u d i n g any r e a l t y t r a n s f e r tax or r e a l t y gains t r a n s f e r t a x ) , and any stock 
t r a n s f e r t a x , payable on the sale or t r a n s f e r of a l l or any p o r t i o n of the 
Acquired Assets or Shares or the consummation of any other t r a n s a c t i o n 
contemplated hereby s h a l l be p a i d by Sellers.. 

18.3 Governing Law; J u r i s d i c t i o n ; Waiver of J u r y . T r i a l . 

(a) This Agreement s h a l l be governed by and construed i n 
accordance w i t h the laws of the State of New York, a p p l i c a b l e to agreements made 
and t o be performed e n t i r e l y w i t h i n such State, without regard t o the c o n f l i c t 
o f laws p r i n c i p l e s t h e r e o f . 

(b) Any disputes or claims a r i s i n g out of or i n connection w i t h 
t h i s Agreement and the t r a n s a c t i o n s contemplated or documents r e q u i r e d hereby 
s h a l l be submitted t o the exclusive j u r i s d i c t i o n of the courts o f the State of 
New York and the f e d e r a l courts of the United States of America l o c a t e d i n New 
York, New York, and appropriate a p p e l l a t e courts therefrom. The p a r t i e s hereby 
i r r e v o c a b l y waive, t o the f u l l e s t extent p e r m i t t e d by a p p l i c a b l e Law, any 
o b j e c t i o n which they may now or h e r e a f t e r have t o the l a y i n g of venue of any 
dispute a r i s i n g out o f or r e l a t i n g t o t h i s Agreement or any o f the t r a n s a c t i o n s 
contemplated hereby brought i n such court or any defense of inconvenient forum 
f o r the maintenance of such dispute. Each of the 

37 

p a r t i e s hereto agrees t h a t a judgment i n any such dispute may be enforced i n 
other j u r i s d i c t i o n s by s u i t on the judgment or i n any other manner provided by 
Law. This consent t o j u r i s d i c t i o n i s being given s o l e l y f o r purposes of t h i s 
Agreement and i s not intended t o , and s h a l l not, confer consent t o . j u r i s d i c t i o n 
w i t h respect t o any other dispute i n which a p a r t y t o t h i s Agreement may become 
in v o l v e d . Each of the p a r t i e s hereto hereby consents t o process being served by 
any p a r t y t o t h i s Agreement i n any s u i t , a c t i o n , or proceeding of the nature 
s p e c i f i e d i n t h i s Section 18.3(b) by the m a i l i n g of a copy there o f i n the manner 
s p e c i f i e d by the p r o v i s i o n s of Section 18.3. 

18.4 S e v e r a b i l i t y . I f any p r o v i s i o n of t h i s Agreement i s held t o ,be 
unenforceable f o r any reason, i t s h a l l be adjusted r a t h e r than voided, i f 
p o s s i b l e , i n order t o achieve the i n t e n t of the p a r t i e s t o t h i s Agreement t o the 
f u l l e s t extent p o s s i b l e . I n any event, a l l other p r o v i s i o n s of t h i s Agreement 
s h a l l be deemed v a l i d and enforceable t o the f u l l e s t extent p o s s i b l e . 

18.5 Waiver. Waiver of any term or c o n d i t i o n of t h i s Agreement by 
any p a r t y hereto s h a l l only be e f f e c t i v e i f i n w r i t i n g and s h a l l not be 
construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach or f a i l u r e of the same term or 
c o n d i t i o n or any other term or c o n d i t i o n of t h i s Agreement. 
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18.6 Binding Effect; Assignment. This Agreement and a l l of the 
provisions hereof s h a l l be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto and t h e i r respective successors and permitted assigns, but neither t h i s 
Agreement nor any of the r i g h t s , interests or obligations hereunder shall be 
assigned (whether v o l u n t a r i l y , i n v o l u n t a r i l y , by operation of law or otherwise) 
by any of the parties hereto without the p r i o r written consent of the other 
parties; provided, however, that the Buyer may assign t h i s Agreement, i n whole 
or i n any part, and from time to time, to a wholly owned, direct or in d i r e c t , 
Subsidiary of the Buyer or an A f f i l i a t e of the Buyer. 

18.7 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing i n t h i s Agreement sh a l l 
confer any rights upon any person or e n t i t y that i s not a party to t h i s 
Agreement except as expressly provided hereunder. 

18.8 Expenses Related to Audit Rights. Wherever either party has an 
aud i t • r i g h t , the party exercising i t s audit r i g h t shall be e n t i t l e d to 
reimbursement of i t s reasonable and customary expenses associated with such 
audit from the other party i n the event such audit results i n a determination 
that there was a material inaccuracy adverse to the party conducting the audit. 
Further, the party being audited shall be e n t i t l e d to reimbursement of i t s 
reasonable and customary expenses associated with supporting such audit from the 
party conducting the audit i n the event such audit results i n a determination 
that the subject matter audited was materially accurate. Any inaccuracies 
determined by any such audit shall be corrected i n the favor of the party to 
whom.the inaccuracy was adverse. 

18.9 Pronouns. Whenever the context requires, the use i n t h i s 
Agreement of a pronoun of any gender shall be deemed to refer also to any other 
gender, and the use of the singular s h a l l be deemed to refer also to the p l u r a l . 

18.10 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed i n any number of 
counterparts with the same effect as i f the signatures to each counterpart were 
upon a single instrument, and a l l such counterparts together s h a l l be deemed an 
or i g i n a l of t h i s Agreement. 

18.11 Headings. The headings i n the sections, paragraphs, Schedules 
and Exhibits of t h i s Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only 
and shall not constitute a part hereof. The words "herein," "hereof," "hereto" 
and "hereunder," as well as other words of similar import, refer to t h i s 
Agreement as a whole and not to any p a r t i c u l a r provision of t h i s Agreement. 

39 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused t h i s Agreement to be 
duly executed on the day and year f i r s t above written. 

COMMONWEALTH ENERGY CORPORATION 
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By: /S/ PETER WEIGAND 

Name: Peter Weigand 
T i t l e : President 

ACN UTILITY SERVICES, INC. 

By: /S/ JAMES F. MULCAHY 

Name: James F. Mulcahy 
T i t l e : Secretary/Treasurer 

ACN ENERGY, INC. 

By: /S/ JAMES F. MULCAHY 

Name: James F. Mulcahy 
T i t l e : Secretary/Treasurer 

ACN POWER, INC. 

By: /S/ JAMES F. MULCAHY 

Name: James F. Mulcahy 
T i t l e : Secretary/Treasurer 

As t o Section 4.22, 6.11 and A r t i c l e 13 only: 

AMERICAN COMMUNICATIONS NETWORK, INC. 

By: /S/ JAMES F. MULCAHY 

Name: James F. Mulcahy 
T i t l e : Secretary/Treasurer 

[Signature page t o Asset Purchase Agreement] 

As t o Sections 3.1(b) and 4.22 only: 

COMMERCE ENERGY GROUP, INC. 

By: I S / PETER WEIGAND 

Name: Peter Weigand 
T i t l e : President 

^Signature page t o Asset Purchase Agreement] 
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PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
CORPORATION BUREAU 

Entity Number 

2890912 

Application for Amended Certificate of Authority 
Foreign Corporation 

(15Pa.C.S.) 
x x Foreign Business Coiporation (§4126) 

Foreign Nonprofit Corporation (§ 6126) 

Name 
Betsy A. Ruth, McNees Wallace & Nurick LLC 

Address 
100 Pine Street, P.O. Box 1166 

City State ZipCode 

Harrisburg PA 17108-1166 

Document will be returned to the 
name and address you enter to 
the left 

Fee: $250 
Filed in the Department of State on 

Secretary of the Commonwealth 

o 
t j 

I 
In compliance with the requirements of the applicable provisions of 15 Pa.C.S. (relating to corporations and unincorporated 

associations), the undersigned foreign corporation, desiring to receive an amended certificate of authority, hereby states that: 

m 3 

o 
CD 

1. The name under which the corporation currently holds a certificate of authority to do business within the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is: 

Commonwealth Energy Corporation 

2. The name of the jurisdiction under the laws of which the corporation is incorporated is: Californi3 

3. The address of its principal office under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated is: 

600 Anton Blvd., Suite 2000 Costa Mesa CA 92626 
Nuffiber and Street City State Zip 

4. The (a) address of this corporation's registered office in this Commonwealth or (b) name of its commercial 
registered office provider and the county of venue is: 

(a) Number and Street City State Zip County 

(b) Name of Commercial Registered Office Provider 
c/o: CT Corporation System 

County 
Philadelphia 

Check if applicable: 

, The foregoing reflects a change in Pennsylvania registered office. 



Mar-31-2005 04:23pm From-ieOOELECTRIC 7142592516 T-708 P.003/006 F-817 

DSCB.15-4126/6126-2 

5 Tbe corpomton desim (hu ito ccmfioau; of iwibOfity be aoicmJetJ io change the mum under which it is 
authorized to vvtuct bo»roc« tn (he Commonweaidi of Pennsylvutia to 

Commerce Energy, inc. 

th* nam* set forth m Paragraph S u {iot available for Uie m rhis Commontrealih, complete thcfoUowtng: 

Tbo fieddous name which Ihe oorporqoon udopu for use in masactiog business m dus Conunonweailih is: 

Ttts coiporation shall do bibuutf m Peaniylvrann only uaAa ftucb ficiWous name fmrswBH va foe aracfted 
rcsolutjoo ofthe board of dtroctori under Ae apfUcaok provUlom of ] 5 Pa.C.S. (nluljig to corponttons aud 
unmcofponiied associations) and tbe amched fonn DSC8:S4-311 (Appliomon for Rcgwtretion of Ficnnous 
Naow). 

7. Cteek on* of tiwjbflawing. 

*>• The dumgc of name re fleets a dumge effected in the jumdicUon of incorporation 

DociuiKuii complying widt ihe applicable provWom of 15 Pb-C.S. § 4123(b) <H'6l23Cb) Crejfrfing io 
excepdoo; oame) accompany du* apphcafaoa. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undenlgned 
coiporwioD hu cnused ibts Application for an Amended 
Cenificate of Amfcortty to be signed by a duly auJbonarff 
DfRccrlbcroofdus 

3 1 s t : (byof March 

2005 

Commonweattn Energy Corporation 
Name of Coipoiatiba 2 name w uoiponiw 

fer WBlgarWrPreSiaent 
Tide 



Disclosure Statement for Natural Gas Suppliers 

This is an agreement for natural gas services, between Commerce Energy, Inc. ("Commerce 
Energy") and 

(Customer's name and full address). 
Background 

We at Commerce Energy are licensed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission to 
offer and supply natural gas services in Pennsylvania. Our PUC license number is 
A- . 

• We set the commodity prices and charges that you pay. The Public Utility 
Commission regulates distribution prices and services. 

• You will receive a single bill from your natural gas distribution company 
("NGDC") for our charges as well as the NGDC's charges. Commerce Energy 
reserves the right to assume the billing function for our services. 

• Right of Rescission - You may cancel this agreement at any time before midnight 
of the third business day after receiving this disclosure. 

Definitions 

• Commodity Charges - The charges for the natural gas product, which is sold 
either in cubic feet or dekatherms. 

• Customer Charge - A fixed monthly charge for costs incurred by Commerce 
Energy in servicing your account. 

TERMS OF SERVICE 

1. Basic Service Prices 

a. Commodity Charge 

You will pay a variable rate ("price"). This price includes estimated total state tax. This 
price excludes state sales and local taxes. Your price may vary monthly under this 
month-to-month agreement depending on wholesale costs and market conditions. Public 
market indexes that are indicative of wholesale costs include Inside FERC's Monthly Gas 
Market Report spot gas delivery charges for Texas Eastern Zone M-3 and Transco Zone 
6, Piatt's Gas Daily Texas Eastern M-3 and Transco Zone 6 daily price survey, and the 
daily natural gas cash and futures prices reported in the Wall Street Journal. 

Your starting price will be $ per ccf in the month you begin receiving service from 
Commerce Energy, and this rate will be reflected on your first bill. This starting price is 
valid for service beginning on or before . 

30 March 2005 



Thereafter, your price will vary depending on wholesale market conditions, as described 
above. Commerce Energy will post its monthly price on its website, 
www.commercenerev.com. at least three days prior to the first day of each month. This 
monthly price will be the price that Commerce Energy will charge you for natural gas 
delivered to you for the billing period that begins on or after the first day of the month. 
You may call the Commerce Energy Rate Hotline at 1-800-353-2874 Ext. 6583 for 
information. 

Your price shall not exceed five times the highest published price in Piatt's Gas Daily for 
Transco Zone 6 over the previous 45 days. 

b. Customer Charge 

You will pay $2.99 per month for the customer charge. 

c. Security Deposits 

We may perform a credit check, and, based on the results of a credit check, you may be 
required to pay a security deposit or agree to a pre-authorized credit card payment prior 
to switching your account to Commerce Energy. Commerce Energy will follow 
applicable regulations. 

2. Length of Agreement 

You will buy your natural gas services for the above street address from Commerce 
Energy beginning on your first meter reading date on or after , and will 
continue until this agreement is cancelled by either one of us according to Paragraph 5. 

3. Limitation of Liability 

Commerce Energy assumes no liability or responsibility for losses or consequential 
damages arising from the following items associated with your local distribution 
company: operation and maintenance of their system; any interruption of service; 
termination of service; or deterioration of service. Nor does Commerce Energy assume 
responsibility or liability for losses or consequential damages arising from any in-home 
damages. The remedy in any claim or suit by you against Commerce Energy will be 
limited to direct actual damages. By entering into this agreement, you waive any right to 
any other remedy. In no event will either Commerce Energy or you be liable for 
consequential, incidental or punitive damages. These limitations apply without regard to 
the cause of any liability or damages. 

4. Penalties, Fees and Exceptions 

You agree that you will pay your bill on or before the due date shown on the 
bill. If you do not pay the full amount ofthe bill by the due date, you will be 
charged a late payment fee at an interest rate of 1.5% per month on unpaid 
balances or otherwise in accordance with your NGDC's policies and 
procedures. 



5. Cancellation Provisions 

You may cancel this agreement for any reason by giving Commerce Energy 30 days 
written notice. Commerce Energy may cancel this agreement for any reason by giving 
you two written notices. The first notice will be sent to you 90 days before the effective 
date ofthe cancellation, and the second will be sent to you at least 60 days before the 
effective date of the cancellation. I f you do not pay your bill on time, we may cancel this 
agreement for non-payment by providing 10 days written notice. I f Commerce Energy 
cancels your service for non-payment, you must pay the balance owed under this 
agreement plus our reasonable collection costs up to $50.00. 

6. Agreement Expiration/Change in Terms 

I f we propose to change the terms of our service, we will send you two written notices. 
The first notice will be sent to you 90 days before the effective date ofthe changes and 
the second will be sent to you at least 60 days before the effective date ofthe changes. 
We will explain your options in these advance notices. 

7. Dispute Procedures 

Contact us with any questions concerning our terms or service. You may call the Public 
Utility Commission ifyou are not satisfied after discussing your terms with us. 

8. Contact Information 

Supplier Name: Commerce Energy, Inc. 

Address: 600 Anton Blvd., Suite 2000 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

Phone Number: 1-800-353-2874 Ext. 6583 
Internet Address: www.commercenergy.com 

Natural Gas Distribution 
Company/Supplier of Last Resort 

In PECO utility area: PECO Energy Company 
2301 Market Street 
PO Box 8699 
Philadelphia, PA 19101 
(215) 841-4000 

Universal Service Program: PECO Energy Customer Assistance Program 1-800-782-3228 

Public Utility Commission Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Address: P.O. Box 3265 

Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 

Utility Choice Hotline 1-888-782-3228 





I 
An Mm Energy Delivery 

March 25, 2005 
PECO - Exelon Corporation 

EED-Energy Acquisition-Electric & Gas Choice 
2301 Market Street 

Phildadelphia, PA. 19101 

Commerce Energy Group, Inc. 
600 Anton Boulevard 
Suite 2000 
Costa Mesa; California 92626 

Dear Prospective Pennsylvania Gas Supplier 

EED-Energy Acquisition-Electric & Gas Choice creditworthiness review is completed 
and Commerce Energy Group, Inc has met the creditworthiness business requirement 
involved with the Pennsylvania Gas Choice - Low Volume Transportation program. 

Please note, although the creditworthiness requirements.were met, as referenced within 
Section 7.13 (Creditworthiness of a Natural Gas Supplier (NGS) Serving Low Volume 
Transportation Customers) ofthe Gas Service Tariff, PECO has the right to re-assess the 
creditworthiness'of the company if PECO has any reason to suspect a change in the 
marketers fmancial condition. In addition, PECO has transitioned all of our ACN Energy 
Gas Choice accounting to reflect Commerce Energy, Inc. as the company of record. 

Ifyou should have any questions regarding this matter, please contact the Electric & Gas 
Choice Hotline at 215-841-3700. 

Sincerely, 

Carlo Ciabattoni 
Manager 

Energy Acquisition-Electric & Gas Choice 



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 

DATE: April 25, 2005 

SUBJECT: A-125014 F2000 
A-125138 

TO: Bureau of Fixed Utility Services 

FROM: James J. McNulty, Secretary 

Attached is a copy of the Joint Petition/Application of 
ACN Energy, Inc., and Commerce Energy, Inc., for approval 
of the transfer of the natural gas license of ACN Energy, 
Inc., to Commerce Energy, Inc., the cancellation of ACN 
Energy's natural gas license, and for Commerce Energy, 
Inc., to begin to supply Natural Gas Services as a Supplier 
of Natural Gas Services to the public in the Service Territory 
of Peco Energy Company. 

Applicant is seeking to supply natural gas services to 
the public in the service territory of Peco Energy Company. 
Therefore, the applicant has been instructed to publish 
notice of the application filing in the Philadelphia Inquirer, 
and file proof of publication with this Commission. 

This matter is assigned to your Bureau for 
appropriate action. 

Attachment 

cc: Law 

ddt 

DOCUMENT 
FOLDER 

APR 25 2005 



IM MONWEALTH OF PENNSYLV^IA 
PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
P. O. BOX 3265, HARRISBURG PA 17105-3265 

April 25, 2005 

IN REPLY PLEASE 
REFER TO OUR FILE 

Secretary 
717-772-7777 

A-125014 F2000 
A-125138 

DERRICK PRICE WILLIAMSON ESQUIRE 
CHARIS MINCAVAGE ESQUIRE 
MCNEES WALLACE AND NURICK LLC 
P O BOX 1166 
100 PINE STREET 
HARRISBURG PA 17108-1166 DOCUMENT 

FOLDER 
Dear Mr. Williamson: 

The Joint Application of ACN Energy, Inc., and Commerce Energy, Inc., filed in this 
Office on April 8, 2005, for approval to transfer the Natural Gas Supplier License of ACN 
Energy to Commerce Energy, for ACN Energy to abandon, and for Commerce Energy to 
begin providing Natural Gas Services as a Supplier of Natural Gas to the public in the 
Service Territory of Peco Energy Company, is hereby acknowledged. 

Pursuant to the Commission's Final Order, entered July 16, 1999, at M-
00991249F0002, notice of filing of this Application must be published in newspapers of 
general circulation covering each county in which you intend to provide service. Your 
application states you wish to supply natural gas service to the public in the service territory 
of Peco Energy Company. Therefore, you must publish notice of your application in the 
Philadelphia Inquirer, and file proof of such notice with this Commission. 

The Joint Application of ACN Energy, Inc., and Commerce Energy, Inc., will 
receive the attention of the Commission, and you will be advised of any further necessary 
procedure. 

Sincerely, 

APR 25 2005 
l a m o c I M I - M I I I K / v James J. McNulty 
Secretary 

JJM.ddt 



PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

RECEIPT 

The addressee named here has paid the PA P.U.C. for the following bill: 

DATE: 4/29/2005 
RECEIPT NO: 203109 

CHARIS MINCAVAGE 
MCNEES WALLACE & NURICK LLC 
P.O. BOX 1166 
HARRISBURG PA 17108-1166 

RECEIVED 
APR 2 9 ZOO5 

ic UTIUT 
SECRETARY 

•nnrimUTV COMMISSION 
^ P ^ S ' S BUREAU 

IN RE: Application fees for COMMERCE ENERGY, INC. 

Docket Number A-125138 $350.00 

REVENUE ACCOUNT: 001780-017601-102 

CHECKNUMBER: 138031 
CHECK AMOUNT: $350.00 

Stephen Reed 
(for Department of Revenue) 

MAY 2 2005 

FOLDER 


